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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

6

SPEECH OF THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF JSC «MOESK»

The largest Russian Interregional Distribution Grid Company JSC «MOESK», notwithstanding the complicated operating conditions
caused by natural disasters, managed to demonstrate positive results in follow-up of the
year 2010. Such achievements became possible
due to coordinated work of the members of the
Board of Directors and management staff of
JSC «MOESK».
In 2010 the interests of shareholders in the
Board of Directors of JSC «MOESK» were represented by officials of such companies as JSC
«IDGC Holding», «FGC UES», JSC, «SO UPS»,
CJSC «Leader», Gazprombank (OJSC) as well as
Ministry of Energy of the Russian Federation,
Governments of the city of Moscow and Moscow
Region.
Special attention in 2010 was paid to implementation of energy conservation policy
and increase in energy efficiency, adoption of
tariff management system for electric power
transmission services subject to the method of
return on invested capital as well as approval
of a range of programs, statutes, plans: Risk
management policy, Internal control policy,
HR management program as amended, Plan
of first-rank events for increase in antiterrorist and anti-sabotage security of electric grid
facilities.
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The Board of Directors scheduled as the core
Company areas of activity for the near-term
prospect events for increase in antiterrorist and
anti-sabotage security of Company power grid
facilities; consolidation of electric grid facilities
owned by OJSC «Mosenergo» and located on the
territory of Moscow and Moscow Region; registration of title to real estate objects, registration/
re-registration of rights for use of land plots for
the period of 2011-2014.
The Board of Directors of JSC «MOESK» will
further aspire to achieve the balance of convenience of shareholders and consumers, increase
in investment prospects, reliability and transparency with account of public supervision over efficiency of financial and operating activity of the
Company.

MOESK

Among the overall amount of approved documents, special attention shall be paid to the Statute on Dividend Policy of the Company which was
executed with regard to the Company and shareholders’ balance of convenience and aimed at increase in investment prospects of JSC «MOESK»
and market capitalization thereof.
Decisions adopted by the Board of Directors
were implemented by the General Director and
Company management staff who displayed a
high level of efficiency upon execution of targets set up by the Board of Directors. In followup of the year the Company managed to reach
significant financial indices: proceeds according
to Russian Accounting Standards made up 110.6
bln. rub., and net profit – 15.6 bln. rub.
Approval by the regulatory bodies of the city
of Moscow and Moscow Region of adoption by JSC
«MOESK» since January 1st, 2011 of a new tariff
management system based on the method of return on invested capital can for certain be qualified as a successful completion of the year 2010.
A long-term pricing policy will contribute to the
increase in reliability and quality of services for
power transmission over the Company power grid
with simultaneous modernization of fixed assets.
In the course of preparation for fall-winter period of 2011-2012 5.2 bln. rub. were planned to
be allocated for the maintenance campaign.

Yours faithfully,
Chairman of the Board of Directors
N.N. Shvets
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SPEECH OF THE GENERAL
DIRECTOR OF JSC «MOESK»

Last year JSC «MOESK» confirmed the Company's status as the entity which has held one
of the leading positions within the power grid
complex of the country for five years.
The year of 2010 became a serious test for
viability of JSC «MOESK». We were examined
by climatic cataclysms such as heat waves and
widespread fires in summer and «icy rain» in
winter. Nevertheless, the power engineers of
the Company managed to pass this examination «with honours» having demonstrated capability to work in any environment.
On the whole we can describe the year of
2010 as a successful one. Productive supply of
electric power in 2010 increased up to 74.2 bln.
kWh.
The core Company activities to have been focused on in 2010 were support of reliable and
continuous power supply for consumers of the
Moscow Region, optimization of capital investment structure and increase in operating efficiency.
In 2010 the Company implemented a largescale investment program in the amount of
19.5 bln. rub. The value of connected capacity reached 991 MW. Increase in efficiency of
capital construction provided an opportunity
to reduce the amount of work in progress by approximately 10 bln. rub.
For the purpose of increase in operating efficiency, JSC «MOESK» introduced process-oriented methods for management, standardization
and optimization of major business-processes.
For resolution of various issues we created matrix elements – corporate teams of highest performance.

Yours faithfully,
General Director
A.P. Konovalov
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The Company intends in 2011 to proceed with
implementation of the purposes as follows, with
account of development plans up to the year
2020:
– ensuring of reliability and quality of services
rendered as determined by generally accepted
customer interruption and quality indices;
– reduction in operating expenses;
– increase in the efficiency of investment activity by means of reduction in construction costs
and increase in the quality of investment planning;
– expansion of Company representation in the
region;
– innovations and energy efficiency;
– ensuring of availability of services for technological connection;
– capitalization growth.
In follow-up of the Company activity in 2010
we can surely claim that accumulated working
capacity, financial and production resources
shall provide for successful completion of tasks
set up by JSC «MOESK» and therefore keep the
position of one of the leading companies within
the field.
We would like to further express our gratitude
to the Company employees participating in the
elimination of severe consequences of natural
disasters as well as colleagues from other operating companies of JSC «IDGC Holding» who have
come to the rescue and independent contractors
who displayed an example of excellent teamwork
and commitment.

MOESK

JSC «MOESK» in 2010 proceeded with the policy aimed at promotion of customer-oriented approach. Eager to join the leaders among interregional distribution companies in Russia in the
sphere of technological connection in the near
term prospect, JSC «MOESK» provided for technological connection to the power grid of 17 787
consumers in Moscow and Moscow Region. The
Company made efforts to optimize work with minor consumers, to improve the electronic system
for record and handling of requests for technological connection, to introduce the mechanisms
for requests to be tracked by the customer via the
corporate site of the Company.
Positive dynamics of the key financial and economic indices suggests an opinion of a steady position of JSC «MOESK». Thus, the Company managed to optimize the leverage having decreased
accounts payable by 12 bln. rub., and nearly
having doubled net profit: with its estimated
amount of 7 bln. rub. the Company in compliance with its annual accounting reports reached
the level of 15.6 bln. rub.
Special attention shall be paid to completion
of arrangements for adoption by JSC «MOESK»
of a new tariff management scheme – method
of return on invested capital which shall further
provide for efficient management of operating
expenses and increase the share of investment
component in the tariff.
In 2010 JSC «MOESK» proceeded with implementation of efficient social policy having concluded a new Collective agreement. To ensure
production reliability and efficiency in 2010 the
Company worked for the creation of appropriate
HR management system.
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SCHEDULE OF MILESTONES
JANUARY

◆ JSC «MOESK» held a conference of the veterans of war and labor.
◆ JSC «MOESK» improved power supply for Melikhovo mansion house in the Chekhov district

in Moscow area.

FEBRUARY

MARCH

APRIL

◆

Completion of overhead transmission line of 220 kV «TPP-26 – Yasenevo».

◆ Andrey Pavlovich Konovalov was elected the General Director of JSC «MOESK».
◆ JSC «MOESK» paid out coupon profit for bonds of series 01 in the amount of 40

rubles 14
copecks for one bond at the tariff of 8.05%. The overall amount of payments for the seventh
coupon made up 94.6 mln rub.
◆ The annual report of JSC «MOESK» was ranked the first in the nomination «The Best Annual
Report» as of the results of the VIth competition of annual reports and corporate sites of the
electric power industry enterprises in «Energorynok» periodical.
◆ Completion of major equipment installation for «MGU» substation of 110/20 kV located in
the Western district of Moscow.
◆ The 1st of April, 2010 was the 5th anniversary since incorporation of JSC «MOESK».
◆ The Board of Directors of JSC «MOESK» approved the Business-plan including Company

investment program for the year 2010.
◆ JSC «MOESK» held a research-to-practice conference with the participation of power
engineers from Germany.
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MAY

◆

Power engineers of JSC «MOESK» expeditiously eliminated consequences of hurricane in
the Moscow Region.
◆ JSC «MOESK» provided for power supply of a new section of Lyublinskaya metro line –
metro stations «Maryina Roshcha» and «Dostoyevskaya».
◆ A new Collective agreement was signed by JSC «MOESK».

JUNE

◆ JSC «MOESK» was awarded with a diploma of a participant of international «Echwatech-2010»

JULY

◆

AUGUST

exhibition.
◆ The Board of Directors of JSC «MOESK» approved the Annual complex program for
competitive and governed non-competitive procurement of JSC «MOESK» for 2010.
On June 30, 2010 JSC «MOESK» held an annual General shareholders’ meeting in follow-up of
the year 2009.
◆ Following reconstruction «Semyonovskaya» substation was put into operation in the
south-west of Moscow.
◆ JSC «MOESK» initiated a campaign «Fair kilowatt» to detect cases of unauthorized
connection to the power grid of JSC «MOESK».

Affiliated branch of JSC «MOESK» – High-Voltage Cable Networks ensured connection of
two cable lines of 110 kV: «Butovo – Grach» and «Novo-Orekhovo – Borisovo».
◆ Power was supplied to a new residential complex in Khamovniki district.
◆ A Social report of JSC «MOESK» as of 2009 was published.

◆ Power engineers of JSC «MOESK» restored power supply of socially significant facilities and

residential properties in the residential areas of Moscow Region having suffered from fire.
◆ Following reconstruction «Sokolniki» substation of 110/10/6 kV was put into operation in
the Eastern administrative district of Moscow.

SCHEDULE OF MILESTONES

◆ Central Electric Networks – affiliated branch of JSC «MOESK» completed installation, set-up

and connected four regulating transformers at the «Yelokhovskaya» substation of 220/110/10
kV located in the center of Moscow.
◆ JSC «MOESK» completed works for power supply of the Federal Research and Clinical Center
of Pediatric Hematology, Oncology and Immunology.
◆ JSC «MOESK» paid out dividends for shares of the Company in follow-up of 2009 in the
amount of 450 mln rubles to the fullest extent.

SEPTEMBER

◆

OCTOBER

◆

Affiliated branch of JSC «MOESK» Western Electric Networks completed a large-scale
reconstruction of high-voltage power transmission line «Shature – Bruski», «Bruski –
Yegoryevsk».
◆ The Board of Directors of JSC «MOESK» approved the Statute on Dividend Policy of JSC
«MOESK».
◆ JSC «MOESK» paid out coupon profit for bonds of series 01 in the amount of 40 rubles 14
copecks for one bond at the tariff of 8.05%. The overall amount of payments for the eighth
coupon made up 94.6 mln rubles.
JSC «MOESK» moved to the 39th place in the rating of business leaders «Finance-500» in
2010 as compared to 56th in 2009.
◆ JSC «MOESK» conducted comprehensive decision-related staff exercises for elimination of
disturbances at electric grid facilities.
◆ JSC «MOESK» took part in the exhibition «Occupational Safety in Moscow». The Company
was awarded a diploma of the Moscow Government for active assistance in the settlement of
issues related to occupational safety.

NOVEMBER

◆

JSC «MOESK» received a passport confirming its capability for working in cold weather
conditions.
◆ JSC «MOESK» was awarded with a gold medal and Diploma of Awardee of the competition
«100 Best Russian Companies. Ecology and Industrial Safety».
◆ Substation «Podushkino» was put into operation in Odintsovsky district.
◆ The second compliance audit inspection for conformance of the management systems
to the standards ISO 9001:2008, OHSAS 18001:2007 and ISO 14001:2004 was successfully
completed.
◆ According to the results of the XIIIth Competition of annual reports arranged for by OJSC
«RTS» the annual report of JSC «MOESK» as of 2009 became the winner in the nomination
«The Best Annual Report of Electric Power Supply Industry Sector».
◆ The International Rating Agency Standard & Poor’s published the results of research of
transparency of Russian companies in the year 2010, JSC «MOESK» being mentioned therein
as the company appreciably improving its transparency starting from 2008.
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◆
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JSC «MOESK» took part in the International special-purpose exhibition «Electric Networks
of Russia».
◆ JSC «MOESK» subject to the results of All-Russian Ecological Conference «New Priorities
of National Environmental Policy in the Real Economy Sector» was awarded with a medal of
honour and certificate «For Environmental Safety».
◆ The Board of Directors of JSC «MOESK» approved a Business-plan including investment
program of JSC «MOESK» for the year 2011.
◆ As a result of anomalous weather phenomena the power engineers of JSC «MOESK» restored
power supply in the mode of continuous operation in the residential areas of Moscow Region.
◆ The Board of Directors approved the Program for development and increase in reliability of
operating and technological control system for electric grid complex of JSC «MOESK» for the
years 2011 – 2015.
◆ The Federal Tariff System of Russia accepted a decision for JSC «MOESK» to adopt a tariff
management system subject to the method of return on invested capital.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY
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1.1. POSITION IN THE FIELD
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tricgrid facilities;
◆ creation of a consolidated balance
of power energy in the territory of the
region;
◆ establishment of a single point of
responsibility;
◆ consolidation of prospective development programs.
Since July 1, 2008 – the date of liquidation of OJSC RAO «UES of Russia» – the
majority interest in JSC «MOESK» has
been held by JSC «IDGC Holding» – the
largest infrastructure organization of
Russia owing 80 percent of the distribution electric grid complex of the country.
As of the present moment JSC
«MOESK» is the largest interregional distribution grid company in Russia and is
part of the company group managed by
JSC «IDGC Holding».
The core Company activity is rendering paid services for transmission of
power energy on the territory of Moscow and Moscow Region by means of
an action plan consolidated in its organization and technology ensuring
transmission of power energy through
technical devices of proprietory electrical grid.
The Company receives power to its
grid from generating companies – subjects of wholesale and retail markets
from the Unified National (All-Russian) Power Grid (UNPG) and from the
networks located in the adjacent subjects of the Russian Federation. JSC
«MOESK» further transmits power energy to the end consumers connected
to the Company grid to the adjacent
networks (municipal unitary enterprises (MUE)), wholesale consumersresellers (WCR), to the territorial grid
companies (TGC).
JSC «MOESK» is a subject of natural
monopolies in the sphere of rendering
services for transmission of power energy
to the consumers of Moscow and Moscow
Region – the most energy-consuming region of Russia with about 18 mln people
residing and working therein.
JSC «MOESK» serves 98.3% of consumers on the territory of Moscow and 96.6%
of consumers on the territory of Moscow
Region.

MOESK

О

pen
Joint-Stock
Company
«Moscow
United Electric Grid
Company» was incorporated
on April 1, 2005 as a result
of reorganization of JSC
«Mosenergo» through separation (minutes of the meeting of General
shareholders’ meeting of JSC «Mosenergo»
dated. 29.06.2004 No. 1). Name of the Company upon incorporation – Open Joint-Stock
Company «Moscow Region Electric Grid Company».
The Company is a successor with regard to part of the rights and obligations
of JSC «Mosenergo» in compliance with
separation balance sheer of JSC «Mosenergo».
As the Company activity covers the
territory of both Moscow Region and the
city of Moscow upon the decision of the
annual General shareholders’ meeting
on June 26, 2006 JSC «Moscow Region
Electric Grid Company» was renamed
into JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company».
In 2007 JSC «MOESK» arranged for
events for amendment of organization
structure for the purpose of branch consolidation. On December 29, 2007 the
Company established and registered 3 affiliated companies with a 100 % share of
JSC «MOESK»:
◆ JSC «Moskabelsetmontazh»;
◆ JSC «Moskabelenergoremont»;
◆ JSC «Plant for Maintenance of Electrical Equipment».
On February 29, 2008 the Board of Directors of OJSC RAO «UES of Russia» adopted a decision on incorporation of interregional distribution grid company of
Moscow and Moscow Region on the basis
of JSC «MOESK» in the form of reorganization through consolidation of OJSC
«MGEsK» with JSC «MOESK».
On June 30, 2008 JSC «MOESK» was
reorganized through consolidation with
OJSC «MGEsK». As a result, a united operating company on the basis of electric
grid facilities of Moscow and Moscow Region was established which provided the
reorganized Company with a range of advantages:
◆ increase in manageability of elec-

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

1.2. STRUCTURE AND CHARACTERISTICS OF ELECTRIC GRID FACILITIES
As of the present moment,
oment,
ment, JSC «MOESK»
includes 7 affiliated
d branches:

Moscow
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Northern Electric Networks (NEN);
Southern Electric Networks (SEN);
◆ Western Electric Networks (WEN);
◆ Eastern Electric Networks (EEN);
◆ Central Electric Networks (CEN);
◆ High-Voltage Cable Networks (HVCN);
◆ Moscow Cable Networks (MCN).
◆
◆

Electric grid facilities
of the Company
are represented by
overhead and cable
transmission lines
and transformer
substations.

Moscow

Moscow
Region

Moscow
and Moscow
Region

Total length of overhead transmission lines (in
chains), km.

1 611.8

65 534.5

67 146.3

Length of cable lines, km.

69 960.7

11 532.7

81 493.4

111

496

607

20 832.4

23 208.8

44 041.2

Overall amount of transformer substations of distribution networks, pcs.

17 243

14 192

31 435

Fixed transformer capacity of distribution networks,
MVA

20 554.4

4 775.6

25 330.0

Basic technical specifications

Total amount of high-voltage substations, pcs.
Fixed transformer capacity, MVA
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1.3. TOP BUSINESS TARGETS AND DEVELOPMENT PROSPECTS
While providing for power supply of
the metropolitan region of the Russian
Federation, JSC «MOESK» aims to ensure
the maximum level of reliability and
availability of distribution grid infra-

structure using energy efficient technologies and innovations, adhering to world
quality standards for services rendered
and best practice of corporate management.

The core strategic goals of the Company in the mid term are:
increase in power supply reliability;
increase in availability of power grid infrastructure and quality of services rendered;
◆ increase in energy efficiency due to reduction of losses and introduction of innovations;
◆ increase in Company investment prospects and capitalization.
◆
◆

INCREASE IN
To increase power supply reliability the Company implements an action plan
RELIABILITY AND
including:
QUALITY OF COMPANY
◆ implementation of widespread maintenance and investment program;
SERVICES
◆ introduction of automated grid management complex;
◆

introduction of lean production methods.

As part of prospective activities aimed at increase in power supply reliability
the Company is planning to provide for:
development and implementation of program for renovation of equipment having
survived its life cycle;
◆ development and implementation of regional program for prevention of system
emergencies in collaboration with «SO UPS», «FGC UES», JSC, JSC «Mosenergo»,
Governments of Moscow and Moscow Region;
◆ increase in the share of telemechanized substations;
◆ increase in the share of cable transmission lines and overhead lines with the use of
self-supporting insulated wire;
◆ increase in the share of unattended equipment;
◆ introduction of automated grid management complex;
◆ introduction of reliability centered maintenance (RCM);
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increase in the share of diagnostics as part of repair stock;

◆

introduction of business continuity management standards.

In 2010 to arrange for works to ensure priority development and increase
in availability of power grid infrastructure, the Company developed a Program
for derestriction of main substations of
JSC «MOESK» closed for technological
connection in Moscow for the period

of 2012 – 2016, the purpose of which is
derestriction of closed main substations
and backup of transformer capacity of
JSC «MOESK» to ensure technological
connection of consumers to power grid
in Moscow.

The target indices of the Program are:
◆ input 15 647 MVA of transformer capacity (with account of replacement of overloaded
transformers) on the territory of Moscow within the period of 2011 – 2016;
◆ backup of capacity for technological connections in 2016 in the amount of 2 636 MVA.

MOESK

INCREASE IN
AVAILABILITY
OF POWER GRID
INFRASTRUCTURE
AND QUALITY OF
SERVICES RENDERED

◆
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◆
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To achieve target indices of the Program were scheduled events for reconstruction
of 74 substations of 110-220 kV and 34 power transmission lines of 110-220 kV.
As a result of implementation of events in the framework of the Program prior
to 2016, 85 main substations of JSC «MOESK» will be derestricted as well as 7 main
substations will be closed due to execution of JSC «MOESK» obligations under agreements for technological connection and natural load buildup.
To increase customer service quality the Company developed a Program for implementation of actions aimed at promotion of customer-oriented approach of the company.
The core activities
stipulated by the
Program are:

16

◆ increase in efficiency of the work of Customer Service call-center due to installation
of special-purpose equipment;
◆ reduction of average time for execution of agreements for technological connection
due to introduction of lean production tools;
◆ introduction of additional services for increase in the customer awareness of the
services rendered by the Company.

Moreover, to increase the transparency of information on availability of power
grid infrastructure, increase of customer
satisfaction the Company developed and
launched an Internet-portal for technological connection to electric networks
of Moscow which enables preliminary assessment by individual persons and legal
entities of the possibility of technological connection on the online map as well

as to track their requests for technological connection.
Upon further development of Internet-portal the consumers will be provided with the information on the backup
power and terms of main substations
derestriction as well as with the opportunity to implement the procedure of
technological connection via the portal
bypassing the service center.

INCREASE IN ENERGY
In the course of the year 2010, within the framework of order «Concerning major
EFFICIENCY
activities for business development, increase in reliability, level of equipment opera-

tion and maintenance, automation and mechanization of operating processes, health
maintenance of personnel», JSC «MOESK» implemented an action plan aimed at energy conservation effect including:
shutdown of unloaded transformers;
◆ replacement of wire on the overloaded overhead lines by heavy-gauge wire;
◆ raids in conjunction with OJSC «Mosenergosbyt» for detection of unauthorized connection of consumers, unregistered and non-contractual consumption;
◆ checkup of engineering status of consumer metering devices for the purpose of reliable metering.
◆

To arrange for works ensuring increase in energy efficiency in compliance with
the requirements of the Federal Law «Concerning energy conservation and introduction of amendments to particular legislative acts of the Russian Federation» dated
23.11.2009 No. 261-FZ in 2010 the Company developed Programs for energy conservation and increase in energy efficiency of JSC «MOESK» in the territory of Moscow
and Moscow Region for the period of 2011 – 2015.
The purposes of the Programs of JSC «MOESK» in the sphere of energy conservation shall be reduction in process losses of electric power upon transmission
of electric power within the proprietory power grid.
Considering the fact that JSC «MOESK» is a major consumer of power resources
within the framework of the above Programs the Company scheduled activities for
increase in efficiency of use of power resources for business operations.

ABOUT THE COMPANY
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On November 25, 2010 the Board of Directors adopted a decision on participation
of JSC «MOESK» in the Non-Profit Partnership «Alliance of Energy Auditors and Energy Service Companies».
The purpose of partnership activity is assistance to the members of the Partnership in carrying out activities as follows:
increase in quality of works in the sphere of energy audit and provision of energy
services;
◆ interaction and collaboration in the issues of development and introduction of energy
efficient and energy saving technologies, non-hazardous power production, reduction
in the energy intensity in production;
◆

◆

development of proposals to introduce amendments to the current legislation in the

of energy conservation and energy efficiency.
The effect of implementation of activities within the Program for energy
conservation and increase in energy efficiency in terms of reduction of losses
provides for decrease in the grid output
and as a consequence – in the amount
of generated electricity at the generating stations which reduces discharge of
green house gases in the air.
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The major document determining legal status, goals, targets, functions, relations, rights and liability of subdivisions
of any tier participating in introduction
of innovations and R&D of JSC «MOESK»
is a Statute on Company innovative activity approved by the Company CEO on
August 19, 2010.
In compliance with the Statute for the
purpose of carrying out innovative activity JSC «MOESK» established a Committee for Energy Conservation and Innovations – a collegial body for management
of innovative activity. The purpose of
the Committee is expert work and coordination of efforts for implementation

of innovative development program and
Company scientific and technical policy,
delivery of proposals for areas of innovative development and increase in Company energy efficiency.
The Committee encompasses employees of JSC «MOESK», representatives of
field-specific state ministries and agencies and academic community.
To aggregate resources for the most
prospective areas of innovative development with a high estimated return and
high level of commercial commitment
JSC «MOESK» arranged for development
and implementation of Innovative development program.

By the development of the Program the following innovative areas are considered:
◆

technologies for restriction of short-circuit current tariffs in the power grid;

◆ increase in ultimate load of power supply equipment of JSC «MOESK» in terms of
synchronous power plant stability (including plants of minor generation) connected
to the power grid in the normal and maintenance modes to prevent «locked» power
and decrease the risk of destabilization thereof with the use of contemporary technical
approaches and management algorithms, emergency control devices and measurement
of circuit angles of power plant voltage (PMU-technologies);
◆ technologies for monitoring and increase of ultimate thermal capacity of power
transmission lines;

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

PROVISION FOR
INNOVATIVE
DEVELOPMENT

The core target of the entry by JSC
«MOESK» of Non-Profit Partnership «Alliance of Energy Auditors and Energy
Service Companies» is to gain the opportunity to conduct energy inspection
of the Company facilities as well as to
use professional experience of other
partnership participants and research
and development facilities of OJSC
«R&D Center of IDGC» upon implementation of Company programs in the field

MOESK

sphere of energy efficiency and energy conservation.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

◆ technologies for increase in ultimate load, reduction of overall dimensions,
environmental safety, control of transformer status at the substations;
◆ technologies for automated selective remote control over power consumption
(automated load management systems – ALMS);
◆ new types of manageable reactive power compensation devices and voltage
management devices with the use of power electronics (including FACTS technologies);

new principles of automated dispatcher process management and emergency control
devices with all the necessary real-time electric computations using contemporary
information technologies (including packet switching and service integration for
various sub-systems of «smart power grid» of JSC «MOESK»);
◆

◆ technologies for use of distributed generation, hydrogenous energy storage units and
high-capacity accumulators with their installation at the substations;

technologies of undersized cubicle switchboards requiring minimum construction and
installation works;
◆

◆ technologies for the development of «smart» power metering and power management
systems (smart metering);
◆ technologies for reduction in specific consumption of power resources in the buildings,
structures, constructions owned by JSC «MOESK» by no less than 5% per annum for
achievement of industry average indices typical for similar foreign companies;
◆ information technologies to increase the efficiency of production and business
process management;
◆ organizational methods for reduction of losses and improvement of production and
business processes.
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To assess expedience of innovative
projects JSC «MOESK» in 2010 arranged
for work on innovative project review
engaging field-specific scientific institutions.
In the fiscal period JSC «MOESK»
joined the technological platform
«Smart Power System of Russia». The
originators of the technological platform were «FGC UES», JSC and Federal
State Institution «Russian Energy
Agency», the platform coordinator is
INNOVATIVE
PROJECTS BEING
IMPLEMENTED BY JSC
«MOESK»:

the Ministry of Energy of the Russian
Federation.
The technological platform represents
a public-private partnership in the field of
innovations and is aimed at the creation
of prospective commercial technologies,
new products (services) as well as engagement of additional resources for research
and development for the purpose of introduction thereof at the Russian power
grid facilities to increase efficiency, reliability and safety of its activity.

◆ Introduction of high-temperature superconducting cable line at the section from
«Dynamo» substation (partners: OJSC «All-Russian Research and Development Institute
for Cable Industry», OJSC «Energy Institute named after G.M. Krzhizhanovsky», OJSC
«Science and Technology Center of Electric Power Engineering», State Technical
University Moscow Aviation Institute).
◆ Introduction of the system for control over wire status of overhead transmission lines
as a means for management of loaded elements of grid infrastructure in normal and
post-fault operation modes and increase in the throughput of overhead lines.

INCREASE
IN COMPANY
INVESTMENT
PROSPECTS AND
CAPITALIZATION

One of the major reasons for increase in investment prospects of JSC «MOESK» is
adoption by the Company of RAB-management system which enables to include in
the tariff a substantiated tariff of return on invested capital making investments
in shares and debentures of JSC «MOESK» attractive to investors.

ABOUT THE COMPANY

1

The major factors for increase in Company investment prospects and
capitalization may include:
reduction of risks;
◆ increase of credit rating;
◆ decrease in the cost of borrowed capital;
◆ decrease in operating expenses.
◆

In 2010 the Company implemented an action plan aimed at increase in investment
prospects: developed and introduced a corporate risk management system, decreased
the amount of leverage, reduced expenses for debt management, implemented the program for cost reduction.
the voltage of 110 (35) kV and higher of
JSC «MOESK» for the period up to 2020.
This project was developed with the participation of the Department for Fuel
and Energy Economy of Moscow, Committee for Fuel and Energy of Moscow
Region, JSC «IDGC Holding», affiliated
branch of «SO UES» Moscow Regional
Dispatching Office, «FGC UES», CJSC
«APBE» (Energy Forecasting Agency)
and OJSC «Gazprom promgaz».
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◆ Amendment of the list of newly erected as well as current power grid facilities of 110
(35) kV and higher to be recommended for expansion, reconstruction and technical reequipment within the period up to 2015 with prospects up to 2020;
◆ System research underlying substantive development of power grid of 110 (35) kV and
higher within the period up to 2015 with the prospects up to 2020 and actualization
based thereon of the development scheme for power grid of separate grid enterprises and
Moscow region as a whole upon availability of reliable power supply of the consumers;

Electric computation in normal and post-fault operation modes of the power grid
of 110 (35) kV and higher typical for power system, calculation of fault current for
substations/power plants of Moscow power system for the period up to 2015 with
prospects up to 2020 with delivery of proposals for reduction thereof as well as
assessment of demand in investment resources for commissioning of new and technical
re-equipment of current power grid facilities as a result thereof proposals are offered to
be included in the investment program of JSC «MOESK»;
◆

◆

Actualization of electric power balance of Moscow power system;

◆ Analysis of prospective layout of the grid of 110-220 kV with account of rearrangement
of overhead power transmission lines into cable lines, assessment of reactive power
balance adjustment of Moscow power system and elaboration of activities for reactive
power compensation within the power system;

Elaboration of approaches for the development of power grid of Moscow Region with
a limited level of short-circuit current.
◆

Decisions adopted upon execution of
work for actualization of the development scheme for power grid of Moscow
Region with the voltage of 110 (35) kV
and higher for the period up to 2020
shall serve ground for long-term in-

vestment program of JSC «MOESK» as
well as shall be accounted for upon
execution of prospective development
schemes and programs for electric
power industry of Moscow and Moscow
Region.
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THE CORE WORK
OBJECTIVES AND
TARGETS:

In compliance with Resolution of the
Government of the Russian Federation
«Concerning schemes and programs
for prospective development of electric
power industry» dd. 17.10.2009 No. 823
to ensure appropriate and coordinated
prospective development of power grid
complex on November 18, 2010 JSC
«MOESK» concluded an agreement with
OJSC «Institute «Energosetproject» for
actualization of development scheme
for power grid of Moscow Region with

MOESK

PROSPECTIVE
DEVELOPMENT
OF POWER GRID
COMPLEX OF JSC
«MOESK»

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY
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2.1. TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION OF ELECTRIC POWER
Results of Company
operating activity
as of 2010:

Name

Grid output, mln
kWh

Losses

Productive supply,
mln kWh

mln kWh

%

Moscow

42 805.1

38 010.5

4 794.6

11.20

Moscow Region

40 717.0

36 197.1

4 519.9

11.10

Total for JSC «MOESK»

83 522.1

74 207.6

9 314.5

11.15

Dynamics of the
scope of services
related to electric
power transmission
Moscow
in 2009 – 2010:

Scope of services related to electric power transmission, mln kWh
Name

Adjustment
2009

2010
mln kWh

%

36 837.4

37 696.0

858.6

2.33

Moscow Region

33 083.0

34 626.1

1 543.1

4.66

Total for JSC «MOESK»

69 920.4

72 322.1

2 401.7

3.43

Actual losses of
electric power in
2009 – 2010:

Losses of electric power
Name

2009

2010

Adjustment

mln kWh

%

mln kWh

%

mln kWh**

%*

Moscow

4 650.2

11.18

4 794.6

11.20

8.6

0.02

Moscow Region

4 400.9

11.40

4 519.9

11.10

-122.2

-0.3

Total for JSC «MOESK»

9 051.1

11.29

9 314.5

11.15

-116.9

-0.14

* Calculated as a difference between actual losses in the year 2010 (%) and actual losses in the year
2009 (%).
** Calculated as adjustment (%) multiplied by actual grid output in 2010 and divided by 100%.

Actual losses of electric power in the
power grid of JSC «MOESK» made up
9,314.5 mln kWh or 11.15% of the grid
output. As compared to the similar period of 2009 with the growth of grid output by 4.17% reduction of electric power
losses amounted to 116.9 mln kWh or
0.14% as related to the electric power
grid output.

Growth of electric power losses in 2010
as related to the same in 2009 in Moscow
was stipulated by the growth in power
consumption (grid output) by 2.89% and
appropriate increase of variable losses.
Under the conditions of 2010 comparable as to power consumption actual losses of the fiscal year are lower than losses
of the year 2009 by 68.2 mln kWh.

MOESK

S
i i the
th results
lt off work
k off JSC «MOESK»
MOESK in
i 2010 the
th scope off services
i
Summarizing
related to electric power transmission amounted to 72 322.1 mln kWh which as compared to the indices of 2009 (69 920.4 mln kWh) is by 2 401.7 mln kWh or 3.43%
higher.
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Compliance with
allowed losses of
electric power for
the year 2010:

Electric power losses
Name

Allowed losses for the
year 2010

Actual losses in 2010

Adjustment

mln kWh

%*

mln kWh

%

mln kWh***

%**

Moscow

4 741.7

11.35

4 794.6

11.20

-64.2

-0.15

Moscow Region

4 600.9

11.41

4 519.9

11.10

-126.2

-0.31

9 342.6

11.38

9 314.5

11.15

-192.1

-0.23

Total for OJSC «MOESK

* A percentage of allowed losses is specified which is approved in the tariff and balance decision
decision.
** Calculated as the difference between actual losses in the year 2010 (%) and allowed losses in the
year 2010 (%).
*** Calculated as adjustment (%) multiplied by actual grid output in 2010 and divided by 100%.

Execution of the
business plan on
part
of non-exceedance
of the level of
electric power
losses as of 2010:

Electric power losses
Name

Plan for 2010

Actual losses in 2010

Adjustment

mln kWh

%

mln kWh

%

mln kWh**

%*

Moscow

4 762.0

11.20

4 794.6

11.20

0

0

Moscow Region

4 457.6

11.20

4 519.9

11.10

-40.7

-0.1

Total for OJSC «MOESK

9 219.6

11.20

9 314.5

11.15

-41.8

-0.05
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(%).
** Calculated as adjustment (%) multiplied by actual grid output in the year 2010 and divided by
100%.

Tariff of electric power losses for the
year 2010 approved by the Board of Directors in the Company business plan for the
year 2010 made up 9 219.6 mln kWh or

11.20% of the grid output. In follow-up of
the year 2010 actual electric power losses
are by 41.8 mln kWh or 0.05% lower than
those approved in the business plan.

2.2. ENERGY CONSERVATION AND INCREASE IN ENERGY EFFICIENCY
In compliance with the requirements of the Federal Law «Concerning energy conservation and increase in energy efficiency and amendment to the particular legislative acts of the Russian Federation» dated 23.11.2009 No. 261-FZ as well as requirements approved by the resolution of the Regional Energy Commission of the city of
Moscow dated 01.01.2010 No. 108 and instruction of the Committee for Fuel and
Energy of the Moscow Region dated 23.09.2010 No. 40 in 2010 the Company elaborated drafts of Programs in the field of energy conservation and increase in energy
efficiency of JSC «MOESK» on the territory of Moscow and Moscow Region for the
period of 2011-2015.
In compliance with the requirements of the regulatory bodies programs in the
field of energy conservation were developed for the term of Company investment
programs.
The target indices for implementation of Program of JSC «MOESK» in the field
of energy conservation on the territory of Moscow are:
decrease in electric power losses upon transmission of power through distribution grid
up to 9.4% of the grid output in 2015. Reduction of losses for the period of 2011 – 2015
shall amount to 929 897 thousand kWh;
◆

2
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◆decrease in the electric power consumption for economic needs for the period of 2011 –
2015 by 466 thousand kWh.

The target indices for implementation of Program on the territory of the
Moscow Region are:
◆decrease in electric power losses upon transmission of power through distribution grid
up to 9.3% of the grid output in 2015.
◆decrease in the electric power consumption for economic needs for the period of 2011 –
2015 by 1 411 thousand kWh.

Achievement of target indices is planned due to implementation of the
following projects for energy conservation and increase in energy efficiency:
replacement of overloaded and obsolete transformers of 35-220 kV;
replacement of overloaded and obsolete transformers of 6-10 kV;
◆ increase in the throughput of power transmission lines of 35-220 kV;
◆ implementation of activities for fiscal power metering;
◆ development of distribution power grid of 20 kV, adoption of a higher voltage class;
◆ installation of energy saving lamps for the purpose of reduction in power consumption
for proprietory and economic needs.
◆
◆

DATA ON POWER CONSUMPTION FOR OPERATING
AND ECONOMIC NEEDS OF JSC «MOESK» IN 2010

Name

Power resources supplied
on the basis of supply contracts (contracts for sale)
including:

electric power

thermal power

Units of
measurement

JSC «MOESK»

Moscow

Moscow Region

Planned

Actual

Planned

Actual

Planned

Actual

thousand
rub. incl. VAT

596 856.8

627 600.8

231 378.0

254 315.3

365 478.8

373 285.5

thousand
rub. incl. VAT

194 020.6

169 196.7

66 000.5

59 269.9

128 020.1

109 926.8

thous. kWh

54 525.5

47 922.1

15 402.2

14 623.4

39 123.3

33 298.7

thousand
rub. incl. VAT

51 168.9

72 738.9

15 592.6

44 618.3

35 576.3

28 120.6

Gcal

40 741.7

59 677.3

13 818.1

38 637.7

26 923.6

21 039.6

thousand
rub. incl. VAT

12 582.6

16 420.3

8 504.2

12 651.1

4 078.4

3 769.2

thous. m3

17 470.2

126 100.9

17 270.7

125 934.1

199.5

166.8

cold-water supply

MOESK

servation potential. As a result of energy inspection an adjustment of Energy conservation program is planned
on part of replacement of less efficient
energy saving activities by more effective ones.
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In 2011 JSC «MOESK» is planning to
conduct energy inspection of administrative buildings, production facilities and technological processes of the
Company to determine actual indices
of energy efficiency and energy con-
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Name

Units of
measurement

JSC «MOESK»

Moscow

Moscow Region

Planned

Actual

Planned

Actual

Planned

Actual

thousand
rub. incl. VAT

1 751.8

1 462.7

-

-

1 751.8

1 462.7

thous. m3

25.8

21.7

-

-

25.8

21.7

thousand
rub. incl. VAT

1 196.5

1 147.4

-

-

1 196.5

1 147.4

thous. m3

335.0

320.0

-

-

335.0

320.0

thousand
rub. incl. VAT

238 897.1

258 131.9

81 769.1

77 739.6

157 128.0

180 392.3

thous. t.

8 309.9

9 419.2

2 829.5

2 894.6

5 480.4

6 524.6

thousand
rub. incl. VAT

97 239.3

108 502.9

59 511.6

60 036.4

37 727.7

48 466.5

thous. t.

3 380.5

3 833.7

2 038.1

2 126.1

1 342.4

1 707.6

hot-water supply

natural gas

car petrol

diesel fuel
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* – excess of actual consumption of thermal power and cold-water supply over estimated indices in
Moscow are attributable to the absence of estimated consumption values for the above resources in the
affiliated branch Moscow Cable Networks.

All points of power resources delivery
in Moscow as well as affiliated branches
Northern Electric Networks and Eastern
Electric Networks are furnished with metering devices. As to the affiliated branch
Western Electric Networks: all points of
delivery of electric power and gas are furnished with metering devices; there are
11 points for thermal power delivery, 3
of them requiring installation of meters;
there are 39 points of cold-water supply,
9 of them requiring installation of meters. As to the affiliated branch Southern
Electric Networks: all points for delivery
of electric power and gas are furnished
with metering devices; there are 7 points
for delivery of thermal power, 5 of them
requiring installation of meters; there are
33 points of cold-water supply, 9 of them
requiring installation of meters.
Area of production facilities of JSC
«MOESK» made up 802 218.9 m2 including in Moscow – 653 082.2 m2 and in
Moscow Region – 149 136.7 m2.

JSC «MOESK» as part of priority activity implements an action plan for energy conservation aimed at optimization
(reduction) of the tariff of losses. Costs
of implementation of activity program
for decrease in losses in the power grid
of JSC «MOESK» were provided for by
the Company maintenance program and
made up 450 mln rub.
As a result of activities aimed at prevention of increase in losses the effect
due to implementation of organizational
arrangements amounted to 186.2 mln
kWh. Reduction of losses due to implementation of technical activities made
up 64.3 mln kWh. Reduction of losses
due to implementation of activities for
metering system improvement made up
297.8 mln kWh.
The overall economic impact from implementation of technical activities in
2010 made up 174.8 mln rub.
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Reduction of losses,
mln kWh

Activities for reduction of technical electric power losses including:

116.9

Checkup of electric power meters and technical activities to reduce losses
according to the Program for replacement of meters, current transformers
(0.4 – 6-10 kV) and voltage transformers (6-10 kV)

110.6

Replacement of wire at the overloaded overhead lines by heavy-gauge wire,
optimization of power grid due to construction of cable lines of 6-20 kV

4.2

Load compensation in the transformer substations and networks of 0.4 kV

0.8

Other activities (optimization of points of cable line disconnection of 6-20
kV, replacement of transformers in transformer substations of 6-20 kV for
the greater capacity, replacement of transformers of old GOST standards for
the transformers of new standards at the transformer substations of 6-10
kV, adoption of higher voltage for the lines)

1.3

Activities for reduction of non-technical electric power losses including:

431.4

Arrangement for reliable readings of the metering devices at the power
plants, substations adjacent to AO-energo (overhead tie-lines) and «FGC
UES», by legal entities and residential subscribers, control over the level of
power consumption, technical record devices in the points of delivery to
apartment houses, checkup of their engineering status

220.7

Arrangement for raids in conjunction with OJSC «Mosenergosbyt» for
detection of unauthorized connection of consumers, unregistered and noncontractual consumption
Execution and analysis of supply-and-demand for the affiliated branches,
distribution zones, relay stations, relay station feeders (6-10), substations,
elimination of electric power imbalance (monthly)

210.7

Within the framework of action plan
for reduction of losses in power grid of
JSC «MOESK» more than 7 thousand fiscal metering devices were installed and
replaced in the year 2010.
In the course of the year 2010 technical
(instrumental) inspections were held at
86 thousand power metering complexes.
These activities resulted in detection and
elimination of violations in the metering
complexes which enabled prevention of
increase in losses in the amount of 52.4
mln kWh, detection of unaccounted (noncontractual and unregistered) consumption of 270.7 mln kWh; the effect of the
action plan for reduction of losses on part
of detection of unregistered and non-contractual consumption made up 182.1 mln

25

kWh. Calculation of unaccounted electric power under additional charge acts
is accomplished in compliance with the
regulatory legal acts of the Russian Federation since the moment of last technical inspection or due to limitation period
(not exceeding 3 years). Thus productive
supply of electric power for the year 2010
included kilowatt-hours «lost» in the previous years.
To arrange for works for a more detailed analysis of reasons for increased
losses, their localization and elimination
we took efforts for furnishing additional
points of technical electric power metering. Thus, as of 2010 more than 1.5 thousand metering complexes were installed,
replaced or repaired.
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MOESK

The core activities for
reduction of electric
power losses for the
year 2010
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Personnel of JSC «MOESK» to assess the scope of
services related to electric power transmission on
a monthly basis pays visits to residential users and
provides for control readings of analytical metering
devices installed for the legal entities. In total more
than 4.7 mln points of delivery to residential users
and 300 thousand points of delivery to legal entities
are located in the zone of operating activity of JSC
«MOESK» (including in Moscow: more than 3.8 mln
points of delivery to residential users and more than
198.2 thousand points of delivery to legal entities;
in Moscow Region: more than 800 thousand points
of delivery to residential users and more than 68.2
thousand points of delivery to legal entities). In the
Information
on the acts on
unregistered
consumption

Number of
claims filed

Won in the
court

pcs

thous.
kW h

thous.
rub.

pcs

thous.
kW h

pcs

thous.
rub.

pcs

thous.
rub.

Total

4 562

85 409.0

-

3 376

70 052.8

-

-

-

-

For legal entities

2 016

74 234.1

-

1 735

65 315.0

-

-

-

-

For natural
persons

2 546

11 174.9

-

1 641

4 737.8

-

-

-

-

Information
on the acts on
non-contractual
consumption

Number of acts executed

Paid according to
acts

Number of
claims filed

Won in the
court

pcs

thous.
kW h

thous.
rub.

pcs

thous. rub.

pcs

thous.
rub.

pcs

thous.
rub.

Total

7 032

185 327.1

602 524.7

7 239

615 412.2

-

-

-

-

For legal entities

4 903

168 440.3

565 800.1

5 389

595 849.1

-

-

-

-

For natural persons

2 129

16 886.8

36 724.6

1 850

19 563.1

-

-

-

-

0

Cancellation by Power Supply Company, pcs

Total, pcs

Connection to the grid of other proprietor

302 169

Insufficient output to the
consumer

0

Lack of act of emergency reserved quota

Facilities related to the List defined by the
Appendix No. 6 to the Resolution of the
Government No. 530 dd. 31.08.2010

Lack of technical capability for
disconnection

355

Through the fault of Power
Supply Company

11 671 5 999 826

including for the reasons as follows
Useless visits of the
team with no restrictions introduced
including
Through the fault of Regional
Grid Company

OJSC
«Mosenergosbyt»

pcs

Power Supply
Company

Not executed by the grid company

Executed, pcs

Information on
introduction of
partial or full
restriction of electric
power supply to
the consumers –
defaulters subject
to claims of Power
Supply Company in
the year 2010:

Included in the
productive supply of
electric power

Number of acts executed

Number of claims from Power Supply Company, pcs
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course of the year 2010 JSC «MOESK» implemented
activities for meter reading: for residential users –
more than 1.3 points of delivery; for legal entities –
more than 924.6 thousand points of delivery, at the
power plants, substations adjacent to grid companies
(overhead tie-lines) and «FGC UES» – more than 21.3
thousand points of delivery, in the points of delivery
to apartment houses as well as more than 68.6 thousand points of technical metering. The Company conducted more than 2.4 mln inspections of readings and
reliability of information on the readings of metering
devices which increased the scope of productive supply and as a consequence reduced accounted electric
power losses by more than 200 thousand kWh.

0

82

87 4 846
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Activities
held by the service
consumers for
repayment of
indebtedness in
dispute:

Actual indices

Region

Amount of productive supply,
mln kWh

Proceeds incl.
VAT, mln rub.

Average tariff
excl. VAT,
rub./ kWh

Amount of
productive
supply, mln
kWh

Proceeds
incl. VAT,
mln rub.

Average
tariff excl.
VAT, mln.
rub. /kWh

Moscow

37 143

57 132

1.30

37 696

57 909

1.30

Moscow
Region

33 704

48 530

1.22

34 626

49 753

1.22

Total

70 847

105 662

1.26

72 322

107 662

1.26

Accounts receivable
Consumer payables for
services related to electric power transmission
as of the beginning
of the year, mln rub.
including VAT

Accounts payable

Consumer payables
for services related to
electric power transmission as of the end
of the year, mln rub.
including VAT

Payables of the grid company
for electric power for loss
compensation as of the beginning of the year, mln rub.
including VAT

Payables of the grid company
for electric power for loss
compensation as of the end
of the year, mln rub. including VAT

Total

Including
indebtedness in
dispute

Total

Including
indebtedness in
dispute

Accounted
for by the
grid company

Not accounted
for by the grid
company (in
dispute)

Accounted
for by the
grid company

Not accounted
for by the grid
company (in
dispute)

5 648

545

8 708

481

678

34

951

34

As of 01.01.2010 the accounts receivable in dispute subject to service agreements
for electric power transmission made up 545 mln rub. including:
 405 mln rub. – due to absence of agreement on subscribed demand;
 126 mln rub. – disagreement as to the terms of tariff application;
 14 mln rub. – due to absence of agreement on the amount of electric power.

The overall amount of indebtedness in dispute is included in the claims filed for
resolution, the cases are being resolved in the courts.
As a result of activities held in 2010 the accounts receivable in dispute as of
31.12.2010 including indebtedness accumulated in 2010 was reduced by 64 mln rub.
and made up 481 mln rub.
In the course of the year 2010 JSC «MOESK» wrote off from the balance an indebtedness related to tariff application in the amount of 126 mln rub. due to dismissal of
claims of JSC «MOESK» by the courts of all instances, an indebtedness in the amount of
4 mln rub. was collected under the writ of execution as well as an indebtedness in the
amount of 4 mln rub. was collected in accordance with extrajudicial procedure.
As to indebtedness in the amount of 188 mln rub. accumulated in 2010 two lawsuits
were filed to the court:
1) Subject to the claim of JSC «MOESK» concerning recovery of debt in the amount of
119 mln rub. the debt was repaid in part in the amount of 12 mln rub. under the writ of
execution, the remaining part of indebtedness in the amount of 107 mln rub. became
subject of debt restructuring agreement with the term of repayment at the latest on
25.12.2011. The schedule of payments stated in the agreement is being executed by
the debtor.
2) A claim on recovery of indebtedness in dispute in the amount of 70 mln rub. is
being considered in the court of first instance.
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Information on the
consumer payables
to JSC «MOESK»
for the services
related to electric
power transmission
and payables of
JSC «MOESK» for
purchase of electric
power for the purpose
of loss compensation:

Approved business plan

MOESK

Information on
the proceeds from
services related
to electric power
transmission
obtained in the year
2010:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Services related
to electric power
transmission through
the United National
Power Grid rendered
by «FGC UES» in
2009 – 2010:

Payables of the grid company
for services related to transmission through the United
National Power Grid as of the
beginning of the year, mln rub.
including VAT

Cost of services for transmission of electric power through
the United National Power Grid
for the year, mln rub. including VAT

Payables of the grid company
for services related to transmission through the United
National Power Grid as of
the end of the year, mln rub.
including VAT

YEAR
Accounted for
by the grid
company

Not accounted for
by the grid
company (in
dispute)

Accounted for
by the grid
company

Billed according to
invoices of
«FGC UES»

Accounted
for by the
grid company

Not accounted for
by the grid
company (in
dispute)

2009

138.88

-

7 029.86

7 029.86

175.90

-

2010

425.73

-

10 120.98

10 127.65

629.64

6.67

2.3. TECHNOLOGICAL CONNECTION
Actual connection of capacity in 2010 made up 991 MW. including in the Moscow Region
– 529 MW, in Moscow – 461 MW. The overall number of connected consumers amounted to
17,787; 12,811 among them on the territory of Moscow region, 4,976 – in Moscow.
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Data on the
amount of proceeds
from rendering
services related
to technological
connection as of
2010:

2009
Name of category

2010

Moscow
Region

Moscow

Total

Moscow
Region

Moscow

Total

Actual connection,
pcs

11 153

2 322

13 475

12 811

4 976

17 787

Actually connected
capacity, kW

286 494

162 266

448 760

529 382

461 688

991 070

Proceeds from
services related to
technical connection, mln rub. excl.
VAT

2 926

6 544

9 470

6 660

12 285*

18 945

* with account of procedure for application of proceeds u
under the agreements of Central Electric
Networks in the area of responsibility of subdivisions in Moscow Region.

In the course of 2010 more than 44 thousand
applications for technological connection
to the power grid were filed for the overall
capacity of 7 153 MW including:

 35,408 applications for the capacity of
3 041 MW – from the consumers on the
territory of Moscow Region;
 9 430 applications for the capacity of
4,112 MW – from the consumers of Moscow.
As compared to the year 2009, the trend
for rise in the number of applications from
privileged citizens has increased. The overall
growth for the Company made up 96%:

 In Moscow region the number of
applications increased from 19,633 in the
year 2009 up to 33,697;
 In Moscow – from 951 applications up
to 6,749.

In the fiscal year as compared to the year
2009, the number of executed agreements
increased by 55.7%.
In the course of the year 2010, 34,610
agreements were concluded for the overall
capacity of 1,824.1 MW with the cost of 18
137.4 mln rub. excl. VAT. Including in the
Moscow Region – 28,938 agreements for the
overall capacity of 1,491.4 MW with the overall
cost of 7 226 mln rub. excl. VAT; in Moscow –
5,672 agreements for the capacity of 332.7
MW with the cost of 10 911 mln rub. excl. VAT.
Apart from that 2 agreements for connection
of «Arkhangelskaya» substation of 220 kV
with CJSC «Rublyovo-Arkhangelskoye» and
«Ilyinskaya» substation of 220 kV with OJSC
«Energocenter».
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2009

2010

Moscow
Region

Moscow

Total for JSC
«MOESK»

Moscow
Region

Moscow

Total for JSC
«MOESK»

Number of submitted applications, pcs including:

23 935

6 422

30 357

35 408

9 430

44 838

less than 15 kW in total

21 098

4 624

25 722

32 741

6 566

39 307

incl. natural persons

19 663

951

20 614

31 021

1 182

32 203

from 15 up to 100 kW in
total

1 446

950

2 396

1 093

1 713

2 806

incl. privileged categories

521

30

551

529

159

688

from 100 up to 750 kW

1 098

609

1 707

1 187

804

1 991

more than 750 kW

293

239

532

387

347

734

Overall capacity of submitted applications, MW
including:

2 562

1 964

4 526

3 041

4 112

7 153

less than 15 kW in total

173

36

209

376

58

434

incl. natural persons

158

10

168

357

15

372

from 15 up to 100 kW in
total

81

47

128

65

77

142

incl. privileged categories

29

7

36

33

7

40

from 100 up to 750 kW

313

170

483

379

214

593

more than 750 kW

1 995

1 712

3 707

2 220

3 763

5 983

Number of concluded
agreements, pcs including:

19 127

3 092

22 219

28 938

5 672

34 610

less than 15 kW in total

17 535

2 598

20 133

27 349

5 016

32 365

incl. natural persons

15 403

2 383

17 786

24 363

1 095

25 458

from 15 up to 100 kW in
total

912

258

1 170

848

324

1 172

incl. privileged categories

499

23

522

572

30

602

from 100 up to 750 kW

595

181

776

628

263

891

more than 750 kW

85

55

140

113

69

182

Overall capacity for
concluded agreements,
MW including:

563

221

784

1 491

333

1 824

less than 15 kW in total

132

21

153

302

43

345

incl. natural persons

113

20

133

269

12

281

from 15 up to 100 kW in
total

50

12

62

51

15

66

incl. privileged categories

28

1

29

35

1

36

from 100 up to 750 kW

158

53

211

172

67

239

more than 750 kW

223

134

357

966

208

1 174
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Index name/
Connection category

MOESK

Data on submitted
applications
and concluded
agreements for
the technological
connection of JSC
«MOESK»:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Data on the structure
pattern of demand
for technological
connection for
the connection
categories:

Pattern of demand for
connection categories,
%

2009

2010

Moscow
Region

Moscow

Total for JSC
«MOESK»

Moscow
Region

Moscow

Total for JSC
«MOESK»

less than 15 kW in total

6.74

1.83

4.61

12.37

1.40

6.07

incl. natural persons

91.29

26.54

80.16

94.81

26.32

85.71

from 15 up to 100 kW
in total

3.16

2.39

2.83

2.15

1.88

2.00

incl. privileged
categories

36.15

14.04

28.04

50.10

8.82

27.76

from 100 up to 750 kW

12.21

8.64

10.66

12.45

5.21

8.29

more than 750 kW

77.88

87.14

81.90

73.02

91.51

83.65

TOTAL:

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

2.4. MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION
The overall action plan for completion of remedial works in 2010 was executed to the
fullest extent and in accordance with the work nomenclature in compliance with the terms
specified in the schedules for remedial maintenance of electrical equipment of power grid.
In the course of the year we completed comprehensive maintenance of 37 substations of
35-220 kV including SS of 35-110 kV No. 116 «Solnechnogorsk», No. 46 «Butyrki», No. 414
«Kudinovo», No. 556 «Kukarino», No. 96 «Katuar», No. 649 «Severnaya», No. 744 «Mikhali»,
No. 648 «Volochanovo», No. 487 «Ryumino»; maintenance of 2,513 distribution and transformer substations of 6-10 kV, maintenance of 1,583.9 km. of overhead line of 35-220 kV and
2,994.7 km. of overhead line of 0.4-6/10 kV as well as 102.1 km of cable line of 35-220 kV
and 282.1 km. of cable line of 0.4-6/10 kV on the territory of Moscow and Moscow Region.
1,970.7 ha of lines of route were cleared from scrubs. We completed overhaul repairs of lines of
35-220 kV with replacement of supports, wire and insulators including overhead lines of 220
kV «Rudnevo-Vostochnaya», overhead lines of 110 kV «Gorbunovo – Gorlovo», «VorobyovoVakhromeevo», «Sheremetyevo – B. Rast», overhead lines of 35 kV «Vypolzovo – Krylovo»,
Valuyki – Veryovkino», Golytsyno – Komarovo».
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The indices of
maintenance program
completion
as of the year 2010

2010
planned

actual

Program
completion,%

3 832.2

4 248.8

4 270.3

100.5%

Maintenance of electric power transmission line of
35-220 kV, mln rub.

253.8

286.8

285.7

99.6%

Maintenance of substation equipment of 35-220 kV

800.2

724.0

788.4

108.9%

1 521.7

1 694.2

1 680.7

99.2%

Clearance for overhead lines of 6-220, mln rub.

94.1

89.3

88.3

98.8%

Maintenance of overhead lines of 35-220 kV, km

1 402.0

1 552.8

1 583.9

102.0%

43

37

37

100.0%

Maintenance of networks of 0.4-10 kV

2 483.9

3 024.8

2 994.7

99.0%

Clearance for overhead lines of 35-220 kV, ha

1 173.2

916.0

1 214.2

132.6%

995.4

794.6

756.4

95.2%

Indices
Costs of overhaul repairs, mln rub.

Maintenance of electric networks of 0.4-20 kV, mln rub.

Maintenance of substations of 35-220 kV, pcs

Clearance for overhead lines of 6-10 kV, ha

2009
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2.5. TARIFFS FOR TRANSMISSION OF POWER ENERGY
AND FEE FOR TECHNOLOGICAL CONNECTION
Tariff for
transmission of
power energy in
Moscow for the year
2010

The Resolution of the Regional Energy Commission of the city of Moscow dd. December 25,
2009 No. 120 «Concerning imposition of unified (boiler) tariffs for services related to electric
power transmission rendered by the power grid (energy supply) companies to the consumers
of the city of Moscow in 2010» approved the boiler tariffs since January 1, 2010 till December
31, 2010 as follows:
Indicator

Item
No.

Voltage raqnge

Meas-t unit
HV

MV-I

MV-II

LV

Tariff classes of electric power consumers (capacity)
Flat tariff

rub./MWh

1267.14

1289.53

1423.24

Double tariff

2.1

– tariff for maintenance of electric
networks

rub./MWh.
month

376 938

586 163

617 470

575 474

2.2

– tariff for payment of technological consumption (losses) in electric
networks

rub./MWh

38.86

53.04

100.51

248.11

Tariff for purchase of electric power losses for loss compensation for JSC «MOESK» on the
territory of Moscow amounts to 1,278.25 rub./MWh.
As of the year 2010 the Resolution of the Regional Energy Commission of the city of
Moscow dd. December 30, 2009 No. 129 approved the following individual tariffs for services
related to electric power transmission by JSC «MOESK» in Moscow:
 tariff for maintenance of networks– 399,252.3 rub./MWh per month;
 tariff for repayment of losses – 163.67 rub/MWh;
 individual tariff for services related to electric power transmission – 1 057.85 rub./MWh
In compliance with the Resolution of Committee for Fuel and Energy of the Moscow Region
Tariff for electric
dd. December 25, 2009 No. 38-R the following boiler tariffs were approved for the year 2010:
power transmission
in Moscow Region for
the year 2010
Item
No.

Indicator

Meas-t unit

Voltage raqnge
HV

MV-I

MV-II

LV

Tariff classes of electric power consumers (capacity)
1

Flat tariff

rub./MWh

2

857.0
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683.13

1 258.7

1 411.8

1 434.9

Double tariff

2.1

– tariff for maintenance of electric
networks

rub./MWh.
month

469 350

658 252

616 953

513 313.1

2.2

– tariff for payment
of technological consumption (losses) in
electric networks

rub./MWh

27.9

70.4

159.7

348.6

TTariff
iff ffor purchase
h
off electric
l
i power llosses ffor lloss compensation
i ffor JSC «MOESK»
MOESK on the
h
territory of Moscow amounts to 968.6 rub./MWh

MOESK

1

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Dynamics of average
boiler tariff for
electric power
transmission in
2008 – 2010 on the
territory of Moscow
and Moscow Region,
rub./MWh:

Adoption by JSC
«MOESK» of tariff
management system
according to the
method of return on
invested capital (RABmanagement)

32

Region

2008

2009

Increment
2009/2008,%

2010

Increment
2010/2009,%

Moscow

704.13

951.01

35.1%

1 320.15

38.8%

Moscow Region

741.83

1 034.24

39.4%

1 255.77

21.4%

JSC «MOESK»

721.72

987.52

36.8%

1 289.33

30.6%

The order of the Federal Tariff Service
dated 30.12.2010 No. 500-e/5 approved
adoption of the tariff management system
for services for electric power transmission
through the networks of JSC «MOESK» with
the use of the method of return on invested
capital since January 1, 2011.
The Resolution of the Regional Energy
Commission of Moscow dated 30.12.2010

Long-term
management criteria
in Moscow:

No. 299 and Instruction of the Committee
for Fuel and Energy of Moscow Region dated
31.12.2010 No. 58-R approved long-term
management criteria and necessary gross
proceeds (NGP) of JSC «MOESK» for the longterm management period of 2011-2015 with
the use of the method of return on invested
capital (RAB).

Indicator

2011

Basic level of operating expenses, thousand rub.

12 118 399

Index of efficiency of operating expenses

1%

Full value of invested capital as of 01.01.2011, thousand rub.

239 549 500

Residual value of invested capital as of 01.01.2011, thousand rub.

119 774 500

Net working capital

5%
Tariff of return on capital including
2011

6%

2012

9%

2013

11%

2014

11%

2015

11%

Tariff of return on investments including
2011

12%

2012

12%

2013

11%

2014

11%

2015

11%
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Long-term
management criteria
in Moscow Region:

Indicator

2011

Basic level of operating expenses, thousand rub.

8 197 262

Index of efficiency of operating expenses

1%

Full value of invested capital as of 01.01.2011, thousand rub.

126 810 600

Residual value of invested capital as of 01.01.2011, thousand rub.

60 274 200

Net working capital

5%
Tariff of return on capital including
2011

6%

2012

9%

2013

11%

2014

11%

2015

11%

Tariff of return on investments including
2011

12%

2012

12%

2013

11%

2014

11%

2015

11%

2013
2012
2011

2015

186.0

184.0

159.5

138.4
*Decrease in the tariff of JSC «MOESK» in 2015 as
compared to the year 2014 is caused by application upon
long-term management of the mechanism for transmission
tariff «flattening».

123.8

Dynamics of average
tariffs of JSC «MOESK»
for electric power
transmission for the
long-term period of
2011 – 2015 in Moscow
Region:

2014

2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
93.14

117.52

132.39

143.89

159.51

MOESK

Dynamics of average
tariffs of JSC «MOESK»
for electric power
transmission for the
long-term period of
2011 – 2015 in Moscow:
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Fee for technological
Until March 1, 2010, the amount of the fee
connection in Moscow for technological connection of consumers
in Moscow to the electric networks of JSC
«MOESK» equaled the amount approved
by the Resolution of the Regional Energy
Commission of Moscow dated December 22,
2008 No. 121.
The Resolution of the Regional Energy
Commission of Moscow dd. March 12,

2009 No. 6 for the purpose of distribution
of the fee for technological connection
established by the resolution of the
Regional Energy Commission of the city of
Moscow dated December 22, 2008 No. 121
determined the components (shares) of
the companies in the overall amount of the
fee as follows.

Company shares. rub./kVA

Tariff coverage

Within
Sadovoye
Koltso

34

Between
Sadovoye
Koltso and
the Third Ring
Road
Between the
Third Ring
Road and
MKAD

Voltage level in the
point of connection. kV

Amount
of the fee.
rub./kVA

OJSC
«United
Energy
Company»

OJSC
«Energocomplex»

JSC «MOESK» on part of power
grid facilities related to:
High voltage
level

Medium voltage level

Medium voltage

91 050

10 643.47

21 876.31

19 961.98

38 568.32

Low voltage

102 338

11 963.01

24 588.44

22 436.79

43 349.87

Medium voltage

81 466

9 523.13

19 573.59

17 860.77

34 508.59

Low voltage

91 566

10 703.79

22 000.29

20 075.11

38 786.90

Medium voltage

70 266.4

8 213.93

16 882.70

15 405.35

29 764.51

Low voltage

78 978.9

9 232.40

18 976.03

17 315.50

33 455.08

Medium voltage

54 825.1

6 408.89

13 172.67

12 019.97

23 223.65

Low voltage

61 622.8

7 203.52

14 805.93

13 510.31

26 103.12

Outside MKAD

Since March 1, 2010 the Resolution of the
Regional Energy Commission of Moscow dd.
February 26, 2010 No. 9 fixed and introduced
the amount of the fee for technological
connection of consumers to electric networks
of JSC «MOESK» on the territory of Moscow.
For the purpose of distribution of the
amounts of the fee for technological

connection fixed by the resolution of the
Regional Energy Commission of Moscow dd.
February 26, 2010 No. 9 the Resolution of the
Regional Energy Commission of Moscow dd.
March 16, 2010 No. 14 in 2010 determined
the components (shares) of the companies in
the overall amount of the fee as follows:
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Fee for technological
connection to electric
networks on the
territory of Moscow in
2008 – 2010:

Company shares. rub./kVA

Tariff coverage

Within
Sadovoye
Koltso
Between
Sadovoye Koltso
and the Third
Ring Road
Between the
Third Ring Road
and MKAD

Amount
of the
fee.
rub./
kVA

Voltage
level

OJSC
«United
Energy
Company»

OJSC
«Energocomplex»

JSC «MOESK»
on part of power grid
facilities related to:
High
voltage level

Medium
voltage level

OJSC
«Mosenergo»

Medium
voltage

100 720

18 234.75

44 950.53

14 893.97

19 836.00

2 804.75

Low
voltage

113 207

20 495.45

50 523.38

16 740.49

22 295.21

3 152.48

Medium
voltage

90 118

16 315.32

40 218.94

13 326.20

17 748.02

2 509.52

Low
voltage

101 291

18 338.13

45 205.36

14 978.41

19 948.45

2 820.65

Medium
voltage

77 729

14 072.37

34 689.83

11 494.18

15 308.10

2 164.52

Low
voltage

87 367

15 817.27

38 991.19

12 919.40

17 206.23

2 432.91

Medium
voltage

60 648

10 979.96

27 066.72

8 968.32

11 944.14

1 688.86

Low
voltage

68 168

12 341.41

30 422.83

10 080.34

13 425.14

1 898.27

Outside MKAD

Distribution of
JSC «MOESK»
share in the tariff
for technological
connection for
consumers in Moscow:

Average tariff of
2008 rub./kVA

Average tariff of
2009 rub./kVA

Increment
2009/2008%

Average tariff of
2010, rub./kVA

Increment
2010/2009%

63 357.00

78 499.05

23.9%

86 836.16

10.6%

Share of JSC
«MOESK» in 2008%

Share of JSC
«MOESK» in 2009%

Increment
2009/2008%

Share of JSC
«MOESK» in 2010,%

Increment
2010/2009%

51.68

57.03

10.4%

34.48

-39.5%

The Resolution of the Committee for Fuel
and Energy in Moscow Region dated April
9, 2009 No. 10-R fixed and introduced the
tariff of the fee for technological connection
of power receivers of consumers with the
Fee for technological
connection in Moscow
Region

Power range, kW

connected capacity not exceeding 10 000
kVA to the distribution grid of JSC «MOESK»
on the territory of Moscow Region in the
amount as follows:

Voltage level
in the point of connection, kV

Tariff of the fee for technological
connection of capacity rub./kW
(excluding VAT)

0.4 kV

15 417

6, 10, 20 kV

13 197

From 15 kW up to 10 000 kVA
Capacity up to 15 kW inclusive

550 rub. incl. VAT for one connection

MOESK

Dynamics of the tariff
for technological
connection to electric
networks on the
territory of Moscow in
2008 – 2010:
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The Resolution of the Committee for Fuel and
Energy in Moscow Region dd. 09.04.2009 No.
10-R (as amended as of 08.04.2010 with the No.
12-R) fixed and introduced a standardized tariff
for reimbursement of expenses of JSC «MOESK»
for construction and reconstruction of power
grid facilities upon technological connection of
receivers of electric power consumers, power grid
facilities with connected load of more than 10,000
kVA on part of expenses for construction and
reconstruction of substations with the voltage of
6/10/20 kV on the territory of the Moscow Region
in the amount of 22 040 rub./kW.
For the main stations for consumers in the
Moscow Region a fee for technological connection
was fixed for the substations as follows:
The Resolution of the Committee for Fuel and

Energy in Moscow Region dated 24.06.2010 No.
25-R fixed the tariff of the fee for technological
development to the buses of substation
«Sandarovo» of 6 kV of JSC «MOESK» in the
amount of 15 366 rub./kW;
The Resolution of the Committee for Fuel and
Energy in Moscow Region dated 24.06.2010 No.
25-R fixed the tariff for technological connection
to the buses of substation «Ignatovo» of 10(6) kV
of JSC «MOESK» in the amount of 16 209 rub./kW;
The Resolution of the Committee for Fuel and
Energy in Moscow Region dated 15.07.2010 No.
28-R fixed the tariff of the fee for technological
connection to the buses of substation
«Fetishchevo» of 10 kV of JSC «MOESK» in the
amount of 17 254 rub./kW.

Dynamics of the tariff for technological connection to distribution power grid at the
voltage level less than 35 kV on the territory of Moscow Region, 2008-2010:

Average tariff of 2008, rub./kW

Average tariff of 2009, rub./kW

Average tariff of 2010, rub./kW

9 425.91

13 338.00

13 338.00
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2.6. INDUSTRIAL AND FIRE SAFETY
JSC «MOESK» carries out activity in the field
of industrial safety on the basis of provisions of
the Federal Law «Concerning Industrial Safety of
Production Facilities» dd. 21.07.1997 No. 116-FZ.
The Company possesses at its disposal 96 sites
of hazardous production facilities including 25
sites with the pressure vessels in operation, 70
sites with the hoisting machines and a site of gas
consumption system.
Hazardous production facilities of JSC «MOESK»
are affiliated branches exploiting vessels under
the pressure exceeding 0.07 MPa (air collectors),
hoisting equipment (cranes, scaffold trucks, hoists,
derricks, elevators) and gas consumption system.
Hazardous production facilities are located in all
the affiliated branches, vessels – in the Central,
Southern and Northern Electric Networks, gas
consumption system – in the Western Electric
Networks. Based on the agreed hazard features
as a result of identification hazardous production
facilities of JSC «MOESK» are referred to the second
hazard class.
Hazardous production facilities are registered
in the State Register (certificate of registration
in the Central Department of Rostecknadzor No.

А02-53068). The stated facilities are subject to reregistration on 03.12.2015.
All hazardous production facilities of JSC
«MOESK» are insured and are furnished with valid
civil liability insurance policies subject to the
agreement with OJSC «Capital Insurance».
JSC «MOESK» carries out its activity in the field
of industrial safety based on the licenses as follows:
 for operation of explosion-hazardous
production facilities (hazardous production
facilities furnished with equipment under excess
pressure exceeding 0.07 MPa or at the water
temperature exceeding 115 degrees Celsius) dated
20.10.2006 No. EV-02-000952 (К), license is valid
up to 29.06.2011.
 for operation of explosion-hazardous
production facilities (hazardous production
facilities for acceptance, use, processing, formation,
storage, transportation, disposal of substances
able to form explosive mixtures with atmospheric
oxygen or with each other (combustible gases,
highly inflammable and combustible liquids, dustproducing substances)) dd. 12.07.2007 No. EV-02001323 (S), license is valid up to 12.07.2012.
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№

Reporting indices

Boiler inspection facilities

Hoisting
equipment

Gas supply
facilities

1.

Number of operated hazardous production facilities including:

26

65

1

1.1.

Insured in compliance with art. 15 of the Federal
Law «Concerning Industrial Safety of Hazardous
Production Facilities»

26

65

1

2.

Number of units of operated equipment subject to
obligatory certification for compliance with the
industrial safety requirements including:

7

182

1

2.1.

Number of units of operated equipment certified
for compliance with industrial safety requirements

7

182

1

3.

Number of certifications and surveillance tests of
equipment

31

350

2

4.

Number of Company workers having received
training and having been attested in the field of
industrial safety

51

536

0

5.

Number of violations of industrial safety requirements detected by the Federal Service for
Ecological, Technological and Nuclear Supervision
including:

0

77

0

Number of eliminated violations

0

77

0

5.1.

6.

Number of workers engaged in operation of hazardous production facilities

174

2 593

2

7.

Number of workers performing the functions for
production supervision

13

33

3

8.

Number of emergencies having occurred in the
fiscal period

0

0

0

9.

Number of incidents having occurred in the fiscal
period

0

0

0

10.

Number of prevention and monitoring inspections fulfilled by the commission for production
supervision

49

133

4

11.

Number of violations of industrial safety requirements detected by the commission for production
supervision

115

300

3

12.

Number of proposals suggested by the commission
for production supervision to the management
staff of the enterprise (organization) to ensure
industrial safety

115

300

3

13.

Number of cases of standby due to hazards

0

2

0

14.

Number of workers held liable for violations of
industrial safety requirements (upon submission of
commission for production supervision)

0

2

0
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Data on execution
of the main
performance
indicators for
production
supervision in the
field of industrial
safety are cited in the
table as below:

MOESK

OPERATING ACTIVITY

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

In 2010 JSC «MOESK» held 12 state expert reviews in the field of industrial safety including in the
affiliated branch High-Voltage cable networks – 3 inspections and in the affiliated branch Moscow Cable
Networks – 9:

High-Voltage Cable
Networks:

Reconstruction of cable line of 110 kV of HPP 20-Cheryomushki 1.2;

Moscow Cable
Networks:

Power supply of Dostoyevskaya metro station;

Fire statistics

Reconstruction of cable line of 110 kV of HPP 23-Metrostroyevskaya 1.2;
Overhangs of cable high-voltage line of 110 kV of HPP 12-Ochakovo 1.2.

Power supply of high-level town-planning complex «Zhilkapstroy»;
 Power supply of multi-functional complex with apartments and underground parking «Moscow
International Business Center – CITY»;
Power supply of residential houses with non-residential premises;
Power supply of Moscow television plant «RUBIN»;
Power supply of administrative and office building of CJSC «Montazh-Invest»;
Power supply of multifunctional center of CJSC «Extract-Fili»;
Power supply of second-priority reconstruction of open-air museum «Kolomenskoye»;
Power supply of administrative building ATS-11 of OJSC «Moscow City Telephone Network».

In the course of 12 months of 2010, 11 cases of fire were registered at the facilities of JSC «MOESK»
(in the similar period of 2009 – 25 cases) for the reasons as follows:
short-circuit failure in electric installations – 4 cases;
influence of unauthorized persons and organizations – 2 cases;
natural disasters – 5 cases.
The overall economic damage of the Company caused by fires in 2010 made up 15 087.46 thousand
rub. No deaths or injuries were registered as a consequence of fires.
Shortage of power supply due to fires made up 61.45 thousand kWh.
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As of the year 2010 the Company developed and implemented 142 activities for increase in industrial
safety for the overall amount of 23 248.56 thousand rub. as well as 26 activities in the field of fire safety
for the overall amount of 36 665.09 thousand rub.

2.7. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY
INJURY TARIFF

In 2010 JSC «MOESK» registered 5 job-related accidents with 6 victims: 1 accident in the affiliated
branch Western Electric Networks, 3 accidents in the affiliated branch Moscow Cable Networks and 1
group accident (road traffic accident) in the affiliated branch Eastern Electric Networks.
In 2009 the Company registered 7 job-related accidents with 9 victims.

Financing of occupational safety arrangements
Expenses for occupational safety and health in 2010 made up about 360 mln rub.

Allocation of finances
for occupational
safety activities:

Name of activity

Share, %

Activities for accident prevention

15.5

Hygienic measures for prevention of occupational diseases

26.2

Provision of personal protection equipment

47.2

Activities for improvement of working conditions

11.1

The amount of expenditures for occupational safety per each employee of JSC «MOESK» makes up
23.2 thousand rub.

OPERATING ACTIVITY

In 2010 the Company arranged for various
personnel training courses, that is: 2 859 people
obtained qualifications in occupational safety,
3 249 people obtained practical and theoretical
knowledge for safe practices, 4 723 people
learned to provide first-aid to victims in the
accidents.
In 2010 the Company arranged for activities
to improve hygiene and welfare of employees:
completed works for technical maintenance of
air conditioning systems, increase in workplace
illumination with replacement of currently
available lamps by the lamps with electronic
control gear, completed reconstruction of
recreation zones and dining rooms.

Provision of
7 806 employees in the affiliated branches
protective equipment of JSC «MOESK» subject to standard norms for
free distribution of protective clothing and
for personnel

gel antipyretic dressings,

current Interindustry regulations for provision of
protective clothing were supplied with clothing
and footwear protecting from industrial pollution
as well as 5 838 people – with protective clothing
and footwear resistant to electric arc. The schedule
of the Company for handout of protective clothing
was completed to the fullest extent (100%).
Due to emergency climatic conditions caused
by propagation within the territory of Moscow
Region of wild and peat fires for the fulfillment
of decisions of emergency operations center the
affiliated branches purchased extra:
vacuum bottles, cooling boxes;
gauze dressings,
breathing apparatus,

air conditioning systems.

antipyretic gels,
hypothermic bags,

Provision of personnel with personal and
collective protection equipment resulted in the
expenses in the fiscal year amounting to 170 mln
rub.
In 2010 labour safety officers took part in the
selection of suppliers of protection equipment
for purposes of JSC «MOESK». Therefore the
Company arranged for expert review of protection
equipment proposed for delivery to the affiliated
branches. The results of expert review and
operational testing of protection equipment
were executed in the form of expert opinion and
submitted to permanent contest committee of JSC
«MOESK».

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY
ROOMS

JSC «MOESK» provided for the operation in its affiliated branches of 68 occupational safety rooms
(including 31 for road safety).

INJURY PREVENTION
FOR OUTSIDERS

In 2010 5 cases of injury of outsiders
occurred with 6 victims (3 fatal cases and 3
cases with severe injuries). No cases of injury
of contracting companies were registered last
year.
In 2009 JSC «MOESK» registered 12 accidents
with outsiders including 2 accidents with
employees of contracting companies with 19
victims.
In the course of the year the company
implemented activities for improvement of
access procedure and arrangement for works of
contracting companies at the facilities of JSC
«MOESK», arranged for further actualization of
corporate Provisions for access of contracting
and subcontracting companies with account
of comments and proposals submitted by the
affiliated branches of the Company. Amended

version of the Regulations was approved on
December 30, 2010.
In 2010 the Company proceeded with work
for injury prevention among population and
especially children. Population was informed
on a regular basis via local mass media of
the hazards of electrical current and rules
of behavior within the area of location of
power facilities. Within the campaigns of JSC
«MOESK» «Kind electricity – safe holidays» and
«Kind electricity for children» the company
arranged for interaction with children in the
course thereof more than 160 activities were
held: the teachers of secondary general schools
were given methodological recommendations
for electrical safety, lectures and quizzes at
schools, recreation camps and school recreation
zones took place.

39

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Last year JSC «MOESK» implemented the
Program for industrial industry prevention and
Program for increase of road safety in the Company
to prevent industrial injuries and minimize the
causes of hazards inherent to the activity of JSC
«MOESK». The above programs were underlain
by estimation and assessment of risks per each
workplace.
In the context of comprehensive inspections
in three affiliated branches of the Company –
Moscow Cable Networks, High-Voltage Cable
Networks and Southern Electric Networks in the
year 2010 the Company held an occupational
safety audit with the assistance of labour safety
officers from other affiliated branches.

MOESK

INJURY PREVENTION

2

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY
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INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

3.1. PARAMETERS OF INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Cost and physical
parameters of
investment activity
of JSC «MOESK» as of
2010 are cited in the
table below:

Assimilation

Commissioning of
fixed assets

Funding
(incl. VAT)

mln rub.

mln rub.

mln rub.

MVA

km.

NVA

km.

Total for JSC
«MOESK»

19 531

28 694

18 912

2 276.31

2 004.62

1 549.46

1 491.01

Moscow

11 679

14 542

11 100

642.69

770.51

552.13

643.47

Moscow Region

7 852

14 152

7 812

1 633.62

1 234.11

997.33

847.54

Name

Capacity extension

Capacity increment

Investment program of 2010 is aimed at provision for reliable power supply of consumers in Moscow
and Moscow Region.

25 000
20 000

Moscow

15 000
10 000
5 000

Moscow region
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0
2009

2010

Excl. VAT

Actual assimilation
of CAPEX in the
monetary terms
broken down by the
tariff management
subjects was
accomplished in the
ratio as below:

Year

JSC «MOESK», mln rub.

Moscow, mln rub.

Moscow region, mln rub.

2008

35 365

23 570

11 795

2009

21 696

13 960

7 736

2010

19 531

11 679

7 852

In 2008 the Company provided for rampup of assimilated capital investments
both in Moscow and in the objects on
the territory of Moscow Region. Sudden
increase in capital investments in 2008 in
Moscow is related to structural changes –
reorganization of JSC «MOESK» through
consolidation with OJSC «MGEsK».
In 2009 – 2010 the Company investment
program was reduced due to global
problems in financial system and global
crisis and, as a consequence – limited
funding.

Thus, in 2009 in Moscow region the
scope of completed works was reduced
as compared to the year 2008 by 4 059
mln rub. (-34%). In Moscow the slump
was more significant – by 9 610 mln rub.
(-41%).
In 2010 the situation has not changed
substantially. Though the scope of
completed works in the Moscow region
increased as compared to the year 2009
by 116 mln rub. (+1.5%) at that the slump
in Moscow didn’t cease and made up 2,281
mln rub. (-16%).
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2008

MOESK

Dynamic of CAPEX
assimilation for JSC
«MOESK», mln rub,
excl. VAT:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

3.2. ALLOCATION AND STRUCTURE OF CAPITAL INVESTMENT
49% of the overall amount of CAPEX assimilated in 2010 were allocated for technical re-equipment
and reconstruction of power grid facilities of JSC «MOESK».
According to the program for technical re-equipment and reconstruction of OJSC ‘MOESK» in 2010
assimilation made up 9 493 mln rub., and for new construction – 9 065 mln rub.
Moreover, in the year 2010 the Company received under the contracts for loss compensation fixed
assets for the amount of 973 mln rub. including in Moscow – 894 mln rub. and Moscow Region – 79 mln
rub.
Scope of capital investments in Moscow in the year 2010 made up 11 679 mln rub. including:
for technical re-equipment and reconstruction facilities assimilation amounted to 5 313 mln rub.;
for new construction facilities – 5 473 mln rub.
For the facilities of JSC «MOESK» on the territory of Moscow Region in the year 2010 the company
assimilated 7 852 mln rub. including:
for technical re-equipment and reconstruction facilities assimilation of CAPEX amounted to 4 180
mln rub.;
scope of capital investments for new construction facilities amounted to 3 592 mln rub.
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According to the program for technical re-equipment and reconstruction in the year 2010 fixed assets
were extended by 609.18 km of power transmission lines of all voltage levels and for new construction
– 1 118.83 km of power transmission lines of all voltage levels.
Commissioning for the regions made up as below:
Moscow:
164.61 km – for technical re-equipment and reconstruction;
369.83 km – for new construction.
Moscow region:
444.57 km – for technical re-equipment and reconstruction;
749.00 km – for new construction.
Moreover, the company accepted subject to the agreements for loss compensation – 276.6 km of
power transmission lines including:
236.07 km – in Moscow;
40.53 km – in Moscow Region.
In the year 2010 JSC «MOESK» extended fixed assets under the program for technical re-equipment
and reconstruction by 1 575.85 MVA of transformer capacity. Extension of transformer capacity for the
new construction facilities made up 569.34 MVA.
Extension for the regions amounted to:
Moscow:
88.53 MVA – for technical re-equipment and reconstruction;
429.58 MVA – for new construction.
Moscow region:
1,487.32 MVA – for technical re-equipment and reconstruction;
139.76 MVA – for new construction.
Moreover, the company accepted subject to the agreements for loss compensation – 131.12 MVA of
transformer capacity including:
124.58 MVA – in Moscow;
6.54 MVA– in Moscow Region.
As a result of completed works the company resolved the tasks for connection of new consumers. In
the year 2010 the Company extended fixed assets in Moscow by 770.51 km of power transmission lines
of all voltage levels.
The most relevant commissioned facilities are specified as follows:
Overhead cable line of 110 kV «Kozhukhovo – Chertanovo» with the tap «Ugresha – Saburovo» (2.0 km),
Overhead line of 220 kV «HPP-23 – Svibilovo 1.2» (6.63 km),
Overhead cable line of 110 kV «Chagino – HPP-8» with the tap «Chagino – Novospasskaya» (1.2 km),
Overhead cable line of 110 kV «Kosino – Vykhino» 1.2» (3.0 km),
Reconstruction of Overhead cable line of 110 kV «Timiryazevskaya A and B with the tap» (overhead
section) (5.82 km),
Overhangs of «overhead cable line of 110 kV «HPP-12—Ochakovo» I line, II line with the tap for
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substation «Lomonosovo» for substation «MGU» (7.47 km).
In the year 2010 the Company extended transformer capacity of the facilities of Moscow Cable
Networks by 642.69 MVA.
In the year 2010 the Company extended fixed assets in Moscow Region by 1 234.11 km of power
transmission lines of all voltage levels. The most relevant extensions include:
Reconstruction of overhead line of 110 kV «Shatura – Bruski», «Bruski – Yegoryevsk» (43.20 km),
Reconstruction of overhead line of 110 kV «Krutyshi – Suvorovo» (construction and installation
works) (36.80 km),
Reconstruction of overhead line of 100 kV «Zapovednik – Pushchino» (7.71 km),
Overhead line of 110 kV «Maryino – Letovo» (15.80 km),
Reconstruction of overhead line of 110 kV «Pakhra – Aparenki» with the tap (16.52 km),
Reconstruction of overhead line of «Ochakovo – Vstrecha 1.2» (17.50 km),
Reconstruction of overhead line of 35 kV «Ventsy – Vaskino» (12.98 km).

2008

2009

2010

Areas of investment activity – total:

35 365

21 696

19 531

Power grid facilities including

31 286

18 712

17 442

Technical re-equipment and reconstruction

20 559

8 314

7 976

New construction and extension of current facilities

9 368

10 370

8 817

Other power grid facilities (automation, connection)

1 360

28

650

Means for power energy metering and control including

1 007

492

52

Automated measuring and information system for electric power
fiscal accounting of wholesale market as part of investment
program

63

24

0

Automated measuring and information system for electric power
fiscal accounting of retail market

944

469

52

0

0

0

Prepaid design and survey of construction

1 241

541

29

Other production and economic facilities

437

127

180

Equipment not included in the construction estimate

567

264

855

Facilities of unproductive sphere

0

0

0

Capital investments in intangible assets

0

0

0

Long-term financial investments

0

0

0

827

1 559

973

7 744

17 484

12 637

Other means of electric power metering and control

Purchase of fixed assets
For reference:
Assimilation of CAPEX for technological connection of consumers
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Structure of capital
investments of JSC
«MOESK» in 2008 –
2010 is shown in the
table as below:
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In the year 2010 the Company conducted in Moscow Region the works for replacement of overloaded
transformers for increase in power supply reliability and quality. As a result the Company extended
fixed assets by 1 633.62 MVA of transformer capacity. The most relevant of the same include:
Reconstruction of substation No. 735 «Sosni» – 80 MVA;
Reconstruction of substation No. 687 of 110 kV «Letovo» – 63 MVA,
Reconstruction of substation No. 252 «Peredeltsy» – 63 MVA,
Substation of 110 kV No. 836 «Sloboda» (step-by-step commissioning) – 500 MVA,
Reconstruction of substation No. 316 of 110/35 kV «Daryino» (1st Start-up complex) – 40 MVA,
Substation Karinskaya of 110/10 kV (transformers from substation «Sloboda») – 50 MVA,
Reconstruction of substation No. 811 «Pervomayskaya» – 20 MVA,
Reconstruction of substation No. 584 of 110/35 «Zvenigorod» (1st Start-up complex) – 80 MVA,
Reconstruction of substation No. 260 «Dedovo» – 40 MVA,
Substation No. 800 «Airport» – 80 MVA,
Reconstruction of substation No. 145 «Nakhabino» – 130 MVA,
Substation of 220 kV No. 215 «N. Sophino» – 250 MVA.
mln rub. excl. VAT

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY
mln rub. excl. VAT

Dynamics of capital
investment and
extension of fixed
assets in 2008 –
2010:

2008

2009

Name

Assimilation
of CAPEX

Extension of
fixed assets

Assimilation
of CAPEX

Extension of
fixed assets

Assimilation
of CAPEX

Extension of
fixed assets

Moscow

23 570

9 827

13 960

19 643

11 679

14 542

Moscow Region

11 795

9 179

7 736

4 908

7 852

14 152

Total for JSC
«MOESK»

35 365

19 006

21 696

24 551

19 531

28 694

Analysis of dynamics of assimilation of
CAPEX displays that in 2008 the scope of
capital investments reached its maximum
– 35 365 mln rub. In 2009 assimilation of
CAPEX decreased as compared to the previous
year by 13 669 mln rub. (39%) and made up
21 696 mln rub. In 2010 the trend sustained.
Further decrease in the assimilation of CAPEX
as related to the previous year accounted to 2
165 mln rub. (10%).
Since the major part of assimilated
CAPEX accounts for Moscow, this region
was characterized by a similar trend with a
more apparent slump in capital investments.
Decrease against the previous year made up
relatively 9 609 mln rub. (39%) and 2 281
mln rub. (16%). In the meantime, following
sudden decrease of capital investments in
2009 in Moscow region – by 4 059 mln rub.
(34%) the year 2010 was distinguished by
an insignificant increase – by 116 mln rub.
(1.5%). Therefore, the share of Moscow Region
in the scope of capital investments rose from
33% (2008) up to 40% (2010).
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2010

On part of commissioning of fixed assets on
the whole JSC «MOESK» retained a stable trend
for rump-up :
in 2009 – by 5,546 mln rub. (29%);
in 2010 – by 4,143 mln rub. (17%).
Such trend is related to increase in capital
investments and inclusion of facilities from
those constructed in progress into fixed assets.

Structure of capital
investments of JSC
«MOESK» in the year
2010

At the same time steady dynamics is not
the case for separate regions. In particular in
Moscow in the year 2009 the extension of fixed
assets doubled and in the year 2010 decreased
by 5 101 mln rub. (26%). In Moscow Region the
situation is the reverse: in 2009 the extension
of fixed assets reduced by 1.9 times and in 2010
increased by 2.9. Notwithstanding the fact
that capital investments in Moscow in the last
years was substantially higher, the extension
of fixed assets as compared to Moscow Region
in 2008 and 2010 increased only by 7% and
3% respectively. In the meantime, in 2009
this index in Moscow was 4 times as high as in
Moscow Region.
On the whole investment program of the
Company within the period of 2009 – 2010
was substantially reduced due to global
problems in financial system and global
crisis. This resulted in reduction of funding
and as a consequence – slump in the capital
investments. The scope of extension of fixed
assets commissioned in 2009 – 2010 was not
influenced by such position due to completion
of construction and acceptance of facilities,
the construction thereof having commenced
in the previous periods.
Thus, as a result of completed capital
construction works the company resolved
the tasks for connection of new consumers,
replaced
overloaded
transformers
for
increase in reliability and quality of power
supply, reconstructed and built new power
transmission lines for increase in throughput.

5% Other

New construction 46%

49%

Technological re-equipment
and reconstruction
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3.3. FUNDING SOURCES FOR INVESTMENT PROGRAM
mln rub.

Proprietory sources of
finance

External sources of
finance

19 531

Depreciation of the fiscal year

5 921

Outstanding depreciation of past years

–

Undisbursed profit of past years

–

Profit of the fiscal year for use in investment program of the fiscal
year including:

10 409

Fee for technological connection

10 409

Follow-on offering

–

Other proprietory sources of finance

973

Budget funds (federal, municipal)

–

Raised amounts (borrowed, interest-bearing)

2 228

Fee for technological connection – advance payments

–

Other sources of external funding including shared construction at
the expense of other sources

–

Name

2010

2011

2012

2013

Moscow

11 679

27 374

34 741

36 437

Moscow Region

7 851

14 662

11 189

15 730

Total for JSC «MOESK»

19 531

42 036

45 929

52 166
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2013
2012
2011
42 036

2010
19 531

45 929

52 166

MOESK

Dynamics of capital
investments for the
period of 2010 –
2013:

Sources of investment, total
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Funding sources for
investment program
are cited in the table
below:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY
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FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC ACTIVITY

4.1. MAJOR RESULTS OF FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC ACTIVITY
2009

2010

Growth tariff,%

Proceeds from sale of products and services including:

85 232 848

110 634 049

130

services related to electric power transmission

74 904 182

91 238 959

122

services related to technological connection

9 469 407

18 944 958

200

859 259

450 132

52

69 381 805

85 240 359

123

services related to electric power transmission

63 178 423

80 487 524

127

services related to technological connection

5 586 778

4 466 762

80

616 604

286 073

46

15 851 043

25 393 690

160

services related to electric power transmission

11 725 759

10 751 435

92

services related to technological connection

3 882 629

14 478 196

373

242 655

164 059

68

Selling expenses

-

-

-

Administrative expenses

-

-

-

15 851 043

25 393 690

160

339 078

200 787

59

3 663 643

2 696 074

74

0

0

-

Other income

11 151 999

5 580 774

50

Other expenses

13 584 886

7 085 520

52

Pre-tax profit

10 093 591

21 393 657

212

Current income tax and other similar obligatory payments

3 775 083

5 772 132

153

Net profit

6 318 508

15 621 525

247

EBITDA

24 804 141

36 245 829

146

services related to other activities
Cost of production of goods including

services related to other activities
Gross profit including:

services related to other activities

Sales profit
Interest receivable
Interest payable
Participation capital

PROCEEDS ANALYSIS

Proceeds from sale of products (services) as of 2010 made up 110 634 mln rub., the growth tariff
for the proceeds as related to the data of 2009 amounts to 130% including for the types of activity as
follows:
 proceeds from electric power transmission made up 91 239 mln rub. (growth tariff – 122%).
Increase is caused by the rise in productive grid output and rise in the tariff for electric power
transmission;
 proceeds from services related to technological connection made up 18 945 mln rub. (growth
tariff – 200%). Increase of the indicator is stipulated by the growth of the number of acceptance
certificates.
 Proceeds from other activities made up 450 mln rub. (decrease – 48%).
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Major results of
financial and
economic activity
of JSC «MOESK» in
2010, thousand rub.:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

ANALYSIS
OF PRODUCTION COSTS

Actual cost of all goods, works and services as of 2010 made up 85 240 mln rub., the tariff growth
for production costs as related to the data of 2009 amounts to 123% including for the types of activity
as follows:
expenses on services related to transmission and distribution of power energy made up 80 487
mln rub. (growth tariff – 127%);
expenses on technological connection made up 4 466 mln rub. (decrease – 20%);
expenses on other activities made up 286 mln rub. (decrease – 54%).
Increase of production costs is due to the rise in unaccountable expenses of the Company:
on services of «FGC UES» – increase in the tariff for maintenance of FGC networks due to
adoption of RAB-management system;
on purchased power for loss compensation – increase in the amount and rise of non-adjustable
price;
on services of distribution grid companies – increase in the tariffs of grid organizations for
electric power transmission.

PRODUCTION
COST STRUCTURE
AS OF 2009 – 2010:
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PROFIT

Structure,%

2009,
thousand
rub.

2010,
thousand
rub.

2009

2010

Total production costs including:

69 381 805

85 240 359

100.0

100.0

– expenses on loss compensation

10 604 716

13 629 129

15.3

16.0

– services of «FGC UES»

5 957 506

8 578 514

8.6

10.1

– services of distribution grid companies

12 455 125

21 811 934

18.0

25.6

– depreciation

11 046 906

12 156 098

15.9

14.3

– labour costs (including insurance contributions)

8 872 924

10 254 278

12.8

12.0

– payment of works and services of external
organizations

4 348 390

3 128 643

6.3

3.7

– other

16 096 238

15 681 763

23.2

18.4

Name of cost items

Net profit of the Company made up 15 622 mln rub., growth tariff for net profit as related to the data
of 2009 amounted to 247.2% including for the types of activity as follows:
net profit from electric power transmission – 3 908 mln rub. (growth tariff – 129.5%);
net profit from services related to technological connection – 11 583 mln rub. (growth tariff –
372.9%);
net profit from other activity – 131 mln rub. (decrease by 32.4%).
Improvement of financial result is stipulated by outrunning growth of proceeds from sale of services
as compared to the growth of production cost.

STRUCTURE OF
PROCEEDS, PRODUCTION
COST AND NET PROFIT
OF JSC «MOESK» AS OF
2009-2010:

Name of indicator

2009

2010

Proceeds structure
Electric power transmission

88%

82%

Technological connection

11%

17%

Other services

1%

1%

Production cost structure
Electric power transmission

91%

94%

Technological connection

8%

5%

Other services

1%

1%

4

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC ACTIVITY

Net profit structure
48%

25%

Technological connection

49%

74%

Other services

3%

1%

Value of Company net assets as of the end of 2010 makes up 138 019.8 mln rub. which is by 13%
exceeds the indicator of the previous year. Increase in the net assets value is related to commissioning
of fixed assets in 2010.

Balance sheet
line code

2009

2010

1. Intangible assets

110

0

0

2. Fixed assets

120

133 176 971

149 576 088

3. Work in progress

130

36 678 074

27 894 491

4. Long-term financial investments

140

3 685 697

4 186 186

4.1. Deferred tax assets

148

583 386

790 446

5. Other non-current assets

150

0

0

6. Inventory

210+220

6 499 080

4 984 984

7. Accounts receivable including

230+240

62 197 125

56 695 797

7.1. Debt of the members related to contributions to the
authorized capital

244

0

0

8. Short-term financial investments including

250

2 968 747

0

8.1. Treasury shares purchased from the shareholders

411

0

0

9. Cash means

260

4 844 580

1 108 030

10. Other current assets

270

0

190

Assets

250 633 660

245 236 212

450

0

0

510+610

40 759 733

31 327 571

13.1. Deferred tax liabilities

515

1 675 709

2 593 010

14. Other long-term liabilities

520

21 786 335

10 672 309

15. Accounts payable

620

64 281 805

62 623 459

16. Settlement on dividends

630

2 483

0

17. Reserves for future expenses and payments

650

0

0

18. Other liabilities

660

0

0

19. Total liabilities excluded from the cost of assets (sum
total of clauses 12–18)

Liabilities

128 506 065

107 216 349

20. Cost of net assets (clauses 11–19)

Net assets

122 127 595

138 019 863

Name of indicator
I. ASSETS

II. LIABILITIES
12. Special-purpose financial receipts
13. Borrowings
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11. Total assets (sum total for clauses 1–10) excluding balance sheet lines 411 and 244
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NET ASSETS AS A
BALANCE SHEET VALUE

Electric power transmission
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4.2. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATUS AND PERFORMANCE
The values of financial ratios of JSC «MOESK» calculated
in follow-up of 2010 attest stable financial status of the Company.

Name of indicator

Formula for calculation
(in compliance with the
Procedure approved by
the Order of the Federal
Financial Markets Service
of Russia dd. 10.10.2006
No. 06-117/pz-n)

31.12.2006

31.12.2007

31.12.2008

31.12.2009

31.12.2010

Cost of net assets

In compliance with the Order
No. 10n of the Ministry of
Finance of Russia

30 863 843

48 930 597

86 976 157

122 127 595

138 019 863

Ratio between the amount
of raised funds and capital
and reserves (%)

(f1 line590+f1line 690)/(f1
line 490)*100

57.20

93.96

148.30

109.43

81.86

Debt service coverage (%)

(Net profit + depreciation allowances)/(liabilities subject
to redemption in the fiscal
period (f.1, line 610 + f.1, line
620) + interest payable in the
fiscal period (f.2, gr.3, line
070))*100

69.78

30.05

13.84

18.33

39.73

Receivables turnover
(times)

f.2 gr.3 line 010 / (f.1line 230
+ f.1line240 – f1 line 244)

3.25

2.11

1.04

1.37

1.95

Level of overdue accounts
payable (%)

(overdue indebtedness)/(Accounts payable as of the end
of the period)*100

–

–

–

–

–

Return on assets (%)

Net profit/book value of assets*100

7.72

5.02

1.08

2.52

6.37

Return on capital (%)*

Net profit/Proprietory funds
(capital) as of the beginning
of the period *100

12.14

9.7

4.72

5.57

13.05

Current liquidity ratio

(f1line 290-f1line230)/
(f1line690-f1line 640)

1.57

0.90

0.75

0.52

0.44

Quick ratio

(f1line 290-f1line 210-f1line
220-f1 line 230)/(f1line 690f1 line 640)

1.27

0.77

0.63

0.45

0.37

Equity-assets ratio (standard no less than 0.5-0.6)

(Capital and reserves excluding treasury shares purchased
from shareholders) specialpurpose funding and receipts
+ deferred income)/(non-current assets + current assets)

0.64

0.52

0.41

0.49

0.56

(f1line 490+f1line 640)/
(f1line700-f1line 490-f1line
640)

1.76

1.07

0.69

0.95

1.29

50

Debt-equity ratio

* – Value of indicator «Return on capital» as of 2006-2007 is calculated based on the amountt of proprietory funds
(capital) as of the end of the appropriate period.
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4.3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE
To reach the necessary liquidity position the Company provides for constant monitoring of accounts
receivable and payable.

2008

2009

2010

Accounts receivable

60 638 488

62 197 125

56 695 797

-5 501 328

Accounts receivable (exceeding 12 months)
including:

30 002 022

29 159 381

33 034 733

3 875 352

Buyers and customers

20 900

0

106 913

106 913

Advances paid out

29 981 122

29 159 381

32 927 820

3 768 439

Accounts receivable (less than 12 months)
including:

30 636 466

33 037 744

23 661 064

-9 376 680

Buyers and customers

3 986 070

6 573 051

9 245 200

2 672 149

Advances paid out

15 521 526

5 011 194

2 021 585

-2 989 609

Other debtors

11 128 870

21 453 499

12 394 279

-9 059 220

Accounts payable

79 642 986

86 068 140

73 295 768

-12 772 372

Long-term accounts payable

26 180 131

21 786 335

10 672 309

-11 114 026

Short-term accounts payable

53 462 855

64 281 805

62 623 459

-1 658 346

Suppliers and contractors

16 282 953

10 997 114

12 269 634

1 272 520

Payroll liabilities

0

1 621

9 202

7 581

Indebtedness payable to state and extrabudgetary funds

771

115

3 527

3 412

Current tax liabilities

270 831

261 951

601 880

339 929

Advances received

36 730 105

38 923 965

47 979 234

9 055 269

Other creditors

178 195

14 097 039

1 759 982

-12 337 057

Receivables and payables balance

-19 004 498

-23 871 015

-16 599 971

7 271 044

Accounts receivable of JSC «MOESK» for the fiscal period decreased from 62 197 125 thousand rub. to
56 695 797 thousand rub. (decrease by 9%).
The structure of accounts receivable as of the end of the fiscal period is recognized by the adjustments
as follows:
increase in long-term accounts receivable by 3 875 352 thousand rub. including in terms of
advances paid out to the participants 3 726 864 thousand rub.
decrease in short-term accounts receivable by 9 376 680 thousand rub.

Reasons for
adjustment of
accounts receivable
up to 12 months

Increase in accounts receivable in the section
«Buyers and customers» by 2 672 149 thousand
rub. is caused by increase in proceeds on account
of extension of productive supply of electric
power.
Decrease in accounts receivable in the section
«Advances paid out» by 2 989 609 thousand rub. is

related to the settlement of debts with construction companies.
In the section «Other debtors» accounts receivable are decreased by 9 059 220 thousand rub. on
account of repayment of liabilities on swap deals
(hedging of borrowings). Borrowings of Barclays
bank PLC were repaid in April 2010.
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Name

Adjustment
(2010 as
compared to
2009)

MOESK

Dynamics of accounts
receivable and
payable, thousand
rub.:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Accounts payable of JSC «MOESK» as of 31.12.2009 made up 86 068 140 thousand rub., as of
31.12.2010 this indicator decreased up to 73 295 768 thousand rub.
The structure of accounts payable as of the end of the fiscal period is recognized by the adjustments
as follows:
 decrease in long-term accounts payable by 11 114 026 thousand rub.;
 decrease in short-term accounts payable by 1 658 346 thousand rub.

Long-term accounts payable are partly repReasons for decrease
resented by the amount of advance payments
in accounts payable
exceeding 12 months for services related to technological connection
to electric networks, Decrease in the amount
of payables as of the end of the fiscal period is

Reasons for
adjustment of
accounts payable up
to 12 months
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caused by requalification of liabilities for technological connection – change of the status of
long-term liabilities into short-term payables
in compliance with the provisions of applicable
agreements.

Indebtedness according to article «Suppliers and contractors» increased by 1 272 520 thousand rub.
and made up 12 269 634 thousand rub. including:
 for maintenance companies – 716 736 thousand rub. (increase by 247 511 thousand rub.);
 for construction companies – 6 664 769 thousand rub. (decrease by 979 222 thousand rub.);
 for other suppliers and contractors – 4 888 129 thousand rub. (increase by 2 004 231 thousand
rub.).
Increase in accounts payable for this section is due to other suppliers of electric power (services of
territorial grid companies).
Payables according to article «Advances received» as compared to the beginning of the year increased
by 9 055 269 thousand rub. and made up 47 979 234 thousand rub. including:
 advances received for rendering services related to technological connection in the amount of
47 836 856 thousand rub. (increase by 9 630 770 thousand rub.);
 other advances in the amount of 142 378 thousand rub. (decrease by 575 501 thousand rub.).
Increase in the payables is caused by requalification of liabilities related to technological connection
– change of the status of long-term liabilities into short-term payables in compliance with the provisions
of applicable agreements.
Payables according to article «Other creditors» decreased by 12 337 057 thousand rub. and made
up 1 759 982 thousand rub. The major adjustment is caused by repayment of liabilities on swap deals,
in connection therewith deals for hedging of borrowings were excluded from accounting records.
Borrowings of Barclays bank PLC were repaid in April 2010.
In follow-up of the year 2010 receivables and payables balance decreased by 7 271 044 thousand rub.
as compared to the previous period.

4.4. LENDING POLICY
In 2010 the lending policy of JSC «MOESK»
was focused on decrease in the cost parameters
of the borrowings, change of the status of the
major part of credit and loan indebtedness from

the short-term into the long-term one as well as
optimization of use of borrowings in compliance
with current Company needs by way of opening
revolving credit facilities.

In the fiscal period the Company involved 33 944 mln rub. due to opening of credit lines
including:
 for revolving credit facilities – 10 821 mln rub. (7 684 mln rub. were repaid in the fiscal
period);
 for non-revolving credit facilities – 23 123 mln rub.
Total amount of payables reimbursed amounts to 42 756 mln rub. including:
 for credit liabilities – 36 688 mln rub;
 for Company promissory notes submitted – 6 068 mln rub.
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As of 01.01.2010

As of 01.01.2011

6% Debenture issue

8% Debenture issue
Promissory
notes

Non-revolving credit
facilities

73%

Promissory
notes

Non-revolving credit
facilities

8%

74%

22%
Revolving credit
facilities

10%

Structure of credit
portfolio of JSC
«MOESK»:

01.01.2010

01.01.2011

Long-term, mln rub.

9 150

25 514

Short-term, mln rub.

20 423

756

Long-term, mln rub.

4 812

1 210

Short-term, mln rub.

6 375

3 848

40 760

31 328

Credits

Promissory notes and
debenture issue

TOTAL:

53

4.5. ALLOCATION OF NET PROFIT
In compliance with the decisions of General shareholders’ meetings of JSC «MOESK» in the last 3
years the Company profit was allocated as follows:

Unappropriated profit (thousand rub.)
Reserve fund (thousand rub.)
Accumulation fund (thousand rub.)

4 747 588
237 379
4 510 209

Annual general shareholders’ meeting in follow-up
of the year 2008 (date of the meeting – 11.06.2009)
Unappropriated profit (thousand rub.)
Reserve fund (thousand rub.)
Profit for development (thousand rub.)

2 303 146
115 157
2 187 989

Dividends (thousand rub.)

0

Dividends (thousand rub.)

0

Repayment of past years losses

0

Repayment of past years losses

0

Annual general shareholders’ meeting in follow-up
of the year 2009 (date of the meeting – 30.06.2010):
Unappropriated profit (thousand rub.)
Reserve fund (thousand rub.)
Profit for development (thousand rub.)
Dividends (thousand rub.)
Repayment of past years losses

6 318 508
315 925
5 552 583
450 000
0

MOESK

Annual general shareholders’ meeting in follow-up
of the year 2007 (date of the meeting – 28.05.2008):
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In follow-up of the results of work in 2010 the weighted average interest tariff for credit agreements
of JSC «MOESK» was reduced from 11.45% up to 7.73%, the average lending period was increased from
7 months up to 50.5 months.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

The decision of the Board of Directors dd. May 6, 2011 recommended to the annual general
shareholders’ meeting to adopt a decision on allocation of Company profit received in follow-up
of the work in 2010 as follows:
Unappropriated profit (thousand rub.)

15 621 525

Reserve fund (thousand rub.)

91 239

Profit for development (thousand rub.)

14 330 286

Dividends (thousand rub.)

1 200 000

Repayment of past years losses

0

4.6. DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company is based
on the balance of convenience of the Company
and its shareholders upon assessment of the
amount of dividend payouts, respect towards
and strict compliance with the rights of the
shareholders stipulated by the current legislation
of the Russian Federation, Articles of Association
and internal Company documents and is aimed
at increase in the Company investment prospects
and growth in its market capitalization.
In 2010 the Company Board of directors
approved the Statute on Dividend Policy of JSC
«MOESK» determining the major principles and
approaches for acceptance by the Company
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Dividend policy
of the Company
is focused on the
following principles:

Information on
dividends accrued
and paid out by the
Company:

Board of directors of decisions on the issue
concerning recommendations to the General
shareholders’ meeting as regards the amount of
dividends for shares to ensure transparency of
the procedure for assessment of the amount of
dividends and payout thereof as well as keeping
the shareholders and other interested persons
aware of the dividend policy of the Company. The
statute determined the procedure for adoption of
decisions on payout (declaration) of dividends,
terms of payout thereof, procedure for calculation
of amount thereof including terms, place, form
of payment thereof, Company liability for nonpayment of dividends.

calculation of dividends is based on the use of profit with no account of revaluation of financial
investments;
 necessity to support the required level of financial and technical status of the Company
(implementation of investment program), to ensure development prospects of the Company;
 compliance of practice for accrual and payout of dividends with the legislation of the Russian
Federation and best standards of corporate conduct;
optimum conjunction of interests of the Company and shareholders;
necessity to increase Company investment prospects and capitalization;
 provision for transparency (understanding) of the procedure for assessment of the amount of
dividends and payout thereof;
 dividends for ordinary shares are paid out only in case of full payout in compliance with the
Articles of Association of the Company of dividends for preferred shares (in case of placement of
Company preferred shares).

Period

Amount of dividends
accrued, thousand rub.

Amount of payment for
one share, rub.

Profitability of dividend
payouts,%

in 2006

50 001

0.00177

0.28

in 2007

60 000

0.00212394

0.06

in 2008*

–

–

–

in 2009**

–

–

–

in 2010

450 000

0.0092389

0.86
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* The annual general shareholders’ meeting having taken place on May 28, 2008 adopted a decision not
to pay out dividends in follow-up of 2007 as in compliance with clause 1 of article 43 of the Federal Law
«Concerning Joint-Stock Companies» dated December 26, 1995 No. 208-FZ JSC «MOESK» is not entitled
to adopt decisions on the payout of dividends for shares prior to redemption of all shares to be redeemed
upon request of the shareholders having voted against or haven’t participated in the extraordinary
shareholders’ meeting (April 18, 2008) which adopted a decision on reorganization of JSC «MOESK»
through consolidation with OJSC «MGEsK».
** The overall net Company profit in follow-up of the work as of 2008 was formed with account of income
from technological connection of consumers to electric networks. Upon tariff management of services
related to technological connection the overall income from this type of activity shall be directed for
investment expenditures, dividend payout is not included in the tariff. Thus, with account of particular
provisions for generation of financial result all the net profit having been received is related to increase
in the number and cost of fixed assets and is not expressed as cash-equivalent items. Therefore, payout of
dividends was possible only with account of credit funds which amidst global financial crisis was highly
unreasonable.
Subject to the decision of the Company
Board of Directors dated May 6, 2011 the Annual general shareholders’ meeting was offered
to adopt a decision on payout of dividends for
ordinary shares of JSC «Moscow United Elec-

tric Grid Company» in follow-up of 2010 in the
amount of 0.0246371 rubles for one ordinary
share of the Company in cash means within 60
days since adoption of the decision on payout
thereof.

4.7. EXECUTION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

KPI

Approved indicator value

Actual indicator value

ANNUAL:
Return on capital, ROE,%*

9.39

12.99

Loss of electric power as related to the power
grid, %

11.2

11.15

Efficiency of investment program of 2010 (in
terms and cost)

 95

 95

– Non-exceedance of cutoff number of accidents

0

0

– System indicator of grid failure (for feeders
of 6kV and higher)

<1

<1

– System indicator for average duration of
power supply interruption (for feeders of 6 kV
and higher)

<1

<1

 95

 95

Reliability criteria, concurrently:

QUARTERLY:
Q1
Efficiency of investment program as of current quarter (in terms and cost)
Reliability criteria, concurrently:
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Approved and actual
values of KPI of the
Company in 2010:

and administrative activity the Company by the
decision of the Board of directors is provided
with a list of key performance indicators (KPI)
and their target values.

MOESK

In compliance with the Standard for business
planning of JSC «MOESK» approved by the Board
of Directors the Company provides for annual
planning of financial and economic activity.
To assess the efficiency of financial, economic

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

– Non-exceedance of cutoff number of accidents

0

0

– Absence of fatal job-related accidents or
group accidents with heavily injured victims

0

1

– System indicator of grid failure (for feeders
of 6kV and higher)

<1

<1

– System indicator for average duration of
power supply interruption (for feeders of 6 kV
and higher)

<1

<1

– Receipt of passport of availability within
the stated deadline, %.

100

100

 95

 95

– Non-exceedance of cutoff number of accidents

0

0

– Absence of fatal job-related accidents or
group accidents with heavily injured victims

0

1

– System indicator of grid failure (for feeders
of 6kV and higher)

<1

<1

– System indicator for average duration of
power supply interruption (for feeders of 6 kV
and higher)

<1

<1

 95

 95

– Non-exceedance of cutoff number of accidents

0

0

– Absence of fatal job-related accidents or
group accidents with heavily injured victims

0

0

– System indicator of grid failure (for feeders
of 6kV and higher)

<1

<1

– System indicator for average duration of
power supply interruption (for feeders of 6 kV
and higher)

<1

<1

 95

 95

Q2
Efficiency of investment program as of current quarter (in terms and cost)
Reliability criteria, concurrently:
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Q3
Efficiency of investment program as of current quarter (in terms and cost)
Reliability criteria, concurrently:

Q4
Efficiency of investment program as of current quarter (in terms and cost)

4
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Reliability criteria, concurrently:
– Non-exceedance of cutoff number of accidents

0

0

– Absence of fatal job-related accidents or
group accidents with heavily injured victims

0

0

– System indicator of grid failure (for feeders
of 6kV and higher)

<1

<1

– System indicator for average duration of
power supply interruption (for feeders of 6 kV
and higher)

<1

<1

– Receipt of passport of availability within
the stated deadline,%.

100

100

*the indicator is calculated in compliance with «Methodological Instructions for calculation and
assessment of achievement of key performance indicators of subsidiaries and associates of the company»
approved by JSC «IDGC Holding» and recommended for use by subsidiary and affiliates of JSC «IDGC
Holding».
The annual key performance indicators established for the Company were achieved in the year
2010.

4.8. INFORMATION ON THE AUDITOR
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Full company name

Closed Joint-Stock Company «NP Consult»

Abbreviated company name

CJSC «NP Consult»

Place of location

14, Dukhovskoy by-street, Moscow, 115191

INN

7737017200

Telephone

(495) 954-3180

Fax

(495) 954-3180

E-mail:

www.npg.ru

Data on the license for carrying out auditing
activity

Name of authority having issued the license:
The Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation
Number: E004289
Date of issue: 15.05.2003
Date of expiry: 15.05.2013

CJSC «NP Consult» is a member of self-regulatory organization of auditors Non-Profit Partnership
«Institute of Professional Auditors» as well as participates in the organizations as follows:
Alliance of professional auditing organizations;
Partnership of Russian Society of Appraisers;
International Real Estate Federation (FIABCI);
International alliance of tariff experts;
Institute for Social and Ethic Accountability (AccountAbility).
Amount of remuneration of CJSC «NP Consult» for rendering auditing services under the agreement
makes up 2 950 000 rubles including VAT 18%. As of 31.12.2010 the auditor was paid 2 212 500 rubles.
CJSC «NP Consult» didn’t render non-auditing services to the Company.

MOESK

INFORMATION
ON THE AUDITOR:
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CJSC «NP Consult» was elected auditor of the Company at the annual general shareholders’ meeting
of JSC «MOESK» held on June 30, 2010.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY
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C

urrently the Company
has a multi-level system of corporate governance, including the General meeting of shareholders,
the Check-up Committee,
the Board of directors, committees under the Board of
directors, the Sole executive
body (General Director) and
the Collegial executive body (Management
Board).

5

The current system of corporate governance allows to respect the rights of shareholders and to keep equal attitude to each
shareholder, regardless of his/her ownership and location, to ensure the strategic
management of the company, and effective
control of managers by the Board of directors, as well as to ensure the answerability
of the Board of directors of the Company to
its shareholders. In addition, the Company is
constantly working on the improvement of
the internal regulatory system.

5.1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES
The principles of corporate management of JSC «MOESK» are based on regulatory and legal
framework, which includes the legislation of the Russian Federation and internal documents
of the Company approved by the General meeting of shareholders and by the Board of directors
of the Company.
The corporate governance in the Company is based on the following principles:

The Company undertakes to protect the rights of shareholders and to ensure equal attitude
towards all shareholders. The Board of directors provides all shareholders with an opportunity to
receive effective protection in case of violation of their rights.

The rights of shareholders of the Company are protected by:
equal treatment of all shareholders, regardless of the percentage of their ownership and
place of location;
 granting the right to the shareholders to participate in the Company’s management by
participating in the general meeting of shareholders with the right to vote on all issues within
its competence;
establishment of an order to hold the general meeting of shareholders, providing a reasonable
equal opportunity to all persons participating in the meeting to express their opinion and to
ask questions interesting for them;
the shareholders’ proposals on the agenda of the General meeting of shareholders in the
order stipulated by the legislation of the Russian Federation and the Charter of the Company;
the participation of shareholders' representatives in the work of governance and control
bodies of the Company;
granting the right to the shareholders to participate in the distribution of profits of the
Company;
granting rights to the shareholders for regular and well-timed full and reliable information
about the Company.
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2. JUSTICE

The system of corporate management of the Company provides the efficient control over
the work of the General Director and the Company management by the Board of directors,
as well as the accountability of the Board of directors to the shareholders of the Company.
In order to improve the corporate government quality the Company aims at complying
with the requirements of the Corporate Code of Conduct preferred by the Order of the Federal
Securities Commission of Russia dated April 4, 2002 No.421/r. The information about the
implementation of the Corporate Code of Conduct is contained in the appendix to the
present report.

MOESK

1. ACCOUNTABILITY

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

3. TRANSPARENCY

The company ensures timely disclosure
of reliable information about the most significant events of its businesses, including
the data on its financial position, its business management, social and environmental
performance indicators, ownership and the
Company’s management structure, as well as
a free access to such information for all interested persons in order to enable the Company's shareholders and investors to take
informed decisions.

In order to implement the principle of transparency, as well as to protect insider information, JSC «MOESK» is guided in its activity by
the Provisions on information policy approved
by the decision of the Board of directors of the
Company dated April 30, 2010 (Minutes No.107
dated April 30, 2010) and by the Provisions on
insider information of JSC «MOESK», approved
by the decision of the Board of directors of
the Company dated October 13, 2008 (Minutes
No.71 of October 14, 2008).

The main principles of information disclosure about the Company and its
activities are:
the guarantee of completeness and reliability of disclosed information;
the regularity and efficiency of disclosure;
the availability of information to shareholders and interested persons;
the limited disclosure relating to trade secrets.
The disclosure of information about the
Company and its business is carried out
through the distribution of information
via electronic mass media, print media, on
the Internet in the form of press-releases,
reports, articles, advertising materials and
other information.
In accordance with the Charter of JSC
«MOESK» and the Provisions on information
policy the main print media for the publication of information for shareholders and investors of the Company is a social and political newspaper «Izvestia».
The greatest amount of information about
the Company's activities is placed on the
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4. RESPONSIBILITY

corporate website of the Company in the
Internet at the address www.moesk.ru: it is
the information about the Company's structure and management bodies, information
for shareholders, investors and other interested persons, including the data subject to
obligatory disclosure on the main production
and financial-economic performance, on the
mission of the Company and the most significant events happening around and inside
the Company.
In accordance with the requirements of
the legislation of the Russian Federation the
Company regularly presents quarterly reports of the issuer to the FCSM of Russia.

The company recognizes the rights of all interested persons stipulated by the legislation
of the Russian Federation and aims at cooperation with such persons for the purpose of its
development and maintenance of financial stability.

5.2. REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE BUSINESS
PRIORITIES’ DEVELOPMENT
According to the decision of the Board of
directors of JSC «MOESK» (Minutes No.113
of 02.09.2010) the Company is working to
increase the level of anti-terrorist and anti-sabotage security of the power industry
facilities of JSC «MOESK», and in its framework one has developed the «Comprehensive safety and antiterrorist security program of the power industry facilities of JSC
«MOESK», valid until December 31, 2010»
and the first-priority arrangements Plan

on antiterrorist and anti-sabotage security
increase of the power industry facilities of
JSC «MOESK».
In accordance with the order of JSC
«MOESK» and inspection schedules, they
organized inspections of the status of
the anti-terrorist security and the facilities’ protection implementation. Routine
checks are carried out by the regime provision department of the executive body for
all facilities of affiliated branches. Accord-
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ing to the results of inspections they prepare conclusions and proposals on elimination of the detected deficiencies.
The anti-terrorist security and the Company’s facilities safety have been controlled and one has prepared the Concept
of antiterrorist security of the facilities
owned by JSC «MOESK».
Theу corrected and approved the plans
of cooperation between regime provision
departments of JSC «MOESK» branches
with territorial bodies of the Ministry of

5

internal affairs, of the Federal security service, of the Ministry for Emergency Situations of Russia under the threat of terrorist
attacks and liquidation of consequences of
emergency situations.
The Company is implementing the «Program of Automated territorial distribution
modular protection system of perimeter
and equipment of high voltage power substations», which includes the equipment
of all Moscow substations with high-tech
means of protection.

In the field of registration of the property rights for real estate objects,
registration/re-legalization of rights to use the land plots, the Company worked
in 2010 in the following main directions:
cadastral registration of land plots and real estate objects;
registration/re-legalization of property rights for real estate objects;
◆ re-registration of the right of permanent perpetual use of a land plot for a tenant right;
◆ determination of protected zones of power supply network facilities.
◆
◆

In accordance with the decision of the Board of directors (Minutes No.121 of 26.11.2010)
JSC «MOESK» carries out works aimed at the acquisition by JSC «MOESK» of power supply
network facilities.
In 2010 the priority for the acquisition was set upon 89 power supply network facilities of
OJSC «Mosenergo», located in the territory of Moscow city and Moscow region, including such
key objects for JSC «MOESK» as:
◆ Electric power substation No. 561 «Sumskaya» 110 kV, supplying as well for such
socially significant objects as State memorial estate «Tsaritsyno», the underground
railway stations «Sevastopolskaya» and «Southern», FSUE NSPC «Pribor», All-Union
Scientific Research Institute of Automatics;
◆ Overhead power transmission line with 35 kV voltage, in dimensions of HV – 110 kV
«Sereda – Glyadkovo» providing the technological power flows between the electric
power substation 406 «Shakhovskaya» and SS 249 «Shevardino» owned by JSC «MOESK»;
◆ Power transmission line of 110 kV «Krasnogorka – Gavrikovo», providing power supply
to consumers of the South and South-West districts of Moscow.

In the reporting year the Company carried
out the analysis of the transaction, including
legal and financial aspects, required for the
implementation of corporate procedures,
after which the Board of directors took the
decision to preliminary approve the sales

transaction of the indicated 89 power supply
network facilities as a result of participation
in tender held by OJSC «Mosenergo».
According to the tender results JSC
«MOESK» was recognized as the winner.
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Carrying out works on registration of
ownership rights to real estate objects, on
registration/renewal of the rights on land
plots is aimed at providing legal and other
conditions for the most effective use of
land-property complex of JSC «MOESK», as
well as to minimize the legal and economic
risks at realization of the Company’s rights
to control, to manage and to own objects of
land-property complex of the Company.

MOESK

In connection with the legislation changes
the Board of directors of the Company has
developed and approved the Work Program
of JSC «MOESK» on registration of property
rights of real estate objects, registration/relegalization of the rights to use land plots
for the years of 2011 – 2014 with regard to
the implementation of the works to prepare
information on the protected zones of power
supply network facilities.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

5.3. GOVERNANCE AND CONTROL AUTHORITIES
General meeting of shareholders

Board of directors

Check-up committee

Audit Committee

Management
Board

Reliability Committee

Strategy and Development Committee
Personnel
and Remuneration Committee
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Director
General

Committee on Technological Connections
to electric networks
Advisory bodies
under the Board of Directors

GENERAL MEETING The General Meeting of Shareholders is the supreme governance body of the
OF SHAREHOLDERS Company.
In accordance with the Company’s Charter, the Federal Law On Joint-Stock Companies and
internal documents of the Company, the competence of the General Meeting of Shareholders
includes the following issues:
1) amending of the Charter and supplementing thereof or approval of the revised Charter;
2) restructuring of the Company;
3) liquidation of the Company, appointment of the liquidation commission and approval of
interim and final liquidation balances;
4) determination of the quantity, par value, category (type) of declared shares and the
rights provided by these shares;
5) increase in the authorized capital of the Company by increase in the par value of shares
or by placement of additional shares;
6) reduction of the Company’s authorized capital by reduction of the par value of shares
through acquisition by the Company of a part of shares in order to reduce their total amount,
as well as by repayment of the shares redeemed or acquired by the Company;
7) fractioning and consolidation of the Company’s shares;
8) decision-making on placement by the Company of bonds convertible into shares and
other equity securities convertible into shares;

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
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9) election of the members of the Board of Directors and early termination of their powers;
10) election of the members of the Company’s Checkup Committee and early termination
of their powers;
11) approval of the Company’s Auditor;
12) approval of the annual report, annual accounting statements, including the Company’s
income statements (profit and loss accounts), and distribution of its profit (including payment (declaring) of dividends, except for the profit distributed as a dividend following the
results of the first quarter, half year, nine months of the financial year) and the Company’s
loss following the results of the financial year;
13) payment (declaring) of dividends following the results of the first quarter, half year,
nine months of the financial year.
The issues covering the scope of functions of the General Shareholders Meeting cannot be
transferred to the Board of Directors, Management Board or General Director of the Company.
The procedure of calling and holding of General Meetings of shareholders is determined by
the legislation, the Charter of the Company, and also the Provisions on the order of preparation
and holding of the General meeting of shareholders of JSC «MOESK».

The annual General Meeting of Shareholders of JSC «MOESK» of June 30,
2010 took the following decisions:
1. It approved the Annual report, annual accounting statements, including profit and
loss reports of JSC «Moscow United Electrical Grid Company», and made a decision on
distribution of profit (including payment of dividends) and losses of JSC «Moscow United
Electrical Grid Company» in accordance with the results of the 2009 financial year.
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2. It elected new members of the Board of directors, the Audit committee of JSC «Moscow
United Electric Grid Company».

The full data on the decisions of the General meetings of the Company’s Shareholders is
freely accessible on the web-site of JSC «MOESK»: http://www.moesk.ru.
There are none extraordinary General meeting of shareholders of the Company being hold
in the reporting year.

BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is the supervisory authority of the Company, which carries out the
general management of the Company’s activities, controls the execution of decisions of the
General meeting of shareholders of the Company in accordance with the requirements of the
legislation of the Russian Federation.

The main goals and tasks of the Company’s Board of directors are:
 the Company’s development strategy determination, aimed at increasing its market
capitalization and investment attractiveness, and the achievement of maximum profits and
increase in assets of the Company;
to ensure the implementation and protection of the rights and legitimate interests of
the Company’s shareholders, as well as to assist in determination of corporate conflicts;
to ensure completeness, reliability and objectivity of the information disclosure about
the Company for shareholders and other interested persons;
to establish effective internal control mechanisms;
the regular assessment of activity of the Company’s executive bodies and management's
work.
According to the Article 16.1 of the Charter of the Company, the Board of Directors consists
of 13 members being elected by the General meeting of shareholders.

MOESK

4. It approved a new edition of the Charter of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company».
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3. It approved the auditor of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company».

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

INFORMATION ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTING BEFORE THE 30TH OF JUNE 2010 (DATE OF
ELECTION – THE 11TH OF JUNE 2009, THE POSITIONS ARE SHOWN FOR THE DATE OF ELECTION).

Full name
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Position

The ownership of
ordinary shares
of the person in
the Company

NIKOLAY NIKOLAEVICH
SHVETS

General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding»

0%

MARIA GENNADIEVNA
TIKHONOVA

Head of the Department of the Russian
Federation Ministry of Energy

0%

SERGEY NIKOLAEVICH
IVANOV

First Deputy Chairman of the Management
Board of «FGC UES» , JSC

0%

YURY IVANOVICH
TROPHIMOV

General Director of JSC «MOESK»

0%

ALEKSEY FELIKSOVICH
BODUNKOV

Property Relations Minister of the Moscow
Region Administration

0%

ALEXANDER ALBERTOVICH
POPOV

Deputy General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding»

0%

ALEKSEY VLADIMIROVICH
DEMIDOV

Deputy General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding»

0%

NIKOLAY GRIGORIEVICH
SHULGINOV

First Deputy Chairman of the Management
Board of «SO UPS»

0%

WOLFGANG
SKRIBOT

Managing Director of the Department for
Direct Investments of JSC «Gazprombank»

0%

SERGEY VALENTINOVICH
GRISHCHENKO

Deputy Head of the Department for Direct
Investments of JSC «Gazprombank»

0%

ANATOLIY ANATOLIEVICH
GAVRILENKO

General Director of Leader JSC «SO UPS»

0%

SERGEY MIKHAYLOVICH
KERBER

Director of the Direction for Investment
Projects and Programs – Managing Director
of Leader JSC Pension Fund Assets Management Company

0%

VLADIMIR NIKHOLAEVICH
SILKIN

Deputy Mayor of Moscow in the Moscow
City Administration, Head of the Moscow
Property Department

0%
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The annual General meeting of shareholders of June 30, 2010 elected the current
Board of Directors of JSC «MOESK».
As a vote result in the Board of Directors of the Company the following powers were
terminated: A.V. Demidov, S.N. Ivanov, V.N. Silkin, M.G. Tikhonova, Y.I.Trophimov
The new Board of Directors was elected and included:
N.N. Shvets, A.F. Bodunkov, A.A. Gavrilenko, S.V. Grishchenko, D.L.Guryanov,
S.M. Kerber, A.V. Nuzhdov, K.Y.Petukhov, A.A. Popov, E.V. Sklyarov, W. Skribot,
N.G.Shulginov, S.E.Yurchuk.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Year of Birth: 1956
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (Supervisory Board):
M
Member of central council, a member of the Bureau of the Central Council of All-Russian
p
public organization «Russia’s Engineering Workers Union»,
V
Vice-President of the All-Russian branch association of employers «Russia’s Engineering
Workers Union»;
W
Member of the Supervisory Board of the Non-Commercial Partnership the Scientific and
M
TTechnical Council of the Unified Energy System (NP STC UES);
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC Holding»;
M
CChairman of the Board of Directors of JSC «Lenenergo»;
CChairman of the Board of Directors JSC «Tyumenenergo»;
CChairman of the Board of Directors JSC «Yantarenergo»;
CChairman of the Board of Directors of OJSC «Center IDGC»;
Chairman of the Board of Directors of JSC «South IDGC»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Energy forecasting agency»;
Member of the Supervisory Board of the JSC «RRDB»;
Chairman of the Board of Directors of JSC «Kubanenergo».
Positions held during the last 5 years:
Assistant General Director of FSUE «Rosoboronexport»;
First Deputy Prime Minister of the Amur Region;
Chairman of the Legislative Assembly of the Amur region;
Professor of Management, Marketing and Law Faculty of the Far Eastern State Agrarian
University (part-time);
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Sarapulsky Electric Generator Plant»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «R&D enterprise «Start» ;
Chairman of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the Center and Volga region»;
Chairman of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the North-West»;
Chairman of the Board of Directors of JSC «Ural IDGC».
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors: June 11, 2009.
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Chairman of the
Board of Directors

General Director, Chairman of the Board of JSC «IDGC Holding»

MOESK

Nikolay
Nikolaevich
SHVETS

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Aleksey
Feliksovich
BODUNKOV

Advisor to the Governor of Moscow region
Year of Birth: 1966
Nationality: Russia
EEducation: higher
Positions held during the last 5 years:
P
Property Relations Minister of the Moscow Region Administration.
P
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
O
Date of first election to the Board of Directors: June 11, 2009.
D

Anatoliy
Anatolievich
GAVRILENKO

General Director of JSC «Leader» (Pension Fund Assets Management Company).
Year of Birth: 1972
Nationality: Russia
EEducation: higher
P
Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (Sup
pervisory Board):
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Leader»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Mosenergo»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of «Gasprombank» (open joint stock company);
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Sibur Holding»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Salavatnefteorgsintez»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «WGC-2»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «WGC-6»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «GASKON»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «GAS-service»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Stolichny trakt»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Main Road»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Sochi-Breeze».
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Positions held during the last 5 years:
General Director of JSC «Leader» (Pension Fund Assets Management Company).
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : February 28, 2005

Sergey
Valentinovich
GRISHCHENKO

Deputy Head of the Direct Investments Department of JSC «Gazprombank».
Year of Birth: 1972
Nationality: Russia
EEducation: higher
P
Positions
held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (Supervisory Board):
p
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Sibur Holding»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors JSC «MK «URALMASH»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors JSC «United Machine Engineering Plants» (UralmashM
IIzhora Group);
Member of the Board of Directors of «Status» Ltd.;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Group Khimmash»;
M

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

5

Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Machine Engineering Plant «ZiO-Podolsk»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Forpost-Management»;
Member of the Board of Directors of «Uralmash-Engeneering» Ltd.
Positions held during the last 5 years:
Deputy Head of the Direct Investments Department of JSC «Gazprombank».
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : May 28, 2008

Denis
Lvovich
GURYANOV

First Deputy Head of the Corporate Governance and Shareholder Relations Department of JSC «IDGC Holding».
Year of Birth: 1977
Nationality: Russia
N
EEducation: higher
P
Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (Sup
pervisory Board):
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Estate VNIPIenergoprom»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Sevkavkazenergo»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the North Caucasus».

Sergei
Mikhailovich
KERBER

Director of the Investment Projects and Programs Direction – Managing Director of
JSC «Leader» (Pension Fund Assets Management Company).
Year of Birth: 1973
Nationality: Russia
N
EEducation: higher
P
Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (Supervisory Board):
p
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Arktel»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «SIBUR – Russian Tyres»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Uralsvyazinform»;
M
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «SIBUR – Mineral Fertilizers»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Mosteplosetenergoremont».
M
Positions held during the last 5 years:
Director of Economic Affairs of FSUE «Goskorporatsia» by the ATM (air traffic management);
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : May 28, 2008
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Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : May 28, 2008
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P
Positions held during the last 5 years:
Deputy Head of Corporate Events Department, Business Unit 1 of JSC RAO «UES of Russia»;
Head of Corporate Relations Department of Management Center of IDGC «FGC UES»;
Head of Corporate Relations Department of Business Unit of JSC «IDGC Holding» of JSC RAO
«UES of Russia».

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Aleksey
Viktorovich
NUZHDOV

Deputy General Director for Security of JSC «Leader» (Pension Fund Assets Management Company).
Year of Birth: 1967
Nationality: Russia
N
EEducation: higher
Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (SuP
pervisory Board):
p
Head of Corporate Protection SPF «Gazfond»;
H
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Mosenergosbyt».
M
Positions held during the last 5 years:
P
Head of Federal Security Service Branch of the Russian Federation.
H
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : June 30, 2010

Alexander
Albertovich
POPOV
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Deputy General Director– Chief of Staff of JSC «IDGC Holding»
Year of Birth: 1955
Nationality: Russia
EEducation: higher
P
Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (Sup
pervisory Board):
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the North-West»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Lenenergo»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the Center»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of Siberia»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the Center and Volga region».
M
Positions held during the last 5 years:
Armed Forces and the Federal Security Service of the Russian Federation – in various positions,
Chief Specialist of Vice President Service OAU – Security Director of «Group AvtoVAZ» Ltd.,
Head of organizational personnel department of the Administration of the Amur region under the President of the Russian Federation, and the Government of the Russian Federation;
Head of the Staff of the Governor of the Amur Region and the Government of the Amur
Region;
Head of the Representative Office of the Amur Region under the President of the Russian
Federation and the Government of the Russian Federation.
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : June 11, 2009
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Konstantin
Yurievich
PETUKHOV
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Director of Strategy and Development of JSC «IDGC Holding».
Year of Birth: 1971
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held during the last 5 years:
P
Deputy Executive Director for the power transport of the Power Transport Executive DirecD
ttorate of JSC «Altayenergo»;
Head of energy losses optimization Department and of the Department of interconnected
H
ooperations services of JSC «IDGC of the Center and the North Caucasus»;
Head of the Department of Electricity Transport «IDGC of Siberia»;
H
Deputy General Director for Development and implementation of services of JSC «IDGC of
D
SSiberia»;
Director of Development and implementation of services of JSC «IDGC Holding».
D
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : June 30, 2010

Managing Director of the Department for Direct Investments of JSC «Gazprombank»
(open joint stock company)

Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (SuP
pervisory Board):
p
Member of the Board of Directors JSC «Mosenergosbyt»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the Center and Volga region»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «NPGS» (Noncommercial partnership of guaranteeM
iing suppliers);
Positions held during the last 5 years:
P
Managing Director of the Department for Direct Investments of JSC «Gazprombank» (open
joint stock company).
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : February 28, 2005

Evgeniy
Viktorovich
SKLYAROV

Head of the Department of Fuel and Energy Sector of Moscow City
Year of Birth: 1955
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions
held during the last 5 years:
P
President
of JSC «Mospromstroymaterialy».
P
Ownership
of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
O
Date
of first election to the Board of Directors : June 21, 2007
D
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Year of Birth: 1966
Nationality: Austria
N
EEducation: higher
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Wolfgang
SKRIBOT

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Nikolay
Grigorievich
SHULGINOV

First Deputy Chairman of the Management Board of «SO UPS»
Year of Birth: 1951
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (SuP
pervisory Board):
p
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Mosenergo»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «WGC-1»;
M
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Lenenergo».
M
Positions held during the last 5 years:
P
Deputy Chairman of the Management Board of «SO UPS»;
D
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares : 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors : May 28, 2008

Sergey
Evgenievich
YURCHUK
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Finance Director of JSC «IDGC Holding».
Year of Birth: 1966
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held in other organizations, including as a member of the Board of Directors (Supervisory Board):
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the North-West»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «IDGC of the South»;
Member of the Board of Directors of JSC «Lenenergo».
Positions held during the last 5 years:
Director for Economy and Finance of JSC «Shipyard «Severnaya Verf»;
Deputy General Director for Economy and Finance of JSC «Almaz Press».
Ownership of Company’s ordinary shares: 0%
Date of first election to the Board of Directors: June 30, 2010

At the first meeting of the newly elected Board of directors of the Company on
30 July 2010 (Minutes No.112 dated August 2, 2010) N.N Shvets was unanimously
elected as the Chairman of the Board of Directors, and A.A Popov was unanimously
elected as the Deputy Chairman of the Board of directors.
In the reporting year no transactions have been made between members of the
Board of directors and JSC «MOESK», no claims have been advanced to the members
of the Board of directors of the Company.
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THE ACTIVITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
In its activity the Board of directors is guided by the legislation of the Russian Federation,
by the Company’s Charter, by the Provisions on the procedure for calling and holding of
meetings of the Board of directors of the Company, approved by the decision of the General
meeting of shareholders dated March 28, 2006.
The activities of the Board of directors are organized in accordance with the Work Plan of
the Board of directors for 2010-2011, approved by the decision of the Board of directors dated
July 30, 2009 (Minutes No.112 of 02.08.2010).
In 2010 they held 24 meetings of the Board of directors, where:
◆ 12 – of the Board of Directors elected in 2009, among them 4 meetings were in person
and in absentia;
◆ 12 – of the new Board of Directors elected in 2010, 3 of them – meetings in person and
in absentia.

Number of meetings
having been attended
by the member of the
Board of directors

N.N. Shvets
S.N. Ivanov
A.F. Bodunkov
A.A. Gavrilenko
S.V. Grishchenko
A.V. Demidov
S.M. Kerber
A.A. Popov
V.N. Silkin
W. Skribot
M.G. Tikhonova
Y.I. Trophimov
N.G. Shulginov

Member of the
Board of directors

Number of meetings
having been attended
by the member of the
Board of directors

N.N. Shvets
A.F. Bodunkov
A.A. Gavrilenko
S.V. Grishchenko
D.L. Guryanov
S.M. Kerber
A.V. Nuzhdov
A.A. Popov
K.Y. Petukhov
W. Skribot
V.E. Sklyarov
N.G. Shulginov
S. E. Yurchuk

12
9
12
11
12
12
12
12
8
10
9
10
12

The
h meetings
i
were on the
h average attended
d d by
b
90.4% of the members of the Board of directors,
including – 89.6% of independent directors.

12
12
8
12
12
11
8
12
12
10
4
12
12
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Member of the
Board of directors

The attendance of the members of the Board
of directors at the meetings of the Board of
directors in the current Board of Directors
elected on June 30, 2010:

h meetings
i
h average attended
d d by
b
The
were on the
87.8% of the members of the Board of directors,
including – 86.8% of independent directors.

ACTIVITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2010 COMPARED TO 2009:

Number of
issues examined

in
presentia

in person and
in absentia

in
absentia

Total

Total

Average
quorum
at the
meetings

01.01.2009-31.12.2009

0

3

18

21

209

92.84%

01.01.2010-31.12.2010

0

7

17

24

219

89.1%

Number of the meetings
Period

MOESK

The attendance of the members of the Board
of directors at the meetings of the Board of
directors in the previous Board of Directors
acting up to June 30, 2010:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

The result of the
Board of directors’
activities

The result of the Board of directors’ activities in 2010 was the adoption of decisions on
the most significant issues of the Company's business in the framework of its competence,
among them:
approval of the Business-plan (including the investment program) of the Company for
2010 (Minutes No.106 dated 02.04.2010), as well as making adjustments in the above
document (Minutes No.121 of 24.12.2010); approval of the Business-plan (including the
investment program) of the Company for 2011 (Minutes No.121 of 24.12.2010), approval
of the Annual Comprehensive Program of Competitive and Regulated Non-Competitive
Purchases of the Company for 2010 (Minutes No.109 of 10.06.2010);
◆ approval of internal documents of the Company (the edited Provisions on the procedure
for providing material assistance to the employees of JSC «MOESK», the amended Provisions
on the procedure for providing charitable donations and sponsor support of JSC «MOESK»
(Minutes No.100 dated February 15, 2010); approval of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company» Insurance Program for 2010, the amended Provisions for the information policy
of JSC «MOESK» (Minutes No.107 dated April 30, 2010); the amended Provisions on the
Audit Committee of the Board of directors of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»,
the amended Provisions on the Personnel and Remuneration Committee of the Board of
Directors of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company», the Policy of risks management in
JSC «MOESK», Internal control policy of JSC «MOESK» (Minutes No. 110 dated 11.07.2010),
the Provisions on the dividend policy of JSC «MOESK», the Program of the non-state
pension provision of the employees of JSC «MOESK» (Minutes No. 114 dated 03.09.2010);
the first-priority arrangements Plan on antiterrorist and anti-sabotage security increase
of the power industry facilities of JSC «MOESK» (Minutes No.115 dated 20.09.2010); the
Provisions on transport policy of JSC «MOESK» (Minutes dated 30.10.2010); the Program
of non-state pension provision of employees of JSC «MOESK» for 2011 (Minutes No.123 of
31.12.2010).
◆ JSC «MOESK» membership in Noncommercial Partnership «The union of power auditors
and power-service companies» (Minutes No. 119 dated 26.11.2010) and membership
in Non-commercial Partnership «The market Union on organization of efficient system
of wholesale and retail trade of electric power and capacity» (Minutes No.123 dated
31.12.2010).
◆ The definition of the priority business areas of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company»:
◆
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 antiterrorist and anti-sabotage security increase of the power industry facilities of the
Company (Minutes No. 113 dated 02.09.2010);
 registration of property rights for the real estate objects, registration/ re-legalization of the
rights to use the land plots for the period from 2011 to 2014 taking into account the works
implementation directed to the preparation of the data on the protection zones boundaries of
the power sector facilities» (Minutes No.119 dated 26.11.2010);
 consolidation of power supply network objects belonging to JSC «Mosenergo» and located
within the territory of Moscow and Moscow region (Minutes No.121 dated 24.12.2010).
◆
◆

preliminary approval of transactions which were of interest for the Company;
other issues.

5

Item

Issues within the competence of the Board of directors

1.

Development of long-term development strategy of the Company,
taking decisions on participation in other organizations, on
placement of bonds, on attraction of external borrowings

19

8.68%

2.

Approval/amendment of business-plans, investment programs,
complex programs of competitive and regulated non-competitive
procurement, of key performance indicators’ values, benchmarks
of cash flows, of insurance protection programs, etc.

34

15.53%

3.

Corporate governance:

80

36.53%

3.1.

Approval/amendment of the internal documents of the Company,
introduction of amendments into the Charter within the competence of the Board of directors

12

5.48%

3.2.

Preparation and holding of general meetings of shareholders,
consideration of shareholders' proposals on the agenda of the
meetings of shareholders, etc.

12

5.48%

3.3.

Organization and holding of the meetings of the Board of directors, committees of the Board of directors, election of the Chairman of the Board of directors, etc.

21

9.59%

3.4.

Consideration of issues related to the activity of the executive
bodies of the Company, issues of management and internal control bodies, of external auditor

19

8.68%

3.5.

Material assistance to employees and charitable (sponsored)
assistance

1

0.46%

3.6.

Consideration of issues related to the control over the business
activity of companies with the shares (stakes) owned by JSC
«MOESK»

15

6.85%

4.

Management control, including examination of reports on execution of business plans, investment programs, on target values of
key performance indicators, on the credit policy of industrialeconomic activities, on the insurance protection provision

59

26.94%

5.

Approval of transactions, including preliminary approval of
transactions, being of interest to the Company, major deals,
transactions with securities and others with its execution to be
controlled by the Board of directors

27

12.33%

Total

219

DATA ON TRANSACTIONS BEING OF INTEREST TO THE COMPANY

The data on the transactions being of interest to the Company and on the bargains
made by the Company is given in the Appendix.

DATA ON MAJOR DEALS

In 2010 the Company did not make major deals required to be preliminary approved
by the Board of directors or the General meeting of shareholders in accordance with
the Federal Law On Joint Stock Companies dated December 26, 1995 No.208-FZ.
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MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

THE COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
In order to effectively address the
issues within the competence of the
Board of directors and to develop preliminary recommendations to the Board
of directors and the Executive body, the
Company has the committees under the
Board of directors, including representatives of the majority shareholders of
JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company».
The membership of the committees
of the Board of directors of the Company is formed in accordance with the
THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

74

The data in the
membership of the
Audit Committee
acting till the 30 of
July 2010:

The resolution
of the Board of
directors dated
July 30, 2010
(Minutes No.112 of
02.08.2010) stated
the quantitative
membership of the
Committee of 5
persons and elected
the personal
membership of the
Committee:

requirements of Russian stock exchanges, which compliance allows to support
the shares of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» in the «A» category
stock exchange quotation lists.
In the course of 2010 the following
Committees worked under the Board of
directors of the Company: the Personnel and Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Strategy and Development Committee, the Committee
on technological connection to electric
networks, the Reliability Committee.

The Audit Committee was established by the decision of the Board of directors of
the Company and is a consultative advisory body providing control of the Board of
directors of the Company over the financial and economic activities of the Company.
The Committee’s objective is the development and presentation of recommendations (conclusions) to the Board of directors of the Company on the issues of
financial and economic activity.
Full name

Position and place of work (for the date of election)

1.

Aleksey Vladimirovich
Demidov (Chairman of the
Committee)

Economy and Finance Deputy General Director of JSC
«IDGC Holding»

2.

Alexander Albertovich
Popov

Deputy General Director – Staff Head of JSC «IDGC
Holding»

3.

Sergey Nikolaevich
Ivanov

First Deputy Chairman of the Management Board of
JSC «FGC UES»

4.

Sergey Mikhailovich
Kerber

Investment Projects and Programs Head – Managing
Director of JSC «Leader»

Full name

Position and place of work

1.

Sergey Evgenievich
Yurchuk (Chairman of the
Committee)

Director for Finances of JSC «IDGC Holding»

2.

Denis Lvovich Guryanov

First Deputy Chief of the Corporate Governance and
Shareholder Relations Department of JSC «IDGC
Holding»

3.

Sergey Mikhailovich
Kerber

Head of the Investment Projects and Programs Directorate – Managing Director of the JSC «Leader»

4.

Alexander Albertovich
Popov

Deputy General Director – Head of the Administration of JSC «IDGC Holding»

Wolfgang Skribot

Managing Director, Chief of the Electric Power
Industry and Infrastructural Projects Administration
of the Direct Investments Department of Gazprombank (open joint-stock company).

5.

5

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

In 2010 they held 6 meetings of the Audit Committee under the Board of directors,
including 2 collective meetings with attendance by the members.
The attendance of the Committee members at the meetings of the Audit
Committee under the Board of directors in the previous membership up to
July 30, 2010:
Member
of the Audit Committee

Number of meetings having been attended by the member
of the Audit Committee

A.V. Demidov

3

A.A. Popov

3

S.N. Ivanov

1

S.M. Kerber

1

The meetings were on the average attended by 67% of the members of the Audit
Committee under the Board of directors.

Number of meetings having been attended by the member
of the Audit Committee

D.L. Guryanov

2

S.M. Kerber

3

A.A. Popov

3

W. Skribot

2

S.E. Yurchuk

3

The meetings were on the average attended by 87% of the members of the Audit
Committee under the Board of directors.
In 2010 at the meetings of the Audit
Committee of the Board of directors of
the Company the following issues were

discussed and recommendations given
on the most important issues of the
Company business activity, in particular:

 The recommendations for the Board of Directors on the amount of remuneration
of the Company’s Auditor;
 On checking the List of independent auditors engaged to evaluate the market
value of the property and other assets of the Company;
 On checking the Auditor's report for the Consolidated financial statements of
JSC «MOESK» for 2009 prepared in accordance with IFRS and the recommendations
of the Auditor for the Company's management (including letters to the management
in the results of the audit) for the year 2009;

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Member
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The attendance of the Committee members at the meetings of the Audit Committee under the Board of directors in the current membership elected on July
30, 2010:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

 The assessment of the audit report on financial statements of the Company for
the year 2009, issued by JSC «HLB Vneshaudit»;
 The recommendations for the Board of directors of JSC «Moscow United Electric
Grid Company» for the candidature of the Company’s Auditor;
 On the preliminary approval of the annual report and annual accounting records
of the Company for 2009;
 The recommendations to the General meeting of shareholders on distribution
of profits and losses, and also on the size of the dividend on shares of the Company
following the results of 2009;
 On drawing up recommendations on the choice of the Auditor executing the
Company’s financial audit prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standards.

PERSONNEL AND
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
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The data on the
membership of
the Personnel and
Remuneration
Committee acting
till the 30 of July
2010:

The resolution
of the Board of
directors dated
July 30, 2010
(Minutes No.112 of
02.08.2010) stated
the quantitative
membership of the
Committee of 5
persons and elected
the personal
membership of the
Committee:

The committee was created to increase
the management efficiency of the Company’s development by means of soundly-based recommendations to the Board
of directors of the Company in respect of
Full name

personnel policy and motivation, as well
as of the execution of such decisions,
taken by the Board of directors of the
Company.

Position and place of work (for the date of election)

1.

Alexander Albertovich
Popov (Chairman of the
Committee)

Deputy General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding» –
Head of the JSC «IDGC Holding» Administration

2.

Aleksey Vladimirovich
Demidov

Deputy General Director on Economy and Finance
of JSC «IDGC Holding»

3.

Wolfgang Skribot

Head of the Administration of the Electric
Power and Infrastructure Projects – Managing
Director of the Direct Investments Department of
Gazprombank (Open Joint Stock Company)

4.

Anatoliy Anatolievich
Gavrilenko

General Director of JSC «Leader»

Full name

Position and place of work

1.

Alexander Albertovich
Popov (Chairman of the
Committee)

Deputy General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding» –
Head of the JSC «IDGC Holding» Administration

2.

Anatoliy Anatolievich
Gavrilenko

General Director of JSC «Leader»

3.

Denis Lvovich Guryanov

First Deputy Chief of the Corporate Governance and
Shareholder Relations Department of JSC «IDGC
Holding»

4.

Wolfgang Skribot

Managing Director, Head of the Administration of
the Electric Power and Infrastructure Projects of the
Direct Investments Department of Gazprombank
(Open Joint Stock Company)

5.

Sergey Evgenievich
Yurchuk

Director for Finances of JSC «IDGC Holding»

5
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In 2010 they held 9 meetings of the Personnel and Remuneration Committee
under the Board of Directors, including 1 collective meeting with attendance by the
members.
The attendance of the Committee members at the meetings of the Personnel
and Remuneration Committee under the Board of Directors in the previous
membership acting up to July 30, 2010:
Member of the Personnel and
Remuneration Committee

Number of meetings having been attended by the member
of the Personnel and Remuneration Committee

A.A. Gavrilenko

4

A.V. Demidov

5

A.A. Popov

5

W. Skribot

4

The meetings were on the average attended by 90% of the members of the
Personnel and Remuneration Committee under the Board of directors.
In 2010 at the meetings of the Personnel and Remuneration Committee of
the Board of directors of the Company the following issues were discussed
and recommendations given on the most important issues of the Company
business activity, in particular:
Number of meetings having been attended by the member
of the Personnel and Remuneration Committee

A.A. Gavrilenko

4

D.L. Guryanov

4

A.A. Popov

4

W. Skribot

4

S.E. Yurchuk

4
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In 2010 at the meetings of the Personnel and Remuneration Committee
of the Board of directors of the Company the following issues were discussed

and recommendations given on the
most important issues of the Company
business activity, in particular:

On election of the Company’s Management Board members;
On election of the General Director of the Company;
 On stipulation of the conditions of the labor contract with the General Director
of the Company;
 On the Program review in the field of management of Company’s human
resources;
 On preliminary estimation of the candidatures of the members of the Board of
Directors of the Company;
 On performance estimation of the General Director of the Company.



MOESK

The meetings were attended by 100% of the members of the Personnel and
Remuneration Committee under the Board of directors.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

RELIABILITY
COMMITTEE

The main tasks of the Committee are working out and presentation of
recommendations (conclusions) to the Board of Directors of the Company in the
following business areas of the Board of Directors:
 expertise of investment programs and plans for repair of energy facilities, analysis
of its implementation from the point of view of the requirements of comprehensive
reliability;
 assessment of the completeness and adequacy of measures taken on the results of
accidents and major technological violations, as well as the control of its execution;
 monitoring and performance appraisal of Company’s technical services regarding:
 ensuring overall reliability of the network and generating equipment and
constructions;
 ensuring normal status of fixed assets and presentation of the information on
the anticipated reliability risks of its functioning;
 analysis of the contractual and economic tools of reliability management.

The data on
membership in
the Reliability
Committee acting
till the 30 of July
2010:
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Full name

Position and place of work (for the date of election)

1.

Pavel Ivanovich Okley
(Chairman of the
Committee)

Deputy General Director– Technical Director of JSC
«IDGC Holding»

2.

Pavel Vladimirovich
Ilyushin

Deputy Head of the Department for Organization of
Operation and MRO of JSC «IDGC Holding»

3.

Andrey Vladimirovich
Mayorov

Deputy Director General – Chief Engineer of JSC
«Moscow United Electric Grid Company»

4.

Olga Leonidovna Bulanova

Deputy General Director in charge of Finance of JSC
«Moscow United Electric Grid Company»

5.

Igor Dmitrievich
Alyushenko

Director for Development of Dispatch Management
Technology of the Interregional Dispatching Office
of Centre, a branch of «SO UPS»

6.

Mikhail Ivanovich
Balabanov

First Deputy Head of the Fuel and Energy Economy
Department of the city of Moscow

7.

Valeriy Mukhamedovich
Shogenov

Deputy Director of the Department of Economic
Regulation and Property Relations in Fuel and
Energy Complex under the Russian Federation
Ministry of Energy

8.

Timur Khyzyrovich
Tambiev

Chief of the Investment Projects Analysis and
Efficiency Evaluation Division of the Investments
Department of JSC «IDGC Holding»

5
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The resolution of the Board of directors dated July 30, 2010 (Minutes No.112 of
02.08.2010) stated the quantitative membership of the Committee of 8 persons.
Position and place of work

1.

Olga Valentinovna
Zuykova (Chairman of the
Committee)

Head of the Industrial Control and Labor Safety
Directorate of JSC «IDGC Holding»

2.

Pavel Vladimirovich
Ilyushin

Deputy Chief of the Exploitation, Maintenance and
Repairs Arrangement Department of JSC «IDGC
Holding»

3.

Timur Khyzyrovich
Tambiev

Chief of the Investment Projects Analysis and
Efficiency Evaluation Division of the Investments
Department of JSC «IDGC Holding»

4.

Roman Vladimirovich
Voynov

Deputy Technical Director for Dispatch Management
– Chief of the Grids Management Center of JSC
«MOESK»

5.

Anatoly Vasilievich
Chegodaev

Deputy General Director– Technical Director of JSC
«MOESK»

6.

Olga Leonidovna Bulanova

Deputy General Director in charge of Economy and
Finance of JSC «MOESK»

7.

Mikhail Ivanovich
Balabanov

First Deputy Head of the Fuel and Energy Economy
Department of the city of Moscow

8.

Igor Dmitrievich
Alyushenko

Director for Dispatching Management Technologies
Development of IDO of Center (Interregional
Dispatching Office of Center) – a branch of «SO
UPS»

In 2010 they held 5 meetings of the Reliability Committee under the Board of
directors.
The attendance
of the Committee
members at the
meetings of
the Reliability
Committee
under the Board
of directors in
the previous
membership up to
July 30, 2010:

Member of the Reliability
Committee

Number of meetings having been attended by the member
of the Reliability Committee

I.D. Alyushenko

1

M.I. Balabanov

0

O.L. Bulanova

2

P.I. Okley

2

P.V. Ilyushin

2

A.V. Mayorov

2

T.Kh. Tambiev

1

V.M. Shogenov

0

Th
ti
th average attended
tt d d bby 63% off th
b
The meetings
were on the
the members
off th
the
Reliability Committee under the Board of directors.
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The personal
membership of
the Reliability
Committee under
the Board of JSC
«Moscow United
Electric Grid
Company»:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

The attendance
of the Committee
members at the
meetings of
the Reliability
Committee
under the Board
of directors
in the current
membership
elected on July 30,
2010:

Member of the Reliability
Committee

Number of meetings having been attended by the member
of the Reliability Committee

I.D. Alyushenko

2

M.I. Balabanov

0

O.L. Bulanova

3

R.V. Voynov

2

O.V. Zuykova

3

P.V. Ilyushin

2

T.Kh. Tambiev

0

A.V. Chegodaev

3

The meetings were on the average attended by 63% of the members of the
Reliability Committee under the Board of directors.
In 2010 the Reliability Committee of the Board of the Directors of the Company
examined the following major issues at its meetings:
 making the Company ready for work in the autumn and winter period of 2010
-2011;
 review of the Company's Investment program for 2010 from the point of view of
the comprehensive reliability requirements;
 approval of the first-priority arrangements Plan on antiterrorist and antisabotage security increase of the power industry facilities of JSC «MOESK»;
 approval of action Plan for reduction of the outsider injury risks within the
Company’s responsibility for the years 2010 – 2012;
 approval of the Program for the development and increase of reliability of the
system of operative-technological management of the Company’s electric power grid
complex for 2011 – 2015;
 review of the report on the execution of the Company’s Investment program.
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STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

The main tasks of the Committee are
the working out and presentation of
recommendations (conclusions) to the

Board of Directors of the Company in the
following business areas of the Board of
Directors:

 definition of priority directions, strategic targets and basic principles of strategic
development of the Company;
 increase of investment appeal of the Company, improving investment activity
and making justified investment decisions;
 adjustment of the current development strategy of the Company;
 management of the implemented programs, projects and restructuring process
of the Company;
 determination and improvement of policies in the field of business-planning and
budgeting of the Company;
 development of recommendations on the dividend policy of the Company;
 the Company's performance evaluation.

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Position and place of work
(for the date of election)

1.

Aleksey Vladimirovich
Demidov (Chairman of the
Committee)

Deputy General Director in charge of Economy and Finances of
JSC «IDGC Holding»

2.

Aleksey Yurievich
Perepelkin

Deputy General Director in charge of Corporate Governance and
Ownership of JSC «IDGC Holding»

3.

Arman Mushegovich
Ayrapetyan

Deputy Head of the Strategy and Development Centre of JSC
«IDGC Holding»

4.

Timur Khyzyrovich Tambiev

Head of the Investment Projects Productivity Analysis and
Assessment Department of JSC «IDGC Holding»

5.

Valentina Alexandrovna
Demina

Head Analyst of CJSC «Leader»

6.

Dmitriy Yurievich Tushunov

Head of the Analytical Department – Chief Economist of JSC
«Leader»

7.

Aleksey Sergeevich
Kravchenko

Direct Investments Deputy General Director of Gazprombank
(Open joint stock company)

8.

Alexander Pavlovich
Oleynik

Deputy Head of the Department for Fuel and Energy Economy of
Moscow Government

9.

Maria Gennadievna
Tikhonova

Deputy Director of the Department of the Economic Regulation
and the Property Relations in the Fuel and Energy Complex of
the Ministry of Energy of the Russian Federation

10. Olga Leonidovna Bulanova

Deputy General Director in charge of Economy and Finances of
JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»

11. Leonid Vladimirovich Mazo

Strategy and Business Development Deputy General Director of
JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»

On the 12th of February 2010 the Board of Directors passed the resolution (Minutes No.100 dated 14.02.2010) to make the following changes in the membership of
the Strategy and Development Committee:
– To terminate early powers of Arman Mushegovich Airapetyan, the member of the
Committee.
– To elect Vladimir Vasilievich Kuznetsov, Head of Strategy and Development Center of JSC «IDGS Holding», as the member of the Committee.
The resolution
of the Board of
directors dated
July 30, 2010
(Minutes No.112 of
02.08.2010) stated
the quantitative
membership of the
Committee of 15
persons and elected
the personal
membership of
the Strategy and
Development
Committee:

Full name

Position and place of work

1

Mikhail Yurievich Kurbatov

Deputy General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding»

2

Gennady Feliksovich Binko

Deputy General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding»

3

Aleksey Vladimirovich
Demidov

Deputy General Director in charge of Economy and Finance of
JSC «IDGC Holding»

4

Aleksey Yurievich
Perepelkin

Deputy General Director for Corporate Governance and Property
of JSC «IDGC Holding»

5

Aleksey Valerievich
Sannikov

Deputy General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding»

6

Konstantin Yurievich
Petukhov

Director for Strategy and Development of JSC «IDGC Holding»
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Full name
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Position and place of work

7

Viktor Vasilievich Kudryavy

Adviser to the President of JSC «Eurocement group»

8

Valentina Alexandrovna
Dyomina

Leading analyst of JSC «Leader»

9

Aleksey Viktorovich
Nuzhdov

Deputy General Director for Security of JSC «Leader»

10

Dmitry Yurievich Tushunov

Chief of the Analytical Administration – Main Economist of JSC
«Leader»

11

Aleksey Sergeevich
Kravchenko

Deputy Director of the Direct Investments Department of
«Gazprombank» (open joint-stock company)

12

Mikhail Lvovich Krupin

Deputy General Director for Engineering Connection in Moscow
of JSC «MOESK»

13

Olga Leonidovna Bulanova

Deputy General Director for Economy and Finance of JSC
«MOESK"

14

Alexander Pavlovich
Oleynik

Deputy Head of the Fuel and Energy Economy Department of
the city of Moscow

15

Nikolay Grigorievich
Shulginov

First Deputy Chairman of the Management Board of «SO UPS»

In 2010 they held 19 meetings of the Strategy and Development Committee under
the Board of directors, including 10 collective meetings with attendance by the
members.
The attendance of the Committee members at
the meetings of the Strategy and Development
Committee under the Board of directors in the
previous membership acting till February 12, 2010:
Member of the
Strategy and
Development
Committee

Number of meetings having
been attended by the member
of the Strategy and Development Committee

The attendance of the Committee members at
the meetings of the Strategy and Development
Committee under the Board of directors in the
previous membership acting till July 30, 2010:
Member of the
Strategy and
Development
Committee

Number of meetings having
been attended by the
member of the Strategy and
Development Committee

А.М. Аyrapetyan

0

O.L. Bulanova

8

A.V. Demidov

2

A.V. Demidov

7

O.L. Bulanova

2

V.A. Dyomina

8

V.A. Dyomina

2

A.S. Kravchenko

8

A.S. Kravchenko

2

V.V. Kuznetsov

8

L.V. Mazo

2

L.V. Mazo

8

A.P. Oleynik

0

A.P. Oleynik

5

A.Y. Perepelkin

2

A.Y. Perepelkin

8

T.Kh. Tambiev

2

T.Kh. Tambiev

6

M.G. Tikhonova

0

M.G. Tikhonova

3

D.Y. Tushunov

2

D.Y. Tushunov

7

The meetings were on the average attended by
73% of the members of the Strategy and Development Committee under the Board of directors.

The meetings were on the average attended by
86% of the members of the Strategy and Development Committee under the Board of directors.
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5

The attendance of the Committee members at
the meetings of the Strategy and Development
Committee under the Board of directors in the
current membership elected on July 30, 2010:
Number of meetings having
been attended by the
member of the Strategy and
Development Committee

8

O.L. Bulanova

8

A.V. Demidov

9

V.A. Dyomina

6

A.S. Kravchenko

8

V.V. Kudryavy

7

M.L. Krupin

7

M.Y. Kurbatov

9

A.V. Nuzhdov

4

A.P. Oleynik

2

A.Y. Perepelkin

8

K.Y. Petukhov

6

A.V. Sannikov

6

D.Y. Tushunov

8

N.G. Shulginov

9

The
h meetings
i
were on the
h average attended
d d by
b
78% of the members of the Strategy and Development Committee under the Board of directors.
In 2010 at the meetings of the Strategy and Development Committee of the Board
of directors of the Company the following issues were discussed and recommendations
given on the most important issues of the Company business activity, in particular:
 On the report analysis of the Company’s Business-plan results (including the
investment program);
 On JSC «MOESK» Business-plan approval (including the investment program)
for 2010;
 On determination of priority business areas of JSC «MOESK»;
 On termination of JSC «MOESK» participation in Non-commercial partnership
«Council of the energy sector veterans»;
 On termination of JSC «MOESK» participation in Non-commercial partnership
«Innovations in Electric Power Industry» (INVEL);
 On analysis of the first-priority arrangements Plan on antiterrorist and antisabotage security increase of the power industry facilities of JSC «MOESK»;
 On participation of JSC «MOESK» in Non-commercial partnership «The union of
power auditors and power-service companies»;
 On participation of JSC «MOESK» in Non-commercial partnership «The market
Union on organization of efficient system of wholesale and retail trade of electric
power and capacity».
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COMMITTEE ON
TECHNOLOGICAL
CONNECTIONS
TO ELECTRIC
NETWORKS
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The data on the
membership of
the Committee
on Technological
Connections to
Electric Networks
acting till the 30 of
July 2010:

The main tasks of the Committee are
the working out and presentation of
recommendations (conclusions) to the

Board of Directors of the Company in the
following business areas of the Board of
Directors:

 development of proposals on antimonopoly regulation legal framework improvement
and ensuring nondiscrimination access to services of the consumers’ technological connection to electric networks;
 development of proposals on improvement of internal rules and standards of the Company to ensure nondiscrimination access to services of the consumers’ technological connection to electric networks;
 development of principles and criteria for evaluating the effectiveness of the Company's performance on technological connection of consumers to electric networks;
 evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company's performance on technological connection of consumers to electric networks;
 analysis of the current situation in the Company, and the formation of proposals to the
Board of directors of the Company in the part of the technological connection of consumers
to electric networks.

№

Full name

Position and place of work (for the date of election)

1.

Andrey Vladimirovich
Demidov (Chairman of the
Committee)

Deputy General Director in charge of Economy and
Finances of JSC «IDGC Holding»

2.

Gennady Feliksovich Binko

Deputy General Director of JSC «IDGC Holding»

3.

Dmitriy Igorevich
Romeyko

Clients Relations and Technological Connection
Deputy General Director of JSC «MOESK»

4.

Evgeniy Anatolievich
Kopanov

Director of the Department for the Legal Support of
JSC «MOESK»

5.

Olga Stanislavovna Zotova

Head of the Economy Management Department of the
Technological Connections of JSC «MOESK»

6.

Dmitriy Veniaminovich
Morylev

Capital Construction Department Directors of JSC
«Moscow United Electric Grid Company»

7.

Aleksey Sergeevich
Kravchenko

Direct Investments Department Deputy General Director of Gazprombank (open joint stock company)

8.

Valentina Alexandrovna
Dyomina

Head Analyst of JSC «Leader»

9.

Denis Nikolayevich Yarosh

Regimes Deputy Chief Dispatcher of «SO UPS» Moscow Regional Dispatch Administration

Vsevolod Georgievich

10. Pleshivtsev
11.

Khasan Mushtafaevich
Likhov

First Deputy Head of the Department for Fuel and
Energy Economy of Moscow Government
Councilor of the Corporate Governance Department
of Economic Regulation and Property Relations in
the Fuel and Energy Complex of the Ministry of
Energy of the Russian Federation
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The resolution of the Board of directors dated July 30, 2010 (Minutes No.112 of
02.08.2010) stated the quantitative membership of the Committee of 9 persons and
elected the personal membership of the Committee:

№

Full name

Position and place of work

1.

Mikhail Lvovich Krupin

Deputy General Director for Engineering
Connection in Moscow of JSC «MOESK»

2.

Olga Stanislavovna Zotova

Head of the Investment Planning and Economy
Management Department of the Technological
Connections of JSC «MOESK»

3.

Aleksey Yurievich
Makarovsky

Chief of the Engineering Connections Economy
Administration of JSC «MOESK»

4.

Mikhail Alexandrovich
Kruchinin

Head of the Electric Power Transportation
Directorate of JSC «MOESK»

5.

Konstantin Yurievich
Petukhov

Director for Strategy and Development of JSC «IDGC
Holding»

6.

Denis Nikolayevich Yarosh

Regimes Deputy Chief Dispatcher of «SO UPS»
Moscow Regional Dispatch Administration

7.

Valentina Alexandrovna
Dyomina

Head Analyst of JSC «Leader»

8.

Aleksey Sergeevich
Kravchenko

Direct Investments Department Deputy General
Director of Gazprombank (Open joint stock
company)

9.

Vsevolod Georgievich
Pleshivtsev

First Deputy Head of the Department for Fuel and
Energy Economy of Moscow Government

In 2010 at the meetings of the Committee on Technological Connections to
the Electric Networks under the Board of directors of the Company the following issues were discussed and recommendations given on the most important
issues of the Company business activity, in particular:
On implementation of measures to address the problem issues in the sphere of
technological connection on the territory of the Moscow city following the results
of 2009;
 On the extension of technical conditions for the technological connection,
issued prior to the payment introduction for technological connection to the
electric grids of JSC «Moscow united electric grid company».
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In 2010 they held 3 meetings of the Committee on Technological Connections
to the Electric Networks under the Board of directors of JSC «MOESK», including 1
collective meeting with combined attendance.
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The attendance
of the Committee
members at the
meetings of the
Committee on
Technological
Connections to
Electric Networks
under the Board
of directors in
the previous
membership acting
till July 30, 2010:
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Member of the Committee on
Technological Connections to
the Electric Networks

Number of meetings having been attended by the member
of the Committee on Technological Connections to the
Electric Networks

G.F. Binko

2

A.V. Demidov

2

V.A. Dyomina

2

O.S. Zotova

2

E.A. Kopanov

0

A.S. Kravchenko

2

K.M. Likhov

1

D.V. Morylev

2

V.G. Pleshivtsev

1

D.I. Romeyko

2

D.N. Yarosh

2

The meetings
Th
ti
were on the
th average attended
tt d d by
b 82% off the
th members
b off th
the CCommittee on Technological Connections to the Electric Networks under the Board of
directors.
The attendance
of the Committee
members at the
meetings of the
Committee on
Technological
Connections to
Electric Networks
under the Board
of directors
in the current
membership
elected on July 30,
2010:

Member of the Committee on
Technological Connections to
the Electric Networks

Number of meetings having been attended by the member
of the Committee on Technological Connections to the
Electric Networks

V.A. Dyomina

0

O.S. Zotova

0

A.S. Kravchenko

1

M.L. Krupin

1

M.A. Kruchinin

1

A.Y. Makarovsky

1

K.Y. Petukhov

1

V.G. Pleshivtsev

0

D.N. Yarosh

1

The meetings were on the average attended by 67% of the
th
he members of the Committee on Technological Connections to the Electric Networks under the Board of
directors.
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JOINT MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
In the course of 2010 there took place 3 joint meetings of the Strategy and
Development Committee and of the Committee on Technological Connections to the
Electric Networks under the Board of Directors, where they discussed the activity
results of technological connection to electric networks of JSC «MOESK».

Number of meetings having been attended by
the member of the Strategy and Development
Committee, of the Committee on Technological
Connections to the Electric Networks

А.V. Demidov

1

G.F. Binko

1

O.L. Bulanova

1

V.A. Dyomina

1

O.S. Zotova

1

E.A. Kopanov

0

A.S. Kravchenko

1

V.V. Kuznetsov

1

K.M. Likhov

1

L.V. Mazo

1

D.V. Morylev

0

A.P. Oleynik

1

A.Y. Perepelkin

1

V.G. Pleshivtsev

0

D.I. Romeyko

0

T.Kh. Tambiev

0

M.G. Tikhonova

0

D.Y. Tushunov

1

D.N. Yarosh

1

The joint meetings were on the average attended by 68% of the Committees’
members.
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Member of the Strategy and Development Committee, of the Committee
on Technological Connections to the
Electric Networks

MOESK

The attendance
of the members
of the Strategy
and Development
Committee and
of the Committee
on Technological
Connections to
Electric Networks at
the joint meetings
in the previous
memberships
acting till July 30,
2010:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

The attendance
of the members
of the Strategy
and Development
Committee and
of the Committee
on Technological
Connections to
Electric Networks at
the joint meetings
in the memberships
elected on July 30,
2010:

88

Member of the Strategy and Development Committee, of the Committee
on Technological Connections to the
Electric Networks

Number of meetings having been attended by
the member of the Strategy and Development
Committee, of the Committee on Technological
Connections to the Electric Networks

G.F. Binko

2

O.L. Bulanova

2

A.V. Demidov

2

V.A. Dyomina

2

O.S. Zotova

1

A.P. Konovalov

1

A.S. Kravchenko

2

M.A. Kruchinin

1

M.L. Krupin

0

V.V. Kudryavy

2

M.Y. Kurbatov

2

A.Y. Makarovsky

2

A.V. Nuzhdov

1

A.P. Oleynik

0

A.Y. Perepelkin

2

K.Y. Petukhov

1

V.G. Pleshivtsev

1

A.V. Sannikov

1

M.G. Tikhonova

2

D.Y. Tushunov

1

N.G. Shulginov

1

D.N. Yarosh

2

The joint meetings were on the average attended
atten
nded by 68% of the Committees’
members.
MANAGEMENT
BOARD

The management board is a collegial executive body of the Company. The management
board is responsible for the practical implementation of the objectives, development strategy
and policy of the Company and manages the current activities within its competence, determined by the decisions of the General meeting of shareholders and the Board of directors,
and shall act in accordance with the legislation of the Russian Federation, with the Charter
of the Company and other internal documents of the Company, as well as with the Provisions
on the Management Board of JSC «Moscow united electric grid company», approved by the
resolution of the annual general meeting of shareholders on June 15, 2007.

The main tasks of the Company’s Management Board are as follows:
 enforcement of rights and legitimate interests of the Company’s shareholders;
 development of proposals on the development strategy of the Company;
 implementation of financial and economic policy of the Company, development of proposals on important issues of its current business activities and coordination of its subdivisions performance;
 increasing the effectiveness of the internal control and risk monitoring systems;
 ensuring profitability high level achievement of the Company's assets and maximum
profit from the Company's activities

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
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MANAGEMENT BOARD MEMBERSHIP (AS OF 31.12.2010)

Andrey
Pavlovich
KONOVALOV
Chairman of the
Management Board

General Director of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»
Year of birth: 1958
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
Member of the Board of JSC «RusHydro»;
General Director of JSC «Irkutskenergo»;
G
FFirst Deputy General Director, Director on economics and finances of JSC «Krasnoyarsk
hydro power plant».
h
O
Ownership
of the Company’s ordinary shares: 0%
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
O
iissuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%

Positions held for the last 5 years:
Financial Director of Group of companies «INOPROM».
O
Ownership
interest in the issuer’s authorized capital: 0%
O
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
iissuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%

Grigory
Yakovlevich
VOLKENSTEIN

89

Deputy General Director on the capital construction of JSC «MOESK»
Year of birth: 1956
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
P
Positions
held for the last 5 years:
General Director of JSC «Corporation ROEL»;
G
General Director of «Prominvestcomplex», LLC.
G
O
Ownership
interest in the issuer’s authorized capital: 0%
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
O
iissuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%
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Deputy Chairman
of the Board

Deputy General Director on economics and finances of JSC «MOESK»
Year of birth: 1959
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher

MOESK

Olga
Leonidovna
BULANOVA

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

David
Feliksovich
KUZNETSOV

Deputy General Director on special projects of JSC «MOESK»
Year of birth: 1963
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
P
Member of the Board of JSC «RusHydro»;
Director of the representative branch in Moscow, Deputy General Director of «LEVIT», LLC.
Ownership interest in the issuer’s authorized capital: 0%
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
issuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%

Mikhail
Lvovich
KRUPIN

Deputy General Director on technological connections in Moscow
Year of birth: 1972
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
P
General Director of «Region-Securities», LLC.;
Assistant of the deputy of the regional 5th Duma of Yaroslavsk city Duma;
First Deputy General Director – Financial Director of JSC «Fifth generating company of the
wholesale electric power market»;
Ownership interest in the issuer’s authorized capital: 0%
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
issuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%

90

Yuri
Vadimovich
MARAKIN

Deputy General Director in charge of control and security of JSC «MOESK»
Year of birth: 1960
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
Business development department head, Chief of the department of economic security of
JSC «SOLLERS»;
General Director of JSC «SOLLERS-ST»;
Ownership interest in the issuer’s authorized capital: 0%
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
issuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%

Anatoly
Vasilievich
CHEGODAEV

Deputy General Director – Technical Director of JSC «MOESK»
Year of birth: 1954
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
P
Positions
held for the last 5 years:
Deputy Chief engineer on organization of operation of JSC «UES FGC»;
Director on production – Chief engineer of JSC «Engineering company Electronic Intelligence»;
Deputy General Director on production – chief engineer of JSC «WGC-2»;
Chief engineer, Director of Energosbyt of JSC «Krasnoyarskenergo»;
Member of the Board of directors of JSC «Kuban backbone grids»;
Member of the Board of directors of JSC «Dalenergosetproekt».
Ownership interest in the issuer’s authorized capital: 0%
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
issuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%
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In 2010 the Management Board of the Company held 48 meetings.
As the result of the Management Board activity in 2010 it took decisions on the most
significant issues of the Company's activities within its competence, among them:
 definition of priority business directions;
 issues related to the performance of functions of the General meeting of shareholders of
business companies with JSC «MOESK» being the sole shareholder;
 coordination of the Business plan of the Company for the year 2010, of the Company's
Investment program for 2010, of the Annual complex program of competitive, regulated and
non-competitive purchases of the Company for the year 2010, as well amendments to the abovementioned documents;
 analyses of Reports about the results of fulfillment of the Company’s Business plan for
2009, of the Company's Investment program for the year 2009, of the Annual complex program of
competitive, regulated and non-competitive purchases of the Company for the year 2009.
 examination of Reports on the results of financial and economic activities of subsidiaries
and affiliates of the Company for 9 months of the year 2010.
 the Program review of non-state pension provision of employees of JSC «MOESK» for 2010.

Year of birth: 1967
Nationality: Russia
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
Acting General Director of JSC «MOESK»;
Deputy General Director – Chief Engineer of JSC «MOESK»;
First Deputy General Director on Production – Chief Engineer of JSC «MOESK»;
Deputy General Director in charge of electric grids of JSC «Orenburgenergo»;
Director of the Western electric grids of JSC «Orenburgenergo».
Ownership of the Company’s ordinary shares: 0%
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
issuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%
On the 11th of March 2010 the Board of Directors of JSC «MOESK» resolved to appoint
Andrey Pavlovich Konovalov as the General Director of the Company (Minutes No. 104 dated
12.03.2010):

Andrey
Pavlovich
KONOVALOV

General Director of JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»
Year of birth: 1958
Nationality: Russia
EEducation: higher
P
Positions held for the last 5 years:
M
Member of the Board of JSC «RusHydro»;
G
General Director of JSC «Irkutskenergo»;
FFirst Deputy General Director, Director on economics and finances of JSC «Krasnoyarsk
h
hydro power plant».
O
Ownership of the Company’s ordinary shares: 0%
O
Ownership interest of the person in the authorized (joint-stock) capital (share fund) of the
iissuer’s subsidiaries and affiliates: 0%
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Andrey
Vladimirovich
MAYOROV

The management of the current activity of the Company is executed by the sole executive
body – General Director (the Chairman of the Management Board), who is accountable to the
General meeting of shareholders and the Board of directors of the Company.
The rights and duties of the General Director shall be determined by the legislation of the
Russian Federation, by the Company’s Charter and by the work contract concluded between
the General Director and the Company.
The scope of functions of General Director covers all the issues of JSC «MOESK» present
activity, except for the issues pertained to the scope of functions of the General Meeting of
shareholders and JSC «MOESK» Management Board.
Within the period from the 1st of January till the 10th of March 2010 the acting General
Director was Andrey Vladimirovich Mayorov:

MOESK

GENERAL DIRECTOR

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

CHECKUP
COMMITTEE

The Checkup Committee is the authority controlling financial and economic activities of
the Company, and on a regular basis carries out the checking of the financial and economic
activities of the Company and its separate subdivisions, and of officials of the Company's
management bodies and structural divisions of the executive apparatus of the Company in
compliance with the legislation of the Russian Federation, with the Company’s Charter and
internal documents of the Company.
The main tasks of the Checkup Committee of the Company are:
 control over financial and economic activities of the Company;
 ensuring supervision over the compliance with the legislation of the Russian Federation
and the Company’s Charter of the financial and economic operations of the Company;
 independent estimation of the information on the financial condition of the Company.
According to the Article 23.1 of the Charter of the Company the internal Checkup
Committee consists of 5 members elected annually by the General meeting of shareholders.

The data on the
membership of the
Checkup Committee
acting prior to June
30, 2010 (positions
per election date):
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Lyudmila Romanovna
Matyunina

First Deputy Head of the Department for Internal Audit of
JSC «IDGC Holding»

Irina Vasilievna Mikhno

Deputy Head of the Department – Chief of Branch of Internal
Audit Department of JSC «IDGC Holding»

Lyudmila Dmitrievna
Kormushkina

Chief of the Branch of internal audit, revisory checks and
expertise of the Internal Audit and Risk Management
Department of JSC «IDGC Holding»

Maxim Mikhailovich
Saukh

First Deputy Head of the Department for Corporate
Governance and Relations with Shareholders of JSC «IDGC
Holding»

Yuriy Mikhailovich
Pukov

Head of the Internal Audit and Financial Control Department
of JSC «MOESK»

The data on the
membership of the Izumrud Aligadzhievna
Checkup Committee Alimuradova
elected on June, 30
2010 (the positions
per election date):

Chief of the Internal Audit Department of JSC «IDGC
Holding»
Year of birth: 1971
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
Director on development of «Energoconsult», LLC.
Ownership of the Company’s ordinary shares: 0%

Vladimir Nikolaevich
Arkhipov

First Deputy of the Security Department Head of JSC
«FGC UES»
Year of birth: 1956
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
Consultant of Federal State Unitary Enterprise
«Rosoboronexport»
General Director of JSC «Rustel»
Ownership of the Company’s ordinary shares: 0%
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Lyudmila Dmitrievna
Kormushkina

5

Chief of the Department of internal audit, revisory
checks and expertise of JSC «IDGC Holding»
Year of birth: 1956
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
Key expert of the head office of the internal audit
Department of JSC RAO «UES of Russia»
Ownership of the Company’s ordinary shares: 0%

Maxim Mikhailovich Saukh

Deputy Chief of the Corporate Governance and
Shareholder Relations Department of JSC «IDGC
Holding»
Year of birth: 1979
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
Key expert, Сhief expert, Chief of the Branch of the
Corporate Governance and Shareholders Relations
Department of JSC RAO «UES of Russia»
Senior project manager of the Group on enforcement
of shareholders’ rights of the Project centre on
reorganization completion of JSC RAO «UES of Russia» of
JSC «IDGC Holding»
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Irina Alexandrovna
Filippova

Leading Expert of the Audit Arrangement and
Performance Branch in the Internal Audit
Department of JSC «IDGC Holding»
Year of birth: 1958
Education: higher
Positions held for the last 5 years:
Key expert of «Energoconsult», LLC.
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Ownership of the Company’s ordinary shares: 0%

In the reporting year no transactions have been made between members of the Checkup
Committee and JSC «MOESK», no claims have been advanced to the members of the Checkup
Committee of the Company.
In accordance with the Federal law on personal data dated 27.07.2006 No.152-FZ, the Company obtained a consent for processing of personal data of all members of the governance
and control bodies of JSC «MOESK».

MOESK

Ownership of the Company’s ordinary shares: 0%

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

5.4. THE CRITERIA AND AMOUNT OF REMUNERATIONS PAID
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNANCE BODIES AND
TO THE CHEKING COMMITTEE
THE
REMUNERATION
TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

In 2010, the total amount of remuneration paid to the members of the Board of directors
of the Company amounted to:
 for participation in the meetings of the Board of directors – 6 469 039 rubles (including
personal income tax).
 for the primary earning index of the Company according to the annual financial
statements for 2009, approved by the General meeting of shareholders of the Company –
13,658 856.7 rubles (including personal income tax).
 for the market capitalization index for the performance period of the Board of directors
of the Company – 1 526 428.1 rubles (including personal income tax).
Since September 1, 2008, the size of and procedure for payment of remunerations and
compensations to the members of the Board of directors is determined by the Provisions on
payment of remunerations and compensations to the members of the Board of directors approved by the annual General meeting of shareholders on May 28, 2008.

REMUNERATION TO
THE MEMBERS OF
THE MANAGEMENT
BOARD OF THE
COMPANY

In accordance with Clause 2.4. of the Provisions on the Management Board of the Company
approved by the General meeting of shareholders of the Company of June 15, 2007 (Minutes
No.4 dated June 21, 2007), the determination of remunerations and compensations to be paid
to members of the Management Board of the Company is carried out by the Board of directors
of the Company.
In 2010 the Board of directors of the Company made no decisions on payment of remunerations and compensations to members of the Management Board of the Company.
Material incentives for the employees of the Company, being the members of the Management Board, are given in accordance with the Provisions on stimulating remuneration for top
managers of JSC «MOESK», approved by the decision of the Board of directors of JSC «MOESK»
(Minutes No.46 dated July 17, 2007).

REMUNERATION
TO THE GENERAL
DIRECTOR

The size of remuneration for the General Director of the Company is determined in
accordance with the Provisions on stimulating remuneration of the General director of the
Company approved by the decision of the Board of directors dated July 13, 2007 (Minutes of
July 17, 2007 No.46) and depends on the degree of execution by the Company of quarterly
and annual key performance indicators.

REMUNERATION
TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE CHECKUP
COMMITTEE

Procedure for payment of remunerations and compensations to the members of the
Checkup Committee for participation in the audit of the Company’s financial and economic
activity is established by the Provisions on payment of remunerations and compensations to
members of the Checkup Committee of the Company.
The amount of remuneration paid in 2010 to members of the Checkup Committee of the
Company for audit of the Company’s financial and economic activities following the results of
2009 amounted to 390 619 rubles (including personal income tax).
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5.5. SECURITIES
Total number of issued shares – 48 707 091 574 shares.
Share denomination – 0.5 rubles.
Size of the authorized capital – 24 353 545 787 rubles.
Total number of shareholders – 17 044*
* data per 17.05.2010 – the listing date of shareholders, having the right to participate in
the General meeting of shareholders in 2010.
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SHAREHOLDING PER 17.05.2010 – THE LISTING DATE OF SHAREHOLDERS,
HAVING THE RIGHT TO PARTCIPATE IN THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS IN 2010

OJSC «OEK-Finance»
(100% RF subjekt
subsidary – Moscow)

5.05%
Others

4.50%

Other shareholders

13.25%

CJSC «LEADER»

6.84%
SIRITIA
VENTURES LIMITED

5.23%
MC «AGANA» LLC

14.23%
JSC «IDGC Holding»

50.90%

The stock placing order has been set by
the resolution of the annual General meeting of the shareholders of JSC «Mosenergo»
about the reorganization of JSC «Mosenergo» by way of spin-off (Minutes No.1 dated
29.06.2004).
The shares of JSC «MOESK» were placed by
distribution among the shareholders of JSC
«Mosenergo», including distribution among
the shareholders, who voted against or did
not take part in the voting on the issue concerning the restructuring of JSC «Mosenergo», in proportion to their shares of JSC
«Mosenergo».
The shareholders received 1 (one) ordinary share of JSC «MOESK» with a par value
of 0.5 roubles for each ordinary share of
JSC «Mosenergo» owned by them. The total number of JSC «MOESK» shares subject
to distribution equalled to the total number of JSC «Mosenergo» shares (except for
the shares owned by JSC «Mosenergo») that
were left after the shares repurchase that
was made under the request of the shareholders who voted against the restructuring or did not take part in the voting on the
given issue.

The number of JSC «MOESK» ordinary
shares that each shareholder of JSC «MOESK»
received equalled to the number of JSC
«Mosenergo» ordinary shares belonging to
him/her on the date of placement on the
basis of the data of JSC «Mosenergo» shareholders' register. The authorized capital of
JSC «MOESK» made up 28 249 359 700 shares
with a par value of 0.5 roubles.
On April 18, 2008 the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of JSC «MOESK»
made the decision on restructuring of JSC
«MOESK» in the form of merger with JSC
«MGESK», and the decision on placement of
JSC «MOESK» additionally issued shares (in
the number of 20 461 450 000 pieces) for
conversion in them of JSC «MGESK» shares in
the process of restructuring.
A month after the completion of the JSC
«MOESK» reorganization (31.07.2008), the
Federal Financial Markets Service of Russia
(FFMS) registered the report on the placement results of additional issue securities of
JSC «MOESK».
On September 19, 2008 they registered the
changes and additions No.7 to the Charter of
JSC «MOESK», in accordance with which the
authorized capital of the Company amounted
to 48 707 091 574 shares. The changes fixed
as well the presence of authorized shares in
the amount of 3 718 126 pieces.
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The JSC «MOESK» stock placing date is
April 1, 2005 – the date of state registration
of JSC «MOESK».

MOESK

THE HISTORY
OF CAPITAL STOCK

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Distribution of
the shareholders
of JSC «MOESK»
by the categories
of owners as of
December 31, 2010:

Distribution of the
shareholders of JSC
«MOESK» by the
state registration
place:
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A list of registered
persons with
accounts of 5%
and more of shares
of the authorized
capital of JSC
«MOESK»:

Number of shares, pcs.

Share in charter
capital, %

JSC «IDGC Holding»

24 794 187 558

50.90

Other legal entities

21 915 859 301

45.0

Natural persons

1 997 044 715

4.10

Name

Category

31.12.2008

31.12.2009

31.12.2010

Residents

99.293%

99.294%

99.294%

Nonresidents

0.707%

0.706%

0.706%

Share in the authorized capital, %
Name
31.12.2008

31.12.2009

31.12.2010

Limited Liability Corporation
«Depositary and corporate technologies» (nominal holder)*

50.90

50.90

50.90

Noncommercial partnership «National Depositary center» (nominal holder)

32.62

32.72

33.25

Closed joint-stock company
«Depository Clearing Company»
(nominal holder)

11.57

11.63

11.46

* As of December 31, 2010 JSC «IDGC Holding» is the shareholder owing 50.90% of JSC
«MOESK» charter capital.
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Data on the
registered issues of
shares

Principal issue

Additional issue

1-01-65116-D

1-01-65116-D-001D

31.05.2005

30.06.2008

28 249 359 700

20 457 731 874

0.5

0.5

Tender start date on MICEX Stock
Exchange

09.02.2006

22.08.2008

Ticker on MICEX Stock Exchange

MSRS

MSRS-001D

09.02.2006

07.08.2008

MSRS

MSRS

State registration number of issue
State registration date of issue
Number of issued shares, pcs.
Per value, RUR.

Tender start date on RTS Stock Exchange
Ticker on RTS Stock Exchange

On November 18, 2008 in accordance with the Order of FFMS of Russia No.08-2788/pz-n,
the individual number 001D of the state registration number 1-01-65116-D-001D, assigned to
the additional issue of shares JSC «MOESK» was cancelled.
On December 10, 2008 the shares of the primary and additional issues were combined on
MICEX stock exchange under a single MSRS ticker.

MOESK

Share tender results of JSC «MOESK» for the year 2010
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Shares
of JSC «MOESK»
in weighted
indexes

Index short title*

Inclusion date of indexes calculation basis

Index weight

MICEX POWER

15.10.2007

2.36%

RTS2

15.06.2007

1.42%

RTSEU

15.09.2006

2.72%

* The detailed information about the rules and the indexes calculation basis is presented on
the web-sites of JSC «Russian Trading System» (www.rts.ru) and of JSC «MICEX» (www.micex.ru).

REGISTRAR
INFORMATION

The registrar of JSC «MOESK» is a Closed Joint Stock Company «Registrar Company
«STATUS» – a professional participant of the securities market, rendering services on keeping
the register of security holders on the basis of the license issued by the Federal service on
financial markets dated 12.03.2004 No.10-000-1-00304 with unlimited validity period.

BONDED LOAN DATA

On September 12, 2006 the bonds of the Company were placed on JSC «MICEX Stock
exchange». The first and subsequent coupon tariff fixed by JSC «MOESK» by the tender
results amounted to 8.05% per annum, which corresponds to the redemption effective yield
of 8.21% per annum.

Parameters of the
bonded loan:

98

Par value

1 000 RUB

Form of a security

documentary

Number and date of the issue state
registration of the securities issue

4-01-65116-D, 22.06.2006

Unique registration code of the issue
(series, tranche)

Series 01

Issue sequence number

1 (the first)

Number of securities of the issue

6 000 000 pcs.

Amount of the securities of the issue

6 000 000 000 RUB

Placement beginning date

12.09.2006

Completion date of the placement

12.09.2006

Placing price

Placing price of each security of the issue is
fixed equal to 100% of the security nominal
value – 1 000 RUB

Maturity date

06.09.2011

Security life

1 820 calendar days since the beginning
date of the placement without the
possibility of the advanced repayment.

On September 15,
15 2008 JSC «MOESK» purchased 3 643
64
43 493 pieces
piecces of bonds,
bonds presented for
redemption in connection with the reorganization of JSC «MOESK» through merger with JSC
«MGESK».
The bonds specify the payment of semi-annual coupons. The general size of coupons
payments in 2010 amounted to 189.2 million rubles. The Company has timely and in full
fulfilled all obligations before holders of the bonds.
In 2010 the bonds of JSC «MOESK» were traded on the MICEX stock exchange in the first
level quotation list, into which they were included on December 2, 2008.
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5.6. PARTICIPATION IN BUSINESS
AND NONCOMMERCIAL COMPANIES
PARTICIPATION OF JSC «MOESK» IN COMMERCIAL ORGANIZATIONS:

2

3

4

Financial
result of subsidiaries and
associates of
the company,
thous.RUR

Open Joint-Stock
Company «Electric Grid
Equipment Repairing
Plant» (JSC «Zavod
RETO»)

Location: 152201
Russia, Moscow,
Starokashirskoye
shosse 4a

Installation, maintenance and repair of power
facilities, electricity, heat and power equipment
of power consumers; repair and overhaul of the
powered electrical facilities in electrical power
networks, Thermal Power Plants, GRES power
plants, and other facilities; recovery operations at
electrical power networks, Thermal Power Plants,
GRES power plants and other facilities in the city
of Moscow and Moscow region and other regions.

100

348 405

686

Open Joint-Stock
Company «Moskabelsetmontazh» (JSC
«MKSM»)

Location: 115088
Russia, Moscow,
Yuzhnoportovaya
Street 17, Building 3

Construction and installation works (including
installation works on external utility networks
and equipment, field cable installation of 1-10,
20, 35, 110, 220 and 500 kV electric supply; site
preparation and excavation works, erection
of bearing and enclosing structures, internal
engineering networks; structures and equipment
protective works, commissioning works).

100

610 147

13 156

Open Joint-Stock
Company «Moskabelenergoremont» (JSC
«MKER»)

Location: 115569
Russia, Moscow,
Shipilovskaya
Street 13, Building 2

Installation, adjustment and repair of energy
facilities, electric power and heat power
equipment and energy installations of consumers;
repair, reconstruction and re-equipment of cable
lines and equipment, and re-equipment and
reconstruction of power facilities; maintenance
of power supply of the consumers connected to
networks; maintenance of operation of power
equipment, engineering systems and structures
according to operating normative requirements.

100

190 271

(15 077)*

Open Joint Stock Company «Energocenter»
(JSC «Energocenter» )

Kirova Street
65, Podolsk city,
Moscow Area,
Russia, 142117

Realization of investment activities, rendering
of services on connection to electric grids,
development of electric grids and other electric
grid facilities, including designing, engineering
researches, construction, reconstruction, reequipment, installation and adjustment.

50

0

93 634**

99

* The JSC «MKER» negative financial results by the end of 2010 were influenced by the following factors:
– due to the fact that some contracts for cable lines repair were concluded in May-June of 2010, and the payments under these
agreements were made in 2011;
– due to the lack of raw material some works under separate contracts began in August 2010, and payment under these
contracts was made as well in 2011.
** The JSC «Energocenter» earnings by the results of 2010 were obtained by the following:
– due to the reserve revaluation for doubtful accounts established to cover losses associated with non-return of funds from AKB
«MZB»;
– due to the sales of equipment and fixed assets of JSC «Energocenter».
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Primary activity of subsidiaries and associates of
the company

Name of subsidiaries
and associates of the
company

Earnings
of subsidiaries
and associates
of the
company,
thous.
RUR

MOESK

№

Location of
subsidiaries and
associates of the
company

Share of the
issuer in the
authorized
capital of
the subsidiaries and
associates
of the company,%

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

JSC «MOESK» PARTICIPATION IN NONCOMMERCIAL ORGANIZATIONS:

№.

Name

Location

Area of business of noncommercial organization

1

Noncommercial partnership
«INVEL»

Moscow, Pr.Mira 119,
Building 506

Partnership members’ assistance in carrying out research and
development activities, innovative and experimental development

2

Noncommercial partnership
«Scientific and Technical
Council of UES»

Moscow, Vorontsovsky per. 2

Partnership members’ assistance in the formation of science-based
technical and economic policies in the Unified Energy System of
Russia

3

Noncommercial partnership
«ENERGOSTROY»

Moscow, Ulansky per. 26,
Building 1

Issuance of competency certificate for the kinds of works affecting
capital construction security

4

Noncommercial partnership
«ENERGOPROEKT»

Moscow, Ulansky per. 26,
Building 1

Issuance of competency certificate for the front and engineering
design works

5

Noncommercial partnership
«The union of power auditors
and power-service companies»

Russia, 105066, Moscow,
Nizhnyaya Krasnoselskaya
str. 40/12, Building 6

Assistance in:
– works quality improvement in the field of energy audits and
providing energy services;
– collaboration and cooperation on the development and
implementation of energy efficiency and renewable energy
technologies, of soft energy production, of reducing the energy
intensity of production;
– development of proposals for changes in active legislation on energy
efficiency and conservation.
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5.7. ADMINISTRATION OF OWNERSHIP
INFORMATION ON NON-CURRENT ASSETS AS OF 31.12.2010:

No.

Name

1.

Assets related to power supply network
facilities. including:

1.1.

HV lines 220 kV and more

1.2.

Physical quantities
for: HV lines. cable
networks – the length
of chains (km), and
substations. other
assets – the amount
(units)

As of the
beginning of
the accounting
period – book
(depreciated)
value (thousand
rubles).

Profit
for the
accounting period
(thousand
rubles).

Disposals
for the
accounting period
(thousand
rubles).

As of the end of
the accounting
period – book
(depreciated)
value (thousand rubles).

130 773 667.8

28 289 791.2

138 807.6

146 742 406.6

2 080.8

2 187 064.3

653 235.0

4 925.0

2 728 641.5

HV lines 110 kV

9 842.0

4 848 539.8

1 423 122.8

1 103.0

5 913 374.3

1.3.

HV lines 35 kV

4 232.6

545 205.2

24 575.0

0.0

522 912.1

1.4.

HV lines 10 kV and less

51 146.5

4 473 738.8

307 878.8

52.0

4 321 622.6

1.5.

Substations 220 kV and more

44

15 585 506.9

2 340 174.2

0.0

15 858 734.3

1.6.

Substations 110 kV

352

20 629 512.7

7 419 080.2

13 790.0

25 481 231.4

1.7.

Substations 35 kV

206

1 192 785.5

145 352.0

0.0

1 269 808.3

1.8.

Substations 10 kV and less

28 684

36 060 631.9

4 140 626.5

73 664.6

36 776 448.9

1.9.

Cable networks (all voltage classes)

73 258.9

33 003 812.8

7 847 411.9

38 655.6

39 495 714.1

1.10

Other assets intended for providing
electrical connections

14 902.6

12 246 869.9

3 988 334.8

6 617.4

14 373 919.2

2.

Non-core assets, included into the
«Registry of non-core assets»

3

6 864.0

0.0

0.0

6 864.0

3.

Other assets (item 3 = item 4 – item 2 –
item 1)

1 828.0

2 396 438.9

346 197.6

3 038.4

2 826 817.7

5

Name

As of the
beginning of
the accounting
period – book
(depreciated)
value (thousand
rubles).

Profit
for the
accounting period
(thousand
rubles).

Disposals
for the
accounting period
(thousand
rubles).

As of the
end of the
accounting
period – book
(depreciated)
value (thousand rubles).

4.

«Fixed Assets» (line 120 of the balance
sheet)

133 176 970.7

28 704 830.0

141 846.0

149 576 088.2

5.

Rented assets related to power supply
network facilities, including:

26 939 184.5

9 367 290.3

290 022.7

36 156 200.3

5.1.

HV lines 220 kv and more

5.2.

HV lines 110 kv

171.7

23 204.4

12 628.9

5 345.0

30 488.3

5.3.

HV lines 35 kv

1.0

14 122.0

0.0

0.0

14 122.0

5.4.

HV lines 10 kv and less

13.3

1 831.0

0.0

0.0

1 831.0

5.5.

Substations 220 kv and more

0

0.0

0.0

0.0

145 917.2

5.6.

Substations 110 kv

16

359 099.8

12 196.0

0.0

371 295.8

5.7.

Substations 35 kv

1

58.3

0.0

0.0

58.3

5.8.

Substations 10 kv and less

2 445

7 903 244.5

502 018.0

130 692.0

8 274 570.5

5.9.

Cable networks (all voltage classes)

9 373.5

17 804 933.0

408 567.0

54 299.0

18 159 201.0

5.10

Other rented assets intended for providing
electrical connections

625.0

832 691.5

8 431 880.4

99 686.7

9 158 716.1

6.

Other rented assets

7.

Assets used under lease contracts relating
to the power supply network facilities,
including *:

38 947 523.0

0.0

286 652.0

38 660 871.0

7.1.

HV lines 220 kv and more

7.2.

HV lines 110 kv

7.3.

HV lines 35 kv

7.4.

HV lines 10 kv and less

7.5.

Substations 220 kv and more

8

6 844 647.0

0.0

192 092.0

6 652 555.0

7.6.

Substations 110 kv

16

6 316 189.0

0.0

94 560.0

6 221 629.0

7.8.

Substations 35 kv

1

52 067.0

0.0

0

52 067.0

7.9.

Substations 10 kv and less

7.10

Cable networks (all voltage classes)

88.17

25 734 620.0

0.0

0

25 734 620.0

8.

Other assets used under lease contracts
intended for providing electric connections

9.

Other assets used under lease contracts

187 669.0

0.0

187 669.0

0

10.

Total leased assets, including leases (line
910 of the balance sheet) (item 10 = item 5
+ item 6 + item 7 + item 8 + item 9)

66 074 376.5

9 367 290.3

764 343.7

74 817 071.3

11.

Total (item 11 = item 4 + item 10)

199 251 347.3

38 072 120.3

906 189.7

224 393 159.5

* – in the column «Disposal of assets the accounting period (thousand rubles)» the Article 7 shows the decrease in the leasing
agreements value in connection with the exception of property tax from the lease payments, and credit resources attraction
interest tariff reduction.
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No.

Physical quantities
for: HV lines. cable
networks – the length
of chains (km). and
substations. other
assets – the amount
(units)
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CHANGES IN VALUE AND QUANTITATIVE CHARACTERISTICS
OF POWER SUPPLY NETWORKS AND SUBSTATIONS
Assets proceeds in JSC «MOESK» balance as a result of the following activities:
start-up upon building completion of newly created and renovated facilities within the
investment program of JSC «MOESK»;
 transfer of property by third parties to compensate the losses of JSC «MOESK» incurred
as a result of liquidating the assets of the Company (the agreement on the compensation of
losses).


Disposal of assets during the year occurred for the following reasons:
 impairment write-off from the JSC «MOESK» balance sheet as a result of reconstruction,
total or partial liquidation of the JSC «MOESK» assets under the agreements on the
compensation of losses;
 derecognition of obsolete and worn-out fixed assets ;
 accrual of depreciation.

Changes in value and quantitative characteristics of fixed assets facilities on
accounts not booked in balance sheet:
 additional transfer by JSC «UEC» of electric grid facilities to lease and sublease of JSC
«MOESK»;
 cadastral value of the rented by JSC «MOESK» land plots in off-balance sheet accounts.
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DATA ON LAND PLOTS AS OF 31.12.2010:

repurchased
per the reporting date

taken on lease
(sublease) per
the reporting
date

by the right
of permanent
(indefinite) use
per reposting
date

the right is
not fixed per
reporting date

an easement
issued per
reporting date

put to the
cadastre per
reporting date

number

number

ha

number

ha

number

ha

number

ha

number

ha

number

ha

ha

1.

Land plots
under the electric
power plant
facilities

2.

Land plots under
boiler facilities

3.

Land plots under
the electric substation facilities.
including:

3798

775.4

2

2.6

1876

408.3

457

205.0

1463

159.5

2765

431.4

Under substation
220 kv and more

51

127.5

1

1.3

42

97.4

8

28.9

0

0.0

32

85.3

Under substation
110 kv

383

392.6

1

1.3

253

258.3

93

112.5

36

20.5

275

284.1

Under substation
35 kv and less

3364

255.3

0

0.0

1581

52.7

356

63.7

1427

139.0

2458

62.0

4.

Land plots under
HV lines 220 kv
and more

235

27.3

0

0.0

197

9.7

4

0.3

34

17.3

192

6.1

5.

Land plots under
HV lines 110 kv
and less, including:

1910

351.7

0

0.0

1259

18.9

64

105.0

587

227.8

1204

6.3

under HV lines
110 kv

970

161.3

0

0.0

775

10.2

29

48.3

166

102.9

757

4.6

under HV lines
35 kv

159

33.5

0

0.0

55

2.7

5

3.5

99

27.2

46

0.9

under HV lines
0.4/6/10 kv

781

156.9

0

0.0

429

6.0

30

53.2

322

97.7

401

0.7

6.

Land plots under
heating network
facilities

7.

Land plots under
other facilities

222

170.5

4

46.6

118

66.2

35

42.2

65

15.5

128

119.4

TOTAL:

6165

1325.0

6

49.3

3450

503.0

560

352.6

2149

420.1

4289

563.2
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No.

Types of land
plots

Total number
and area of
land plots

whereof:

MOESK

whereof:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

104

MANAGEMENT OF IN-COMPANY PROCESSES

6

6.1. QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
and operational goals and objectives, as
well as in accordance with international
standards ISO 9001.
The compliance of the quality management system in respect to the «Management of the Company's affiliates
when providing transmission services,
distributing electrical energy and connecting to power grids» with the international standard ISO 9001:2008 was
confirmed by the successful second compliance audit conducted by the auditors
of JSC «Bureau Veritas Certification Rus»
in accordance with the terms of the accredited BUREAU VERITAS Certification
certificate.
In 2011, the Company plans to expand
the field of quality management system
certification.

In creation and operation of its internal control systems JSC «MOESK» is guided by
International standards of management systems:
ISO 9000 (quality management system);
ISO 14000 (environmental management);
OHSAS 18001 (occupational health and safety management system);
the organizational/management and functional and procedural documents of the
Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors;
 the Company's policies of quality, safety, occupational health and safety,
environment;
the operating documentation of Company’s management systems;
the Provisions on the Audit Committee of the Board of directors.
The structural unit responsible for internal control system is the Department of
internal control.
The Department’s ordered activity to implement measures of risk-oriented audit
is gueded by the following internal documents approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company dated July 10, 2010 (Minutes No. 110 from 06.11.2010):
the Risk Management Policy;
the Internal Control Policy;
the Standard provisions on business processes, control environment and integrated
risk management system (with the methods of identification, evaluation, analysis and
implementation of systematic control procedures);
the Provisions on the implementation and organization of internal control and audit
by the Internal Control Department dated 16.09.2010 (Order No. 671 of 16.09.2010.).
In order to ensure independence and objectivity the Internal Control Department
is administratively accountable to the Company’s General Director, and functionally
– to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.
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6.2. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

MOESK

One of the Company’s key objectives is
to improve the availability level of Grid
infrastructure and to improve the service
quality of power transmission and technological connection to power grids. The
main tool for achieving this goal is the
development and improvement of management system in accordance with international standards ISO 9000.
In 2010 JSC «MOESK» continued to
rapidly develop its quality management
system.
The Company launched a project to
implement a business processes management system and created the Quality
Committee being a collegial coordinating
body for the operation and development
of Company’s services’ quality management in accordance with its strategic

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

The internal control system objectives are:
support of effective management and efficient achievement of strategic objectives;
ensuring compliance with the Russian legislation and the requirements of existing regulations and internal procedures of the Company;
◆ early detection and risk analysis activities;
◆ providing accuracy, correctness, integrity and relevance of financial and management
information and reporting of the Company;
◆ enforcement of the Company’s financial and business plans;
◆ providing a high level of investors’ trust in the Company and its governance bodies;
◆ shareholders’ and investors’ investment security;
◆ providing soundness of assets of the Company and effective employment of the Company’s resources;
◆ promoting the forming-up of the optimal organized structure of the Company.
◆
◆
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The basic document in the Department's organization work is the Policy on internal control, which regulates the following activities of the Internal Control Department:
◆ monitoring the compliance of the authorization matrix and the assignment of responsibility between departments and managers of the Company and its structural units;
◆ performance management of the Company’s financing and operating activities and its
analysis;
◆ management of performance and efficiency, and of intended use of investment activity
financing sources;
◆ monitoring the alignment of effective data flow on the activities of the Company’s structural units, providing vertical and horizontal information flows within the Company;
◆ management of the decisions of the General Director, of the Board of Directors, of the
Internal Audit Committee and of the Company's officers to remedy the violations;
◆ providing reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the Company’s financial
statements, as well as compliance with the requirements of the Company’s accounting records maintenance;
◆ budget management of the Company and its structural divisions;
◆ monitoring the compliance of the Company's contracts with third party with the Company’s interests;
◆ monitoring the compliance of internal documents and draft decisions of the Company’s
governance bodies with its financial and economic interests.
The result of the internal control standardized system at the first stage of the internal
control systems development is the standard-based guidelines and other regulatory documents to describe business processes.

The roles and responsibilities of the internal control system participants are distributed according to with the following principles:
◆ The Board of Directors approves the policy on internal controls and evaluates its
effectiveness, and is responsible for approving and periodical review of the overall strategy
of internal control.
◆ The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors provides an overall assessment of the
Company’s internal control procedures’ effectiveness (including those based on reports and
records of the Internal Control Department).
◆ The General Director of the Company is responsible for implementing this policy, approved
by the Board of Directors, as well as for the functioning and effectiveness of internal control
procedures in the Company. The responsibility for the functioning and effectiveness of
internal control procedures at lower levels of the Company management is to be carried out
by the directors of branches.
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◆ The Internal Audit Department of the Company makes an immediate assessment of
the adequacy, sufficiency and effectiveness of control procedures, as well as carries out
the compliance assessment of control procedures by the participants of the corresponding
control levels business processes. In addition, it gives an overall assessment of internal
control system, its degree of standardization and optimization at all levels of government.
It is responsible for organizing and coordinating the standardization of business processes
and methodological support of the process of establishing control procedures and cooperates
with the internal control system Coordinators in the branches performing similar functions.
◆ Heads of departments and other employees of the Company in accordance with their
functional responsibilities shall execute internal control through the formal standards and
regulatory documents. The Company’s subdivisions monitor and are responsible for the
execution of control procedures in accordance with the standards.
◆ Heads of subdivisions and other staff offices are responsible for the establishment and
implementation of control procedures, as well as carry out their own assessment of the
effectiveness and improvement of control procedures.

Based on the results of the control measures to check financial and economic activities
within the approved work plan for the Internal Control Department, as well as in accordance
with the orders of the General Director the following checks have been carried out in 2010:
◆ 7 checks of the financial and economic activities of branches;
◆ 4 checks of subsidiaries and associates of the company by the Checkup Committee;
◆ 11 case studies on behalf of the General Director.

During the audit of financial and business offices the following actions have
been taken:
The assessment of the internal control system;
◆ The assessment of the accounting system and preparation of financial statements;
◆ The check of compliance with applicable laws and regulations when making business
transactions.
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asset management;
◆ accounting of funds for capital construction and renovation;
◆ the repair and maintenance costs;
◆ settlements with debtors and creditors;
◆ stock recording;
◆ accounting of payments for labour and social transfers.
◆

During inspections they used the following audit procedures to express an opinion on the Company’s financial and economic activities:
◆ checking the correctness of the formation of the initial cost of fixed assets, the
availability of stock numbers at the sites of fixed assets, the identification of objects that are
not registered in the account, but are actually used;
◆ check for and execution of inventory;
◆ checking accounts receivable and payable, including the analysis of its structure,
explicability of the amounts ranking in accounting, identifying overdue indebtedness not
possible to be recovered, the definition of the risks associated with defaults, identifying the
necessary actions related to the settlement of bad debts;
◆ conducting sample comparison of stocks with the data of accounting and inventory
control;
◆ identification of material asset with no flow within a year according to the accounting,
checking the emergency reserve configuration, accounting treatment and fuel flow, the
registration order of material liability of employees, the soundness of write-offs of shortages;

MOESK

Particular attention was given to the following areas being audited:
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◆
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◆ an analysis of contracts, design estimate documentation and acts of KS-2 per investment
activities;
◆ analysis of contracts, of defective statements and acts of KS-2 per repair costs;
◆ selective control measurements of the works executed and accepted by the acts of the
KS– 2 form;
◆ analysis of payments to employees for compliance with local regulations and the
provisions of the Company, soundness of calculation and payments and deductions;
◆ sample checks of records in the accounting records for the compliance with primary
documents per certain account item for a particular accounting period, per used
accounts correlation, organization of analytical accounting.

6.3. RISK MANAGEMENT
The main purpose of the risk management system is to increase the stability of JSC
«MOESK» financial results through the implementation of the risk effective management
tools inherent in the Company.
In 2010 the Company fulfilled the following measures:
it developed the regulations governing the operation of the Company’s risk management
system;
it formed the organizational structure of risk management;
it identified key risks of the Company and formed risk passports and register, and compiled
the risks map of the Company.
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The main documents of the Company governing the risk management system are the
Internal control policy and Risk management policy.
For efficient organization of work on implementation and management of risk management
system they implemented an appropriate institutional infrastructure in JSC «MOESK».

Board of directors

Audit Committee

Director General

Subdivision – Risk
Management System
coordinator

Risk manager

Owners of risks

Risk-coordinators
of functional blocks/
subdivisions
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The organizational structure of the risk management system of JSC «MOESK» is formed
on the matrix principle. The coordination of development and general administration of the
system is carried by the risk manager of the Company and by a specialized subdivision in the
field of risk management. The owners of the risks and risk-coordinators arrange a procedure
for identifying and assessing risks in their business areas, and develop action plans to respond to the risks, assess the effectiveness of implemented activities.

KEY RISKS AND ACTIONS TO MINIMIZE THEM
1.1. Country risks
Until mid-2008 there was a positive trend of improving credit ratings of the Russian Federation. However, as a result of the global financial crisis, Russia's sovereign rating has been
downgraded at the end of 2008 by several international rating agencies. Nevertheless, recently there have been positive tendencies, and in late 2009 – early 2010 the rating agencies
«Standard & Poor's», and «Fitch» changed the forecast level of the sovereign rating of the
Russian Federation from the «negative» to «stable». On the other hand, the financial problems have reduced the amount of investment in the Russian economy, which cannot but affect the Company's activities. Currently, the impact of these risks on the Company's activities
can be assessed as «average». As part of minimizing these risks, the company is working to
reduce internal costs, to optimize the investment program, as well as carries out a balanced
policy of debt borrowing.
The appearance of political situation destabilization risks is assessed as low.

1.2.1. The risks associated with the deteriorating economic situation in the region, as well as
the destabilization of political situation.
Production activities of the Company are carried in the metropolitan region of Russia: in
Moscow city and Moscow region, which is the most developed region of the country. This fact
provides a steady demand for the company services, nonetheless affected by economic cycles.
The Company evaluates the political and economic situation in the region as stable. Further
improving the economic status of the region will have a positive impact on the Company's
business and positively impact its financial position. There are no predicted significant adverse changes in the situation in the region of the issuer and in the Russian Federation as a
whole, which may adversely affect the activities and economic situation of the Company in
the near future.
In the case of destabilization in the country or in a particular region, which may adversely
affect the company's activities, the Company plans to take action on crisis management in
order to minimize the negative impact of the situation on its activities.
1.2.2. The risks associated with the geographical features of the region where the Company
is registered as a taxpayer and / or carries out its core activities.
The Company bears the risks associated with increased risk of natural disasters: damage or
equipment failure due to the hurricane, heavy snow, ice, freezing rain.
The Company’s activities, aimed at reducing the impact of these risks may include: design
of transmission lines taking into account the zoning of icing; interlayer expansion of overhead power lines in accordance with the regulations governing the procedure for determining the protected areas and cutting of process tranches near electricity supply facilities;
introduction of modern means of diagnosing and locating the faults in overhead power lines;
development and implementation of a program to replace the wires of overhead lines 0.4-10
kV with self-supporting insulated wires (CIP); selective introduction of anti-icing and melting ice systems, as well as insurance.
The Company trades in the region with well-developed infrastructure and is slightly perceived to risks associated with the cessation of transportation due to remoteness and / or
inaccessibility. However, in winter in the wooded area there is a risk of loss of time when you
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move the operating and maintenance personnel to the site of reclamation work in connection with the inaccessibility of individual sections of power lines.
For the early detection of fault location of overhead lines, it is assumed to equip filed service and recovery teams with the mobile intelligence means (ATVs and snowmobiles), as well
as with specialized four-wheel drive and track-type equipment.
1.2.3. The risks connected with possible military conflicts, with announcement of the state
of emergency and strikes in the country and in the region where the issuer is registered as a
taxpayer and/or carries out its core activity.
These risks relating to the Russian Federation and the Moscow region are estimated by the
Company as minimal.

2. INDUSTRY RISKS

The price risks, connected with possible change of prices for the purchase of electric power
losses during its transfer, for raw materials, services, equipment and other material and
technical resources used by the Company in its activities and their impact on the company's
activities and performance of obligations under securities.
The reduction of this risk occurs due to the electric power fiscal metering program on the
retail electricity market, due to the creation of competitive environment in the sphere of
procurement of works and services, due to the centralization of procurement with a view to
the savings due to «economies of scale»; removal of cross-procurement.

3. REGULATORY
RISKS

The risks associated with the state regulation of tariffs for services provided by the
Company.
Such risks may include the establishment of tariffs lower than economically sound
levels; operating revenue runoff due to the changes in actual structure of electric power
transmission relative to the structure adopted with the approval of tariffs; the risks related
to the legislation changes in price setting area at the retail markets.
To reduce the impact of the risks the following measures are taken: the work with tariff
regulation bodies of Moscow and the Moscow region on the economic feasibility of expenses,
the introduction of a new RAB-based tariff regulation system (return on invested capital
method). The application of this method should encourage long-term investments in the
sector, as well as the reduction of the subjective factors’ influence on the tariff decisions.

4. OPERATIONAL
AND
TECHNOLOGICAL
RISKS

4.1. The operational risks associated with aging of equipment and consumption of fixed
assets of the energy industry enterprises.
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Among these risks can be classified the occurrence of emergency situations, reduction of
power supply reliability, and as a result – incomplete execution of obligations under contracts
on rendering of electric power transmission services.
To reduce these risks the Company takes the following measures: the reconstruction of
existing and construction of new transmission lines, transformer substations and distribution
equipment, it improves the policy on equipment repairs and maintenance, and introduces
modern methods of the equipment condition diagnostics.
4.2. Industrial risks: the risk of transfer to work with the involuntary (emergency acceptable) cross-flows; the environment contamination risk.
The main forms of damage reduction and compensation are: insurance (commercial
property insurance, insurance of dangerous production facilities, of means of transport, public
indemnity insurance); the creation of an emergency stock of materials and spare parts; the
implementation of actions to increase the energy system reliability; measures for localization
and accident management based on the analysis of scenarios of possible development ways
of emergency situations; the control of the timely replacement, of reconstruction of wornout or overloaded equipment, of repair works performance, of labour protection management
system functioning, of environment and pollution sources.
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4.3. The personnel risks associated with errors, insufficient qualifications and qualified
personnel deficit.
The company is implementing a number of programs aimed at reduction of staff turnover,
introduction of material and non-material motivation methods, carrying out of actions on
training and improvement of personnel qualification, personnel insurance against accidents
and diseases, as well as medical insurance.

5. FINANCIAL RISKS 5.1. Tariff risk
Within the planned financial and economic policy the Company plans to raise borrowed
funds and to timely liquidate its obligations. At the same time there is a possibility of increase
in loan interest tariffs due to the bank right stipulated under the contracts to increase the
interest tariff unilaterally. This risk occurrence may be caused by the instability at the
financial markets.
The tariff risks are assessed as medium.
In order to reduce tariff risks the Company has recourse to debt portfolio immunization. In
particular, it plans to increase the share of long-term loans.
5.2. Currency risk

The inflation negative influence on the financial and economic activity of the Company
may be associated with losses in the real value of accounts receivable, with the due interest
increase, with increased cost value, with reduction of the real value of funds under the
investment program. The inflation current level does not have a significant effect on the
financial position of the company. In accordance with intentions of the Central bank of the
Russian Federation to control inflation and its predictive values for the nearest period, the
inflation should not have a significant impact on the Company's ability to make payments
on the securities.
The inflation risks are assessed by the Company as medium.

6. LEGAL RISKS

6.1. Changes in the tax legislation
In order to minimize the risk of incorrect tax calculation and/or payment due to different
interpretation of the norms of the legislation, the Company is constantly working on
optimization of the tax base calculation tax schemes in strict accordance with the current
legislation of the Russian Federation.
In case of amendments to the existing procedure and terms of taxation, the Company
intends to plan its financial and economic activity subject to these changes.
6.2. Changes of requirements on licensing of the company’s core activities or licensing of
rights to use objects with limited recourse (including natural resources).
The changes in requirements on licensing of the Company’s core activities may lead to the
increased document preparation time required for the license renewal, as well as may lead
to the need to meet the requirements. In general, however, this risk should be regarded as
insignificant.
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The main customers of electricity transmission are the Russian Federation residents; the
prices for electric energy transportation are also expressed in the currency of the Russian
Federation. The Company's financial condition, its liquidity, financing sources, results of
activities are largely independent of changes of the exchange tariff, as the issuer activity is
planned in such a way that its assets and liabilities are expressed in the national currency. In
addition, JSC «MOESK» is not planning to undertake activities on the external market. So the
influence of the national currency tariff changes on the financial condition of the Company
is estimated as insignificant.
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6.3. Change in judicial practice related to activities of the Company (including licensing
matters)
The probability of judicial practice changes on issues, associated with the Company’s
activity is small. The management of legal risks is based on optimization of the process of
document legal execution and of support of the Company's activities. To minimize legal
risks any business processes of the Company subject to risks (for example, the conclusion of
contracts), shall pass a mandatory legal examination.
In the case of changes in the judicial practice on issues associated with activity of the
Company, its financial and economic activities will be planned subject to these changes.

6.4. BUSINESS PROCESS MANAGEMENT
In order to increase the effectiveness of the Company's activities, the achievement of the
best results in the field of reliability and quality of services, maximum satisfaction of the
current and future needs of customers in 2010 in accordance with the order of JSC «MOESK»,
they started the introduction of the Company’s business process management system.

The main objective of the project – is to develop and implement the methodology of
the process approach to management of JSC «MOESK», including effective mechanisms for
description, analysis and improvement of business-processes of the Company, which will
allow to reduce non-productive losses and to get the economic effect.

The main objectives of the project:
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to train the personnel for the methods of process management and continuous improvement;
to standardize the business-processes of the enterprise;
to introduce a system of continuous improvement of business processes and reduction of
unproductive losses;
to raise the power supply reliability and quality of provided services.

IN 2010 THE
FOLLOWING
MEASURES WERE
TAKEN:

establishment of the project Management Committee;
creation of the working groups on development and reengineering of business-processes;
training of the Company’s personnel on the approaches and methods of process management
(basic terminology, process control technologies), on the practical skills of business-processes by
the means of special software;
development and approval by the project Management Committee of the Company top-level
process model;
carrying out classification of the Company’s processes;
drafting the agreement on the business-processes modeling.

IN 2011 THE
FOLLOWING
ACTIVITIES ARE
PLANNED FOR THE
IMPLEMENTATION
OF THE PROJECT:

development of the basic normative and methodical documents in the field of process management;
 establishment of Process office – a unit performing centralized works support (methodological, technical, technological) in the field of modeling of the processes, its improvement and
changes support management;
measures on the description and optimization of key business-processes of the company;
introduction of business processes continuous improvement system.
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6.5. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGIES AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS
cable (in 2009 – 240 km), 412 communication channels (in 2009 – 324 channels), 30
sets of FOX-515 and OME-6130 equipment (in
2009 – 25 sets).
It created a modern management center
of the operational communication, carrying
out the monitoring at a breakthrough level
of the state of telephone connection dispatch channels, of teleautomatics channels,
of data transmission processing network
channels and of channels of JSC «MOESK»
automated measuring and information system for electric power fiscal accounting –
with the help of functional workstation and
six 43-inch video panels.

It developed and approved the fundamental documents on the operation of dispatching
and technological management means:
◆ the Regulations on operative interaction of JSC «SO UPS» Branch Moscow Regional
Dispatching Office with JSC «Moscow United Electrical Grid Company» at operation of
dispatching and technological management means;
◆ The interaction regulations of JSC «MOESK» departments at operation of dispatching and
technological management means.
It held 29 specialized trainings on restoring the connection between the zone nodes of the
Company and Moscow RDO.

The communication
network of JSC
«MOESK» was
characterized in 2010
by the following
indicators:

Indicator name

Readiness factor, %
Failure total amount, pcs.
Overall downtime, channel hours
Average communication channel recovery time,
hours

Failure causes in
the communication
operation of JSC
«MOESK»:

Failure description

Communication channels in
Moscow RDO

Communication channels
in network control center
of JSC «MOESK»

2010

2009

2010

2009

99.74

99.41

99.91

-

367

591

116

-

14 247

40 188

3 093

-

39

68

27

-

Communication channels in
Moscow RDO

Communication channels
in network control center
of JSC «MOESK»

2010

2009

2010

2009

Equipment failure, %

37.5

22.8

52.6

-

Сable communication line fault, %

60.6

72.5

42.1

-

Electric power supply system malfunction, %

1.4

4.5

5.3

-

Personnel error, %

0.5

0.2

0.0

-
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One of the most important conditions
for JSC «MOESK» effective work is the reliable functioning of the existing automated
systems, as well as their development in response to changing business needs.
JSC «MOESK» is effectively using information systems that automate various functional areas of the Company's activities.
The year 2010 observed qualitative changes in the organization and delivery of communications of JSC «MOESK». It continued to
develop production-technological communication network on the base of modern digital
technologies and fiber optics.
It put into operation 173 km of fiber-optic
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The highest stability of the communication system was reached by the Central and Western
electric networks, as well as by the Network Control Centre of JSC «MOESK».

The main objectives of the department of information-technological systems
and communication systems in 2010 were:
organization of operation of the automated control systems;
development of the automated dispatch control system on the basis of a unified hardware
and software complex ENMAC;
◆ completion of construction and erection works by the Network control centre of JSC
«MOESK», in part of the engineering-technological equipment.
◆
◆

At the current moment JSC «MOESK» has in its operation 44 substation, equipped with
automated control systems of technological processes (ACS TP); in 2010 – periodic preventive
works were carried out on 40 power facilities, on 8 substations – works on troubleshooting, on
the replacement of system elements and software configuration.
To increase the work efficiency of branches’ dispatching and transport service experts,
JSC «MOESK» has a functioning transport monitoring operational and technological system.
At the current moment the transport monitoring system includes more than 300 units of
transport.
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In order to reduce the elimination time of technological disturbances in the electrical
networks, JSC «MOESK» has emergency process registration systems on the basis of the airlines fault localization equipment – more than 400 terminals at 168 substations and fault
recording complexes (Central Fault Recorder), functioning on the 126 substations of the
Company.

In the reporting year the Network control centre of JSC «MOESK» was equipped
as follows:
◆ completion of works to provide the NCC with power supply system of the 1 reliability
category (the switchboard room is equipped with precision air conditioning systems,
Automated gas fire-fighting system, power distribution network was mounted);
◆ completion of works to implement engineering systems and NCC building life-support
systems;
◆ JSC «MOESK» communication system monitoring system was put into operation.

For the Network control centre of JSC «MOESK» to fulfill operational functions for the
supply facilities management, they organized the exchange of telemetric information in the
amount of 7 178 units between the Network control centre of JSC «MOESK» and the dispatch
station of Moscow Communication Centre of electric power industry – the branch of «FGC
UES», JSC.

In the field of telemechanics the following activities were carried out in 2010:
◆ maintenance and repair of the existing fund of telemechanics complexes at 320
substations;
◆ emergency fault elimination of telemechanics complexes at 47 substations;
◆ complex (extended) testing of the System of telematics information retransmission from
the regional dispatch station to the dispatch station of the branch of JSC «SO UPS» of Moscow
RDU.

MANAGEMENT OF IN-COMPANY PROCESSES

Due to updating the list of priority directions of JSC «MOESK» development, caused by the
Company’s transfer to RAB regulation, and also the need to improve the quality of strategic
planning of the Company's network, increased requirements for improving the consumer supply reliability and development of Smart Grid and Smart Metering technologies, the Company
revised its priorities, the order and terms of its business information management.
In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company together with the representatives of the Ministry of energy, of JSC «IDGC Holding» and of other shareholders conducted a survey on the
current status of the Corporate information management system of JSC «MOESK» (CIMS), the
results of which led to the identification of CIMS development directions, to the update of
construction plan and to adjustments to the CIMS implementation, to the update of technical
solutions, planned in the course of project implementation, and to the optimization of duration and stages of its realization.
When preparing a new CIMS plan the following requirements have been taken into account: the requirements of business-users to support their supervised and developed business processes, the requirements of the Ministry of energy and the Government of Moscow
on the transparency of processes of consumer technological connections, of the investment
program establishment and realization, the SAP software platform was saved as a central
platform in the architecture of JSC «MOESK» complex information system development, the
role and architectural solution of the CIMS integration component were revised in the part of
the space integration of processing systems and business applications data.

2) the creation of its own IT competence center that enabled:
◆ to reduce operating costs for maintenance of IT-infrastructure by 12.5% (as well as
after the transfer of service functions to the automated system of administrative documents control and of servers with the 1C platform);
◆ to reduce by 37% the costs on consulting services to support and refine the current
automated systems of JSC «MOESK»;
3) the following information systems were put into operation:
◆ NSI «Counterparties» on the basis of SAP NetWeaver (the information system, designed for the management of general (centralized) manuals of the company's counterparties and for the automation of the process of adding, editing manuals, as well as
recording of users' requests to modify them);
◆ the module of the Automated system of financial and economic management (AS
FEM) «The Procurement Management» (includes the application campaign, the formation (planning) of the annual complex procurement program, repercussions of tender
procedures, formation and management of contracts, itemized supply tracking of materials and equipment and payments);
◆ software complex for operative notification of incidents in the electrical grids of JSC
«MOESK» (intended for the information registration about technological violations,
operational scheme state changes and accidents with people, for the access to the entered information for viewing and analysis, for the automated warning of JSC «MOESK»
management about technological violations, operational scheme state changes and accidents);
4) Was improved reliability and JSC «MOESK» IT infrastructure safety:
◆ It introduced the hardware-software filtering complex for infected e-mail and spammessages, integrated with the MS Active Directory corporate directory service, with the
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To maintain the current electric grid business-processes by economically cost-effective
and reliable services in 2010, the department of information technologies continued to work
on the introduction of new information systems and on the development of existing information systems, and it implemented as well a number of measures to reduce IT costs for maintenance and operation of IT systems and infrastructure, including:
1) the refusal of a third-party contractor to perform general system integrator functions
and the implementation of these functions by the information technologies department of
the executive apparatus of JSC «MOESK»;
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use of real-time reputation filtering technologies, sender-based identification, the anti-virus scanning, and completeness of e-mail messages, the context adaptive scanning,
which replaced a part of e-mail servers;
◆ with a view to strengthening the measures on information security and to improve
the user performance effectiveness they installed a software and hardware complex
integrated with the corporate directory service MS Active Directory, which is a scanning proxy-server for corporate users access to the Internet; this unit actively uses in
its composition the IP– and URL-addresses reputation filtering mechanisms, and the
signature and heuristic analysis to control the software use;
◆ they completed the transfer of High-voltage cable networks in a single domain architecture on the basis of Microsoft products (in the framework of works they carried
out the migration of workstations and user data (e-mail, profiles) without the operation disturbance, and included the branch computers in a single information space,
transferred the computing and printing equipment into a single corporate range of IP
addresses, migrated the servers and operating system service, the work of the branch is
accompanied by corporate domain service catalog of MS Active Directory, by a unified
corporate mail, printing service, service backup and data recovery, by network file storage service, by terminal access service and transparent integration with the automated
document control management system);
◆ it took actions to increase the work reliability of engineering systems and to ensure
stable operation of the cooling system in the data center due to the replacement of the
indoor units and division of premises into isolated cold and hot corridors without stopping the access to information resources subject to small size rooms with high-density
computing equipment.
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No.

Name

1.

Electronic mail Microsoft Exchange Server 2003; protection
PAK from spam-messages

2.

Internet access – scanning proxy server

3.

Interconnection screening Forefront Threat Management
Gateway Enterprise Edition – Per Processor

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

4.

Monitoring using software products of Microsoft SCCM,
SCOM

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

5.

Information system Garant

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

6.

Information system Consultant

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

7.

Anti-virus protection, data archiving Symantec Suite

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

8.

Preventive protection provision Symantec

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

9.

Corporate portal MS SharePoint Portal Server 2007

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

10.

Information system Codex

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

11.

The system of monitoring and management of CIMS telecommunication and information resources SMTIR, backup
and data restore

MS Windows Server 2003 SE, HP OpenView

12.

Dispatch applications (ASUREO)

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

13.

Terminal servers Citrix XenApp 4

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

MS Windows Server 2003 EE

Automated system of financial-economic department (AS FED), including the modules:

14.1.

Treasury

1С: Enterprise 8.1

14.2.

Budgeting

1С: Enterprise 8.1

14.3.

Contract management

1С: Enterprise 8.1

14.4.

Business-planning

1С: Enterprise 8.1

14.5.

The automated control system of technological connections management (ACS TCM)

1С: Enterprise 8.1

14.6.

Procurement management

1С: Enterprise 8.1
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No.

Name

Platform

15.

The automated system of consolidated accounting and tax
accounting (ASCATA)

1С: Enterprise 8.1

16.

The automated personnel and payroll control system (APPCS)

1С: Enterprise 8.1

17.

The investment planning subsystem

SAP ERP 2005 (PS module)

18.

The equipment maintenance and repair subsystem

SAP ERP 2005 (PM module)

19.

The load exchange forecast recording system

SAP NetWeaver 2004 (BW, EP, SAP Business Explorer, Java Web Dynpro)

20.

The Subsystem «Accounting of fixed and intangibles assets
in accordance with IFRS»

SAP ERP 2005 (FI-AA module)

21.

Reference data «Counterparties»

SAP NetWeaver 2004 (MDM, EP, XI, Java
Web Dynpro)

22.

MOESK reference data «Electric equipment»

SAP NetWeaver 2004 (MDM, EP, BW, Java
Web Dynpro)

23.

The corporate electronic document control system (ASUD)

RedHat5, Windows 2003, DBMS Oracle,
EMC Documentum

24.

The corporate control system of the diffused resources
(CCSDR)

Oracle DBMS, PO «Ortolazer» (development of JSC «Infrastructural Projects
Center»)

25.

«Alpha Center» AC_UE

Windows (Oracle v.11)

26.

«Alpha Center» AC_UE

Windows (Oracle v.11)

27.

JSC «MOESK» electric grids control software and hardware
– ENMAC

UNIX, ENMAC

28.

TC Monitoring system

Windows 2003/XP

29.

Telemetry and SCADA fault-locating system

Windows 2003/XP

30.

Fault recording system (Central Fault Recorder)

Windows 2003/XP

Further development of information technologies in JSC «MOESK» will be carried out
in accordance with the approved plans by the Board of directors of the System project on
creation of the Corporate information management system of JSC «MOESK». The priority
directions of the Company’s information system development in 2011 are as follows:
1) The implementation of the first stage of ACS FEM (automated control systems of
financial and economic management) of JSC «MOESK» on the SAP platform, designed
to improve the JSC «MOESK» management through the use of best integration practices
of business-processes and modern information technology solutions, which carry out a
comprehensive and integrated support of the activity of structural divisions and ensure
the transparency of JSC «MOESK» activity for the management, shareholders and JSC
«MOESK» as a whole due to the introduction of a unified corporate information system.
The ACS FEM implemented the following functions:
◆ accounting and tax accounting;
◆ management accounting (Controlling, Cost Accounting);
◆ material management (inventory management);
◆ sales control subsystem;
◆ management of technical maintenance and equipment repair;
◆ management of agreements in terms of performance;
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cash management in the part of proceeds;
management of analytical reporting;
◆ control of the technological connections;
◆ reference data management.
2) The creation of information management system of investment activity and capital
construction (MIACC) at 1 and 2 stages. The MIACC information system includes:
◆ the investment process automatic performance;
◆ the creation of a unified data repository of the company’s investment activity;
◆ the automatic administrative and analytical accountability mechanism under the
Investment program of JSC «MOESK»;
◆ the automatic execution control process of the Investment program of JSC «MOESK»;
◆ business process management support of investment activities.
3) The development of the IT systems integration concept on the basis of a network model,
providing a comprehensive solution designed to improve the quality and effectiveness
of information support of business-processes of JSC «MOESK» by creating a unified
information space of JSC «MOESK» within the CIMS;
4) The improvement of the corporate information intranet-portal for the increase of
controllability of the enterprise and ensuring the processes of standardization and
unification in JSC «MOESK» due to the construction of effective links for the daily
information exchange between the departments of the Company and providing highquality information services for employees of JSC «MOESK» ;
5) The development of the software complex of operative notification of incidents in the
implementation of the OMS subsystem, providing:
◆ the registration of trips on the basis of data from different sources, as well as conducting
life cycle of technological infringements;
◆ the listing of consumers affected by technological violations, as well as the solution of
analytical problems associated with switching-off of consumers – calculation of undersupply
of energy, CAIDI, SAIDI, CAIFI, SAIFI indexes and etc.;
◆ display of operating information on the trips on the digital map;
◆ field service teams (FST) management, including the identification of available teams,
task description, optimization of the FST route to the infringement place;
◆ informing the management of JSC «MOESK», JSC «IDGC Holding», as well as the Operational
headquarters of the company on the operational situation on technological violations with
indication of the current status of technological infringements;
◆ recording of results and statistics management of technological disturbances in the
electrical grids of JSC «MOESK».
6) The creation of an electronic map with marking of substations and power transmission
lines of 35-220 kv (the development of geoinformation solutions in JSC «MOESK» ) to
provide geo-information support of tasks related to the technical record-keeping, network
development planning, process connections, control of trips and etc.;
7) The program complex introduction of the development of electric networks of JSC
«MOESK», intended for:
◆ planning the development of electrical networks with 6-220 kV voltage;
◆ optimization of the configuration and settings of existing and prospective electric
networks;
◆ analysis of the reliability of existing and prospective electric networks;
◆ choice of optimal variants of consumers connection;
◆ simulation of the failure effects of electric network equipment, as well as computer
simulation of possible consequences in case of the dispatch operations.
8) The development and further centralization of IT-infrastructure:
◆ the beginning of works on completion of the service IT-infrastructure;
◆ the beginning of works on introduction of IT infrastructure monitoring system.
◆
◆
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7

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

7.1. PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL POLICY

Industrial affiliation of the JSC «MOESK» determines a special value of the human capital
for the Company. Quality and reliability of operation of an enterprise in the distribution grid
complex is largely dependent on stability, qualifications and experience of the personnel.
The major task of the Company in the area of personnel management lies in creation of
a business team consisting of highly skilled, reliable and efficient employees seeking to develop their capability in solution of technical, economical and social tasks given to the Company.
By the resolution of 14 October 2009, the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK» approved
a Human Resources Management Program. The Program consolidated key aspects of the Company's personnel policy in the near-term.
2010 saw carrying out of the activities for the purpose of updating the Program, which
resulted in approval by the Company's Board of Directors of an amended Human Resources
Management Program of the JSC «MOESK».

INFORMATION ABOUT AVERAGE STAFFING NUMBER OF PERSONNEL

15 552
14 651
11 241

2008

2009

2010

The average staffing number of personnel of the JSC «MOESK» as of 31 December 2010
made up 15 552 people. The increase in the average staffing number of personnel in 2010
as opposed to 2009 was caused by employment of personnel from the LLC «Energobalans» to
exercise the functions in the area of commercial energy accounting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

NUMBER AND
STRUCTURE OF
PERSONNEL

121

MOESK

The following is defined by the Program as key trends of the personnel policy for achieving
main objectives and solving assigned tasks in respect of preservation, replenishment and
development of workforce capacity, and social support assistance to workers of the Company:
optimization of the organizational and functional structure of the Company, identification
of reserves for optimization of the number of employees;
determination of a category of those workers whose retaining is of a key importance for the
Company;
development and implementation of personnel juvenation measures;
 enhancement of cooperation with specialized institutions of higher and intermediate
vocational education and additional professional education;
development of personnel training, retraining and education system;
creation and development of the personnel reserve;
improvement of the workers' motivation system, and development of a social partnership;
ensuring of the reliability of personnel's professional activities and the personnel's efficiency.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

The level of personnel supply in the JSC «MOESK» as of 31.12.2010 increased by 2
percentage points as opposed to the same indicator of the previous year, and made up 94%.
The indicator of an active turnover tariff of the Company in 2010 exceeded the value
of 2009 and made up 7.9% versus 5.9% in the previous year. The increase in the active
turnover tariff was caused by competitive proposals in the labor market. The most active
categories in the course of personnel movement in 2010 were managers and specialists.

STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY’S PERSONNEL BY CATEGORIES IN 2010

19.2%
Managers

31.2%
Specialists and officers

49.6%
Workers
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The personnel structure of the JSC
«MOESK» over the period of last three
years has remained stable. There was a
minor change in the proportion of workers'
categories throughout 2010, caused by
employment of specialists from the LLC

«Energobalans». Workers making up about
50% of the total number remain the main
category of personnel in the JSC «MOESK»,
which is caused by the basic type of activity
of the Company.

AGE STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY
100%

8.8%

8.8%

9.1%

43.3%

41.3%

41.0%

20.3%

20.0%

19.5%

21.1%

22.5%

7.8%

8.4%

7.4%

2008

2009

2010

20.7%

under 25
25-35
35-45
45 (retirement age)
working retirees

Despite a minor decrease in the ratio of the category of workers in the age of 45
years and more, this category remains prevailing over the other age categories in the
period from 2008 through 2010. This being the case, it is necessary to point out a
trend of stable, albeit minor, increase in the ratio of those workers whose age does not
exceed 35 years.
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An analysis of age-related data for workers employed and dismissed over the year of 2010
shows that in all personnel categories—managers, specialists and officers, and workers—
the number of employed workers in the age of under 35 is exceeding the number of those
who quit the job in this age category.
There is a set of measures being implemented to preserve the tendency of employing
young specialists, their adaptation and consolidation in the Company; the ones from
among them which should be particularly pointed out are: creation of the Company's
Board of Young Specialists, as well as open days and visits to power facilities conducted in
all branches of the JSC «MOESK» for students of specialized educational institutions and
secondary schools.
There is a number of additional opportunities for young specialists foreseen in the
Company:
opportunity of career development;
opportunity to get higher education and raise their own educational level;
annual paid leave for families of young specialists working together in the Company.

STRUCTURE OF PERSONNEL BY EDUCATIONAL LEVEL
1.0%

3.0%

4.2%

33.6%

34.2%

100%
32.7%

24.3%

24.5%

41.6%

39.1%

37.1%

Secondary
Specialized secondary
Higher

2008

2009

2010

Throughout 2010, the qualification
structure of personnel met the needs of the
Company.
Comparison of data for personnel structure by educational level over the period of
2008 – 2010 indicates a stable rise in the

EDUCATION AND
DEVELOPMENT OF
PERSONNEL

Two higher education degrees,
academic title

level of workers' education. An increase in
the ratio of specialists with two higher education degrees or an academic title from 1%
in 2008 up to 4.2% in 2010 should be particularly pointed out.

There is a system of internal and external education of personnel tuned up and functioning
in the Company, within the scope of which an annual Personnel Training, Retraining and
Advanced Training Plan is being implemented.
2010 saw 16 796 trainings conducted (including 10 295 off-the-job trainings):
◆ training, retraining and advanced training in respect of working specialties: 8 251
trainings (including 4 983 off-the-job trainings);
◆ training of managers: 5 154 (including 3 341 off-the-job trainings);
◆ training of specialists and officers: 3 391 (including 1 971 off-the-job trainings).

MOESK

24.7%
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Out of production necessity, many workers of the JSC «MOESK» had undergone training
more than once in the reporting year. Altogether, the ratio of the Company's workers that
went under training in 2010 made up 90%.
The JSC «MOESK» cooperated in 2010 in the area of personnel training, retraining and
advanced training with the following educational institutions of the Russian Federation:
◆ Energy Institute of Moscow;
◆ Moscow State Open University;
◆ Moscow State Technical University named after N.E. Bauman;
◆ State University of Management;
◆ Academy of National Economy under the Government of the Russian Federation;
◆ Non-governmental Educational Institution «Mosenergo Personnel Training Center»;
◆ Non-governmental Educational Institution of Higher Vocational Education «Moscow
Institute of Energy Security and Saving»;
◆ Non-governmental Educational Institution «Energy Personnel Training Center»;
◆ Non-governmental Educational Institution of Higher Vocational Education «Institute of
Economics and Energy»;
◆ Federal State Educational Institution «Methodological Office for Mining, Petroleum and
Energy Education» etc.
In 2010, at the expense of the Company, 123 employees went under postal tuition under
programs of higher and secondary vocational education.
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Now the JSC «MOESK» is developing a
project of its own Energy Training and Innovations Center that will become a center
of effective professional training and advanced training for the personnel of the JSC
«MOESK» and other enterprises in the electric power industry.
Regular professional skills competitions
are holding a prominent place in the personnel training system and being aimed at raising the level of professional qualifications of
employees, introduction of new forms and

methods of power facilities management
that are intended to reduce the number of
incidents and casualties.
One of the most important directions in
preserving human resources of the Company
is an activity with the purpose of defining a
list of workers and specialists whose preservation is critical for the Company, whose outflow is impossible to replenish in the shortterm prospects, as well as development of
measures for their retaining.

2010 saw updating and putting in force of the regulation titled 'Creation and DevelopINTERACTION WITH
ment
of Personnel Reserve of the JSC «MOESK»' in the JSC «MOESK» (Order No. 219 dated
THE COMPANY’S
05.04.2010). Pursuant to this regulation, activities were being conducted throughout the
PERSONNEL
year of 2010 aimed at creation of a personnel reserve in the Executive Board and branches
RESERVE

of the Company. A list of candidates for the reserve and positions of the personnel reserve
(Level 2) was being created in the Executive Board of the Company: deputy chief engineer,
directorate chief, director of division, managing director.
A list of candidates for the reserve and positions of the personnel reserve (Level 2) was
being created in the branches of the Company: deputy director of the branch, chief engineer
of the branch, deputy chief engineer of the branch, director of division, chief accountant of
the branch, chief of distribution zone.
In the course of selection, all reservists were going under the psychophysiological examination procedure. The selection was being carried out in respect of age, level of education and
length of work in the Company. After all evaluation procedures, a list of 67 candidates was
created. In connection with holding of organizational and staffing activities in the Company,
the approval of personnel reserve lists is set back to 2011, which is also specified in the Human Resources Management Program.
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7.2. SOCIAL POLICY
The JSC «MOESK» is a socially oriented Company that is not only implementing programs
aimed to raise the level of social security of workers, create conditions for all-round development and corporate solidarity of employees, but also providing support for the social infrastructure of the Moscow Region.
The Collective Agreement of the JSC «MOESK» for 2010 is concluded between the Company
and the Moscow City and Moscow Region «Electroprofsoyuz» Committee. The priority orientation of the Collective Agreement lies in provision of additional securities and indemnifications for the Company's workers in excess of the standard ones specified in the legislation of
the Russian Federation.
By the end of 2010, the Company had discharged all obligations before the workers, which
are specified in the current Collective Agreement.
Since 2005, there has been a non-governmental retirement benefits program being in force
in the Company, which is aimed at attraction and retention of workers, increase of loyalty
and social security of persons, and includes two major retirement plans: a Corporative one,
being financed from the Company's own funds, and a Parity one, being financed jointly by the
worker and the Company in a specific proportion.
Total number of participants in non-governmental retirement benefits programs of the JSC
«MOESK» made up more than 9 000 people in 2010.

In 2010, sports teams of the Company's branches took part in the 5th multifaceted Sports
Contest of power industry specialists of the Moscow Region.
Best athletes of the Company constituting the picked team of the JSC «MOESK» took part
in the All-Russian Winter and Summer Sports Contest of power industry specialists working
in the distribution electric grid complex.
Pursuant to the Provisions on Privileges and Remunerations for Veterans in 2010 being in
force in the JSC «MOESK», the Company provided material aid to 2 791 retirees. The competent medical care was given to 349 non-working retirees.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

125

Since 2008, there has been a Board of Veterans of War and Labor of the JSC «MOESK»
actively working in the Company, under
which specialized committees for tackling
social and living issues and ministering to
youth were created.

MOESK

Now there are voluntary health insurance and casualty insurance programs being in force
in the Company, aimed at preservation of health of the personnel by way of quality medical
care and provision of social security for the workers.
There are activities being carried out dynamically to organize health resort treatment, rest
and health improvement of workers and their children. Over the year of 2010, workers of the
Company, members of their families, and non-working retirees were granted 2 515 privileged
trip tickets. Moreover, several categories of workers, and non-working retirees were granted
free-of-charge trip tickets to children's holiday camps, health resorts and holiday hotels.

2010 saw an active participation of the
JSC «MOESK» in the historical and memorial
event – «Relay of the Banner of Victory» –
organized by the JSC «IDGC Holding». More
than 300 workers of the Company, along
with representatives of government authorities and representatives of the veteran
community, as well as youth organizations,
participated in the celebrations held within
the scope of the «Relay of the Banner of
Victory».
There are giveaway programs being in
force in the Company – «Childhood» and
«Spiritual Heritage» – under which special
charitable and social investments programs
are being implemented along with the traditional forms of recipient-oriented charity.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

7.3. PROTECTION OF THE ENVIRONMENT
There is an Environmental Policy being in force in the Company and approved by the Board
of Directors of the JSC «MOESK» (Minute No. 75 of 03.12.2008), which establishes principles,
goals, tasks and principal lines of the Company's activity in the area of environment protection and environmental safety in the long-run period.

Within the scope of Environmental Policy, the following measures were implemented by the JSC «MOESK»:
activities for functioning of integrated management system in the area of ecology;
development of regulatory environmental documentation;
◆ internal instrumental monitoring of regulatory compliance in respect to admissible impact on the environment;
◆ maintenance of oil receiving devices in the substations;
◆ activities for construction of oil receivers, oil collectors, reconstruction of treatment
facilities.
According to the Environmental Policy, there is modernization of the control system in the
area of environmental protection and management being held in the Company on the basis
of functioning of the environmental management system adopted by the Company in 2008
with due consideration of the requirements of the international standard ISO 14001:2004.
In 2010, a compliance audit of ecology management was held in the branches of the JSC
«MOESK»—Northern Electric Networks and Moscow Cable Network—within the framework
of the functioning environmental management system. Following the results of the audit, a
report was drawn, based on which the environmental management system was recommended
for renewal of certification.
◆
◆
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The package of measures for implementation of the environmental policy
includes:
scheduled modernization and replacement of processing installations;
introduction of new effluent treatment technologies;
◆ industrial waste utilization;
◆ organization of environmental education of employees.
In the year under report, representatives of the JSC «MOESK» repeatedly participated in
specialized exhibitions and conferences devoted to environmental protection. The Company
obtained a participant's diploma of international Ecwatech-2010 exhibition that is currently
being the largest aquatic forum in the Eastern Europe. Participation in the VI All-Russian
Environmental Conference «New Priorities of National Environmental Policy in the Real Sector of the Economy» brought the JSC «MOESK» a medal of honor and a certificate «For the
environmental safety».
Becoming a laureate of one of the most prestigious contests held in November 2010, «100
Best Russian Organizations. Ecology and Industrial Safety», the JSC «MOESK» proved its high
rating in the area of ecology and industrial safety. Materials on implementation, development and introduction of environmental protection measures, and adherence to standards of
industrial safety on the electric grid facilities of the Company, brought to the contest were
highly praised by the Independent Community Board of the contest's organizing committee.
The JSC «MOESK» was given a diploma of the laureate of the Contest and a golden medal «100
Best Russian Organizations. Ecology and Industrial Safety», along with awarding Andrey Konovalov—the General Director of the JSC «MOESK»—with a honorary title «Best Manager in
the Area of Environmental and Industrial Safety».
In 2010, expenditures on environmental protection made up 94 922.4 thousand Rubles,
including on the following directions:
◆ protection and prudent management of the flowing storage: 24 557.8 thousand Rubles;
◆ protection of the atmospheric air: 9 905.2 thousand Rubles;
◆ protection of the environment (land resources) against production and consumption
waste: 43 711.2 thousand Rubles;
◆ environmental payments for the negative impact on the environment: 3 890.6 thousand
Rubles;
◆ overhaul repairs of fixed production assets for environmental protection: 12 857.6 thousand Rubles
◆
◆
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thousand Rubles

Description

2008

2009

2010

Expenditures on protection and prudent
management of the flowing storage

13 703.6

18 442.8

24 557.8

Expenditures on protection of the
atmospheric air

3 791.4

7 266.0

9 905.2

Expenditures on protection of land resources
against production and consumption waste

16 911.3

28 690.1

43 711.2

Payment for negative impact

5 808.2

3 429.0

3 890.6

Expenditures on overhaul repairs

24 311.7

8 911.8

12 857.6

Total expenditures on environmental
protection

64 526.3

66 739.7

94 922.4

8 911.8

3 890.6

5 808.2

3 429.0

Payment for
negative impact

12 857.6

24 311.7

28 690.1
9 905.2

Expenditures on
protection of land
resources against
production and
consumption wastes

Expenditures on
overhaul repairs

In 2010 year, total water consumption by the JSC «MOESK» has decreased by 5.3 thousand
m3 as compared to 2009 and made up 482.2 thousand m3, of which 372.6 thousand m3 for
household and drinking needs, and 109.6 thousand m3 for production needs.
To improve the quality of effluent water and increase the treatment facilities' efficiency,
the following measures were implemented in the branches of the JSC «MOESK»:
◆ equipment of the SS No. 445 «Sigma», No. 172 «Khlebnikovo» with treatment facilities
of the land and storm water drainage;
◆ bringing of a car wash with a recycling water supply system into service on the Central
Base of the Volokolamsky Distribution Zone;
◆ conditioning of treatment facilities of the storm water drainage in the Domodedovsky
DZ, treatment facilities of a car wash in the Serpukhovsky DZ;
◆ reconstruction of the oil facility of the Central Electric Networks;
◆ instrumental monitoring of the quality of the surface water (rainwater and snowmelt)
from the territory of production facilities;
◆ installation of new filters and reagents on the car washes with the closed cycle of water
use;
◆ control over condition of treatment facilities in motor transport washes;
◆ chemical analysis of artesian water samples from the borehole;
◆ accounting of the quantity of contaminators disposed into the effluent storm waters;
◆ timely renewal of permits for the disposal of contaminators;
◆ replacement of oil-filled cable with the polyethylene insulated cable.
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atmospheric air
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Expenditures
on protection
and prudent
management of the
flowing storage

7 266.0

3 791.4

16 911.3

24 557.8

18 442.8

13 703.6

43 711.2

EXPENDITURES ON
ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

PROTECTION
OF THE AIR BASIN

Total volume of contaminants emitted in 2010 made up 51.3 t. As compared to 2009, the
quantity of contaminants emitted into the atmosphere decreased by 23.7% or by 15.9 t. The
main part of emissions falls on the motor transport.
The decrease of the quantity of contaminants emitted into the atmosphere in 2010 was
due to implementation of the following measures:
◆ activities for sanitary and chemical control over the atmospheric air on the boundaries
of the production impact areas;
◆ control over emission of contaminants from dust and gas treatment facilities, checking
of cyclone collectors' efficiency;
◆ instrumental monitoring of compliance to the regulations on maximum permissible
emissions into the atmosphere from stationary sources;
◆ measurements and adjustment of contaminant emissions from motor transport, toxicity
check of vehicles with gasoline engines and smokiness check of diesel vehicles, public checks
of gas analyzers and smoke meters.

PROTECTION
OF LAND
RESOURCES

For the purpose of protection and prudent management of land resources, the following
measures were implemented in 2010:
◆ for the purpose of temporary production and consumption waste accumulation, special
places were provided on production sites of the Company. Agreements for waste collection
and utilization were concluded with specialized organizations;
◆ timely preparation of draft regulations on waste formation, limits for its emplacement
and renewal of waste emplacement limits was made;
◆ timely cleaning of territories, disposition of construction waste and domestic garbage
was carried out;
◆ persons in charge of handling production and consumption waste were appointed by
the order of the director, as well as procedures for concluding agreements on disposition
(discarding) of waste and procedures for accounting and control over waste transportation
were established in every branch of the JSC «MOESK».
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Formation of production and consumption waste made up 16 450.8 t in 2010, which
PRODUCTION
exceeds
the previous year’s indicator by 17.2% or by 2 416.6 t. Growth of waste quantity as
AND CONSUMPTION
compared to 2009 is related to an increase of volume of work on reconstruction of existing
WASTE
facilities and construction of new ones.
Low-hazard and non-hazard waste – hazard class 4 and 5 – still constitute the main part
of the waste in the JSC «MOESK».
The Company has a license for carrying out of activities on collection, use, decontamination,
transportation, emplacement of hazardous production and consumption waste No. OT-00009028(00) of 15.07.2008.
Solid domestic waste is transferred for burial exclusively on the landfills having licenses
on this type of activity and agreed limits for emplacement of waste. 1 to 3 class wastes
is discarded to special processing plants for utilization or processing with the purpose of
recycling.

Formation of
production and
consumption waste
in the Company over
the period of 2008 –
2010:

Year

1 class hazard
waste, tons

2 class hazard
waste, tons

3 class hazard
waste, tons

4 class hazard
waste, tons

5 class hazard
waste, tons

2008

5.0

3.9

328.5

3 348.8

12 186.3

2009

8.2

25.2

273.3

3 115.8

10 611.8

2010

3.3

21.6

304.8

4 771.7

11 349.4

7

1 class

11349.4

10 611.8

4771.7
3115.8

304.8

273.3

21.6

25.2

3.9

3.3

8.2

5.0

328.5

3348.8

Formation of production and consumption waste in the
Company over the period of 2008 – 2010:

12 186.3
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2 class

3 class

4 class

5 class

WASTE HAZARD CLASS

ENVIRONMENTAL
EDUCATION

One of the key prerequisites for carrying out of an effective environment-related
activity is advanced training of managers and specialists of the JSC «MOESK» in the area of
environmental protection.
Company's employees regularly advance in their skills in the area of environmental
education. In 2010, managers and specialists of the JSC «MOESK» undergone training in
environmental protection issues in educational institutions such as State Unitary Enterprise
«Center for Execution of Works and Rendering of Services of the Environmental Purposes»,
Non-governmental Educational Institution «Institute of Additional Vocational Education
for Specialists». Workers of specialized divisions obtained certificates of the right to handle
production and consumption waste, certificates for internal audit of an environmental
management system, certificates of advanced training in the area of environment protection.
In the future, it is planned to continue efforts on advanced training of managers and
specialists of the JSC «MOESK» in the areas of environmental activity.
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All substations in Moscow City and Region newly constructed or reconstructed and located
in the immediate proximity to the residential areas are obligatorily equipped with acoustic
suppressors at the stages of design and construction. Aggregate levels of noise are being
taken as calculation methods, based on which measures for reduction and optimization of
noise emissions from the facilities of the JSC «MOESK» are being planned pursuant to the
sanitary regulations. The Company is also implementing measures to minimize the impact
from electric and electromagnetic emissions on the personnel.
In 2010, the following measures were implemented in the JSC «MOESK» to control the
noise impact of the Company's facilities on the environment:
◆ measuring the levels of noise, magnetic radiation, vibration from electric substations;
◆ identifying the noise impact on the boundaries of impact areas of the Company's facilities;
◆ making calculations in respect of noise;
◆ instrumental monitoring of acoustic situation in the areas of impact from noise sources
in the Company's facilities on apartment blocks;
◆ measures for reduction of and optimization of regulations for electromagnetic emission
are taken in design works for construction of new electrical substations;
◆ development of projects to rationalize the sizes of sanitary protection zones.

MOESK

ACOUSTIC
SUPPRESSION

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY
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PROCUREMENT ACTIVITY

8

8.1. POLICY IN RESPECT OF PROCUREMENT ACTIVITIES
The policy of the JSC «MOESK» in respect
of carrying out and organization of competitive and scheduled non-competitive
purchase of goods, works and services for
the Company's own needs corresponds to the
common development tendencies of the purchase system in electrical energy industry,
to the governmental policy in respect of control over natural monopolies' activities, and
to the common development tendencies of
market relations.

Within the scope of this policy, the Company has built a purchase system based on
principles of openness and transparency;
thorough planning of production requirement; priority of competitive ways of purchasing; honest and reasonable choice of
the most preferred offers along with complex
analysis of profits and expenses (first and
foremost, price and quality of products).

Procurement activities in the JSC «MOESK» are regulated by the following documents:
 Federal Law of 21.07.2005 No.94-FZ «On placement of purchasing orders for goods,
services, works, services for needs of state and municipal needs»;
Federal Law of 27.12.2002 No.184– FZ «On technical regulation»;
Provision on procedure of carrying out scheduled purchase of goods, works and services
for the needs of the JSC «MOESK» (approved by the Company's Board of Directors, Minute of
14.04.2008 No. 58);
International standards in respect of management systems (ISO 9000, ISO 14000, standards
OHSAS 18001);
Company's policies in respect of quality, labor safety, occupational health and safety, and
ecology.

For improving quality of procedures being implemented, common requirements as to the
form and contents of technical tasks being part of competitive documentation, as well as a
procedure of their reconciliation by supervisory technical services under the Company’s executive body have been developed.
Procurement activities in the Company are executed with a strict compliance to the
Annual Complex Purchasing Program (ACPP) approved annually by the Board of Directors,
and is published in the «Purchases» section of the Company’s corporative website in the
Internet not later than in 7 calendar days from the date of approval.
For the purpose of creation and reconciliation of the Annual Complex Purchasing
Program, an automated AS FEM «Procurement Management» system has been developed
and brought into action.
ACPP is created based on the following programs determining the production activities of
the Company:
◆ production program (inclusive of all purchases constituting the estimate of expenditures
on production and sales of products (goods, works and services) as a result of the ordinary
activity stipulated by the concept of the business plan);
◆ maintenance program (plan of repairs);
◆ investment program (along with technical upgrading and reconstruction, also in respect
of information technologies and new construction).

MOESK

For the purpose of implementation of
scheduled purchasing procedures using its
own resources, the JSC «MOESK» has created
a Competitive Purchases Organization Administration being part of the Logistics and Procurement Department. Thus, scheduled purchasing procedures for the Company's needs
were implemented in 2010 without involving
outside organizations, which contributed to a
considerable decrease in expenditures on organizing implementation of purchasing procedures and reduction of their duration.
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All decisions related to purchase activities of the Company in 2010 were made by
the Permanent Tender Committee (PTC) established by the order of the General Director, and the Central Tender Committee (CTC)
established by the resolution of the Board of
Directors.
The Central Tender Committee of the JSC
«MOESK» exercises functions of coordination, regulatory and methodical support, and
control over procurement of goods, works
and services for the Company's needs.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

The Annual Complex Purchasing Program is executed by way of implementation of
purchasing procedures within the set time limits. In the course of execution of the ACPP, it
is allowed to adjust it:
◆ following the results of defending the tariffs for electric power in the regulatory agencies;
◆ in connection with adjustments of the Company's business plan;
◆ following the results of formation of the Company's need in products for the next year,
satisfaction of which requires implementation of competitive procedures in the 3 or 4
quarter of the current year;
◆ based on other reasons connected with a previously unforeseen need to change the
ACPP.
A report about implementation of the Annual Complex Purchasing Program is quarterly
submitted by the General Director of the Company to the Board of Directors.

8.2. RESULTS OF PROCUREMENT ACTIVITIES
Over the year of 2010, 2 248 purchases were carried out to the total amount of 37 193 463
thousand Rubles including VAT.
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THE STRUCTURE
OF PURCHASES BY
TYPES OF ACTIVITY
IS SHOWN IN THE
TABLE:

Quantity,
items

Total amount
(thousand Rubles
incl. VAT)

Ratio in the
total amount
of purchases

New construction and expansion of electric
grid facilities

319

2 699 642

7%

Reconstruction and technical upgrade of
electric grid facilities

729

9 675 235

26%

Repairs (energy repairs) production, maintenance service

752

5 031 094

14%

IT purchases

9

91 158

less than 1%

Advisory services

10

53 996

less than 1%

Other purchases

429

19 642 338

53%

2 248

37 193 463

100%

Types of activity

TOTAL:

FFollowing
ll i the
th results
lt off 2010,
2010 purchasing
h i procedures
d
were implemented
i l
t d with
ith prevailing
ili off
open procedures, the ratio of which was 64% of the total quantity of purchases.
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Quantity,
items

Total amount
(thousand Rubles
incl. VAT)

Ratio in the
total amount
of purchases

Open competitive tenders, auctions

451

7 105 652

19%

Open requests for quotes

958

7 306 943

20%

Open competitive negotiations

25

2 950

less than 1%

Closed request for price following the results
of competitive negotiations

331

1 934 694

5%

Closed competitive tenders

12

503 665

1%

Purchase from a sole source*

471

20 339 559

55%

2 248

37 193 463

100%

Methods of purchases

TOTAL:

i l d the
th purchase
h
S i ffor ttransmission
i i off electrical
l t i l energy bby th
FGC UES
the
* – includes
off a «Service
the «FGC
UES», JSC tto th
amount of 15,230,306 thousand Rubles incl. VAT, which makes 40.9% in the total amount of purchases.
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Methods of purchases are defined by regulations of the «Provision on the procedure of
implementing scheduled purchasing procedures of the JSC «MOESK».
Use of electronic trading venues plays a fundamental role in enhancing efficiency of procurement activities and ensuring a competitive purchasing environment. The Company's
Board of Directors has approved the use of an electronic trading venue b2b-energo.ru as a
mean of eCommerce for implementation of purchasing procedures.
All open procedures of the Company were implemented on the electronic trading venue
b2b-energo.ru. Messages about implementation of scheduled procedures (in form of notification copy) and information about results of purchases are also placed in the «Purchases»
section of the Company’s corporative website in the Internet.

MOESK

THE STRUCTURE
OF PURCHASES
BY METHODS OF
PURCHASES IS
SHOWN IN THE
TABLE:
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INTERACTION WITH
MASS MEDIA

anagement of communicative processes
within the scope of
information policy of the JSC
«MOESK» is an integral part of
the Company's strategic management. In developing and
implementing the long-term
strategy of communications
and an optimization of communication environment, the Company follows

uniform principles of reputational and information policy established in the JSC «IDGC
Holding» and its affiliated and associated companies.
Creation of effective communications with
public and governmental authorities is an important line of activity in the area of widening a publicity (image) capital. Considerable
attention is paid to advertising, congressional
and exhibitional, charitable and sponsoring activity, as well as to international cooperation.

For the purposes of implementation of the
uniform information policy, enhancement of
brand awareness, building of positive reputation and an image of an informationally open
Company, as well as for the purpose of enlargement of the audience, the JSC «MOESK»
has organized an interaction with leading
regional and industrial-oriented mass media.

Company’s market value. Personal participation of the General Director in the aforementioned events also contributed to building of
loyal positions in public opinion about the
Company's activities in the course of emergency recovery works aimed to rectification of the consequences of the challenging
weather abnormalities.
In the course of 2010, 14 media tours to
the facilities of the JSC «MOESK» were organized for journalists.

By the end of 2010, the average index of
Company's information transparency had advanced considerably. According to the data
of the standard report – «Study about information transparency of Russian companies
in 2010» – made by the international rating
agency Standard & Poors and the Center of
Economical and Financial Examinations and
Developments (CEFED), the index of information transparency of the JSC «MOESK» has
grown almost by 20 points over the last two
years (the index of information transparency
of 90 largest Russian companies has grown
over the same period only by 1.7 point on
the average).
According to the data of on-line monitoring, the JSC «MOESK» was mentioned in print
and Internet media 6,590 times over the period from 10.03.2010 through 31.12.2010,
which is exceeding the same indicator of
2009 (4 400 references) more than by 2 000
references.
With participation of the General Director
of the JSC «MOESK», 4 press conferences have
been held on the venues of the Interfax agency, Komsomolskaya Pravda and Moskovsky
Komsomolets newspapers, as well as in the
JSC «MOESK». Public media events with participation of the General Director were aimed
at building of a positive and integral image
of the Company, as well as strengthening
of the business reputation and widening of
the publicity capital in the structure of the

The volume of video information has
grown considerably as compared to 2009.
Starting from 10.03.2010, 217 TV items were
aired (6 items in 2009).
For the first time in 5 years of the Company's existence, representatives of leading
Russian mass media were invited to the annual General Meeting of shareholders of the
JSC «MOESK». In the course of the event, the
General Director of the JSC «MOESK» A.P. Konovalov answered the questions of journalists.
Economical effect of the Company's information activities, instead of placement
of advertising publications, made up 24 mln.
Rubles, as well as approximately 150 mln.
Rubles based on the cost of all informative
messages per 1 000 people of the target audience.
For the purpose of sustaining a positive
brand image of the Russian distribution electric grid complex and popularization of the
profession, a large scale information maintenance of drivers' professional skills competitions for (June), contests of operational
repairs personnel of high-voltage networks
(July), All-Russian professional skills competitions of crews servicing high-voltage
transmission lines of distribution grids was
carried out in 2010.
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In the period of holding the «Fair Kilowatt» and «Kind Electricity – Safe Holidays» events, upon the initiative of the JSC
«MOESK», heads of constituent entities of
the Federation – Moscow City and Moscow
Region – spoke to the heads of regions about
a necessity to interact with the JSC «MOESK»
in holding these activities.
Within the scope of international exhibitional presentation «Moscow Region-2010»
which was held on 23 – 25 September 2010

in the exhibition center «Krokus-Expo», the
JSC «MOESK» was represented in the consolidated booth of the Moscow Region's Fuel and
Energy complex.
8 September 2010, the JSC «MOESK»,
jointly with the JSC «IDGC Holding» and the
National Innovations and Technology Chamber, took part in the international exhibition «Innovative Projects in the Electric Grid
Complex».

In April 2010, an updated version of the
corporate website of the JSC «MOESK» was
put into operation in the Internet. Website
redesigning works are currently being carried out for the purpose of further enhancement of its customer-orientedness.
The new visual solution, as well as the
technical update of the website, are connected with Company's striving to conform to
standards of quality presentation of obligatorily and voluntarily disclosed information
in on-line mode with the purpose to ensure
the maximum transparency of the Company.
The new version of the website uses an extensive toolbox for communication with clients and business community, among which
is a well-proven and time-proved feedback
channel between consumers of services provided by the JSC «MOESK» and its management – a web waiting room of the General
Director.
First electronic visit to the web waiting
room took place on 16 February 2009. About
1900 messages have been received over the
entire period of its operation.
This is indicative of the fact that the web
waiting room has gained acceptance among
the Company's clients and reached the status
of a reliable communication channel.
There is an important channel for communication of the JSC «MOESK» with customers, the 24/7 Light Line. Power consumers of

Moscow and Moscow Region can make free
phone calls to the number 8-800-700-40-70
concerning any technological violations and
power supply interruptions.
One of the essential lines of activity in the
area of intracorporative information interaction is a work with internal audience. For the
purpose to enhance efficiency of internal
communications in the Company, 17 issues
of a corporative information edition «MOESK
News» were published in 2010. There is also a
JSC «MOESK» internal website (intranet portal) operating in the Company, a number of
corporate contests were held, an information
support of sports events held in the Company
and the JSC «IDGC Holding» was organized.
The internal target audience of the Company consists of not only its employees, but
also of veterans of the industry. Information
about activities of the Board of Veterans, as
well as information about veterans of electrical energy industry is regularly published in
the mass media.
The JSC «MOESK» took an active part in
the historical and memorial event «Relay of
the Banner of Victory» organized by the JSC
«IDGC Holding». For the veterans of branches
and the Company's executive body, celebrations devoted to the transfer of a precise replica of the official symbol of the Victory in
the Great Patriotic War were organized.

For the convenience of creating favorable conditions for strengthening the brand
image of JSC «MOESK» in the world and domestic power market, the Company has centralized its congressional and exhibitional
activity.
In 2010, the Company took part in 12
largest international and all-Russian exhibitions, investment forums for the electrical
power industry.
The JSC «MOESK» maintains business
ties with investment community, leading
research institutes, electrical equipment
manufacturers, representatives of different
categories of public. The Company took part
in international status events such as: «Fuel
and Power Sector of Russia in XXI century»,
«International Economic Forum in St. Petersburg», «WEC 2010 (World Energy Congress)»,
International Forum «Energy of the Future».
During these events, the JSC «MOESK» was
introduced to international investment and
expert community and presented as a largest
transparent distribution electric grid company in Russia and Europe, going along the
road of innovation development and adhering to the maximum development of social
responsibility and client service.
The Company took part in specialized exhibitions of electrical and power equipment
«CABEX-2010», «SAPE-2010», «Presentation
of Research and Production Complex of Moscow Region in Leningrad Region», «Electric
Networks of Russia-2010», where Company's
technological development trends determining its course towards renovation of equipment were presented.
Apart from research and technology and
investment community, the JSC «MOESK»
took part in events meant for the broad
categories of public, such as: «Moscow Region—2010», «Kind Electricity» seminar,
«Labor Safety in Moscow», «The Best to

Children» exhibition. Since the day-to-day
activity of the JSC «MOESK» is accompanied
by the factors of an increased risk to health
and life, participation in such events emphasizes the Company's social responsibility and orientedness to the final consumer.
In course of the «Kind Electricity—Safe
Holidays» event, preventive classes were
held in schools and preschool institutions
for children aimed at prevention of children's
electrical injuries. Within the scope of the
event, electrical safety classes were held in
more than 200 preschool and school educational institutions, places of package holiday
for children, with a total coverage of more
than 10 thousand people. An issue of necessary print media and souvenir materials
on subject of electrical safety was ensured.
Flash-cartoons demonstrating elementary
rules of electrical safety for children of primary and middle school age were created for
holding classes in educational institutions.
Importance of these events was repeatedly emphasized by the Governor of the Moscow Region B.V. Gromov, as well as by the
former and the current Mayors of Moscow,
Yu.M. Luzhkov and S.S. Sobyanin.
During the «Fair Kilowatt» event, mass
media and the public were operatively informed of the work being carried out by the
JSC «MOESK» in respect of identification of
non-metered and non-contractual energy
consumption in the Moscow Region.
Within the scope of international cooperation, working meetings on the base of
power facilities operating in Moscow Region
were held in 2010 with Korean, Japanese and
French representatives of the electric power
sector, and apart from that, the JSC «MOESK»
took part in a research-to-practice conference with participation of power industry
specialists from Germany.
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GLOSSARY

GLOSSARY OF BASIC NOTIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

UNITS OF
MEASUREMENT:

kV: kilovolt as the voltage measurement unit
MWt: megawatt as the power measurement unit
kVA: kilovolt-ampere as the full transforming power measurement unit
MVA: megavolt-ampere as the full transforming power measurement unit
kWt/h: kilowatt-hour as the electric power measurement unit
MWt/h: megawatt-hour as the electric power measurement unit
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Abbreviations used in the text:
ADMC CMEP: automated data metrical systems for commercial metering of electric power
ATPCS: automated technology process control systems
AS FEM: automated system of financial and economic management
AL: aerial line
ACPP: annual complex purchasing program
SRPS: state regional power station (historical name)
HPS: hydroelectric power station
AAC: affiliated and associated companies
UNEG: Unified National (All-Russian) Electric Grid
CDMS: corporative data management system
CL: cable line
KPI: key performance indicators
PTL: power transmission line
MKSM: JSC «Moskabelsetmontazh»
MKER: JSC «Moskabelenergoremont»
MICEX: Moscow Interbank Currency Exchange
Moscow RDO: Regional Dispatching Office of Moscow City and Region power system as the
branch of the JSC «SO-CDO UES»
MUE: municipal unitary enterprise
R&D: research and development
MEC: mobile emergency crew
WGC: wholesale generation company
ODS: on-line dispatcher service
LCR: large-scale consumers—resellers
PTC: permanent tender committee
SS: substation with the voltage of 35 kV and higher
RPAE: relay protection and automatic equipment
RTS: Russian Trading System
REC: Regional Energy Committee
RETO: JSC «Plant for repairing electrotechnical equipment»
MSM: mass communication media
SO-CDO UES of Russia: System Operator—Central Dispatching Office of the Unified Energy
System of Russia
TS: transforming substation 6-10/0.4 kV
TUaR: technical upgrading and reconstruction
TGO: territorial grid organization
HPP: heat power plant
FCSM: Federal Committee for Securities Market (transformed into FSFM of Russia in August
2004)
FGC UES of Russia: Federal Grid Company of the Unified Energy System of Russia
FSFM: Federal Service for Financial Markets
FTS: Federal Tariff Service
CTC: central tender committee
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APPENDIXES

APPENDIX 1.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2010 PREPARED ACCORDING
TO THE RUSSIAN FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(RFRS)

ACCOUNTING BALANCE SHEET AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

thousand Rubles

ASSET

Code of
indicator

As of the
beginning
of the
reporting
year

As of the
end of the
reporting
period

1

2

3

4

Fixed assets

120

133 176 971

149 576 088

Construction in progress

130

36 678 074

27 894 491

Long-term financial investments

140

3 685 697

4 186 186

Deferred tax assets

145

583 386

790 446

Total for the section I

190

174 124 128

182 447 211

Reserves
including:
stock, materials and other similar values

210

6 191 284

4 923 870

211

2 416 466

2 098 537

finished products and goods for resale

214

2 640

5 728

deferred expenditures

216

3 772 178

2 819 605

Value added tax for acquired values

220

307 796

61 114

230

29 159 381

33 034 733

I. Non-circulating assets

Accounts receivable (payments are expected in more than 12
months after reporting date)
including:
purchasers and customers

231

106 913

Accounts receivable (payments are expected within 12 months
after reporting date)
including:
purchasers and customers

240

33 037 744

23 661 064

241

6 573 051

9 245 200

Short-term financial investments

250

2 968 747

0

Cash assets

260

4 844 580

1 108 030

Other circulating assets

270

0

190

Total for the section II

290

76 509 532

62 789 001

BALANCE (sum of lines 190 + 290)

300

250 633 660

245 236 212
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thousand Rubles
LIABILITIES

Code of
indicator

As of the beginning
of the reporting year

As of the end of the
reporting period

1

2

3

4

III. Capital and reserves
Registered capital

410

24 353 546

24 353 546

Additional capital

420

63 720 537

63 670 978

Reserve capital

430

810 513

1 126 439

including:
reserve funds established pursuant to the
legislation

431

810 513

1 126 439

Undistributed profits (uncovered loss)

470

30 792 331

45 699 793

490

119 676 927

134 850 756

Total for the section III

IV. Long-term obligations

142

Loans and credits

510

13 962 190

26 724 540

Deferred tax liabilities

515

1 675 709

2 593 010

Other long-term obligations

520

21 786 335

10 672 309

590

37 424 234

39 989 859

Total for the section IV

V. Short-term obligations
Loans and credits

610

26 797 543

4 603 031

Accounts payable

620

64 281 805

62 623 459

including:
providers and contractors

621

10 997 114

12 269 634

payables to personnel of the organization

622

1 621

9 202

payables to state non-budgetary funds

623

115

3 527

taxes and dues payable

624

261 951

601 880

other creditors

625

53 021 004

49 739 216

Revenues payable to members (founders)

630

2 483

Deferred revenues

640

2 450 668

3 169 107

690

93 532 499

70 395 597

700

250 633 660

245 236 212

Total for the section V

BALANCE (sum of lines 490 + 590 + 690)

APPENDIXES

thousand Rubles
REFERENCE INFORMATION about availability of values included in off balance sheet accounts
Leased fixed assets

910

66 330 563

76 711 715

including on leasing

911

39 135 192

38 660 871

Bad debt write-off

940

25 552

23 703

Secured obligations and payments received

950

5 355

2 890

Deterioration of housing facilities

970

529

549

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD FROM JANUARY THROUGH DECEMBER 2010
thousand Rubles

code

1

2

For the same
period in the
previous year

3

4

143

Receipts and expenditures on ordinary types of activities
(Net) proceeds from selling goods, products, works and services (net
of value added tax, excise taxes and similar compulsory payments)

010

110 634 049

85 232 848

Self-cost of sold goods, products, works and services

020

-85 240 359

-69 381 805

Gross profit

029

25 393 690

15 851 043

Profit (loss) on sales

050

25 393 690

15 851 043

Other receipts and expenditures
Interest receivable

060

200 787

339 078

Interest payable

070

-2 696 074

-3 663 643

Other receipts

090

5 580 774

11 151 999

Other expenditures

100

-7 085 520

-13 584 886

Profit (loss) before taxation

140

21 393 657

10 093 591

Deferred tax assets

141

207 059

281 672

Deferred tax liabilities

142

-917 300

-704 580

Current profit tax

150

-5 062 219

-3 338 810

Other compulsory payments

180

328

-13 365

Net profit (loss) over the reporting period

190

15 621 525

6 318 508

200

1 493 729

1 742 999

FOR REFERENCE ONLY:
Recurrent tax liabilities (assets)
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BREAKDOWN OF PARTICULAR PROFITS AND LOSSES
Indicator

144

thousand Rubles

For the reporting period

For the same period in the
previous year

description

code

profit

loss

profit

loss

1

2

3

4

5

6

Fines, penalties and forfeits recognized or to
be collected subject to any court judgments
(arbitration awards)

210

65 472

20 770

16 803

10 620

Profit (loss) from previous years

220

-17 769

108 846

30 208

150 906

Reparation of losses caused by non-performance
or unduly performance of obligations

230

69 434

365

74 059

2 659

Exchange differences in foreign currency
transactions

240

625 004

617 502

5 815 116

5 819 910

Allocation to allowances

250

Х

308 685

Х

286 395

Depreciation of receivables and payables with
expired limitation period

260

7 385

576

6 895

15 866

STATEMENT ON CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 2010

thousand Rubles

Indicator description

code

Registered
capital

Additional
capital

Reserve
capital

Undistributed
profits (uncovered loss)

Total

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

010

24 349 748

36 243 169

695 356

24 400 180

85 688 453

Balance as of December 31
of the year before previous
year

2009 (previous year)
Changes in accounting
policy

011

х

х

х

–

–

Results of fixed asset items
revaluation

012

х

27 532 285

х

–

27 532 285

Changes in the accounting
rules

013

х

–

х

133 883

133 883

Balance as of January 01 of
the previous year

020

24 349 748

63 775 454

695 356

24 534 063

113 354 621

Results of foreign currencies
revaluation

023

х

–

х

х

–

Net profit

025

х

х

х

6 318 508

6 318 508

Dividends

026

х

х

х

–

–

Allocation to reserve fund

030

х

х

115 157

(115 157)

–

APPENDIXES

Registered
capital

Additional
capital

Reserve
capital

Undistributed
profits (uncovered
loss)

Total

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Increase in capitalization by
way of:

040

–

–

–

–

–

issuing additional shares

041

–

х

х

х

–

increasing nominal value of
shares

042

–

х

х

х

–

reorganization of legal
entity

043

–

х

х

–

–

other

044

–

–

–

–

–

Decrease in capitalization by
way of:

050

3 798

(54 917)

–

54 917

3 798

decreasing nominal value of
shares

051

–

х

х

х

–

decreasing number of shares

052

–

х

х

х

–

reorganization of legal
entity

053

–

х

х

–

–

other

054

3 798

(54 917)

–

54 917

3 798

Balance as of January 01 of
the previous year

060

24 353 546

63 720 537

810 513

30 792 331

119 676 927

2010 (reporting year)
Changes in accounting
policy

061

х

х

х

–

–

Results of fixed asset items
revaluation

062

х

–

х

–

–

Changes in the accounting
rules

063

х

–

х

–

–

Balance as of January 01 of
the reporting year

100

24 353 546

63 720 537

810 513

30 792 331

119 676 927

Results of foreign currencies
revaluation

103

х

0

х

х

–

Net profit

105

х

х

х

15 621 525

15 621 525

Dividends

106

х

х

х

(450 000)

(450 000)

Allocation to reserve fund

110

х

х

315 926

(315 926)

–

Increase in capitalization by
way of:

120

–

–

–

2 304

2 304

issuing additional shares

121

–

х

х

х

–
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Indicator description

code

Registered
capital

Additional
capital

Reserve
capital

Undistributed
profits (uncovered
loss)

Total

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

increasing nominal value of
shares

122

–

х

х

х

–

reorganization of legal
entity

123

–

х

х

–

–

other

124

–

–

–

2 304

2 304

Decrease in capitalization by
way of:

130

–

(49 559)

–

49 559

–

decreasing nominal value of
shares

131

–

х

х

х

–

decreasing number of shares

132

–

х

х

х

–

reorganization of legal
entity

133

–

х

х

–

–

other

134

–

(49 559)

–

49 559

–

Balance as of December 31
of the reporting year

140

24 353 546

63 670 978

1 126 439

45 699 793

134 850 756

RESERVES

thousand Rubles
Indicator
description

code

1

2

Balance

Received

Used

Balance

3

4

5

6

Reserves generated according to legislation:
data of the previous year

150

695 356

115 157

–

810 513

data of the reporting year

151

810 513

315 926

–

1 126 439

Reserves generated according to constitutive documents:
data of the previous year

152

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

153

–

–

–

–

Allowances:
doubtful debt allowance
data of the previous year

160

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

161

–

340 427

–

340 427

APPENDIXES

Indicator
description

code

1

2

Balance

Received

Used

Balance

3

4

5

6

allowance for depreciation of financial investments
data of the previous year

162

–

286 395

–

286 395

data of the reporting year

163

286 395

(31 742)

–

254 653

allowance for liabilities originating from termination of activity
data of the previous year

164

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

165

–

–

–

–

allowance generated in view of consequences of contingency
data of the previous year

166

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

167

–

–

–

–

allowance for depreciation of tangible assets
168

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

169

–

–

–

–

data of the previous year

170

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

171

–

–

–

–

other

Allowance for future expenditures:
allowance for end of year bonuses
data of the previous year

180

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

181

–

–

–

–

allowance for vacation bonuses (including allocation)
data of the previous year

182

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

183

–

–

–

–
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data of the previous year

data of the previous year

184

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

185

–

–

–

–

data of the previous year

186

–

–

–

–

data of the reporting year

187

–

–

–

–

data of the previous year

188

–

–

–

–

data of the previous year

189

–

–

–

–

allowance for repairs of fixed assets

other

MOESK

allowance for annual long-service bonuses
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REFERENCE INFORMATION

thousand Rubles

Indicator description

code

Balance as of the beginning of
the year

Balance as of the end of the
year

1

2

3

4

200

122 127 595

138 019 863

From the budget

From non-budgetary funds

1) Net assets

for the
for the
reporting year previous year

2) Received for expenditures on ordinary types of activity – total

210

for the
reporting year

for the
previous year

3

4

5

6

–

–

–

–

including:
for payments to Chernobyl cleanup
veterans

capital investments in non-circulating
assets

211

–

–

–

–

212

–

–

–

–

220

–

–

–

–

including:

148

221

–

–

–

–

222

–

–

–

–

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR 2010

thousand Rubles

Indicator description

code

For the reporting
period

For the same period in
the previous year

1

2

3

4

010

4 844 580

5 195 924

Balance of cash assets as of the beginning of the
reporting year

Cash flow from the current
Money received from purchasers and customers

020

116 289 832

99 593 053

Purchased foreign currency

030

1 450

2 255

Other revenues (receipts)

050

11 491 210

6 509 828

Cash assets directed for:
payment for purchased goods, works, services, raw
materials and other circulating assets

150

(63 274 955)

(47 907 680)

remuneration of labor

160

(8 466 036)

(7 172 504)

repayment of dividends, interest

170

(3 165 272)

(3 565 066)

settlements on taxes and dues

180

(11 976 194)

(8 738 624)

other expenditures (payments)

190

(10 465 018)

(3 636 540)

Net cash assets from the current activity

200

30 435 017

35 084 722

APPENDIXES

Indicator description

code

For the reporting
period

For the same period in
the previous year

1

2

3

4

Cash flow from investment activity
Revenue from sales of fixed asset items and other noncirculating assets

210

–

84 228

Revenue from sales of securities and other financial
investments

220

–

–

Received dividends

230

–

–

Received interest

240

59 361

94 348

Receipts from repayment of loans provided to other
organizations

250

–

–

Other receipts

260

–

–

Acquisition of affiliated companies

280

–

–

Acquisition of fixed asset items, profitable investments
and intangible assets

290

(18 975 573)

(17 883 557)

Acquisition of securities and other financial investments

300

(452 407)

(4 143 000)

Loans provided to other organizations

310

–

–

Other expenditures

320

–

(3 768)

Net cash assets from investment activity

340

(19 368 619)

(21 851 749)

Receipts from issue of shares and other equity securities

350

–

–

Receipts from loans and credits provided by other organizations

360

33 943 570

8 700 000

Receipts from target financing

370

–

–

Other revenues

380

–

–

Repayment of loans and credits (without interest)

390

(40 256 484)

(13 083 382)

Repayment on financial lease

400

(8 490 035)

(9 200 935)

Other expenditures

405

–

–

Net cash assets from financial activity

410

(14 802 949)

(13 584 317)

Net increase (decrease) of cash assets and their equivalents

420

(3 736 551)

(351 344)

Balance of cash assets as of the end of the reporting
period

430

1 108 029

4 844 580

Effect of changes in the exchange tariff between the
foreign currency and Ruble

440

19

209

MOESK
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

thousand Rubles

description

code

Availability
as of the
beginning of
the reporting
year

1

2

3

4

5

6

010

–

–

–

–

Indicator

Intellectual property items (exclusive rights
on results of the intellectual property)

Received

Retired

Availability
as of the
end of the
reporting
period

including:

150

patent holder's right to invention, industrial
design, useful model

011

–

–

–

–

possessor of right's right to software, databases

012

–

–

–

–

owner's right to trademark and service mark, appellation of origin of goods

014

–

–

–

–

Goodwill of the organization

030

–

–

–

–

Other

040

–

–

–

–

TOTAL

045

–

–

–

–

thousand Rubles

description

code

As of the
beginning of the
reporting year

1

2

3

4

050

–

–

Indicator

Depreciation of intangible assets – total

FIXED ASSETS

As of the end of
the reporting
period

thousand Rubles

description

code

Availability as
of the beginning of the
reporting year

1

2

3

4

5

6

Buildings

110

11 466 570

1 899 809

(773)

13 365 606

Structures and transfer
mechanisms

111

52 759 395

11 196 627

(84 771)

63 871 251

Machinery and equipment

112

110 392 604

15 106 913

(113 105)

125 386 412

Vehicles

113

517 139

457 497

(8 053)

966 583

Production and household
equipment

114

–

–

–

–

Indicator

Received

Retired

Availability as
of the end of
the reporting
period

APPENDIXES

description

code

Availability as
of the beginning of the
reporting year

1

2

3

4

5

6

Draft livestock

115

–

–

–

–

Producing livestock

116

–

–

–

–

Perennial growing stock

117

–

–

–

–

Other types of fixed assets

118

162 998

41 495

(2 659)

201 834

Land plots and items of
environmental management

119

9 331

2 490

–

11 821

Capital investments in land
reclamation

120

–

–

–

–

TOTAL

130

175 308 037

28 704 831

(209 361)

203 803 507

Indicator

Received

Retired

Availability
as of the end
of the reporting period

thousand Rubles
As of the beginning of
the reporting year

As of the end of the
reporting period

description

code

1

2

3

4

140

42 131 066

54 227 419

including:
buildings and structures

141

6 071 575

9 088 702

machinery, equipment and vehicles

142

35 993 256

45 054 057

other

143

66 235

84 660

Fixed asset items leased out – total

150

–

–

including:
buildings

151

–

–

structures

156

–

–

machinery, equipment and vehicles

152

–

–

other

153

–

–

Fixed asset items transferred for preservation

155

–

–

Fixed assets taken for lease – total

160

66 330 563

76 704 529

including:
buildings and structures

161

2 334 699

710 786

machinery, equipment and vehicles

162

15 172 969

42 304 242

other

163

48 822 895

33 689 501

Real estate items accepted for operation and being
under state registration

165

56 910

3 057 331
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thousand Rubles
code

As of the beginning of
the reporting year

As of the end of the
reporting period

2

3

4

Results of fixed asset items revaluation:

170

–

27 532 285

historical (replacement) cost

171

–

41 001 514

depreciation

172

–

13 469 229

code

As of the beginning of
the reporting year

As of the end of the
reporting period

2

3

4

180

9 360 108

9 492 946

For reference only

Changes in value of fixed asset items resulting from
additional construction works, equipping, reconstruction and partial liquidation

INTEREST-BEARING INVESTMENTS IN TANGIBLE ASSETS

description

code

Availability as of
the beginning
of the reporting
year

1

2

3

4

5

6

Property to be leased

210

-

-

–

–

Property given under lease agreements

220

-

-

–

–

Other

230

-

-

–

–

TOTAL

240

-

-

–

–

Indicator

152

thousand Rubles

code

Received

Retired

Availability as
of the end of
the reporting
period

As of the begin- As of the end
ning of the
of the reportreporting year
ing period

1

2

3

4

Depreciation of interest-bearing investments
in tangible assets

250

-

-

EXPENDITURES ON RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND TECHNOLOGICAL WORKS
thousand Rubles

Types of works

Total

Availability as of the
beginning of Received
the reporting year

Written off

Availability as
of the end of
the reporting
period

description

code

1

2

3

4

5

6

310

–

–

–

–

311

–

–

–

–

312

–

–

–

–

313

–

–

–

–

including:

APPENDIXES

2

3

4

320

–

–

code

For the
reporting
period

For the same
period of the
previous year

2

3

4

330

–

–

Expenditures on research, development and
technological works with negative results, charged to
miscellaneous expenditures

153

EXPENDITURES ON RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

thousand Rubles

description

code

Balance as of
the beginning
of the reporting period

1

2

3

4

5

6

Expenditures on resource development
– total

410

–

–

–

–

Indicator

Received

Written off

Balance as
of the end of
the reporting
period

including:
411

–

–

–

–

412

–

–

–

–

413

–

–

–

–

code

As of the
beginning
of the
reporting
year

As of the
end of the
reporting
period

2

3

4

Expenditures on areas with mineral
resources where prospecting and assessment of wells, exploration and (or)
groundwater survey and other similar
activities have yet to be completed

420

–

–

Expenditures on resource development
work charged in the reporting period
to miscellaneous expenditures as
unproductive

430

–

–

For reference only
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Expenditures on research, development
and technological works in progress

As of the end
of the reporting year
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For reference only

code

As of the
beginning of
the reporting year

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

thousand Rubles

Indicator

Short-term

description

code

as of the
beginning
of the
reporting
year

1

2

3

4

5

6

Contributions to registered (reserve) capitals of
other organizations – total

510

3 685 697

3 717 439

–

–

511

3 685 697

3 717 439

–

–

Government and municipal securities

515

–

–

–

–

Securities issued by other companies – total

520

–

468 747

2 968 747

–

including debt securities (bonds, bills of
exchange)

521

–

468 747

2 968 747

–

Loans granted

525

–

–

–

–

Deposits

530

–

–

–

–

Other

535

–

–

–

–

TOTAL

540

3 685 697

4 186 186

2 968 747

–

Financial investments with current market
value, ex total amount:
Contributions to registered (reserve) capitals of
other organizations – total

550

–

–

–

–

551

–

–

–

–

Government and municipal securities

555

–

–

–

–

Securities issued by other companies – total

560

–

–

–

–

including debt securities (bonds, bills of
exchange)

561

–

–

–

–

Other

565

–

–

–

–

TOTAL

570

–

–

–

–

For reference only.

580

–

–

–

–

For financial investments with current market
value, changes in the cost resulting from valuation adjustment

590

–

–

–

–

including affiliated and associated companies

154

Long-term

including affiliated and associated companies

as of the
end of the
reporting
period

as of the
beginning
of the
reporting
year

as of the
end of the
reporting
period

APPENDIXES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND RECEIVABLE

thousand Rubles

Indicator

Balance as of the
beginning of the
reporting year

Balance as of
the end of the
reporting year

description

code

1

2

3

4

610

33 037 744

23 661 064

Accounts receivable:
short-term – total

including:
settlements with purchasers and customers

611

6 573 051

9 245 200

advances granted

612

5 011 194

2 021 585

other

613

21 453 499

12 394 279

long-term – total

620

29 159 381

33 034 733

including:
–

106 913

advances granted

622

29 159 381

32 927 820

other

623

–

–

TOTAL

630

62 197 125

56 695 797

Accounts payable:
short-term – total

640

91 079 348

67 226 490

including:
settlements with providers and contractors

641

10 997 114

12 269 634

advances received

642

38 923 965

47 979 234

settlements on taxes and dues

643

261 951

601 880

credits

644

26 738 292

755 512

loans

645

59 251

3 847 519

other

646

14 098 775

1 772 711

long-term – total

650

35 748 525

37 396 849

including:
settlements with providers and contractors

651

–

–

settlements on taxes and dues

652

–

–

credits

653

11 605 683

26 724 540

loans

654

2 356 507

–

other

655

21 786 335

10 672 309

TOTAL

660

126 827 873

104 623 339
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EXPENDITURES ON ORDINARY TYPES OF ACTIVITY (BY ITEMS OF EXPENDITURES)

thousand Rubles

Indicator

For the reporting
year

For the previous
year

description

code

1

2

3

4

Material expenditures

710

1 500 906

1 658 083

Labor remuneration expenditures

720

8 730 296

7 515 443

Fringe benefit expenditures

730

1 523 611

1 357 480

Depreciation

740

12 160 210

11 046 905

Other expenditures

750

61 325 336

47 803 894

Total for items of expenditures
Change in balances (increase +, decrease -):

760

85 240 359

69 381 805

production in progress

765

–

–

deferred expenditures

766

(952 573)

(342 439)

reserves for future expenditures

767

–

–

COLLATERALS

thousand Rubles

156
description

code

Balance as of the
beginning of the
reporting year

1

2

3

4

810

5 355

2 890

Indicator

Received – total

Balance as of the
end of the reporting
period

including:
bills of exchange

811

–

–

Mortgaged property

820

5 355

2 890

wherefrom:
items of fixed assets

821

securities and other financial investments

822

–

–

other

823

5 355

2 890

Granted – total

830

–

–

–
–

including:
bills of exchange

831

–

–

Property pledged

840

–

–

wherefrom:
items of fixed assets

841

securities and other financial investments

842

–

–

other

843

–

–

–
–

APPENDIXES

GOVERNMENT AID

thousand Rubles

Indicator

Reporting period

For the same period of the previous
year

description

code

1

2

3

4

Budget funds received in the
reporting year – total

910

–

–

including

Budgetary credits – total

911

–

–

912

–

–

920

as of the
beginning of the
reporting year

received over
the reporting
period

returned over
the reporting
period

as of the end of
the reporting
period

3

4

5

6

–

–

–

–

including
–

–

–

922

–

–

–

–

EXPLANATORY NOTE TO THE ACCOUNTING REPORTS FOR 2010
1. OVERVIEW

Full name: Open Joint-Stock Company «Moscow United Electric Grid Company».
Short name: JSC «MOESK».
Legal address: Moscow region, Podolsk, Ordzhonikidze St. 27.
Date and number of state registration: 01.04.2005 No. 1057746555811.
JSC «MOESK» was created as a result of reorganization of the JSC «Mosenergo» by
way of spin-off based on the resolution adopted on the annual meeting of the shareholders of the JSC «Mosenergo» (minute No. 1 of 29 June 2004). Number of personnel of the JSC «MOESK» as of 31 December 2010 made up 15 780 people.
Basic types of activity of the JSC «MOESK» are:
– rendering services on transmission and distribution of electric power in Moscow
City and Moscow Region,
– adding new consumers' capacities to the power grid and expanding existing
ones,
– other types of activity not forbidden by the legislation of the RF.
As of 31.12.2010, the registered capital makes up 24 353 545 787 (twenty four
billion three hundred fifty three million five hundred forty five thousand seven hundred eighty seven) Rubles, number of shares is 48 707 091 574 (forty eight billion
seven hundred seven million ninety one thousand five hundred seventy four) shares
with the nominal value of 0.50 Ruble.
By the resolution of the General Meeting of shareholders of the JSC «Moscow
United Electric Grid Company» dated 30 June 2010 (minute No. 9 of 02.07.2010),
the private joint-stock company «NP Consult» was appointed as an Auditor of the
Company.
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The PJSC «NP Consult» is a member of the Non-commercial Partnership «Institute
of Professional Auditors» (IPAR), a self-regulated auditors' organization, and the Society of Appraisers, as well as a Member of the International Union of Tariff Experts.
The meeting of the Company's Management Board held on 08 October 2007 (minute
No. 13 of 08.10.2007) adopted a resolution to consolidate the following Company's
branches: Northern Electric Networks (on the base of the branches Okyabrskiye Electric Networks and Dmitrovskiye Electric Networks), Southern Electric Networks (on
the base of the branches Podolskiye Electric Networks and Kashirskiye Electric Networks), Western Electric Networks (on the base of the branches Mozhayskiye Electric
Networks and Volokolamskiye Electric Networks), Eastern Electric Networks (on the
base of the branches Noginskiye Electric Networks, Kolomenskiye Electric Networks,
and Shaturskiye Electric Networks). According to the resolution of the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK» dated 02 November 2007 (Minute No. 51 of 07.11.2007),
branches of the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» were liquidated, on base
of which the Company's branches are to be enlarged. By the resolution of the Board
of Directors of the JSC «MOESK» dated 26 February 2008 (Minute No. 56 of 27 February 2008), amendments were entered into the Articles of Association, according to
which the structure of enlarged branches of the JSC «MOESK» was secured.
By virtue of the resolution by the extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders of the JSC «MOESK» (hereinafter referred to as the Company) dated 18.04.2008
(Minute No. 6 of 28.04.2008), the Company was reorganized by way of accession of
the Open Joint-Stock Company «Moscow City Electric Grid Company» thereto (hereinafter referred to as the JSC «MGEsK»). Pursuant to the transfer act approved by the
extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders of the JSC «MGEsK» dated 18.04.2008
(Minute No. 1 of 28.04.2008), from the moment an entry is made in the Uniform State
Register of Legal Entities about discontinuation of activities by the JSC «MGEsK», the
Company shall be the legal successor in respect of all their rights and obligations.
Pursuant to the resolution by the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK» dated
29 April 2008 (Minute No. 61 of 04.05.2008), a branch of the OJSC «Moscow United
Electric Grid Company»—Moscow Cable Networks—was created on the base of the
Company (JSC «MGEsK») being accessed to the JSC «MOESK».
In connection with changes that happened to the structure of the JSC «MOESK» in
2007-2008, the JSC «MOESK» has the following 7 branches as of 31.12.2010:
1. Southern Electric Networks
2. Eastern Electric Networks
3. Northern Electric Networks
4. Western Electric Networks
5. High-Voltage Cable Networks
6. Central Electric Networks
7. Moscow Cable Networks.
Pursuant to the resolutions by the Company's Board of Directors dated 07.12.2007
(Minute No. 53 of 07.12.2007) and by the Company's Management Board dated
07.12.2007 (Minute No. 19/1 of 07.12.2008 ), the JSC «MOESK» established the following three affiliated companies in December 2007 on the base of the property of
repairs and service branches: the JSC «MKSM», the JSC «RETO Plant», and the JSC
«MKER», with the 100% of participatory interest as a shareholder in the registered
capital of the each specified company.
On 29.12.2007, the Interregional Inspection of the Federal Tax Service No. 46 for
the city of Moscow has made an entry in the Uniform State Register of Legal Entities about incorporation of the Open Joint-Stock Company «Moskabelmontazh», the
Open Join-Stock Company «Plant for repairing electrotechnical equipment», and the
Open Join-Stock Company «Moskabelenergoremont».

APPENDIXES

An associated Open Join-Stock Company «Energocenter» was incorporated
on 02.05.2006 according to the Moscow Region Government Regulation dated
07.12.2005.
The shareholders are:
– JSC «Moscow Regional Investment Trust Company» – 50% of shares;
– JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» – 50% of shares.
In connection with the reorganization of the JSC «MOESK» by way of accession
of the JSC «MGEsK» thereto, the shareholders of the JSC «MOESK» adopted a resolution dated 18.04.2008 to increase the registered capital of the JSC «MOESK» through
placement of additional shares by way of conversion of the shares of the JSC «MGEsK»
thereinto upon the accession.
The shares of the JSC «MOESK» are traded on the organized securities markets of
the JSC «RTS» and the JSC «MICEX Stock Exchange» and included into the quotation
list «A» of the first level of the JSC «MICEX Stock Exchange» and the quotation list
«A» of the second level of the JSC «RTS».
As of 31.12.2010, capitalization of the JSC «MOESK» made up 79 343.85 mln. Rubles.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY INCLUDES:
Place of work

Position as of 31.12.2010

Chairman of the
Board of Directors

JSC «IDGC Holding»

General Director Chairman of
the Management Board

GURYANOV
DENIS
LVOVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

JSC «IDGC Holding»

First Deputy of the Head of
the Department for Corporate
Governance and Interaction
with Shareholders

GAVRILENKO
ANATOLY
ANATOLYEVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

JSC «Leader»
(Pension fund assets
management company)

General Director

BODUNKOV
ALEXEY
FELIKSOVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

Moscow Region
Government

Counselor of the Moscow
Region Governor

SKLYAROV
YEVGENY
VIKTOROVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

Moscow Government

Head of the Department for
Fuel and Energy Economy of
the Moscow Government

KERBER
SERGEY
MIKHAYLOVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

JSC «Leader»
(Pension fund assets
management company)

Head of the Directorate for
Investment Projects and
Programs – Managing Director

NUZHDOV
ALEXEY
VIKTOROVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

JSC «Leader»
(Pension fund assets
management company)
NPF «Gazfond»

Deputy General Director
for Security, Head of the
Administration for Corporate
Security
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Full name

Position in the Board
of Directors

Place of work

Position as of 31.12.2010

POPOV
ALEXANDER
ALBERTOVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

JSC «IDGC Holding»

Deputy General Director Chief
of Staff

PETUKHOV
KONSTANTIN
YURYEVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

JSC «IDGC Holding»

Director for Strategy and
Development

GRISHCHENKO
SERGEY
VALENTINOVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

«Gazprombank» (Open
Joint-Stock Company)

Deputy Head of the
Department for Direct
Investments

SKRIBOT
WOLFGANG

Member of the Board
of Directors

«Gazprombank» (Open
Joint-Stock Company)

Managing Director of the
Department for Direct
Investments

SHULGINOV
NIKOLAY
GRIGORYEVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

JSC «SO UPS»

First Deputy of the Chairman
of the Management Board

YURCHUK
SERGEY
YEVGENYEVICH

Member of the Board
of Directors

JSC «IDGC Holding»

Finance Director

THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF THE COMPANY INCLUDES:

Full name

Place of work

Position as of 31.12.2010

KONOVALOV
ANDREY PAVLOVICH

JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company»

General Director

BULANOVA
OLGA LEONIDOVNA

JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company»

Deputy General Director for
Economy and Finance,

KRUPIN
MIKHAIL LVOVICH

JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company»

Deputy General Director for
Technological Connections in
Moscow

KUZNETSOV
DAVID FELIKSOVICH

JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company»

Deputy General Director for
Special Projects

MARAKIN
YURI VADIMOVICH

JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company»

Deputy General Director for
Security

JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company»

Deputy General Director –
Technical Director

VOLKENSHTEYN
GRIGORY YAKOVLEVICH
CHEGODAYEV
ANATOLY VASILYEVICH
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THE CHECK-UP COMMITTEE INCLUDES:
Place of work

Position as of 31.12.2010

Chairman of the
Check-up Committee

JSC «IDGC Holding»

Head of the Department
for Internal Audit and Risk
Management

JSC «IDGC Holding»

Head of the Section for
Organization and Realization
of Audit under the
Department for Internal Audit

KORMUSHKINA
LYUDMILA
DMITRIEVNA

Member of the
Check-up Committee

SAUKH
MAXIM
MIKHAYLOVICH

Member of the
Check-up Committee

JSC «IDGC Holding»

Deputy of the Head of the
Department for Corporate
Governance and Interaction
with Shareholders

ARKHIPOV
VLADIMIR
NIKOLAYEVICH

Member of the
Check-up Committee

JSC «IDGC Holding»

First Deputy of the Head of
the Security Department

JSC «IDGC Holding»

Leading Expert of the
Section for Organization and
Realization of Audit under the
Department for Internal Audit

FILIPPOVA
IRINA
ALEXANDROVNA

2. ACCOUNTING
POLICY

Member of the
Check-up Committee

There was an accounting policy being in force in the Company within the reporting
period in respect of bookkeeping and taxation, approved by the order of the General
Director No. 823 of 30.12.2009.
The accounting policy in respect of bookkeeping and taxation is attached to the
explanatory note.
2.1. Regulatory background
The accounting statements of the Company have been created based on the rules
for accounting and financial statements in respect of bookkeeping and taxation
applicable in the Russian Federation, particularly:
Federal Law of 21.11.1996 No. 129-FZ «On accounting»;
Provision on accounting and financial statements in the Russian Federation,
approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 29.07.1998 No. 34n;
Provision on accounting No. 1/2008 «Accounting policy of an enterprise», approved
by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 06.10.2008 No. 106n;
Provision on accounting No. 2/2008 «Accounting of agreements (contracts) on
capital construction», approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia
dated 24.10.2008, No. 116n;
Provision on accounting No. 3/2006 «Accounting of assets and liabilities the value
of which is denominated in foreign currency», approved by the order of the Ministry
of Finance of Russia dated 27.11.2006 No. 154n;
Provision on accounting No. 4/99 «Financial statements of the organization»,
approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 06.07.1999 No.
43n;
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Provision on accounting No. 5/01 «Accounting of inventories», approved by the
order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 09.06.2001 No. 44n;
Provision on accounting No. 6/01 «Accounting of fixed assets», approved by the
order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 30.03.2001 No. 26n;
Provision on accounting No. 7/98 «Events after the reporting date», approved by
the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 25.11.1998 No. 56n;
Provision on accounting No. 8/01 «Conditional facts of financial and economic
activity», approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 28.11.2001
No. 96n;
Provision on accounting No. 9/99 «Income of an enterprise», approved by the
order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 06.05.1999 No. 32n;
Provision on accounting No. 10/99 «Expenditures of an enterprise», approved by
the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 06.05.1999 No. 33n;
Provision on accounting No. 11/2008 «Information about affiliated persons»,
approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 29.04.2008 No. 48n;
Provision on accounting No. 12/2010 «Information by segments», approved by the
order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 08.11.2010 No. 143n;
Provision on accounting No. 13/2000 «Accounting of the government aid»,
approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 16.10.2000 No. 92m;
Provision on accounting No. 14/2007 «Accounting of intangible assets», approved
by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 27.12.2007 No. 153n;
Provision on accounting No. 15/2008 «Accounting of loans and credits and
expenditures on their servicing», approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of
Russia dated 06.10.2008 No. 107n;
Provision on accounting No. 16/02 «Information about discontinued activity»,
approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 02.07.2002 No.66n;
Provision on accounting No. 17/02 «Accounting of expenditures on research,
development and design», approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia
dated 19.11.2002 No. 115n;
Provision on accounting No. 18/02 «Accounting of settlements on profit tax»,
approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 19.11.2002 No.
114n;
Provision on accounting No. 19/02 «Accounting of financial investments»,
approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 10.12.2002 No.
126n;
Provision on accounting No. 20/03 «Information about participation in joint
ventures», approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 24.11.2003
No. 105n;
Provision on accounting No. 21/2008 «Changing of estimated values», approved by
the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia dated 06.10.2008 No. 106n;
Provision on accounting No. 22/2010 «Rectification of errors in accounting and
financial statements», approved by the order of the Ministry of Finance of Russia
dated 28.06.2010 No. 63n;
other rules (standards) of accounting applicable in Russia.
Tax, Labor, Land and other Codes.
Assets and liabilities of the Company are evaluated in the statements against
actual expenditures on their acquisition.
2.2. Short-term and long-term assets
In statements, assets are charged to short-term ones if the term of their circulation
does not exceed 12 months from the reporting date, the rest are represented in the
statements as long-term ones.
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2.3. Intangible assets
The JSC «MOESK» does not have intangible assets.
2.4. Fixed assets
Fixed assets include land plots, buildings, machinery, equipment, vehicles and
other relevant items with the service life of more than 12 months.
Fixed asset items are entered into the accounting records based on actual
expenditures on acquisition, construction and manufacture. In statements, fixed
assets are specified with the remaining book value.
Fixed asset items were entered into the accounting records from the JSC
«Mosenergo» as of 01.04.2005 and from the JSC «MGEsK» as of 01.07.2008 with the
remaining book value which is the gross book value for the JSC «MOESK». Depreciation
was made in linear way in respect of types, from the remaining book value of fixed
assets and the remaining useful life.
There was no depreciation in respect of land plots and housing facilities.
Receipts and expenditures from retirement and write-off of fixed assets are
specified in the Profit and Loss Statement as part of other receipts and expenditures.
2.5. Inventories
Inventories are evaluated as the sum of actual expenditures on acquisition.
Evaluation of inventories upon their release into production or other retirement
was made in 2010 based on the average self-cost.

163

Expenditures incurred by the Company in the year under report, but nevertheless
relating to the next reporting periods, are specified as deferred expenditures and
subject to write-off for intended purpose evenly within the periods which they are
relating to.
2.7. Trade receivables
Trade receivables are determined based on the prices stipulated in the agreements
between the Company and purchasers/customers.
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2.6. Deferred expenditures

There were no reserves for future expenditures created by the JSC «MOESK» in
2010.
2.9. Recognition of receipts
Proceeds from sales of products and goods and rendering services were recognized
for the purposes of accounting as shipping of products (or rendering services) to the
purchasers and presenting settlement documents to them was advancing. Proceeds
are specified in the Profit and Loss Statement net of value added tax.
For the purpose of taxation, receipts are calculated by the JSC «MOESK» by accrual
method. According to this method, receipts are recognized in such reporting period
in which they actually took place, irrespective of actual receipt of cash assets.

MOESK

2.8. Reserves for future expenditures

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

The following is charged to the receipts from ordinary types of activity:
– receipts from transportation of electric power;
– receipts from rendering services on addition of capacities;
– receipts from property let on lease;
– receipts from performing installation and construction works.
2.10. Recognition of expenditures
Expenditures were entered into the accounting records by amounts calculated in
monetary terms, equal to the amount of monetary payment.
The following is charged to the expenditures on ordinary types of activity:
– expenditures on transportation of electric power;
– expenditures on rendering services on addition of capacities;
– expenditures on property let on lease;
– expenditures on performing installation and construction works.
2.11. Reserve capital
The JSC «MOESK» is creating a reserve capital meant for coverage of losses which,
while not defined exactly, can still take place in economic circularization. The
reserve capital is created on account of net profits of the JSC «MOESK».
2.12. Supplement to the accounting policy
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There were no supplements and amendments entered into the accounting policy
of the JSC «MOESK» in 2010.
3.1. Fixed assets (line 120 of the Accounting Balance Sheet)

3. DISCLOSURE
OF ESSENTIAL
INDICATORS IN
STATEMENTS

As of 31.12.2010, the following breakdown of fixed assets of the JSC «MOESK» is
given:
mln. Rubles

VALUE OF FIXED ASSETS BY THEIR TYPES:
No.

Gross book value

Deterioration

Remaining book
value

31.12.2010

as of 31.12.2010

31.12.2010

Name of fixed assets group

1

Buildings

13 366

1 416

11 950

2

Constructions and transfer devices

63 871

7 671

56 200

3

Machinery and equipment

125 387

44 781

80 606

4

Vehicles and other

967

273

694

5

Other fixed assets

213

87

126

203 804

54 228

149 576

Total

U
Useful
f l life
lif sett for
f new power equipment
i
t is
i 15 to
t 20 years, 10 to
t 15 years for
f aerial
i l
lines, and 30.5 years for cable lines.
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3.2. Construction in progress (line 130 of the Accounting Balance Sheet)
JSC «MOESK» constructs, reconstructs and modernizes building projects. Over
2010, works related to construction in progress were carried out to the amount
of 19 530 mln. Rubles, including 12 637 mln. Rubles on projects of technological
connection. Building projects for the amount of 28 694 mln. Rubles were initiated,
including 16,076 mln. Rubles on projects of technological connection. Fixed asset
items to the amount of 773 mln. Rubles were acquired.

STRUCTURE OF THE INDICATOR:
01.01.2010

31.12.2010

1

07 «Equipment to be installed»

3 086

3 473

2

08.03 «Construction of fixed asset items»

21 299

15 485

3

08.01 «Fixed asset items with finished construction»

0

0

4

08.09 «Design and survey work (D&S)»

532

634

5

08.11 «Reconstruction and modernization of fixed asset
items»

11 759

8 302

6

08.12 «Capital construction department»

Total

2
36 678

27 894

3.3.
3
3 Long-term
Long term and short-term
short term financial investments

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (LINE 140 OF THE ACCOUNTING BALANCE SHEET)
mln. Rubles

№

Description

01.01.10

31.12.10

1

Contribution to the registered capital of the JSC «Energocenter»

760

807

2

Contribution to the registered capital of the JSC «RETO»

662

662

3

Contribution to the registered capital of the JSC «MKSM»

1 793

1 793

4

Contribution to the registered capital of the JSC «MKER»

471

456

5

Acquisition of a bill of exchange of the JSC «LLC Energo-Finance»

0

468

3 686

4 186

Total
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Financial investments are specified based on the gross book value; their fair market
value was not defined.
An Ordinary Bill of Exchange was acquired from the LLC «Energo-Finance» in 2010,
with the date of maturity upon presenting, but not earlier than 12 December 2014.
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№

mln. Rubles

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (LINE 250 OF THE ACCOUNTING BALANCE SHEET)
mln. Rubles

№

1
Total

Description

Acquisition of the bill of exchange «Otkrytie»

01.01.10

31.12.10

2 969

0

2 969

0

The bill acquired from the LLC «Financial Corporation «Otkrytie» was repaid on 28
June 2010.
Reserve for impairment of financial investments of affiliated and associated
companies.
In connection with reduction in value of net assets of the affiliated JSC «MKER»,
and the associated JSC «Energocenter», the Company created a reserve for impairment
of financial investments in 2010, in the amount of 255 mln. Rubles, including for
impairment of:
JSC «MKER»—in the amount of 62 mln. Rubles,
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JSC «Energocenter»—in the amount of 193 mln. Rubles
Pursuant to the p. 38 PBU 19/02 «Accounting of financial investments», the reserve
for impairment of financial investments was created to the amount of difference
between the reported value and the estimated value of financial investments.
When defining the estimated value of financial investments, the Company used
the method of estimating net assets.
The reserve is created on account of financial results of the Company as part of
other expenditures.
Financial statements for 2010 show the value of the said financial statements
based on the reported value net of reserve for impairment.
3.4. Inventories (line 210 of the Accounting Balance Sheet)
Inventories are evaluated as the amount of actual expenditures for acquisition,
their amount as of the end of 2010 makes up 4 923.8 mln. Rubles or 8% of the
circulating assets of the JSC «MOESK».
3.5. Structure of deferred expenditures (line 216 of the Accounting Balance
Sheet)
The balance of deferred expenditures as of 31.12.2010 makes up 2 920 mln. Rubles.
Among the deferred expenditures the following are the most essential ones:
Services for technological connection accepted from JSC «MGESK» upon
reorganization by way of accession to the JSC «MOESK», to the amount of 2 240 mln.
Rubles.
3.6. Trade receivables (lines 230 and 240 of the Accounting Balance Sheet)

APPENDIXES

BREAKDOWN OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE BY THE LINE 230
mln. Rubles

№

Description

1

Purchasers and customers,

2

Bills receivable,

3

Advances made

4

Other debtors

Total

01.01.2010

31.12.2010

107

29 159

32 928

29 159

33 035

The line 240 of the balance sheet as of 31.12.2010 shows (as part of other accounts
receivable) the payment to the value added tax budget from the advances received
in respect of technological connection in the amount of 8 495 mln. Rubles; as of
01.01.2010, the placement of the currency is shown in the amount of 11,060 mln.
Rubles within the scope of the swap agreement which was repaid on 16 April 2010.
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Over 2010, there were no bills of exchange issued and placed, the debts against
presented bills of the Company in the amount of 6 067 567 thousand Rubles, as well
as against credits in the amount of 36 688 920 thousand Rubles were repaid.
The amount of debt repaid against credits includes debts repaid in respect of
revolving credit lines, as well as the amount of repayment under the credit agreement
with Barclays Bank PLC in Rubles at the exchange tariff of US Dollar as of the due
date.
The Appendix No. 1 shows summary data on borrowed funds of the JSC «MOESK».
3.8. Other long-term liabilities (line 520 of the Accounting Balance Sheet)
As of 31.12.2010, long-term liabilities of the JSC «MOESK» make up 10 672 mln.
Rubles. This amount consists of advances received under agreements of technological
connection of capacities.

MOESK

In 2010, for the purpose of refinancing recurring debts and replenishing circulating
assets, as well as financing investment activity, the Company attracted 33,943,570
thousand Rubles, including:
– in respect of non-revolving credit lines for refinancing debts—23,123,000
thousand Rubles.
– in respect of revolving credit lines for financing the Company's investment
activity—5 053 891 thousand Rubles, of which 2 662 778 thousand Rubles were
repaid in the reporting period.
– in respect of revolving credit lines for replenishing circulating assets—5,766,679
thousand Rubles, of which 5 021 679 thousand Rubles were repaid in the reporting
period.
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3.7. Loans and credits

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

3.9. Short-term payables (line 620 of the Accounting Balance Sheet) mln. Rubles
№

Short-term payables

01.01.2010

31.12.2010

10 997

12 270

1

Providers and contractors: (item 621 of the balance
sheet)

2

Payables in respect of labor remuneration (item 622 of
the balance sheet)

2

9

3

Payables to non-budgetary funds (item 623 of the balance sheet)

0

4

4

Payables to the budget (item 624 of the balance sheet)

262

602

5

Payables in respect of advances received under agreements of TC (item 627 of the balance sheet)

38 924

47 979

6

Other creditors, total (item 628 of the balance sheet)

14 097

1 759

64 282

62 623

Total

Overdue liabilities under agreements of technological connection as of 31.12.2010
31 12 2010
make up 11 143 mln. Rubles.
3.10. Registered capital of the Company (line 420 of the Accounting Balance
Sheet)
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AS OF 31.12.2010, THE REGISTERED CAPITAL OF THE JSC «MOESK» MAKES UP
24,353,545,787 RUBLES AND CONSISTS OF:

Total amount (items)

Nominal value
(Rubles)

Nominal value of shares
being in ownership of
the Company

Ordinary shares

48 707 091 574

0.5

24 353 545 787

Preferred shares

-

-

-

Description of shares

Total

48 707 091 574

24 353 545 787

– 50
50.9%
9% of the registered capital belongs to the
t JSC «H
«Holding
Holding MRSK»
– 45.0% to other legal entities
– 4.1% to individual persons.
3.11. Additional capital (line 420 of the Accounting Balance Sheet)
The additional capital of the JSC «MOESK» made up 63 720 537 thousand Rubles as
of 01.01.2010, and 63 670 978 thousand Rubles as of 31.12.2010. The reduction of
the additional capital took place through writing off the ratio of the value increase
upon writing off of basic production assets having the remaining book value.
The additional capital is generated on the account of the following sources:
– revaluation of basic production assets;
– merge of the own capital of the organizations being under reorganization upon
carrying out reorganization by way of accession.
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3.12. Government aid
There was no subvention received by the JSC «MOESK» from the federal budget.
3.13. Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
As of 31.12.2010, there were no assets and liabilities in foreign currencies.
3.14. Receipts and expenditures on ordinary types of activity

THE TABLE SHOWS DATA ON RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES
ON ORDINARY TYPES OF ACTIVITY FOR 2009 AND 2010
2009

2010

receipts from transportation of
electric power

74 904

91 239

receipts from rendering services
on addition of capacities

9 469

18 945

68

40

receipts from property let on
lease

Expenditures

2009

2010

expenditures on
transportation of electric
power

63 178

80 488

expenditures on rendering
services on addition of
capacities

5 587

4 466

expenditures on property let
on lease

37

8

374

63

62

188

169

receipts from performing
installation and construction
works

374

63

expenditures on
performing installation and
construction works

Receipts from technological
maintenance of power facilities

245

284

expenditures on
technological maintenance
of power facilities

Other

173

513

other

144

27

Total

85 233

110 634

Total

69 382

85 240

3.15. Other receipts and expenditures
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Receipts

mln. Rubles

mln. Rubles

Other receipts

2009

2010

11 152

5 581

32
11
4 194
17
88
5815
995

17
0
3 484
65
144
625
1 246

including:

From selling off inventories
Selling off fixed assets
From selling off other assets
Fines, penalties and forfeits
Receipts in return of losses
Exchange tariff differences
Other

MOESK

OTHER RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

mln. Rubles

Other expenditures

2009

2010

13 584

7 085

23

12

4 196

3 480

1

0

376

142

98

47

5 820

618

104

47

475

540

49

55

2

8

816

371

790

537

113

120

286

-32

0

341

435

799

including:
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On selling off inventories
On selling off other assets
Selling off fixed assets
Retirement of assets
Banking services
Exchange tariff differences
Technical Inventory Bureau(s) services
Bonuses, material aid
Social activities
Charitable contributions
Swap expenditures
Advisory, information and legal services
Expenditures in emergency situations
Creation of the reserve for impairment of financial investments
Creation of the reserve on bad debts
Other

3.16.
3
16 A
Accounting
ti off settlements
ttl
t on profit
fit tax
t (PBU 18/02)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (DTA) AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (DTL) ARE SHOWN EXPLICITLY IN THE BALANCE SHEET.
mln. Rubles
Conditional expenditure (conditional receipt) on (from) the profit tax

4 299

Permanent and temporary differences that occurred in the reporting period and
resulted in adjustment of the conditional expenditure (conditional receipt) on (from)
the profit tax for the purpose of defining current profit tax, including:

1 469

Depreciation of fixed assets (revaluation)

1 126

Non-sale expenditures (bonuses, material aid, etc.)

152

Interest on loans and credits (the above-level ones)

7

Advisory and information services

110

Losses of previous years

12

Other

62

Permanent and temporary differences that occurred in previous reporting periods yet
resulted in adjustment of the conditional expenditure (conditional receipt) on (from)
the profit tax of the reporting period
Sums of DTA and DTL written-off in connection with retirement of the asset or the
type of liability, including:
Depreciation of fixed assets
Depreciation bonus

4
-710
128
-1 040

Deferred revenues (fixed assets received free of charge)
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Other expenditures

36
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3.17. Earnings per share
2009

2010

Net earnings over the reporting period, mln. Rubles

6 319

15 722

Weighted average of the outstanding ordinary shares
over the reporting period, mln. shares

48 707

48 707

0.13

0.32

Basic earnings per share, Rubles

As of 31.12.2010, the list of parties related to the JSC «MOESK» includes:
– Members of the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK» (section 1 of the
Explanatory Note),
– Members of the Management Board of the JSC «MOESK» (section 1 of the
Explanatory Note),
– General Director of the JSC «MOESK»
– JSC «IDGC Holding» (holds 50.9% of ordinary shares of the JSC «MOESK»;
– JSC «Energocenter» (50% of shares belongs to the JSC «MOESK»);
– JSC «Moskabelsetmontazh» (100% of shares belongs to the JSC «MOESK»);
– JSC «Plant for repairing electrotechnical equipment» (100% of shares belongs
to the JSC «MOESK»);
– JSC «Moskabelenergoremont» (100% of shares belongs to the JSC «MOESK»);
– Persons included in the group of persons of the JSC «IDGC Holding».
The list of persons affiliated with the Company can be found on the web page
located at
http://www.moesk./ru/invest_news/Informatsiya%20podlezhashchaya%20
raskrytiy u/Spiski affilirovannykh_lits/index.php
The following business transactions were carried out by the Company in the period
under audit:
– with associated and affiliated companies, in connection with production activity
(acquisition of goods, works and services) to the amount of 1 453 mln. Rubles;
– with the controlling entity, in connection with rendering of services to the
Company for organization of functioning and development of UES to the amount of
506 mln. Rubles;
Remuneration of members of the Board of Directors and members of Committees of
the Company
Total amount of remuneration charged to members of the Board of Directors and
members of Committees of the Company in 2010 made up:
– 8 085 170 Rubles for participation in meetings of the Board of Directors.
– 1 604 698 Rubles for participation in Committees under the Board of Directors.
– 15 699 834 Rubles for the index of the Company's net profit according to the
data of annual financial statements for 2009 approved by the general meeting of the
Company's shareholders.
– 1 754 512 Rubles for market capitalization.
Since 01 September 2008 the amount and procedures of paying remunerations and
compensations to the members of the Board of Directors have been established by
the «Provision on remunerations and compensations to be paid to the members of
the Board of Directors» approved by the annual general meeting of the Company's
shareholders on 28 May 2008.
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5. RELATED
PARTIES:

There was no discontinuation of activities by the JSC «MOESK» in 2010.

MOESK

4. DISCONTINUED
ACTIVITY

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Remuneration of members of the Company's Check-up Committee
Total amount of remuneration charged to members of the Check-up Committee of
the Company in 2010 for auditing the Company's financial and economic activities
made up 1 077 037 Rubles following the results of the audit of the first six months of
2009 and the entire 2009.
Remuneration of top managers
Accruals to the top managing personnel of the company over 2010 made up
196,405 944 Rubles.
6. INFORMATION
BY SEGMENTS

Primary information—operational segments
Types of activities are the operational segment of the company. In 2010, the JSC
«MOESK» rendered services for transportation of electric power, on connection of
consumers, and other services. This information is disclosed in the section 3.14 of
the explanatory note.
Secondary information—geographical segments
The JSC «MOESK» is conducting a registered activity in Moscow and Moscow
Region, rendering services on transportation of electric power and connection of
consumers. The table shows financial and economic indicators for 2010 broken down
to segments:
Including

Description of indicator
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TOTAL 2010
MOSCOW

Moscow Region

Proceeds from selling goods, works and services

110 634 049

61 732 981

48 901 068

Including Proceeds from transportation of electric
power

91 238 959

49 075 787

42 163 172

Including Proceeds from technological
connection

18 944 958

12 285 208

6 659 750

450 132

371 986

78 146

Self-cost

85 240 359

43 633 183

41 607 176

Including on transportation of electric power

80 487 524

39 632 313

40 855 211

Including on technological connection

4 466 762

3 756 700

710 062

Including on other

286 073

244 170

41 903

Interest receivable

200 787

200 787

Interest payable

2 966 074

2 334 800

361 274

Other receipts

5 580 774

3 330 367

2 250 407

Other expenditures

7 085 520

3 691 149

3 394 371

Profit tax

5 772 132

4 166 381

1 605 751

Net profit

15 621 525

11 438 622

Including Proceeds from other goods, works and
services

4 182 903

APPENDIXES

9. INFORMATION
SUBJECT TO THE
FEDERAL LAW OF
23.11.09 № 261
«ON ENERGY
SAVING,
ENHANCING
ENERGY EFFICIENCY
AND AMENDING
PARTICULAR
LEGISLATIVE ACTS
OF THE RF»

As of 31.12.2009, the following energy resources had been used in the course of
performance of the Company's economic activity:
Unit of
measurement

Quantity

Amount,
thousand
Rubles

thousand
kWt/hour

9 363 701

13 775 231

for economic needs

thousand
kWt/hour

49 207

146 102

for compensation of losses in
networks

thousand
kWt/hour

9 314 494

13 629 129

Gcal

65 181

65 638

Description

Electric power: total

including:

Heat power
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As of 31.12.2009, the Company had carried out evaluation of conditional facts
8. CONDITIONAL
of the economic activity. It was determined in the course of analysis that as of the
FACTS OF THE
ECONOMIC ACTIVITY reporting date the Company has the following conditional facts:
As of 31.12.2010, the total amount of claims in unfinished legal proceedings where
the Company is a defendant makes up 2 295 mln. Rubles, of which the amount of
obligations additionally claimed is 640 mln. Rubles, including:
1) 89 mln. Rubles against legal claims related to the performance of
agreements on technological connection;
2) 259 mln. Rubles against legal claims related to the performance of
agreements on electric energy transportation;
3) 6 mln. Rubles against legal claims related to the performance of
construction contracts;
4) 287 mln. Rubles against other legal claims.
Financial statements of the Company do not specify any reserves for performance
of additional obligations which may occur as a result of a legal judgment not in favor
of the Company.

MOESK

7. EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING
DATE

As of 01.01.2011, the gross book value of the fixed assets of the JSC «MOESK» in
the city of Moscow is 124 518 036 thousand Rubles, in the Moscow Region 79,285,471
thousand Rubles.
Termination of the electric grid property lease and sublease agreement with the
OJSC «United Energy Company»
The JSC «MOESK» has received a written notice from the JSC «United Energy
Company» about cancellation of the power property lease and sublease agreement on
1 May 2011. As of 01.04.2011, the JSC «MOESK» had made permanent improvements
on 101 fixed asset items to the amount of 157 mln. Rubles. As of the moment of
making statements, it is impossible to estimate the predicted effect of this fact on
the production and commercial operations of the Company.
Payments to the workers of the company
In connection with adherence to all indicators specified in the Provision on bonus
payments to the workers of the Company in the 1 quarter of 2011, it is planned to
pay bonuses following the results of 2010 in the amount of 312 603.2 thousand
Rubles, and to assess contributions to non-budgetary funds in the amount of 106,285
thousand Rubles respectively.
Dividends
The amount of an annual dividend following the results of 2010 falling within
one share of the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» will be approved by the
General Meeting of the Company's shareholders.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

10. VALUES
REFLECTED IN OFF
BALANCE SHEET
ACCOUNTS

1) The JSC «MOESK» takes on lease fixed assets which include transport and
power equipment:
a) The value of leased fixed assets is 38 051 mln. Rubles, including
Counterparty
mln. Rubles
– «United Energy Company»
26 735
Please see p. 7 «Events after the reporting date» about this property.
– «Mosenergo»
600
– «Moscow Property Department»
164
– other
10 552
The others show the value of the land on lease in the amount of 9 901 mln. Rubles.
b) The value of fixed assets under leasing is 38 661 mln. Rubles, including
Counterparty
mln. Rubles
– «Business-Alliance»
26 850
– «Gazprombank Leasing»
8 056
– «RB Leasing»
3 755
2) The JSC «MOESK» has received an obligation to stand surety for third
parties (workers of the JSC «MOESK») pursuant to the separation balance
sheet from the JSC «Mosenergo», which makes up 2.9 mln. Rubles as of
31.12.2010. The management of the JSC «MOESK» does not expect occurrence
of any substantial obligations in respect of this surety.
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3) The Company has leased land plots locating under electric network
facilities, in quantity 3 452 pieces and square of 503.6 ha.

11. ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL
RATIOS

Financial standing of the Company by indices of liquidity, financial stability,
profitability, and business activity is specified in the following way:

Index

Standards

31.12.2009

31.12.2010

Absolute liquidity ratio

0.15 – 0.5

0.1

0.02

Speedy liquidity ratio

0.3 – 0.7

0.5

0.4

Current liquidity ratio

2

0.5

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

Output (sales) profitability %

>0

18.60

22.95

Return on equity %

>0

5.17

11.32

Return of assets %

>0

2.52

6.37

Receivables trend (increment tariff)

<0

0.03

-0.09

Payables trend (increment tariff)

<0

0.20

-0.03

Balance between receivables and payables

>1

0.97

0.91

Proprietary funds autonomy ratio

APPENDIXES

Assessment of the Company's liquidity:
The absolute liquidity ratio describes the capability of a company to repay shortterm liabilities on the account of cash assets and short-term financial investments,
and makes up 0.02 as of 31.12.2010.
The speedy liquidity ratio* reflects the ratio of the most liquid part of circulating
assets to short-term liabilities and makes up 0.4 as of 31.12.2010.
The current liquidity ratio* shows sufficiency of the Company's assets which can
be used for repaying short-term liabilities, the value of this ratio as of 31.12.2010
makes up 0.4.
Assessment of the Company's financial stability:
The proprietary funds autonomy ratio* describes the ownership ratio of owners
of an enterprise in the total volume of assets. The higher the value of the ratio, the
more the enterprise is financially stable and the less it is dependent on third party
credits. The value of the ratio as of 31.12.2010 makes up 0.56.
Assessment of business profitability:

– the index of receivables trend has a negative value (-0.09), which is a positive
attribute showing a reduction of debt to the Company starting from the beginning
of 2010.
– the index of payables trend was (– 0.03), which is indicative of a reduction in
short-term payables.
The balance between receivables and payables as of 31.12.2010 was 0.91.
If long-term payables against advances received for technological connection and
transferred to cooperating enterprises within the framework of the «Single Window»
in the amount of 23 528 mln. Rubles were excluded from calculation, the analysis of
financial ratios as of 31.12.2010 would be the following:
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Assessment of business activity:
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In 2010, 22.95% of sales profitability* is reached, i.e. a gross profit in the amount
of 22 Rubles 95 kopecks is received per 1 Ruble of proceeds.
The index of return on equity* describes the efficiency of capital consumption and
makes up 1.32% following the results of 2010.
The index of return on assets* describes the efficiency of Company's assets usage
with the purpose of profit earning and makes up 6.37% following the results of 2010.
As a whole, following the results of 2010 the business of the Company is profitable.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Financial standing of the Company by indices of liquidity, financial stability,
profitability, and business activity is specified in the following way:

Index

Standards

31.12.2009

31.12.2010

Absolute liquidity ratio

0.15 – 0.5

0.1

0.1

Speedy liquidity ratio

0.3 – 0.7

0.8

1.3

Current liquidity ratio

2

0.9

1.5

0.5

0.5

0.6

Output (sales) profitability %

>0

18.60

22.95

Return on equity %

>0

5.17

11.32

Return of assets %

>0

2.52

6.37

Receivables trend (increment tariff)

<0

0.03

-0.09

Payables trend (increment tariff)

<0

0.20

-0.03

Balance between receivables and payables

>1

0.97

0.91

Proprietary funds autonomy ratio
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Assessment of the Company's liquidity:
The absolute liquidity ratio describes the capability of a company to repay shortterm liabilities on the account of cash assets and short-term financial investments,
and makes up 0.01 as of 31.12.2010.
The speedy liquidity ratio* reflects the ratio of the most liquid part of circulating
assets to short-term liabilities and makes up 1.3 as of 31.12.2010.
The current liquidity ratio* shows sufficiency of the Company's assets which can
be used for repaying short-term liabilities, the value of this ratio as of 31.12.2010
makes up 1.5.
Assessment of the Company's financial stability:
The proprietary funds autonomy ratio* describes the ownership ratio of owners
of an enterprise in the total volume of assets. The higher the value of the ratio, the
more the enterprise is financially stable and the less it is dependent on third party
credits. The value of the ratio as of 31.12.2010 makes up 0.6.
Assessment of business profitability:
In 2010, 22.95% of sales profitability* is reached, i.e. a gross profit in the amount
of 22 Rubles 95 kopecks is received per 1 Ruble of proceeds.
The index of return on equity* describes the efficiency of capital consumption and
makes up 11.32% following the results of 2010.
The index of return on assets* describes the efficiency of Company's assets usage
with the purpose of profit earning and makes up 6.37% following the results of 2010.

APPENDIXES

As a whole, following the results of 2010 the business of the Company is
profitable.
The indices of business activity assessment do not change in case of any changes
in indices of receivables and payables.
*Calculations of the financial ratios of the speedy and current liquidity, the ratio
of proprietary funds autonomy, the ratio of profitability indices were made using
methods of calculation subject to the Order of the Federal Service for Financial Markets
dated 10 October 2006 No. 06-117/pz-n «On establishing the Provision on disclosure
of information by issuers of equity securities»

Chief Accountant of the JSC «MOESK»

L.A. Sklyarova
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A.P. Konovalov
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General Director of the JSC «MOESK»
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APPENDIX 2
AUDITOR’S REPORT

NP CONSULT
Consulting and Auditing Group of Companies
115191, Moscow,
Dukhovskoy Pereulok 14
Phone/Fax. (495) 954-4408
(495) 952-1041
E-mail: npg@npg.ru
www.npg.ru

AUDITOR’S REPORT No. 1-006-03-11
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To: Shareholders of the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»

Information about the audited person
Name Open Joint-Stock Company «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»
State registration number
1057746555811
Location
142100, Moscow region, Podolsk, Ordzhonikidze St. 27.

Information about the auditor
Name

Private Joint-Stock Company «NP Consult»

State registration number

1027700283566

Location

115191, Moscow, Dukhovskoy Pereulok 14

Name of the self-regulated
organization of auditors, of which the
auditor is a member

Non-commercial Partnership «Institute of
Professional Auditors» (IPAR)

Number of the self-regulated
organization of auditors in the register
of auditors and auditing organizations

10302000041

Independent Firm «NP Consult», member of
Moor Stevens International Ltd.,
Member Companies in Major Cities Worldwide;
Associated with AKG MOOR STEVENS RUS

APPENDIXES

We have conducted an audit of the attached financial statements of the Open Joint-Stock
Company «Moscow United Electric Grid Company», consisting of the accounting balance sheet
as of 31 December 2010, profit and loss statement, statement on changes in equity and cash
flow statement for the period under audit, as well as other appendixes to the accounting
balance sheet, profit and loss statement and explanatory note.

Responsibility of the audited person for financial statements
The Company's management is responsible for preparation and reliability of the said
financial statements in accordance with rules for preparation of financial statements in the
Russian Federation, and for the internal control system necessary for preparation of financial
statements that should not contain material distortions caused by any unfair actions or
errors.

Responsibility of the auditor
Our responsibility is to express an opinion concerning reliability of financial statements
based on the audit conducted by us. We have conducted this audit in compliance with federal
auditing standards. These standards require that ethical practices be used and the audit be
planned and conducted in such a way to ensure that a sufficient confidence is gained that
financial statements contain no material distortions.

Be believe that the auditing evidence received in the course of the audit gives reasonable
grounds to express an opinion about reliability of the financial statements.

Opinion
To our opinion, the financial statements are, in all substantial relations, a reliable reflection
of the financial standing of the Open Joint-Stock Company «Moscow United Electric Grid
Company» as of 31 December 2010, the results of its financial and economic activity and the
cash flow over 2010 according to the rules as for preparation of financial statements in the
Russian Federation.
Deputy General Director
of the Private Joint-Stock Company
«NP Consult»
(Qualification certificate No. K012971 in
general auditing for an indefinite period)
01 March 2011

V.Y. Skobarev
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The audit also included an assessment of propriety of the applied accounting policy and
reasonableness of estimated figures received by the management of the audited person, as
well an assessment of presentation of the financial statements as a whole.
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The audit included carrying out of auditing procedures aimed at receiving of auditing
evidence to prove the indices in financial statements and the information disclosure in them.
Choice of auditing procedures is subject to our own reasoning which is based on assessment of
risk of material distortions caused by any unfair actions or errors. In the course of assessment
of this risk, we have reviewed the system of internal control ensuring the preparation and
reliability of financial statements, with the purpose of choosing relevant auditing procedures,
but not with the aim to express an opinion about the efficiency of the internal control system.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

APPENDIX 3.
CHECK-UP COMMITTEE’S REPORT
Following the results of auditing the financial
and economic activity of the JSC «MOESK»
15 April 2011

Moscow

INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY
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Full name

Open Joint-Stock Company «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»

Legal address

142100, Moscow region, Podolsk, Ordzhonikidze St. 27.

Postal address

115114, Moscow, 2-nd Paveletsky Proyezd 3 bldg. 2

Contact details

www.moesk.ru ; phones: (495) 982-35-74

State registration (OGRN,
date)

No. 1057746555811 dated 01.04.2005

TPIN

5036065113

Branches and standalone
subdivisions with a separate
balance

7 branches:
Southern Electric Networks; Eastern Electric Networks; Northern
Electric Networks; Western Electric Networks; High-Voltage Cable
Networks; Central Electric Networks; Moscow Cable Networks

Executive body

Konovalov A.P., General Director

Chief accountant

Sklyarova L.A.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE CHECK-UP COMMITTEE’S STRUCTURE
Chairman of the Check-up Committee

Alimuradova I.A.

Secretary of the Check-up Committee

Kormushkina L.D.

Members of the Check-up Committee

Saukh M.M.
Arkhipov V.N.
Filippova I.A.

APPENDIXES

INFORMATION ABOUT THE AUDITOR
Full name of the organization

Private Joint-Stock Company «NP Consult»

Legal address (location)

115191, Moscow, Dukhovskoy Pereulok 14

Postal address

115191, Moscow, Dukhovskoy Pereulok 14

State registration (OGRN, date)

1027700283566

Membership in self-regulated organizations, date of join- №103
ing, name of the self-regulated auditors’ union
Minute of the annual meeting of shareholders (which ap-

№9 dated 02.07.2010

pointed the auditor for confirmation of financial statements)

Persons who signed the auditor’s report

V.Y. Skobarev, Deputy General Director, certificate No. K012971

I. ANALYTICAL PART
The audit was conducted pursuant to the:
Federal Law «On joint-stock companies»;
Articles of Association of the Company;
Provision on the Check-up Committee;
Resolution of the annual meeting of shareholders on election of the Check-up Committee (minute No.
9 dated 02.07.2010);
Resolution of the Check-up Committee on approval of this Report (minute No. 5 dated 15.04.2011);
other regulatory documents and resolutions of the Company's authorized bodies.
Purpose of the audit: to confirm reliability of the financial statements and the annual report of the JSC
«MOESK» (hereinafter referred to as the Company) for 2010, hereinafter referred to as Statements. The reliability is in all substantial relations understood as the level of accuracy of the data in Statements, which
allows users of these statements to draw proper conclusions about results of the business activity, financial
and property standing of the Company and make reasonable decisions based on these conclusions.
Subject: financial statements, annual report, conformity of the Company's financial and economic activity
with the applicable legislation and internal local regulatory acts.
This Report is an official document being open for publication and intended for shareholders, investors and
other related parties.
The audit was conducted by us in compliance with:
– The Federal Law of 21.11.1996 No. 129-FZ «On accounting»
– The Order of the Ministry of Finance of RF dated 29.07.1998 No. 34n «On approval of the Provision on
accounting and financial statements in the Russian Federation»;
– The Order of the Ministry of Finance of RF dated 22 June 2003 No. 67n «On types of financial statements of organizations»;
– Other legislative and internal local acts.
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Not modified
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Auditor’s report

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Observing laws of the Russian Federation in the course of making financial and economic transactions is
the responsibility of the executive body of the Company.
The Audit was planned and conducted by us in such a way to gain sufficient confidence that the annual
report and financial statements for 2009 (hereinafter jointly referred to as Statements) contain no material
distortions.
The Audit was planned on a sample basis and included examination based on testing evidence which
proves meaning of the information about the Company's financial and economic activity and its disclosure
in Statements, as well as evaluation of principles and methods of accounting, rules for preparation of Statements, definition of essential assessed values.
During the Audit, we reviewed observation of the Russian Federation legislation by the Company. We
checked conformity of a number of financial and economic transactions carried out by the Company to the
legislation exclusively for the purpose to gain reasonable and sufficient confidence that the Statements
contain no material distortions.
In the course of the Audit, we defined a materiality level (the level of cumulative tolerated distortion
error of indices in statements). Under materiality we understand the ability of information disclosed in the
annual statements and annual report to influence on making decisions by users of these Statements. The
level of the tolerated error is a criterion for us to confirm the reliability of the Statements.
The materiality level defined by us is 5 000 mln. Rubles.

182

Audited period:
We conducted the Audit of Statements attached to the Report for:
1) the reporting period:
from 01.01.2010 through 31.12.2010 in respect of financial and economic activity throughout the year
of 2010.
2) Events after the reporting date:
from 01.01.2011 through 15.04.2011
We dated the Report with the date of the last Audit day.
The Statements are prepared in compliance with legislative and regulatory acts of the Russian Federation
(RSBU) and internal local regulatory acts of the Company.

STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY’S STATEMENTS CONFIRMED BY THE CHECK-UP COMMITTEE:

No.

Form No. Reporting form title

Date of
signing by the
management

Number of
pages in the
document

1.

No. 1

Accounting balance sheet (consolidated for all
standalone subdivisions of the Company)

21.02.2011

2

2.

No. 2

Profit and loss statement (consolidated for all
standalone subdivisions of the Company)

21.02.2011

2

3.

No. 3

Statement on changes in equity

21.02.2011

3

4.

No. 4

Cash flow statement

21.02.2011

1

5.

No. 5

Appendix to the accounting balance sheet

21.02.2011

6

APPENDIXES

No.

Form No. Reporting form title

6.

Explanatory note (consolidated for all standalone
subdivisions of the Company)

7.

-

Auditor's report on financial statements of the JSC
«MOESK» for 2010

8.

-

Annual report (consolidated for all standalone subdivisions of the Company, with reflection of information
about affiliated and associated companies)

Date of
signing by the
management

Number of
pages in the
document

21.02.11

22

3
204

We believe that the conducted Audit gives sufficient grounds to express our opinion on the reliability of
the Company's Statements.

II. FINAL PART

There is no dissenting opinion expressed by any Members of the Check-up Committee, which would differ
from the opinion set out in the final part of the Report.
Approved by the Check-up Committee's Minute No. 5 dated 15.04.2011.

Chairman of the Check-up Committee

Alimuradova I.A.
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DISSENTING OPINION
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To our opinion, the Statements of the Company for 2010, attached to this Report are, in all substantial
relations, a reliable reflection of the financial standing and the results of financial and economic activities
of the Company within the period from 01.01.2010 through 31.12.2010 inclusively. The Statements were
prepared in compliance with requirements of the Russian Federation legislation with regard to preparation
of financial statements, conducting audits and issuing auditor's reports, as well as in compliance with
internal local acts with regard to creation of the annual report of the Company.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

APPENDIX 4.
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2010 PREPARED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

JSC «MOESK»
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010
CONTENTS
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Independent Auditors’ Report
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes.

December 31, 2010
Thousands roubles

December 31, 2009
(recounted)
Thousands roubles

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

12

190 225 639

181 703 490

Intangible assets

13

85 535

95 514

Long-term investments

14

624 800

–

Other non-current assets

15

13 680 640

21 526 771

204 616 614

203 325 775

1 674 664

2 199 534

631 841

692 508

Total non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Reserves

17

Income tax return
Trade and other receivables

18

23 973 028

15 117 615

Short– term investments

14

1 187

2 500 000

Cash and cash equivalents

19

2 931 237

5 094 383

Total current assets

29 211 957

25 604 040

Total assets

233 828 571

228 929 815

APPENDIXES

Notes.

December 31, 2010
Thousands roubles

December 31, 2009
(recounted)
Thousands roubles

SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders interests
Share capital

20

24 353 546

24 353 546

Additional capital

18 580 888

18 580 888

Unappropriated profits

62 746 579

46 025 791

105 681 013

88 960 225

389 661

396 988

106 070 674

89 357 213

Total shareholders’ interests owned
by JSC «MOESK» shareholders
Uncontrollable retained interest
Total shareholders’ interests

Long-term liabilities
29 472 416

20 304 497

Employee benefit

23

1 649 275

1 289 372

deferred tax liabilities

16

6 943 138

7 588 366

Trade and other payables

25

10 893 132

36 000 135

48 957 961

65 182 370

Total long-term liabilities

Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings

22

Income tax payable

10 631 321

30 295 127

–

4 033

Other taxes payable

26

763 382

287 356

Trade and other payables

25

66 764 149

43 696 070

Provisions

24

641 084

107 646

Total current liabilities

78 799 936

74 390 232

Total equity and liabilities

233 828 571

228 929 815

These consolidated financial statements was approved by the management on the May 4, 2011 and signed
on its behalf by the following:

Deputy Director General
on Economics and Finance

O.L Bulanova

Head of Department
on Economics and Finance

V.V. Bragova
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Notes

Year 2010
Thousands roubles

Year 2009
Thousands roubles

Revenues

6

111 731 578

85 830 810

Operating expenses

7

(89 358 961)

(66 438 994)

Other operating expenses

9

1 454 203

1 093 945

23 826 820

20 485 761

Operating activity results
Financial income

10

253 957

348 400

Financial expenses

10

(2 490 394)

(6 849 681)

21 590 383

13 984 480

(4 426 923)

(3 476 221)

Profit for the year

17 163 460

10 751 435

Total profit for the year

17 163 460

10 508 259

17 170 787

10 755 676

(7 327)

(247 417)

RUB 0.3525

RUB 0.2208

Pretax profit
Income tax

11

Total profit owing by:
JSC «MOESK» shareholders
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Uncontrollable retained interest owners

Base and diluted profit for a common share
(roubles)

21

Thousands roubles

Share capital owned by the Group holders

Share capital

Share assets

Additional
capital

Undistributed
profit

Total

Uncontrollable
retained
interest

Total share
capital

Balance as
of January
1, 2009

24 353 546

(8 365)

18 580 888

35 272 726

78 198 795

644 405

78 843 200

Profit for the
year

–

–

–

10 755 676

10 755 676

(247 417)

10 508 259

Total profit for
the year

–

–

–

10 755 676

10 755 676

(247 417)

10 508 259

Shareholders
assets sale
(described in
20 (b))

–

8 365

–

(2 610)

5 755

–

5 755

Balance as
of December 24 353 546
31, 2009

–

18 580 888

46 025 792

88 960 226

396 988

89 357 214

Balance as
of January
1, 2010

24 353 546

–

18 580 888

46 025 792

88 960 226

396 988

89 357 214

Profit for the
year

–

–

–

17 170 787

17 170 787

(7 327)

17 163 460

APPENDIXES

Total
comprehensive
income for the
year

–

–

–

17 170 787

17 170 787

(7 327)

17 163 460

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends to
shareholders

–

–

–

(450 000)

(450 000)

–

(450 000)

Total
contributions
by and
distributions
to owners

–

–

–

(450 000)

(450 000)

–

(450 000)

–

18 580 888

389 661

106 070 674

Balance at
31 December 24 353 546
2010

62 746 579 105 681 013

2010
’000 RUB

2009
(restated)
’000 RUB

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

21 590 383

13 984 480

13 339 559

10 236 437

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

4 153

(549 244)

Provisions for legal claims

34 574

492 295

Finance income

533 437

(336 299)

Finance costs

(253 957)

(348 400)

Allowance for impairment of accounts receivable

2 490 394

6 849 681

Allowance for impairment of non-current assets

268 967

98 790

Other non-cash items

4 993

81 826

Other non-cash items

(548 294)

(22 158)

37 464 209

30 487 408

535 023

671 874

(2 027 906)

(2 257 769)

791 529

179 448

(1 773 222)

6 952 461

476 026

189 714

35 465 658

36 223 137
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Cash from operating activities before changes
in working capital and provisions
Change in inventories
Change in trade and other receivables, non-current advances given for
connection services
Change in retirement benefit obligations and related assets
Change in trade and other payables
Change in taxes payable, other than income tax

Cash flows from operations before income taxes and interest paid

MOESK

Depreciation and amortisation
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Adjustments for:
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Income taxes paid

(5 015 516)

(4 095 617)

30 450 142

32 127 520

1 417

182 055

452 407

-

(18 925 850)

(17 261 829)

Acquisition of intangible assets

(49 553)

(17 837)

Acquisition of short-term investments

(578 594)

-

60 587

120 365

(19 039 586)

(16 977 246)

2010
’000 RUB

2009
(restated)
’000 RUB

Proceeds from borrowings

33 839 085

8 700 000

Repayment of borrowings

(37 561 065)

(13 355 763)

Payment of finance lease liabilities

(5 818 938)

(7 068 366)

(450 000)

–

–

5 755

(3 590 286)

(4 490 073)

Net cash used in financing activities

(13 581 204)

(16 208 447)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(2 170 648)

(1 058 173)

5 094 383

6 152 592

7 502

(36)

2 931 237

5 094 383

Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of short-term investments
Acquisition of property plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
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Dividends paid
Proceeds from treasury shares
Interest paid

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of exchange tariff fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 19)

APPENDIXES

1. BACKGROUND
Open Joint-Stock Company Moskovskaya Ob’edinennaya Electrosetevaya
Kompaniya (JSC «MOESK» or the «Company») was established on 1 April 2005 by
transference of assets and activities related to the electricity transmission of OJSC
Mosenergo, a subsidiary of RAO UES of Russia, within the framework of Russian
electricity sector restructuring in accordance with Resolution No. 1 adopted by
shareholders of OJSC Mosenergo on 29 June 2004.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements include the following subsidiaries:
- OJSC Moskabel’set’montaj (MKSM);
- OJSC Moskabel’energoremont (MKER);
- OJSC Repair of Electrical and Technical Equipment Plant (RETEP);
- OJSC Energocentr.
As at 31 December 2010 the Russian Federation owned 52.7% of JSC «IDGC
Holding», which in turn owned 50.9% of JSC «MOESK».
The Company’s registered office is at 27, Ordgonikidze street, Podol’sk, Moscow
Region, 142100, Russian Federation. The actual address is 3/2, 2nd Paveletskiy proezd,
Moscow, 115114, Russian Federation.
The Group’s principal activity is electricity transmission by means of electrical
networks located in Moscow and the Moscow Region. The Group also provides
connection services as part of its core operations.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(А)
STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards («IFRS»).

(B) BASIS OF
PREPARATION
AND ASSESSMENT
GUIDELINES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis
except that financial investments classified as available-for-sale are stated at fair
value.
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(B)
The Group’s operations are located in the Russian Federation. Consequently, the
RUSSIAN BUSINESS Group is exposed to the economic and financial markets of the Russian Federation
ENVIRONMENT
which display characteristics of an emerging market. The legal, tax and regulatory
frameworks continue development, but are subject to varying interpretations and
frequent changes which together with other legal and fiscal impediments contribute
to the challenges faced by entities operating in the Russian Federation. The
consolidated financial statements reflect management’s assessment of the impact of
the Russian business environment on the operations and the financial position of the
Group. The future business environment may differ from management’s assessment.

MOESK

(А)
ORGANISATION AND
OPERATIONS

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

(C)
FUNCTIONAL AND
PRESENTATION
CURRENCY

The national currency of the Russian Federation is the Russian Rouble («RUB»),
which is the Company’s functional currency and the currency in which these
consolidated financial statements are presented. All financial information presented
in RUB has been rounded to the nearest thousand and its subsidiaries.

(D)
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
USE OF JUDGMENTS, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
ESTIMATES AND
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
ASSUMPTIONS
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected.
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements is included in the following notes:
•
Note 18 – Allowance for trade and other receivables;
•
Note 23 – Employee benefits;
•
Note 24 – Provisions;
•
Note 27 – Financial risk management;
•
Note 30 – Contingencies.
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(E)
CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

i) Accounting for business combinations
From 1 January 2010 the Group has applied IFRS 3 Business Combinations (2008)
in accounting for business combinations. The change in accounting policy has been
applied prospectively and has had no material impact on earnings per share.
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the
acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into
consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.
Acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010
For acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010, the Group measures goodwill at the
acquisition date as:
•
the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
•
the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus,
if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing
equity interest in the acquiree; less
•
the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed.

APPENDIXES

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement
of pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.
Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt
or equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination,
are expensed as incurred.
Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and
settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss.

iii) Accounting for leases of land
The amendment to IAS 17 Leases regarding the leases of land became effective
from 1 January 2010. The amendment removed the earlier exemption which allowed
leases of land to be classified as operating leases regardless of the length of the lease
term. The amended guidance requires all existing leases of land to be reassessed and
reclassified if necessary as finance leases if the finance lease classification criteria
are met. At 1 January 2010, the Group reassessed all existing land lease contracts and
as a result it was assessed that existing land lease contracts do not qualify as finance
lease contracts and therefore, the classification was not changed (see note 28).
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Under the new accounting policy, acquisitions of non-controlling interests are
accounted for as transactions with owners in their capacity as owners and therefore
no goodwill is recognised as a result of such transactions. The adjustments to noncontrolling interests are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the
subsidiary.
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ii) Accounting for acquisitions of non-controlling interests
From 1 January 2010 the Group has applied IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements (2008) in accounting for acquisitions of non-controlling
interests. The change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively and has
had no impact on earnings per share.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

iv) Related party disclosures
The management has early adopted the revised IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
which introduces an exemption from the basic disclosure requirements in relation
to related party disclosures and outstanding balances, including commitments, for
government-related entities.

v) VAT on advances given and received
The Group has changed its accounting policy regarding VAT on advances given and
received from net to gross presentation in order to harmonise its accounting policy
with the parent company, JSC «IDGC Holding». The effect of this change in accounting
policy on total assets and liabilities amounted to RUB 10 114 687 thousand.

vi) Reclassification of comparative information
During the year the Group reclassified advances for capital expenditure in the
amount of RUB 6 590 061 thousand recognised as other non-current assets as at 31
December 2009 (31 December 2008: RUB 11 868 184 thousand) into property, plant
and equipment in the amount of RUB 4 592 266 thousand (31 December 2008: RUB
9 977 674 thousand) and into trade and other receivables in the amount of RUB 1
997 795 thousand (31 December 2008: RUB 1 890 510 thousand) to conform with the
current period’s presentation.
During the year the Group reclassified amounts of provision for unused vacation
in the amount of RUB 326 725 thousand as at 31 December 2009 from provisions to
current trade and other payables to conform with the current period’s presentation.
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Reclassifications of comparative information were made in order to harmonise
presentation with the parent company, JSC «IDGC Holding».
The effect of these changes in accounting policy and reclassification of comparative
information is summarised below:

Consolidated
statement
As previously As restated
of financial
reported
position as at 31
December 2009
thousand
thousand
roubles
roubles

Effect of changes
Total effect of
VAT on
Other nonchanges
advances given current
assets
and received

Provision
for unused
vacation

thousand
roubles

thousand
roubles

thousand
roubles

thousand
roubles

Property, plant and
equipment

177 111 224

181 703 490

4 592 266

–

4 592 266

–

Other non-current
assets

22 350 779

21 526 771

(824 008)

5 766 053

(6 590 061)

–

Trade and other
receivables

8 771 186

15 117 615

6 346 429

4 348 634

1 997 795

–

10 114 687

10 114 687

–

–

Total assets

218 815 128 228 929 815

APPENDIXES

Long-term trade and
other payables

30 234 082

36 000 135

5 766 053

5 766 053

–

–

Trade and other
payables

39 020 711

43 696 070

4 675 359

4 348 634

–

326 725

434 371

107 646

(326 725)

–

–

(326 725)

10 114 687

10 114 687

–

–

Provisions

Total equity and 218 815 128 228 929 815
liabilities

Management considers that the reclassifications do not result in a material change to the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. Hence, no opening statement of financial position as at 1
January 2009 is presented.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities, except as explained
in Note 2 (e), which addresses changes in accounting policies.
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation (see
Note 2 (e)(v),(vi)).

(ii) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that currently are exercisable are taken into account. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies
adopted by the Group. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a
subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the
non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.
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i) Business combinations
The Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to accounting for
business combinations. See Note 2(e) for further details.

MOESK

(A)
BASIS OF
CONSOLIDATION

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

iii) Acquisitions from entities under common control
Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are
under the control of the shareholder that controls the Group are accounted for as
if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established; for this
purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at
the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group’s controlling shareholder’s
consolidated financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired
entities are added to the same components within Group equity except that any
share capital of the acquired entities is recognised as part of share premium. Any
cash paid for the acquisition is recognised directly in equity.
iv) Loss of control
Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related
to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in
profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such
interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is
accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial
asset depending on the level of influence retained.
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v) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses
arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity
accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(B)
i) Foreign currency transactions
FOREIGN CURRENCY
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional
currencies of Group entities at exchange tariffs at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange tariff at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange
tariff at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences
arising in retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for differences arising
on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments which are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

APPENDIXES

i) Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and
debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and
borrowings, and trade and other payables.
The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that
they are originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has the following non-derivative financial assets: held-to-maturity
financial investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and
cash and cash equivalents.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are a category of financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
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Held-to-maturity investments
If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity,
then they are classified as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses.

MOESK

(С)
FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale and that are not classified in any of the previous
categories. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured
at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and presented within equity in the fair value reserve.
When an investment is derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss in other
comprehensive income is transferred to profit or loss.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and highly liquid
investments with maturities at initial recognition of three months or less.

ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities
The Group initially recognises debt securities issued on the date that they are
originated. All other financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date at
which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and
borrowings and trade and other payables. Such financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method
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(D)
PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment, except for land, are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment at the date of transition to IFRSs, was determined by reference to its fair
value at that date.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its
intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.

APPENDIXES

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment, and is recognised net within other income/expenses in profit or loss.
ii) Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated.

(E)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are
INTANGIBLE ASSETS measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including
expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the profit or loss
as incurred.
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. The estimated
useful lives for the current and comparative periods are 2 to 5 years.
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted if appropriate.
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The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
• Buildings
20 to 40 years
• Transmission networks
18 years
• Transformers and transformer substations 13 to 16 years
• Other
4 to 8 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted if appropriate.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY
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(F)
LEASED ASSETS

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased
asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in the
Group’s statement of financial position.

(G)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
of inventories is based on the weighted average principle, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(H)
IMPAIRMENT

i) Non-derivative financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter
bankruptcy. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
tariff. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account
against loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment securities. Interest on
the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease,
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

APPENDIXES

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity, to profit or loss.
The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to application of the effective
interest method are reflected as a component of interest income. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security increases and
the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, then the impairment loss is reversed, with the
amount of the reversal recognised in profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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ii) Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories
and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount tariff that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset or a CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or a CGU.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of CGUs are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

(I)
EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS
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i) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which
an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans, including Russia’s State pension fund, are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during
which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are
discounted to their present value.
ii) Defined benefit post-employment plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and any
unrecognised past services are deducted. The discount tariff is the yield at the
reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in
which the benefits are expected to be paid. The calculation is performed annually
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit
relating to past service by employees is recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent
that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses in profit or loss for the reporting
period under the 10% corridor of the post-employment benefit obligation.
iii) Other non-current employee benefits
The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than
pension plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount
tariff is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations. The calculation is performed using
the projected unit credit method. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise..

APPENDIXES

iv) Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash
bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

(K)
REVENUE

i) Electricity transmission
Revenue from electricity transmission is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the customer’s acceptance of the volume of electricity
transmitted is received. The tariffs for energy transmission are approved by Federal
Tariff Agency and Regional Energy Commission of Moscow and the Energy Committee
of Moscow Region.
ii) Connection services
Revenue from connection services represents a non-refundable fee for connecting the
customer to the electricity grid network. The terms, conditions and amounts of these
fees are negotiated separately and are independent from fees generated by electricity
transmission services.
Revenue is recognized when electricity is activated and the customer is connected
to the grid network, or, for contracts where connection services are performed in
stages, revenue is recognized in proportion to the stage of completion when an act of
acceptance is signed by the customer.

iii) Other services
Revenue from installation, repair and maintenance services and other sales is
recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer or when the services are provided.
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A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax tariff that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability.
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(J)
PROVISIONS
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(L)
OTHER EXPENSES

i) Lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
tariff of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease
payments over the remaining term of the lease when the contingency no longer
exists and the lease adjustment is known.
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an
arrangement is or contains a lease. A specific asset is the subject of a lease if
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that specified asset. An
arrangement conveys the right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys to the
Group the right to control the use of the underlying asset.
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At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Group separates
payments and other consideration required by such an arrangement into those for
the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the
Group concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments
reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair
value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability is reduced as payments are
made and an imputed finance charge on the liability is recognised using the Group’s
incremental borrowing tariff.

ii) Social expenditure
To the extent that the Group’s contributions to social programs benefit the
community at large and are not restricted to the Group’s employees, they are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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(M)
FINANCE INCOME
AND COSTS

Finance income comprises interest income on cash balances, bank deposits and
foreign currency gains. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective
interest method.
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, employee benefits and
finance leases, foreign currency losses.
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income
or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or
net loss position.
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
• temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;
• temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and
• taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax tariffs that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year, using tax tariffs enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax payable
also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.

MOESK

(N)
INCOME
TAX EXPENSE

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

In accordance with the tax legislation of the Russian Federation, tax losses and current
tax assets of a company in the Group may not be set off against taxable profits and current
tax liabilities of other Group companies. In addition, the tax base is determined separately
for each of the Group’s main activities and, therefore, tax losses and taxable profits related
to different activities cannot be offset.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.
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(O)
EARNINGS PER
SHARE

The Group presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
reporting period.

(P)
SEGMENT
REPORTING

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance,
and for which discrete financial information is available (see Note 5).
Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm’s length basis.

APPENDIXES

A number of new Standards, amendments to Standards and Interpretations are
not yet effective as at 31 December 2010, and have not been applied in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. Of these pronouncements, potentially the
following will have an impact on the Group’s operations. The Group plans to adopt
these pronouncements when they become effective.
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• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments will be effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. The new standard is to be issued in phases and is intended
ultimately to replace International Financial Reporting Standard IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The first phase of IFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and relates to the classification and measurement of financial assets.
The second phase regarding classification and measurement of financial liabilities
was published in October 2010. The remaining parts of the standard are expected to
be issued during the first half of 2011. The Group recognises that the new standard
introduces many changes to the accounting for financial instruments and is likely to
have a significant impact on Group’s consolidated financial statements. The impact
of these changes will be analysed during the course of the project as further phases
of the standard are issued. The Group does not intend to adopt this standard early.
• Amendments to IFRIC 14: IAS 19 – The limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction clarifies the accounting treatment
for prepayments made when there also is a minimum funding requirement. The
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011 and is applied retrospectively. The Group has not yet determined the potential
effect of the amendment.
• Various Improvements to IFRSs have been dealt with on a standard-by-standard
basis. All amendments, which result in accounting changes for presentation,
recognition or measurement purposes, will come into effect not earlier than 1
January 2011. The Group has not yet analysed the likely impact of the improvements
on its financial position or performance.

MOESK

(Q)
NEW
STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
NOT YET ADOPTED

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

4. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement
and for disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about
the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to the respective asset or
liability.
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(A)
EQUITY AND DEBT
SECURITIES

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity
investments is determined by reference to their quoted closing bid price at the
reporting date. The fair value of investments in unquoted debt securities is
determined based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market tariff of interest at the reporting date. The fair value of
investments is determined for disclosure purposes only.

(B)
TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLE

The fair value of non-current trade and other receivables is estimated as the
present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market tariff of interest at the
reporting date. Management believes that the fair value of current trade and other
receivables approximates their carrying amount.

(C)
NON-DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

The fair value of financial liabilities, which is calculated for disclosure purposes,
is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market tariff of interest at the reporting date. In respect of issued
bonds the fair value is determined by reference to their quoted closing price at the
reporting date. For finance leases the market tariff of interest is determined by
reference to similar lease agreements.

5. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports on components of the Group that are
reviewed each quarter by the Board of Directors, the chief operating decision maker, to allocate resources to
a segment and assess its performance.
Management has determined the following reportable segments:
•
Electricity transmission in Moscow;
•
Electricity transmission in the Moscow region;
•
Connection services in Moscow;
•
Connection services in the Moscow region.
Other activities mainly represent rental income, installation services, repair and technical maintenance
of electrical equipment, which have been included in the segment «other». None of these items meets any
of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segments in 2010 or 2009.

APPENDIXES

THE SEGMENT REVENUE AND PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010 ARE AS FOLLOWS:
Thousand, RUB Income

Electricity
transmission

Connection
services

Others

Total

Revenues
External revenues

91 238 959

18 944 958

525 298

110 709 215

Moscow

49 075 787

12 285 208

439 225

61 800 220

Moscow Region

42 163 172

6 659 750

86 073

48 908 995

Inter-segment revenue

–

–

1 073 657

1 073 657

Moscow

–

–

891 313

891 313

Moscow Region

–

–

182 344

182 344

Reportable depreciation and
amortisation

12 163 867

30

54 271

12 218 168

Moscow

6 981 954

–

42 683

7 024 637

Moscow Region

5 181 913

30

11 588

5 193 531

Reportable segment profit before
income tax

10 751 435

14 478 196

182 105

25 411 736

Moscow

9 443 474

8 528 508

160 852

18 132 834

Moscow Region

1 307 961

5 949 688

21 253

7 278 902

Reportable
segment totals

Adjustments

Consolidated
totals

Depreciation and amortisation

12 218 168

1 121 391

13 339 559

Capital expenditure

19 932 020

2 147 047

22 079 067

–

34 574

34 574
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Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

COMPARATIVE SEGMENT REVENUE AND PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2009 ARE AS FOLLOWS:
Thousand, RUB Income

Electric power
transmission

Connection
services

Others

Total

Revenues
External revenues

74 904 182

9 525 624

890 615

85 320 421

Moscow

39 229 541

6 854 282

797 669

46 881 492

Moscow Region

35 674 641

2 671 342

92 946

38 438 929

Inter-segment revenue

–

–

3 135 824

3 135 824

Moscow

–

–

3 003 969

3 003 969

Moscow Region

–

–

131 855

131 855

11 052 988

–

59 217

11 112 205

Reportable depreciation and
amortisation

MOESK

Thousand, RUB
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OTHER MATERIAL ITEMS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Moscow

6 301 275

–

47 418

6 348 693

Moscow Region

4 751 713

–

11 799

4 763 512

Reportable segment profit before
income tax

11 725 759

3 931 860

217 070

15 874 689

Moscow

8 620 568

2 250 469

220 557

11 091 594

Moscow Region

3 105 191

1 681 391

(3 487)

4 783 095

Reportable
segment totals

Adjustments

Consolidated
totals

Depreciation and amortisation

11 112 204

(875 767)

10 236 437

Capital expenditure

23 302 066

(2 963 773)

20 338 293

–

492 295

492 295

2010

2009

25 229 631

15 657 619

182 105

217 070

(3 919 436)

(6 855 503)

21 492 300

9 019 186

Borrowing costs

3 037 246

1 224 000

Expenses associated with leased property, plant and equipment

2 994 049

1 703 233

–

1 169 852

23 319

675 169

(1 121 391)

875 768

Provision for legal claims

(533 437)

336 299

Provision for unused vacations and bonuses

(446 401)

(107 245)

Allowance for impairment of account receivable and advances for capital
expenditure

(74 574)

(180 615)

Effect of loan discounting

(441 999)

(384 929)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

(34 574)

(492 295)

(2 837 980)

230 921

(466 175)

(84 864)

21 590 383

13 984 480

OTHER MATERIAL ITEMS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
Thousand, RUB

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

RECONCILIATION OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT PROFIT:
Thousand, RUB
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Reportable segments profit
Other profit or loss
Unallocated

Total profit before income tax per Russian Accounting Standards

Allowance for impairment of bank deposits
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation and amortisation

Accrued expenses for connection services
Other items

Consolidated profit before income tax per IFRS

Segment operating results that are reported to the Board of Directors are determined based on the income and
expenses calculated in accordance with Russian Accounting Standards. Segment operating results represent the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of finance income and expenses and other income and expenses which are
included in «unallocated» component.

APPENDIXES

SEGMENT ASSETS ARE PRESENTED IN THE TABLE BELOW:
Electricity
transmission

Thousand, RUB

Connection
services

Other

Unallocated

Total

December 31, 2010
Total assets

199 929 301

40 317 579

2 971 682

14 935 932

258 154 494

Moscow

139 800 918

30 173 105

2 471 689

–

172 445 712

Moscow Region

60 128 383

10 144 474

499 993

–

70 772 850

–

–

–

14 935 932

14 935 932

19 530 828

367 960

33 232

–

19 932 020

Moscow

11 679 272

–

32 910

–

11 712 182

Moscow Region

7 851 556

367 960

322

–

8 219 838

Unallocated

Capital expenditure

December 31, 2009
36 411 588

3 757 683

32 090 325

262 576 794

Moscow

132 647 512

26 421 485

3 272 625

–

162 341 622

Moscow Region

57 669 686

9 990 103

485 058

–

68 144 847

–

–

–

32 090 325

32 090 325

21 696 175

1 483 787

122 104

–

23 302 066

Moscow

7 735 739

–

122 102

–

7 857 841

Moscow Region

13 960 436

1 483 787

2

–

15 444 225

Unallocated

Capital expenditure

RECONCILIATION OF REPORTABLE SEGMENTS ASSETS:
Thousand, RUB

2010

2009

240 246 880

226 728 786

Other assets

2 971 682

3 757 683

Unallocated

14 935 932

32 090 325

258 154 494

262 576 794

(84 711)

(11 516 632)

Accrued expenses for connection services

(2 239 948)

(3 275 798)

Advances given

(17 380 691)

(14 545 298)

2 228 728

3 461 225

(526 869)

(492 295)

Allowance for impairment of account receivable and advances for capital
expenditure

(861 839)

(662 380)

Other items

(894 550)

227 374

Eliminations

(4 566 043)

(6 843 173)

233 828 571

228 929 815

Reportable segments assets

Total assets per Russian Accounting Standards
Net-off trade and other receivables and payables

Property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

Consolidated assets per IFRS
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190 317 198

MOESK

Total assets

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Segment assets that are reported to the Board of Directors are determined in accordance with Russian
Accounting Standards. Segment assets represent the assets of each segment without allocation of VAT, cash
and cash equivalents, inventory and investments held-to-maturity, which are included in «unallocated»
component

SEGMENT LIABILITIES ARE PRESENTED IN THE TABLE BELOW:
Thousand, RUB

Electricity
transmission

Connection
services

Other

Unallocated

Total

December 31, 2010
Total liabilities

42 102 710

64 502 267

2 153 761

9 992 719

118 751 457

Moscow

38 833 434

42 501 832

2 055 527

–

83 390 793

Moscow Region

3 269 276

22 000 435

98 234

–

25 367 945

–

–

–

9 992 719

9 992 719

Unallocated

December 31, 2009
Total liabilities

40 759 733

65 760 888

1 532 160

30 387 206

138 439 987

40 759 733

42 752 725

1 452 173

–

84 964 631

Moscow Region

–

23 008 163

79 987

–

23 088 150

Unallocated

–

–

–

30 387 206

30 387 206

Moscow
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RECONCILIATION OF REPORTABLE SEGMENTS LIABILITIES:
Thousand, RUB

2010

2009

106 604 977

106 520 621

Other liabilities

2 153 761

1 532 160

Unallocated

9 992 719

30 387 206

118 751 457

138 439 987

Financial lease liabilities

5 743 195

9 874 020

Deferred tax liabilities

4 123 539

5 735 063

Employee benefit

1 649 274

1 289 372

Provision for unused vacations

773 126

326 725

Reserve for legal claims

641 084

107 646

(3 169 107)

(2 450 668)

Net-off trade and other receivables and payables

(84 711)

(11 516 632)

Other items

(205 828)

(554 089)

Eliminations

(464 132)

(1 678 820)

127 757 897

139 572 602

Reportable segments liabilities

Total liabilities per Russian Accounting Standards

Unearned income

Consolidated liabilities per IFRS

APPENDIXES

Segment liabilities that are reported to the Board of Directors are determined in accordance with Russian
Accounting Standards. Segment liabilities represent the liabilities of each segment without allocation of
VAT, deferred tax liabilities and deferred income, which are included in «unallocated» component.

6. EARNINGS
2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

Electricity transmission

91 238 959

74 904 182

Revenue from connection services

19 966 619

10 036 013

526 000

890 615

111 731 578

85 830 810

Other revenue

Revenue from connection services represents services related to connection of customers’ power receivers
to the electricity network of the Group.
Other revenue is comprised of installation services and technical maintenance of electrical equipment
and rental income.

7. OPERATING EXPENSES

Electric transmission

(44 019 577)

(29 016 545)

Depreciation and amortization

(13 339 559)

(10 236 437)

Personnel costs

(12 762 263)

(10 224 577)

Rent

(3 353 860)

(3 054 343)

Repairs, maintenance and installation services

(2 791 505)

(2 695 321)

Connection services

(4 950 115)

(2 004 804)

Raw materials and supplies

(1 888 223)

(1 801 661)

Consulting, legal, audit services including professional training

(1 129 250)

(1 717 031)

Electricity count services

(324 070)

(1 202 909)

Insurance

(631 715)

(645 445)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

(34 574)

(492 295)

Telecommunication services

(576 621)

(489 864)

Taxes other than income tax

(502 864)

(395 267)

Security services

(381 956)

(326 365)

Allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables, non-current assets

(273 960)

(180 616)

Provision for legal claims

(533 437)

336 298

(1 865 412)

(2 291 812)

(89 358 961)

(66 438 994)

Other expenses
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2009
Thousand, RUB

MOESK

2010
Thousand, RUB
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8. PERSONNEL COSTS
2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

(11 548 490)

(8 481 187)

Contributions to State pension fund

(184 646)

(854 246)

Financial aid to employees and pensioners

(481 146)

(390 234)

Expenses in respect of post employment benefits – defined benefit plan

(200 144)

(136 413)

Expenses in respect of post employment benefits – defined contribution plan

(86 148)

(122 740)

Expense in respect of long-term service benefits provided

(261 689)

(239 757)

(12 762 263)

(10 224 577)

Salaries and wages

The average number of employees during the year was 16 266 (in 2009: 15 559).
A provision for unused vacation has been included in salaries and wages in the amount of RUB 75 792
thousand for the year ended at 31 December 2009 to conform with the current period’s presentation.

9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

–

549 244

1 454 203

544 701

1 454 203

1 093 945

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
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Other income

10. FINANCIAL INCOME AND COSTS
2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

253 957

348 400

253 957

348 400

Interest on employee benefits obligation

(147 575)

(112 156)

Interest expense

(123 460)

(3 288 661)

(2 219 359)

(3 448 828)

–

(36)

(2 490 394)

(6 849 681)

2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

(5 072 151)

(3 349 812)

645 228

(126 409)

(4 426 923)

(3 476 221)

Financial income
Interest income

Finance costs

Interest on finance lease
Other

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current tax expense
Deferred tax benefit/(expense)

APPENDIXES

The Group’s applicable tax tariff is the income tax tariff of 20% (2009: 20%). This tariff has been used in
the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Reconciliation of effective tax tariff:
2010

2009

Thousand,
RUB

%

Thousand,
RUB

%

Profit before income tax

21 590 383

100

13 984 480

100

Income tax at applicable tax tariff

(4 318 077)

(20)

(2 796 896)

(20)

(108 846)

(1)

(679 325)

(5)

(4 426 923)

(21)

(3 476 221)

(25)

Other non-deductible and non-taxable items, net

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Transformers and
transformer
substation

Other

Construction
in progress

Total

17 869 485

70 306 376

23 066 628

22 175 295

50 020 283

183 438 067

–

–

–

–

9 977 674

9 977 674

17 869 485

70 306 376

23 066 628

22 175 295

59 997 957

193 415 741

Additions

82 454

2 703 497

205 761

344 215

17 002 366

20 338 293

Disposals

(15 072)

(495 155)

(159 567)

(22 556)

(68 720)

(761 070)

Transfers

1 480 882

13 053 116

3 695 463

6 166 449

(24 395 910)

–

19 417 749

85 567 834

26 808 285

28 663 403

52 535 693

212 992 964

At 1 January, 2009

(2 021 027)

(10 133 707)

(3 574 805)

(5 018 573)

–

(20 748 112)

Depreciation charge

(839 185)

(4 217 565)

(1 794 300)

(3 310 488)

–

(10 161 538)

–

–

–

–

(492 295)

(492 295)

1 489

79 173

26 758

5 051

–

112 471

(2 858 723)

(14 272 099)

(5 342 347)

(8 324 010)

(492 295)

(31 289 474)

15 848 458

60 172 669

19 491 823

17 156 722

50 020 283

162 689 955

–

–

–

–

9 977 674

9 977 674

15 848 458

60 172 669

19 491 823

17 156 722

59 997 957

172 667 629

16 559 026

71 295 735

21 465 938

20 339 393

52 043 398

181 703 490

19 417 749

85 567 834

26 808 285

28 663 403

52 535 693

212 992 964

Additions

16 564

450 087

357 013

794 961

20 460 442

22 079 067

Disposals

(7 080)

(103 851)

(19 464)

(43 256)

(133 165)

(306 816)

Thousand, RUB
At 1 January 2009 (as
previously reported)
Impact of change in
accounting policy
At 1 January 2009
(restated)

At 31 December 2009
(restated)
Depreciation

Impairment losses
Disposals

At 31 December 2009
Net book value
At 1 January 2009 (as
previously reported)
Impact of change in
accounting policy
At 1 January 2009
(restated)

At 31 December 2009
(restated)
At 1 January 2010
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Transmission
networks
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Land and
buildings
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Transfers

At 31 December 2010

3 132 869

10 679 363

7 738 669

8 746 111

(30 297 012)

–

22 560 102

96 593 433

34 884 503

38 161 219

42 565 958

234 765 215

(2 858 723)

(14 272 099)

(5 342 347)

(8 324 010)

(492 295)

(31 289 474)

(815 782)

(5 119 446)

(2 113 127)

(5 237 159)

–

(13 285 514)

–

–

–

–

(34 574)

(34 574)

3 833

28 683

11 573

25 829

68

69 986

(3 670 672)

(19 362 862)

(7 443 901)

(13 535 340)

(526 801)

(44 539 576)

16 559 026

71 295 735

21 465 938

20 339 393

52 043 398

181 703 490

18 889 430

77 230 571

27 440 602

24 625 879

42 039 157

190 225 639

Depreciation
At 1 January 2010
Depreciation charge
Impairment losses
Disposals

At 31 December 2010
Net book value
At 1 January 2010

At 31 December 2010

(A)
IMPAIRMENT OF
PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT
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Impairment testing in respect of property, plant and equipment was performed as
at 31 December 2010. The majority of the Group’s property, plant and equipment is
specialised in nature and is rarely sold on the open market. The market for similar
property, plant and equipment is not active and does not provide a sufficient number
of sales transactions for use of a market-based approach for determination of the
fair value. Therefore the value in use for property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2010 was determined using projected cash flows. This method considers
the future net cash flows expected to be generated through the usage of property,
plant and equipment in the process of operating activities up to its ultimate disposal
to determine the recoverable amount of the assets.
As a result of impairment testing no impairment loss has been recognized.
During the year the management identified and wrote-off items of construction
in progress in the amount of RUB 34 574 thousand (2009: RUB 492 295 thousand)
which will not be used in operating activities.

(B)
The Group leases production equipment under a number of finance lease
LEASED PLANT AND agreements. At the end of each of the leases the Group has the option to purchase
MACHINERY
the equipment at a beneficial price. At 31 December 2010 the net book value of
leased plant and machinery was RUB 17 249 961 thousand (31 December 2009: RUB
18 680 541 thousand). The leased equipment secures lease obligations.

(C)
CAPITALIZED
INTEREST

Borrowing costs totalling RUB 3 363 166 thousand as at 31 December 2010 with a
capitalisation tariff of 9.63% (2009: RUB 1 839 075 thousand with a capitalisation
tariff of 14.9%) were included in the cost of property, plant and equipment and
represent interest on loans.

APPENDIXES

(D)
ADVANCE
PAYMENTS FOR
PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December 2010 construction in progress includes advance payments for
property, plan and equipment of RUB 3 802 930 thousand (31 December 2009: RUB 4
592 266 thousand; 31 December 2008: RUB 9 977 674 thousand).

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software

Thousand, RUB

At 1 January 2009

188 483

Additions

17 837

At 31 December 2009

206 320

Amortisation
At 1 January 2009

(35 907)

Amortisation

(74 899)

At 31 December 2009

(110 806)

Net book value
At 1 January 2009

152 576

At 31 December 2009

95 514

At 1 January 2010

206 320

Additions

49 553

Disposals

(91 529)

At 31 December 2010

164 344
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Amortisation
At 1 January 2010

(110 806)

Amortisation

(59 531)

Disposals

91 529

At 31 December 2010

(78 809)

At 1 January 2010

MOESK

Net book value
95 514

At 31 December 2010

85 535

14. INVESTMENTS
December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

Promissory notes

499 800

–

Other investment

125 000

–

624 800

–

Non-current

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Current
Promissory notes

1 187

2 500 000

1 187

2 500 000

15. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

Long-term advances for connection services

11 768 621

15 501 842

VAT on advances from customers

1 389 385

4 923 093

Financial assets available for sale

522 634

1 101 836

13 680 640

21 526 771

Financial assets available-for-sale relate to the Group contributions accumulated in solidary and employees’
individual pension accounts with the Non-State Pension Fund of Electric Power Industry. Subject to certain
restrictions contributions to the employee benefit fund can be withdrawn at the discretion of the Group.

16. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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(A)
RECOGNISED
DEFERRED TAX
ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Thousand, RUB

Assets

Liabilities

Net

2010

2009

2010

2009

2010

2009

Property, plant and equipment

–

–

(12 095 525)

(12 424 178)

(12 095 525)

(12 424 178)

Intangible assets

–

3 002

(2 145)

–

(2 145)

3 002

519

–

–

(7 787)

519

(7 787)

Trade and other receivables

1 581 727

864 730

–

–

1 581 727

864 730

Finance lease liability

2 673 596

3 273 732

–

–

2 673 596

3 273 732

Loans and borrowings

–

–

(221 256)

(63 644)

(221 256)

(63 644)

225 328

37 507

–

–

225 328

37 507

–

–

(255)

(730)

(255)

(730)

Provisions

282 435

86 526

–

–

282 435

86 526

Deferred expenses

498 053

635 694

–

–

498 053

635 694

Other

114 385

6 782

–

–

114 385

6 782

5 376 043

4 907 973

(6 943 138)

(7 588 366)

Inventories

Employee benefits
Trade and other payables

Tax assets/(liabilities)

(12 319 181) (12 496 339)

APPENDIXES

(B) MOVEMENT IN TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES DURING THE YEAR
January,
1, 2010

Recognised in
profit or loss

December,
31, 2010

(12 424 178)

328 653

(12 095 525)

3 002

(5 147)

(2 145)

Inventories

(7 787)

8 306

519

Trade and other receivables

864 730

716 997

1 581 727

Finance lease liability

3 273 732

(600 136)

2 673 596

Loans and borrowings

(63 644)

(157 612)

(221 256)

Employee benefits

37 507

187 821

225 328

Trade and other payables

(730)

475

(255)

Provisions

86 526

195 909

282 435

Deferred expenses

635 694

(137 641)

498 053

6 782

107 603

114 385

(7 588 366)

645 228

(6 943 138)

Thousand, RUB
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other

Carried through
profit and loss
for the period

December,
31, 2009

(12 005 904)

(418 274)

(12 424 178)

(30 515)

33 517

3 002

5 968

(13 755)

(7 787)

718 587

146 143

864 730

Finance lease liability

3 210 026

63 706

3 273 732

Loans and borrowings

(139 949)

76 305

(63 644)

Employee benefits

43 173

(5 666)

37 507

Trade and other payables

(1 113)

383

(730)

Provisions

50 186

36 340

86 526

Deferred expenses

687 584

(51 890)

635 694

–

6 782

6 782

(7 461 957)

(126 409)

(7 588 366)

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Other

MOESK

January,
1, 2009

Thousand, RUB
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17. INVENTORIES
December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

1 255 133

1 727 242

Other

421 799

478 833

Allowance for impairment of inventories

(2 268)

(6 541)

1 674 664

2 199 534

Raw materials and consumables

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

Trade receivables

9 472 943

6 285 732

Advances given

4 864 598

1 618 529

VAT on advances from customers

7 741 933

4 333 640

2 206

439 592

601 471

793 654

VAT recoverable

2 122 127

2 308 847

Allowance for impairment of accounts receivable

(832 250)

(662 379)

23 973 028

15 117 615

VAT receivable
Other receivables
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The Group’s exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and other
receivables are disclosed in Note 27.

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

444

558

Current accounts

1 830 153

4 963 825

Cash equivalents

1 100 640

130 000

2 931 237

5 094 383

Petty cash

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
and statement of cash flows

The Group’s exposure to interest tariff risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are
disclosed in Note 27.

20. EQUITY
(A) SHARE CAPITAL
Share capital
Issued shares, fully paid
Par value (in RUB)

Ordinary shares
December 31,
2010

Ordinary shares
December 31,
2009

48 707 091 574

48 707 091 574

0.50

0.50

APPENDIXES

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the shareholders.
(B)
TREASURY SHARES

In 2009 the Group sold 5 576 625 treasury shares at RUB 5 755 thousand. The loss
from sale of treasury shares in the amount of RUB 2 610 thousand was recognized
in equity. The Group did not hold any own shares as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009.

(C)
DIVIDENDS

In accordance with Russian legislation the Company’s distributable reserves are
limited to the balance of retained earnings as recorded in the Company’s statutory
financial statements prepared in accordance with Russian Accounting Principles.
In 2010 the Company declared and paid dividends in the amount of RUB 450 000
thousand (2009: nil).

21. EARNING PER SHARE
The calculation of earnings per share is based upon the profit for the year and the average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, calculated as shown below. The Company has no dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Number of outstanding shares
Profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of JSC «MOESK» (‘000 RUB)

December 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

48 707 091 574

48 707 091 574

17 170 787

10 755 676

0.3525

0.2208

Earnings per share (RUB)
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December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

Unsecured bank facility

25 424 735

9 150 000

Promissory notes

1 141 848

2 286 358

Unsecured bonds

–

2 356 507

2 905 833

6 511 632

29 472 416

20 304 497

745 300

–

Promissory notes

1 386 680

5 994 163

Current portion of unsecured bond issues

5 651 766

2 971 320

Current portion of unsecured bank facility

10 213

17 967 256

Current portion of finance lease liabilities

2 837 362

3 362 388

10 631 321

30 295 127

Non-current

Finance lease liabilities

Current
Unsecured bank facility

MOESK

December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB
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22. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s loans and borrowings, which
are measured at amortised cost. For more information about the Group’s exposure to interest tariff and
foreign currency risk, see Note 27.

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

TERMS AND DEBT REPAYMENT SCHEDULE
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows:
2010
Currency

Nominal tariff
of interest

Year of
maturity

Face value

Carrying
amount

Face value

Carrying
amount

Unsecured bonds

RUB

8.05%

2011

2 416 277

2 416 277

2 415 758

2 415 758

Unsecured bonds

RUB

9.3–25%

2010

3 235 489

3 235 489

2 912 069

2 912 069

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.76%

2015

1 494 526

1 494 526

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.80%

2015

2 988 844

2 988 844

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.80%

2015

2 988 661

2 988 661

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.87%

2017

2 988 197

2 988 197

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.87%

2017

2 988 046

2 988 046

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.87%

2017

620 452

620 452

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

8.08%

2013

2 990 932

2 990 932

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.82%

2013

2 990 864

2 990 864

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.83%

2013

2 990 784

2 990 784

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.80%

2010–
2013

993 204

993 204

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

7.80%

2010–
2013

1 400 438

1 400 438

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

4.90%

2010–
2011

745 300

745 300

-

-

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

9.58%

2010

-

-

3 676 982

3 676 982

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

12.75%

2010–
2011

-

-

9 620 121

9 620 121

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

9.04%

2010

-

-

5 100 346

5 100 346

Unsecured bank
facility

RUB

13.85–10.00%

2010

-

-

8 719 807

8 719 807

Promissory notes

RUB

9%

2009–
2012

2 641 659

2 528 528

4 021 402

3 807 650

Promissory notes

RUB

0%

2010

-

-

4 750 047

4 472 871

Finance lease liabilities

RUB

-

-

-

5 743 195

-

9 874 020

Thousand, RUB
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2009

34 473 673 40 103 737 41 216 532 50 599 624

APPENDIXES

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES ARE PAYABLE AS FOLLOWS:
2010
Thousand,
RUB

2009

Minimum
lease
payments

Interest

Principal

Minimum
lease
payments

Interest

Principal

4 048 705

1 211 343

2 837 362

5 688 798

2 326 410

3 362 388

3 575 918

768 097

2 807 821

8 634 878

2 295 881

6 338 997

130 760

32 748

98 012

287 590

114 955

172 635

7 755 383

2 012 188

5 743 195

14 611 266

4 737 246

9 874 020

Less than one
year
Between one
and five years
More than five
years

All bank loans are unsecured. The finance lease liabilities are secured by the leased assets (see Note
12).
By July 2010 OJSC Energocentr failed to pay the fifth, sixth and part of the fourth semi-annual coupons
on its bonds in the amount of RUB 757 317 thousand and failed to repurchase bonds in the amount of
RUB 2 478 172 thousand, due to liquidity problems. The management of JSC «MOESK» will make an offer
to restructure bondholders’ claims by entering into settlement agreements on the repayment of OJSC
Energocentr’s debt.

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(A) POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Total present value of obligations

1 674 219

1 127 554

Unrecognised past service cost

(387 531)

(417 347)

Net actuarial (gains)/losses not recognised in the statement of financial position

(440 533)

67 000

846 155

777 207

2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

Defined benefit obligations at 1 January

1 127 554

1 146 500

Benefits paid by the plan

(232 676)

(107 692)

Current service cost

169 855

106 261

Interest cost

101 480

90 000

Actuarial losses/(gains)

508 006

(107 515)

1 674 219

1 127 554

2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

Current service costs

169 855

106 261

Interest cost

101 480

90 000

472

338

29 816

29 816

301 623

226 415

Net liabilities in the statement of financial position

i) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

Defined benefit obligations at 31 December

ii) Expense recognised in profit or loss

Recognised actuarial gains
Past service cost
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Thousand, RUB
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2010
Thousand, RUB
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(B) OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Present value of obligations

2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

803 120

512 165

The Group provides long-service jubilee benefits and funeral benefits for its employees. The whole amount
of these obligations is unfunded.
i) Movements in the present value of other long-term employee benefit obligations
2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

Defined benefit obligations at 1 January

512 165

282 232

Contribution received

(16 830)

(31 977)

Current service costs

29 450

20 000

Interest costs

46 095

22 156

Actuarial losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

232 240

219 754

803 120

512 165

2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

Current service costs

29 450

20 000

Interest on obligation

46 095

22 156

Recognised actuarial losses

232 240

219 754

307 785

261 910

Defined benefit obligations at 31 December
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ii) Expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

(C) ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
Principal actuarial assumptions for both post employment benefits and other long-term employee
benefits:

Discount tariff at 31 December
Future salary increases
Mortality table

2010

2009

7%

9%

5.4 %

8.6 %

Russian 2005

Russian 2005

The expenses of both post employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits are recognised in
the following line items in the statement of comprehensive income:
2010
Thousand, RUB

2009
Thousand, RUB

Operating Expenses

461 833

376 170

Finance costs

147 575

112 156

609 408

488 326

APPENDIXES

24. PROVISIONS
Thousand, RUB

Legal Claims

Balance at 31 December 2008

443 945

Provisions raised during the year

91 434

Provisions used during the year

(427 733)

Balance at 31 December 2009

107 646

Provisions raised during the year

617 562

Provisions used during the year

(84 125)

Balance at 31 December 2010

641 084

Provision for legal claims relates to the claims brought against the Group within the ordinary course
of business. The balance of the provision at 31 December 2010 is expected to be utilised in 2011. The
management believes, after taking appropriate legal advice, that the outcome of current legal claims will
not give rise to any significant loss beyond the accrued amounts.

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

Advances received

9 593 865

35 157 174

Other payables

1 299 267

842 961

10 893 132

36 000 135

Accounts payable – trade

12 273 820

11 203 568

Advances received

53 235 708

32 126 262

Other payables and accrued expenses

1 254 621

366 240

66 764 149

43 696 070
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As at 31 December 2010 overdue advances received for connection services were RUB 11 652 488 thousand
(31 December 2009: RUB 8 580 274 thousand). The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is entering into
additional agreements with revised terms of execution.
The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in
Note 27.

26. OTHER TAXES PAYABLE

Property Tax

December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

48 957

74 951

MOESK

Current
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Non-current
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Other Taxes

12 917

11 220

Employee taxes

6 006

897

Value added tax

695 502

200 288

763 382

287 356

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(A)
OVERVIEW

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•
credit risk
•
liquidity risk
•
market risk.
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above
risks, the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing
risk, and the Group’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are
included throughout these consolidated financial statements.
The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The
Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.
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(B)
CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to
a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Group’s receivables from customers, investment securities and bank deposits.
i) Trade and other receivables
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer.
Approximately 74% (2009: 78%) of the Group’s revenue is attributable to sales
transactions with a single customer transacting with the Group for over four years,
and, consequently, losses have incurred infrequently. For the purpose of monitoring
customer credit risk, the remaining customers are grouped according to their credit
characteristics, including aging profile, maturity and existence of previous financial
difficulties. The Group management assesses the credit quality of the customer,
taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Based
on the analysis performed, individual risk limits are set for each group of customers
and these limits are reviewed on a regular basis.
The Group does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of
anticipated losses in respect of trade and other receivables that relates to individually
significant exposures.

APPENDIXES

EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Carrying amount
Thousand, RUB

December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009

Trade and other receivables

9 288 053

6 431 310

Cash and cash equivalents

2 931 237

5 094 383

Short-term/long-term investments

625 987

2 500 000

Available-for-sale financial assets

522 634

1 101 836

13 367 911

15 127 529

The Group’s most significant customer accounts for RUB 7 043 080 thousand of the trade receivables
carrying amount at 31 December 2010 (2009: RUB 3 988 882 thousand).
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
The aging of trade and other receivables at the reporting date was:
Gross Amount

Loss From
Impairment

2010

2010

2009

2009

8 692 327

4 993

6 431 310

-

Past due less than year

573 324

19 472

133 890

133 890

More than one year

775 223

728 356

514 186

514 186

10 040 874

752 821

7 079 386

648 076

Thousand, RUB
Not past due

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year
was as follows:
December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

Balance at 1 January

648 076

563 590

Increase during the period

137 504

132 028

Decrease due to reversal

(32 759)

(47 542)

Balance at 31 December

752 821

648 076

The impairment loss at 31 December 2010 of RUB 752 821 thousand (2009: RUB 648 076 thousand)
relates to disputable accounts receivable with no payment.
Based on past experience and analysis performed by the credit department, Group management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of accounts receivable not past due because the
customers to which these balances relate have a good credit history.
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Loss From
Impairment

MOESK

Gross Amount
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ii) Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents are now deposited only with financial
institutions that at the time of deposit the management considers to have minimal
risk of default. Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents are mainly held at OJSC
Bank Moscow, OJSC Sberbank, OJSC Bank VTB, OJSC ATB bank, OJSC Uralsib.

(C)
LIQUIDITY RISK
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Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group’s objective of liquidity management is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, except circumstances
described in Note 23.
The Group monitors and manages liquidity risk by maintaining bank credit lines,
obtaining loans (Note 22) and sufficient cash balances on its settlement accounts
(see Note 19).
By July 2010 OJSC Energocentr failed to pay the fifth, sixth and part of the fourth
semi-annual coupons on its bonds in the amount of RUB 757 317 thousand and failed
to repurchase bonds in the amount of RUB 2 478 172 thousand, due to liquidity
problems. Included in this consolidated financial statements carrying amount of the
total assets of OJSC Energocentr were RUB 6 943 073 thousand as at 31 December
2010.
Subsequently, bankruptcy proceedings were initiated by OJSC Bank Petrocommerce
due to failure to meet the repayment schedule.
According to a court decision, a monitoring procedure was introduced at OJSC
Energocentr in August 2010 in accordance with the Russian law on bankruptcy,
and this procedure is currently underway. Further decisions as to the course of
the bankruptcy process are expected to be taken in the first half of June 2011 at a
general creditors’ meeting.
The management of JSC «MOESK» has an intention to finalize uncompleted
construction items of OJSC Energocentr, and currently is in the process of assessing
the resources required. The management has an intention to conclude settlement
agreements in relation to the repayment of the OJSC Energocentr’s debt which will
facilitate the postponement of the payment for three to five years and subsequent
repayment by instalments. This, in turn, will allow OJSC Energocentr to retain its
production assets and complete the items under construction. The management will
propose to the board of directors of JSC «MOESK» to consider participation in the
financial recovery of OJSC Energocentr including debt restructuring if the mentioned
above terms of the amicable settlement agreement are reached.
If the settlement agreements are not concluded with creditors of OJCS Energocentr
on the above terms, or if the board of directors of JSC «MOESK» does not approve
the participation of JSC «MOESK» in the financial recovery of OJSC Energocentr
including debt restructuring, bankruptcy procedures will follow in accordance with
the legislation of the Russian Federation.
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
estimated interest payments and the impact of netting agreements:
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2010
Thousand, RUB

Average interest
tariff
Effective
Contract
interest
tariff

0-6
months

6-12
months

Between
1 and 5
years

More than
5 years

Total

Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Unsecured bonds

8.05%

8.05%

94 070

2 451 618

–

–

2 545 688

Unsecured bonds

9.3–25%

9.3–25%

3 235 489

–

–

–

3 235 489

Unsecured facility

7.76–7.87% 7.76–7.87%

548 271

557 359

11 726 113

7 463 928

20 295 671

Unsecured facility

7.82–8.08% 7.82–8.08%

3 506 049

353 885

10 022 749

–

13 882 683

Promissory notes

9.00%

9.00%

758 949

724 773

1 340 137

–

2 823 859

Finance lease liabilities

–

12.24–
25.02%

1 655 847

2 392 858

3 575 918

130 760

7 755 383

Trade payables

–

–

12 273 820

–

–

–

12 273 820

22 072 495

6 480 493

26 664 917

7 594 688

62 812 593

0-6
months

6-12
months

Between
1 and 5
years

More than
5 years

Total

2009
Thousand, RUB

Average interest
tariff
Acc. to
Effective
agreeinterest
ment
tariff
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8.05%

8.05%

153 321

95 629

2 406 920

–

2 655 870

Unsecured bonds

9.3–25%

9.3–25%

446 689

2 791 606

–

–

3 238 295

Unsecured bank facility

9.58%

11.01%

3 789 816

–

–

Unsecured bank facility

18.70–
13.85%

16.24%

552 498

4 753 906

4 491 932

–

9 798 336

Unsecured bank facility

12.75%

12.75%

567 136

5 235 603

4 977 113

–

10 779 852

Unsecured bank facility

9.04%

10.57%

5 260 356

–

–

–

5 260 356

Promissory notes

9.00%

9.00%

830 259

790 224

2 823 859

–

4 444 342

Promissory notes

–

9.00%

–

4 750 047

–

–

4 750 047

Finance lease liabilities

–

12.24–
25.02%

2 967 646

2 721 152

8 634 878

287 590

14 611 266

Trade payables

–

–

11 203 568

–

–

–

11 203 568

287 590

70 531 748

25 771 289 21 138 167 23 334 702

3 789 816

MOESK
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Non-derivative financial
liabilities

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

(D)
MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange
tariffs, interest tariffs and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimising the return.
i) Interest tariff risk
Changes in interest tariffs impact primarily loans and borrowings by changing
either their fair value (fixed tariff debt) or their future cash flows (variable tariff
debt). Management does not have a formal policy of determining how much of
the Group’s exposure should be to fixed or variable tariffs. However, at the time of
raising new loans or borrowings management uses its judgment to decide whether
it believes that a fixed or variable tariff would be more favourable to the Group over
the expected period until maturity.

PROFILE
At the reporting date the interest tariff profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial
instruments was:
Carrying amount
Thousand, RUB
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2010

2009

3 557 224

7 594 383

(40 103 737)

(32 259 696)

(36 546 513)

(24 665 313)

–

(18 339 928)

Fixed tariff instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

Variable tariff instruments
Financial Liabilities

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed tariff instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed tariff financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives (interest tariff swaps) as hedging instruments under
a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore a change in interest tariffs at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable tariff instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest tariffs at the reporting date would have increased (decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency tariffs, remain constant. There were no variable tariff instruments at 31 December
2010.
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Profit or Loss

Capital

Increase for
100 b.p.

Decrease for
100 b.p.

Increase for
100 b.p.

Decrease for
100 b.p.

Variable tariff instruments

15.41%

13.41%

15.41%

13.41%

Cash flow sensitivity (net)

(183 399)

183 399

(183 399)

183 399

Thousand, RUB
2009

ii) Foreign currency risks
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risks.
(E)
FAIR VALUES
VERSUS CARRYING
AMOUNTS

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying
amounts shown in the statement of financial position, are as follows:

Thousand, RUB

Note

Carrying
amount

Fair Value

Carrying
amount

Fair Value

2010

2010

2009

2009

522 634

522 634

1 101 836

938 386

522 634

522 634

1 101 836

938 386

Assets carried at fair value
Available-for-sale financial assets

15
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18

9 288 053

9 288 053

6 431 310

6 431 310

Investments

14

625 987

625 987

2 500 000

2 423 420

Cash and cash equivalents

19

2 931 237

2 931 237

5 094 383

5 094 383

12 845 277

12 845 277

14 025 693

13 949 113

Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Unsecured bank loan

22

26 180 248

23 983 851

(27 117 256)

(26 864 636)

Unsecured bond issues

22

5 651 766

5 612 262

(5 327 827)

(3 482 551)

Promissory notes

22

2 528 528

2 543 813

(8 280 521)

(7 849 394)

Finance lease liability

22

5 743 195

5 743 195

(9 874 020)

(9 874 020)

Trade payables

25

12 273 820

12 273 820

(11 203 568)

(11 203 568)

52 377 557

50 156 941

(61 803 192)

(59 274 169)

The basis for determining fair values is disclosed in Note 4.
In relation to issued bonds the fair value is determined by reference to their quoted closing price at the
reporting date.
The interest tariffs used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are based on average weighted
interest tariffs on loans extended to nonfinancial organizations, and were as follows:
Thousand, RUB
Financial assets
Financial Liabilities

2010

2009

13%

13.8%

11.20%

12.26%

MOESK

Trade and other receivables
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(F)
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation,
and is best evidenced by an active quoted market price.
The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the
Group using available market information, where it exists, and appropriate valuation
methodologies. However, judgement is necessarily required to interpret market data
to determine the estimated fair value. The Russian Federation continues to display
some characteristics of an emerging market and economic conditions continue to limit
the volume of activity in the financial markets. Market quotations may be outdated
or reflect distress sale transactions and therefore not represent fair values of financial
instruments. Management has used all available market information in estimating the
fair value of financial instruments.
Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial
position at their fair value. Fair values were determined based on quoted market prices.

(G)
CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT

232

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net
operating income divided by total shareholders’ equity, excluding minority interests.
The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.
The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings, as shown
in the statement of financial position, less cash. Total capital is calculated as equity, as
shown in the statement of financial position.
Balance Sheet Value
Thousand, RUB

2010

2009

Total borrowings (Note 22)

40 103 737

50 599 624

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19)

(2 931 237)

(5 094 383)

Net debt

37 172 500

45 505 241

Equity

106 070 674

89 357 213

35.05%

50.9%

Debt to equity ratio

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.
The Company is subject to external capital requirements that require that its net assets as determined in
accordance with Russian Accounting Principles must exceed its charter capital at all times.
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28. OPERATING LEASES
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years

December 31,
2010
Thousand, RUB

December 31,
2009
Thousand, RUB

2 219 409

2 210 650

536 541

500 490

3 826 703

3 662 142

6 582 653

6 373 282

The Group leases a number of plots of land owned by local governments under operating lease. Land lease
payments are determined by lease agreements.
The plots of land leased by the Group are the areas where the Group’s electricity network, transformer
substations and other assets are located. Lease payments are reviewed regularly to reflect market rentals.

29. COMMITMENTS

30. CONTINGENCIES
(A)
INSURANCE

The insurance industry in the Russian Federation is in a developing state and
many forms of insurance protection common in other parts of the world are not yet
generally available. The Group does not have full coverage for its plant facilities,
business interruption, or third party liability in respect of property or environmental
damage arising from accidents on Group property or relating to Group operations.
Until the Group obtains adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the loss
or destruction of certain assets could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
operations and financial position.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Capital commitments. Future capital expenditures for which contracts have been signed as at 31 December
2010 amount to RUB 37 038 128 thousand (31 December 2009: RUB 52 290 520 thousand). The Group has not
entered into new finance lease agreements for the items of property, plant and equipment. Capital commitments
for current finance lease agreements for the items of property, plant and equipment amount to RUB 2 735 795
thousand (31 December 2009: RUB 2 735 795 thousand).
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Sales commitments. The Group has entered into contracts to carry out electricity transmission services to
OJSC «Mosenergosbyt» for RUB 101 116 147 thousand (2009 RUB 78 230 382 thousand), to LLC «Rusenergosbyt»
for RUB 1 994 821 thousand (2009: RUB 2 274 929 thousand) and to other companies for RUB 9 580 549 thousand
in 2010 (2009: RUB 6 905 800 thousand).

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

(B)
LITIGATION

The Group is party to certain legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
business. The management does not believe that these matters will have a material
adverse effect on the Group’s operating results.

(C)
TAXATION
CONTINGENCIES
IN THE RUSSIAN
FEDERATION

The taxation system in the Russian Federation continues to evolve and is characterised
by frequent changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are
sometimes contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities.
Taxes are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities, which have the
authority to impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. A tax year remains open
for review by the tax authorities during the three subsequent calendar years; however,
under certain circumstances a tax year may remain open longer. Recent events within
the Russian Federation suggest that the tax authorities are taking a more assertive and
substance-based position in their interpretation and enforcement of tax legislation.
These circumstances may create tax risks in the Russian Federation that are substantially
more significant than in other countries. Management believes that it has provided
adequately for tax liabilities based on its interpretations of applicable Russian tax legislation,
official pronouncements and court decisions. However, the interpretations of the relevant
authorities could differ and the effect on these consolidated financial statements, if the
authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.
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(D)
ENVIRONMENTAL
MATTERS

The Company and its predecessors have operated in the electric transmission industry in
the Russian Federation for many years. The enforcement of environmental regulations in
the Russian Federation is evolving and the enforcement posture of Government authorities
is continually being reconsidered. Management periodically evaluates its obligations under
environmental regulations.
Potential liabilities might arise as a result of changes in legislation and regulation or
civil litigation. The impact of these potential changes cannot be estimated, but could be
material. In the current enforcement climate under existing legislation, management
believes that there are no significant liabilities for environmental damage.

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(A)
CONTROL
RELATIONSHIPS

As at 31 December 2010 the Parent of the Group was JSC «IDGC Holding», a state
controlled entity. The party with ultimate control over the Group is the Government
of the Russian Federation, which held the majority of the voting rights of JSC «IDGC
Holding».

(B)
TRANSACTIONS
WITH
MANAGEMENT
AND CLOSE FAMILY
MEMBERS

There are no transactions or balances with key management and close family
members except their remuneration in the form of salary and bonuses.
(i) Management remuneration
Total remuneration in the form of salary and bonuses paid to the key management
and the members of the Board of Directors during the year ended 31 December 2010
was RUB 278 243 thousand (2009: RUB 228 246 thousand).
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(C)
TRANSACTIONS
WITH OTHER
RELATED PARTIES

The Group’s other related party transactions are disclosed below. Other related party
represents entities under common control of the parent and other state controlled entities.
The Russian Government directly affects the Group’s operations through the system
of regional tariffs. In accordance with legislation the Group’s tariffs are controlled by the
Federal Service on Tariffs and the Regional Energy Commission in each region. The Group
has a different tariff for each region of the Russian Federation. Within each region the tariff
is the same, regardless of whether the customer is a state entity or not.
The transactions with other related parties and the related balances are shown below as
a percentage of the total amount.

Percentage of the total amount (%)
December 31,
2010

December 31,
2009

Revenue

86.14%

86.92%

–

–

Expenses

55.94%

47.52%

–

–

Trade and other receivables

–

–

93.03%

88.30%

Trade and other payables

–

–

33.34%

23.92%

Advances received

–

–

38.09%

24.03%

Advances given

–

–

98.86%

96.20%

Transaction
value

Transaction
value

2010

2009

Outstanding
Balance
December 31,
2010

Outstanding
Balance
December 31,
2009

19 775 570

–

14 640 051

17 900 641

19 775 570

–

14 640 051

17 900 641

Thousand, RUB

Loans received:
Entities under common control of the parent
and other state controlled entities

Loans are received under the market interest tariff except for interest free loans received from the
parent company in the amount of RUB 4 750 047 thousand in May 2008 and repaid in 2010.

32. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPORTING DATE
The preliminary date for the creditors’ meeting in relation to bankruptcy of OJSC Energocentr is scheduled
for the first half of June 2011.
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APPENDIX 5.
INFORMATION ABOUT COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE CONDUCT
Prepared in accordance with the Instruction of the Federal Committee for Securities
Market dated 30.04.2003 No.03-849/r «On methodological recommendations for
structure and form of representing information about compliance with the Code of
Corporate Conduct in annual reports of joint-stock companies.»

№

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct

Complied
or not complied with

Note

General meeting of shareholders

236

1.

The shareholders shall be notified about a scheduled general
meeting of shareholders not later than 30 days before the
date of the meeting irrespective of the items on the agenda,
if a longer period is not legally provided.

Complied with

Specified in the p. 11.5. Art. 11 of the Company’s
Articles of Association.

2.

The shareholders shall have an opportunity to get acquainted
with the list of persons entitled to participate in annual
general meeting of shareholders, starting from the day,
on which the meeting is announced until the closing date
of an on-site general meeting of shareholders, and if the
shareholders meeting is in absentia, until the last date of
filing the voting bulletins.

Complied with

Specified in the p. 6.2. Art. 6 of the Company’s Articles
of Association.

3.

The shareholders shall have an opportunity to get acquainted
with information (materials) to be submitted during
preparations to a general meeting of shareholders through
electronic means of communication, including Internet.

Complied with

Specified in the Provision of the Company on preparing
and holding a General Meeting of shareholders. The
Company’s website: http://www.moesk.ru.

4.

The shareholders shall have an opportunity to propose an
item to the agenda for a general meeting of shareholders
or demand to convene a general meeting of shareholders
without submission of an extract from the shareholders
register if his rights to shares are accounted for through the
system of shareholders register, and if his rights to shares
are accounted for on a depository account, an extract form
this depository account is sufficient to exercise the above
mentioned rights.

Complied with

Specified in the p. 6.2. Art. 6, p. 14.2. Art. 14 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

5.

The articles of association or internal documents of the
joint-stock company shall require the obligatory presence
of the general director, members of the management board,
members of the board of directors, members of the Check-up
Committee and the auditor of the joint-stock company at a
general meeting of shareholders.

Partially
complied with

According to the p. 5.2.2. of the Corporate Governance
Code of the JSC «MOESK», wherever possible, the
Company ensures the presence of shareholders,
members of the Board of Directors, executive bodies,
the Check-up Committee and the Auditor of the
Company at the General Meeting of shareholders and
authorizes them to answer questions of shareholders.
The Company’s Articles of Association and internal
documents contain no provisions on their obligatory
presence at the General Meeting of shareholders.
However, according to the existing practices, the
General Director of the Company, the Chairman of
the Board of Directors and members of the Board
of Directors are present at General Meetings of the
Company.According to the p. 10.10 Art. 10 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, functions of the
Chairman at the General Meeting of shareholders are
performed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors.
In case of absence of the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and his/her deputy, the Chairman's functions
at the General Meeting of shareholders may be
performed by any member of the Board of Directors
pursuant to a resolution of the Company’s Board
of Directors, or a resolution of the members of the
Board of Directors present at the General Meeting of
shareholders.
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№

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct

Complied or
not complied
with

Note

6.

Candidates shall be present when a general meeting of
shareholders discusses questions about election of members
of the board of directors, general director, members of the
management board, and members of the audit commission and
appointment of the auditor of the joint-stock company.

Partially
complied with

The legislation of the RF does not prescribe
that the said candidates shall be present at
the general meeting of the shareholders.
As a matter of practice, when any questions
about election of members of the Board
of Directors, the General Director, member
of the Management Board, the Check-up
Committee are to be discussed at the General
Meeting of shareholders, the candidates
receive invitations to the General Meeting of
shareholders.

7.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall
prescribe the procedure for registration of participants of the
general meeting of shareholders.

Complied with

P. 5.1. of the Provision on preparing and
holding a General Meeting of shareholders.

The Board of Directors
Complied with

Sp. 18 p. 15.1 art. 15 of the Company’s
Articles of Association.

9.

The joint-stock company shall have a risk management procedure
approved by the board of directors.

Complied with

Risk management policy in the JSC «MOESK»
was approved by the resolution of the Board
of Directors dated 10.06.2010 (Minute No.
110).

10.

The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall
prescribe the right of the board of directors to pass a resolution
on suspension of authority of the general director appointed by a
general meeting of shareholders.

Complied with

Sp. 31 p. 15.1 Art. 15 of the Company’s
Articles of Association specifies the
possibility of suspending powers of the
Managing Company (the manager) by the
Board of Directors.

11.

The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall
prescribe the right of the board of directors to establish
requirements for the qualification and size of remuneration of
the general director, members of the management board, heads of
the main structural divisions of the joint-stock company.

Partially
complied with

The Company’s Articles of Association do not
specify any right of the Board of Directors
to set requirements as to the qualification
of and the amount of remuneration for
the General Director, members of the
management board, and heads of the
main structural subdivisions. The Board
of Directors has approved provisions on
financial stimulation of the General Director
and top managers of the Company.

12.

The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall
prescribe the right of the board of directors to approve terms and
conditions of agreements with the general director and members
of the management board.

Complied with

Specified in the p. 20.5 Art. 20 of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

13.

The articles of association or internal documents of the jointstock company shall contain a requirement that the votes of the
members of the board of directors, who are the general director
and members of the management board, be not counted for
approval of the terms and conditions of agreements with the
general director (managing company, manager) and members of
the management board.

Not complied
with

There is no such a requirement in the
Company’s Articles of Association or internal
documents.

14.

The board of directors of the joint-stock company shall
include minimum three independent directors who meet the
requirements of the Code of Corporate Conduct.

Complied with

The Company’s Board of Directors includes
no less than 3 (three) independent directors.

15.

The board of directors of the joint-stock company shall not
include persons who have been found guilty of committing
economic crimes or crimes against state authorities, state
service interests, and interests of service in local authorities, or
persons against whom administrative penalties were applied for
infringements of law in the area of entrepreneurial business or in
the area of finance, taxes and dues, and securities market.

Complied with

The Company’s Board of Directors does not
include such persons.
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include the board of directors' authority to approve an annual
financial and economic plan of the company.
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Complied or
not complied
with

№

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct

16.

The board of directors of the joint-stock company shall not include
persons who are members, general directors (managers), members
of management bodies, or workers of a legal entity competing with
the joint-stock company.

Complied with

The Company’s Board of Directors does not
include such persons.

17.

The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall require
the election of the board of directors by cumulative voting.

Complied with

Specified in the p. 10.8. Art. 10. of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

18.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall prescribe
that the members of the board of directors refrain from actions
which will or potentially may result in a conflict between their
interests and those of the joint-stock company, and if such conflict
occurs, they shall disclose information about the conflict to the
board of directors.

Partially complied with

According to the p. 6.1.6 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the members of the Board
of Directors shall refrain from actions which
may result in a conflict between their
interests and those of the Company. In case
of such conflict, the member of the Board of
Directors shall inform other members of the
Board of Directors about that, and refrain
from voting on the relevant questions.
Besides, according to the sense of p. 3.5. of
the Provision on the order of convening and
holding meetings of the Board of Directors,
the members of the Board of Directors, when
exercising their rights and discharging their
duties, shall act for the benefit of the Company, and exercise their rights and discharge
their duties reasonably and in good faith in
respect of the Company.

Complied with

Provision on information policy. Provision on
insider information.

19.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall prescribe
the obligation of members of the board of directors to notify the
board of directors in writing of their intent to make transactions
with securities of the joint-stock company of whose board of directors (or its subsidiaries/dependant companies) they are members,
or with those of affiliated (associated) companies, as well as to
disclose information about transactions made by them with such
securities.

Complied with

20.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall require
that meetings of the board of directors be held at least once every
six weeks.

Specified in the p. 18.2 Art. 18 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Complied with

21.

Meetings of the board of directors of the joint-stock company shall
be held during the reporting year for which the annual report of
the joint-stock company is prepared, at least once every six weeks.

There were 24 meetings of the Board of
Directors held in 2010, with regularity of no
less than once a month.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall prescribe
the procedure for the board of directors' meetings.

Complied with

22.

Art. 7. of the Provision on the order of convening and holding meetings of the Board of
Directors.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall include
a provision indicating that the board of directors shall approve
transactions of the joint-stock company in the amount of 10% and
more of the value of the company's assets except for transactions
made in the course of ordinary activities.

Complied with

Sp. 23 p. 15.1 Art. 15 of the Company’s
Articles of Association specify an approval
of transactions with the value of 5 to 25% of
the book value of the assets.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall include
the right of the board of directors to obtain information from
executive bodies and heads of the main structural subdivisions of
the joint-stock company as may be necessary to fulfill their duties,
as well as provision about responsibility for failure to submit such
information.

Complied with

Specified in the p. 3.1. of the Provision on
the order of convening and holding meetings
of the Board of Directors.

The board of directors shall have a strategic planning committee, or
the functions of the above committee shall be assigned to another
committee (except for the audit committee, and the personnel and
remuneration committee).

Complied with

The resolution of the Board of Directors dated 26.09.2007 (minute No. 49) established
the Strategy and Development Committee
under the Board of Directors.
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23.

24.

25.

Note
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Note

26.

The board of directors shall have a committee (audit committee)
which recommends an auditor to the board of directors of the jointstock company and interacts with him and the audit commission of
the company.

Complied with

The resolution of the Board of Directors
dated 13.12.2006 (minute No. 37) established the Audit Committee under the
Board of Directors.

27.

The audit committee shall consist only of independent and nonexecutive directors.

Complied with

The Audit Committee includes only independent directors.

28.

The audit committee shall be managed by an independent director.

Complied with

The Audit Committee is managed by an
independent director.

29.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall prescribe
that all members of the audit committee shall have access to any
document and information of the joint-stock company provided
that they do not disclose confidential information.

Complied with

Provision on the Audit Committee under
the Board of Directors.

30.

The board of directors shall have a committee (personnel and
remuneration committee) with the function to specify criteria for
selection of candidates to the board of directors and develop the
remuneration policy of the joint-stock company.

Complied with

The resolution of the Board of Directors
dated 26.09.2007 (minute No. 49) established the Personnel and Remuneration
Committee under the Board of Directors.

31.

The personnel and remuneration committee shall be managed by an
independent director.

Complied with

The Personnel and Remuneration Committee is managed by an independent
director.

32.

The personnel and remuneration committee shall not include officers of the joint-stock company.

Complied with

The Personnel and Remuneration Committee does not include officers of the
Company.

33.

The board of directors shall have a risk committee, or the functions
of the above committee shall be assigned to another committee
(except for the audit committee, and the personnel and remuneration committee).

Not complied
with

There is no such a Committee in the
Company.

34.

The board of directors shall have a corporate conflicts management
committee, or the functions of the above committee shall be assigned to another committee (except for the audit committee, and
the personnel and remuneration committee).

Not complied
with

There is no such a Committee in the
Company.

35.

The corporate conflicts management committee shall not include
officers of the joint-stock company.

Not complied
with

There is no such a Committee in the
Company.

36.

The corporate conflicts management committee shall be managed
by an independent director.

Not complied
with

There is no such a Committee in the
Company.

37.

The joint-stock company shall have internal documents approved
by the board of directors, which regulate the procedure for creation
and work of the committees under the board of directors.

Complied with

Provision on the Reliability Committee under the Board of Directors of the
JSC «MOESK», approved by the Board of
Directors on 10.12.2009 (minute No. 98);
Provision on the Audit Committee under
the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK»
in the new edition, approved by the Board
of Directors on 10.06.2010 (minute No.
110); Provision on the Personnel and
Remuneration Committee under the Board
of Directors of the JSC «MOESK» in the
new edition dated 10.06.2010 (minute No.
110); Provision on the Strategy and Development Committee under the Board of
Directors of the JSC «MOESK» in the new
edition dated 28.12.2007 (minute No. 54);
Provision on the Committee for Technological Connection to Electric Networks under
the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK»
dated 11.02.2009 (minute No. 79).
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38.

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall prescribe the procedure for defining quorum of the board of directors
that enables ensuring of the obligatory participation of independent directors in any meetings of the board of directors.

Complied or
not complied
with

Note

Not complied
with

The Company’s Articles of Association contain
no requirements as to the procedure for
defining quorum of the Board of Directors
to ensure the obligatory participation of
independent directors in meetings of the
board of directors of the Company. The
Company’s Articles of Association were
prepared based on the legislation of the RF,
pursuant to which the quorum for holding a
meeting of the company’s board of directors
shall be defined by the company’s articles
of association; however it shall not be less
than a half of the elected members of the
company’s board of directors. According
to the p. 18.12. of the Company’s Articles
of Association, resolutions of the Board of
Directors are legally qualified if no less than
a half of the members of the Company’s Board
of Directors were participating in discussion
over them.

Executive bodies
39.

The joint-stock company shall have a collegial executive body
(management board).

Complied with

According to the p. 9.1 Art. 9.1. of the
Company’s Articles of Association, there is a
collegial executive body—the Management
Board—established in the Company.

40.

The articles of association or internal documents of the jointstock company shall prescribe that the management board shall
approve real estate transactions, borrowing loans by the joint-stock
company, if the said transactions are not falling into the category
of large transactions and not relating to ordinary activity of the
joint-stock company.

Complied with

According to the p. 21.2. Art. 21 of the
Articles of Association of the JSC «MOESK»
and p. 10-11 of the Provision on the
Management Board of the JSC «MOESK»
Art. 5, p. 5.9., p. 14-16, there are provisions
specified about the necessity that questions
about real estate transactions be discussed
by the management board, and credits be
received by the joint-stock Company, if
the said transactions are not falling into
the category of large transactions and not
relating to ordinary activity of the joint-stock
company.

41.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall prescribe
the procedure for approval of transactions which are beyond the
scope of the financial and economic plan the joint-stock company.

Complied with

Provision on the credit policy of the
Company.

42.

The executive bodies shall not include persons who are members,
general directors (managers), members of management bodies, or
workers of a legal entity competing with the joint-stock company.

Complied with

43.

The executive bodies shall not include persons who have been
found guilty of committing economic crimes or crimes against state
authorities, state service interests, and interests of service in local
authorities, or persons against whom administrative penalties were
applied for infringements of law in the area of entrepreneurial business or in the area of finance, taxes and dues, and securities market. If the functions of the sole executive body are performed by a
managing company or a manager, the general director and members
of the management board of the managing company shall meet the
requirements specified for the general director and members of the
management board of the joint-stock company.

Complied with
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The Company’s executive bodies do not
include the said persons.
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Complied or
not complied
with

Note

44.

The articles of association or internal documents of the jointstock company shall prohibit the managing company (the
manager) to perform equal functions in competitive companies,
as well as to be in any other property relations with the jointstock company apart from rendering of services of a managing
company (a manager).

Not complied
with

The Articles of Association and internal
documents do not specify such a provision.

45.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall
prescribe that the executive bodies refrain from actions which
will or potentially may result in a conflict between their interests
and those of the joint-stock company, and if such conflict occurs,
they shall inform the board of directors about that.

Partially
complied with

According to the p. 6.2.7. of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Company’s General
Director shall refrain from actions which may
result in a conflict between his/her interests
and those of the Company. In case of such
conflict, the General Director shall inform
the Company’s Board of Directors about that,
and refrain from discussing and voting on the
relevant questions on the agenda of meetings
of the Board of Directors (provided that the
General Director is included in it).

46.

The articles of association or internal documents of the jointstock company shall contain criteria for selecting a managing
company (a manager).

Partially
complied with

The Company’s Articles of Association, p. 20.3
Art. 20, specify that the rights and duties
of the managing company (the manager)
in respect of managing the day-to-day
operations of the Company are defined by the
legislation of the Russian Federation and by
the agreement concluded by the managing
company (the manager) with the Company.
The agreement on behalf of the Company shall
be signed by the Chairman of the Company’s
Board of Directors, or by a person so authorized
by the Company’s Board of Directors. Terms
and conditions of the agreement, including in
respect of the term of powers, shall be defined
by the Company’s Board of Directors, or by a
person so authorized by the Company’s Board
of Directors.

47.

The executive bodies of the joint-stock company shall submit
monthly reports on their activities to the board of directors.

Partially
complied with

Specified in the sp. 34 p. 15.1 Art. 15. of
the Company’s Articles of Association. The
frequency of submitting reports is not defined.

48.

Any agreements concluded between the joint-stock company and
the general director (managing company, manager) and members
of the management board shall prescribe the responsibility for
violation of provisions on the use of the confidential and inside
information.

Not complied
with

The agreements concluded by the jointstock Company with the General Director
do not specify a responsibility for violation
of provisions on the use of confidential and
inside information.

Company’s Secretary
49.

The joint-stock company shall have a special officer (company's
secretary) whose mission is to make sure that the bodies and
officers of the joint-stock company follow the procedural
requirements which guarantee that the rights and legitimate
interests of the shareholders of the joint-stock company are
exercised.

Partially
complied with

The Secretary of the Board of Directors acts
by virtue of the Provision on the order of
convening and holding meetings of the Board
of Directors.

50.

The articles of association or internal documents of the jointstock company shall prescribe the procedure for appointment
(election) of the company's secretary and liabilities of the
company's secretary.

Complied with

Specified in the p. 4.2. of the Provision on the
order of convening and holding meetings of
the Board of Directors

51.

The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall
contain requirements as to the candidate to the position of the
Secretary.

Not complied
with

The articles of association of the company do
not contain requirements as to the candidate
to the position of the Company’s Secretary.
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Material corporate actions
52.

The articles of association or internal documents of the jointstock company shall contain a requirement for approval of a
major transaction before it is made.

Partially complied with

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the competency of the general meeting of shareholders (sp. 17 p. 10.2 Art. 10) and
the Board of Directors (sp. 24 p. 15.1 Art. 15)
includes an approval of large transactions in
cases specified in the Chapter X of the Federal
Law «On joint-stock companies".

53.

An independent appraiser shall be involved to determine the
market value of the property being the subject of a major
transaction.

Complied with

Practically applied according to the requirements of the Federal Law «On joint-stock
companies».

54.

In the event of an acquisition of large shareholdings in the
joint-stock company (takeover), the articles of association of
the joint-stock company shall prohibit any actions being aimed
at protection of interests of the executive bodies (members of
those bodies) and members of the board of directors of the jointstock company, and worsening the standing of the shareholders
in comparison with their current standing (in particular, any
decisions on issue of additional shares, issue of securities
convertible into shares, or securities which entitle to purchase
the company's shares, made by the board of directors before
expiration of the term presumed for acquisition of the securities
shall be prohibited, even if the board of directors is entitled to
make such decisions pursuant to the articles of association).

Not complied
with

These requirements are not defined by the
articles of association.

55.

The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall
require that an independent appraiser be involved to determine
the current market value of the shares and possible changes in
their market value as a result of takeover.

Not complied
with

Practically applied according to the requirements of the Federal Law «On joint-stock
companies». There is no such a provision in
the Company’s articles of association.

56.

The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall
not include a provision on release of the purchaser from the
obligation to suggest that the shareholders sell the company's
ordinary shares owned by them (equity securities convertible
into ordinary shares) in the course of a takeover.

Complied with

There is no such a requirement in the Articles
of Association.

57.

The articles of association or internal documents of the jointstock company shall require that an independent appraiser be
involved to determine the shares conversion ratio in the course of
reorganization.

Not complied
with

There is no such a requirement in the Articles
of Association.
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Disclosure of information
58.

An internal document shall be approved by the board of
directors, which specifies the rules and approaches of the jointstock company as to disclosure of information (Provisions on
Information Policy).

Complied with

Provision on information policy of the Company was approved by the resolution of the
Board of Directors on 30 April 2010 (Minute
No. 107).

59.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall contain
a requirement to disclose information about share placement
purposes, persons who intend to acquire the shares to be
placed, including a large equity stake, as well as whether the
top executives of the joint-stock company will participate in
acquisition of the company's shares to be placed.

Not complied
with

The corresponding requirements will be observed, if the Company places shares.

60.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall contain
a list of information, documents and materials which shall
be submitted to the shareholders for the purpose of solving
questions proposed to the general meeting of shareholders.

Complied with

Provision on information policy of the Company.

APPENDIXES

Complied or
not complied
with

Note

61.

The joint-stock company shall have a website in the Internet
where information about the joint-stock company shall be
regularly disclosed.

Complied with

The Company has a website where it discloses
information about the Company. The website
is located at: http://www.moesk.ru. The
Company ensures timely update of the
corporate website, including disclosure of
information according to the requirements
of the applicable legislation of the RF and
the Provision on information policy of the
Company.

62.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall contain
a requirement to disclose information on transactions of the
joint-stock company with persons being the top executives of
the joint-stock company pursuant to the articles of association,
and on transactions made by the joint-stock company with
organizations in which the top executives of the joint-stock
company directly or indirectly hold 20 per cent and more of the
authorized capital of the joint-stock company, or on which the
said persons otherwise may have a significant influence.

Complied with

Provision on information policy of the
Company.

63.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall contain
a requirement to disclose information about all transactions
which can influence the market value of the shares of the jointstock company.

Complied with

Provision on information policy of the
Company.

64.

An internal document shall be approved by the Board of Directors
to regulate the use of essential information about the activities
of the joint-stock company, shares and other securities of the
Company and transactions with them, which is not public and
disclosure of which may have material effect on the market value
of the shares and other securities of the joint-stock company.

Complied with

Provision on insider information of the
Company.

Control over financial and economic activity
65.

The board of directors shall approve procedures for internal
control over financial and economic activities of the joint-stock
company.

Complied with

Provision on internal control procedures of the
Company, Internal Control Policy of the JSC
«MOESK».

66.

The joint-stock company shall have a special subdivision
to ensure compliance with the internal control procedures
(supervision and auditing service).

Complied with

The Department of Internal Control being a
special subdivision of the joint-stock company
and ensuring compliance with the internal
control procedures.

67.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall contain
a requirement for the board of directors to specify the structure
and members of the supervision and auditing service of the jointstock company.

Not complied
with

The internal documents of the Company do
not contain a requirement for the board of
directors to specify the structure and members
of the supervision and auditing service of the
joint-stock company.

68.

The supervision and auditing service shall not include persons
who have been found guilty of committing economic crimes
or crimes against state authorities, state service interests, and
interests of service in local authorities, or persons against whom
administrative penalties were applied for infringements of law
in the area of entrepreneurial business or in the area of finance,
taxes and dues, and securities market.

Complied with

The Company’s supervision and auditing
service does not include the said persons.

69.

The supervision and auditing service shall not include persons
who are members of the executive bodies of the joint-stock
company, as well as persons who are members, general directors
(managers), members of management bodies, or workers of a legal
entity competing with the joint-stock company.

Complied with

The Company’s supervision and auditing
service does not include the said persons.

243

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct

MOESK

№

MOSCOW UNITED ELECTRIC GRID COMPANY

Complied or
not complied
with

№

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct

70.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall specify
a term for submitting documents and materials to the supervision
and auditing service for the purpose of estimation of a closed
financial and economic transaction, as well as a responsibility of
the officers and the workers of the joint-stock company for nonsubmission of them within the indicated period.

Partially
complied with

P. 6.1.2 of the Provision on internal control
procedures of the Company defines terms for
submitting materials and documents to the
supervision and auditing service.

71.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall specify
the obligation of the supervision and auditing service to inform
the audit committee of any violations identified, and if there is
no such audit committee, to the board of directors of the jointstock company.

Complied with

P. 6.2. and p. 4.2. of the Provision on internal
control procedures of the Company.

72.

The articles of association of the joint-stock company shall
contain a requirement for the supervision and auditing service to
make a preliminary assessment of advisability of transactions not
specified in the financial and economic plan of the joint-stock
company (nonstandard operations).

Not complied
with

The said procedure is not specified in the
Company’s Articles of Association.

73.

The internal documents of the joint-stock company shall specify
a procedure for reconciliation of a nonstandard operation with
the board of directors.

Not complied
with

The said procedure is not specified in the
Company’s internal documents.

74.

An internal document shall be approved by the board of
directors to specify the procedure for auditing the financial and
economic activities of the joint-stock company by the Check-up
Committee.

Complied with

The procedure for auditing the Company’s
financial and economic activities is defined
in the Provision on the Check-up Committee
approved by the General Meeting of
shareholders of the Company.

75.

The audit committee shall assess the auditor's report before
it is submitted to the shareholders at the general meeting of
shareholders.

Complied with

P. 3.1 of the Provision on the audit committee
under the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Note

Dividends
76.

An internal document shall be approved by the board of directors,
which the board of directors shall follow when accepting
recommendations concerning the dividend tariff (Provision on
Dividend Policy).

Complied with

Provision on dividend policy was approved by
the resolution of the Board of Directors dated
02.09.2010 (Minute No. 114)

77.

The Provision on Dividend Policy shall specify the procedure for
determination of a minimum share of the net profit of the jointstock company, used for distribution of dividends, and conditions
on which the dividends shall not be paid or shall be partially paid
on preferred shares on which the amount of dividends is specified
in the articles of association of the joint-stock company.

Partially complied with

P. 3.5. of the Provision on dividend policy.

78.

Information about the dividend policy of the joint-stock
company and amendments introduced into it shall be published
in the periodical specified in the articles of association of the
joint-stock company for publication of notifications of general
meetings of shareholders, and the said information shall be
published on the web-site of the joint-stock company in the
Internet.

Partially complied with

The Provision on dividend policy is published
on the website of the Company http://www.
moesk.ru.
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APPENDIX 6.
CHRONICLE OF TRANSACTIONS
MADE BY THE COMPANY IN 2010
Information about transactions that were a matter of interest and approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company in 2010:
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1) Agreement on maintenance of electrotechnical and technological equipment of the
500 kW «Ochakovo» SS between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» (Central
Electric Networks as a branch) and «FGC UES», JSC (Moscow Enterprise of the Long-Distance
Electric Networks as a branch) for the overall amount of 20 055 617.17 Rubles (minute No.
105 of 01.04.2010).
Interested parties: Ivanov S.N. as the member of the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK».
2) Paid services agreement between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»
and the JSC «ENIN» for the overall amount of 424 800 Rubles (minute No. 105 of 01.04.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
3) Agreement on partnership in financing measures for rendering services connected
with holding the «All-Russian professional skills competitions of crews servicing high-voltage transmission lines of distribution grids of JSC «IDGC Holding» between the JSC «Moscow
United Electric Grid Company» and the JSC «IDGC of Volga» for the overall amount of 834,000
Rubles (minute No. 108 of 14.05.2010).
Interested parties: Tikhonova M.G., Ivanov S.N. as the members of the Board of Directors of
the JSC «MOESK»; the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
4) Contract agreement on performance of maintenance between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» (High-voltage Cable Networks as a branch) and the JSC «Federal
Grid Company of the Unified Energy System of Russia» (JSC «FGC UES») (Moscow ELDEN as a
branch) for the overall amount of 435 238.36 Rubles (minute No. 108 of 14.05.2010).
Interested parties: Ivanov S.N. as the member of the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK».
5) Services agreement between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» and
the JSC «Energy Institute named after G.M. Krzhizhanovsky» (Branch «COTENERGO») for the
overall amount of 2 407 200 Rubles (minute No. 108 of 14.05.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «MOESK» as the Company's shareholder.
6) Agreement on protection of information constituting commercial secrets between
the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» and the JSC «IDGC Holding» (minute No. 111
of 29.06.2010).
Interested parties: Demidov A.V., Shvets N.N. as the members of the Board of Directors of
the JSC «MOESK»; the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
7) Agreement on indemnification of expenditures on lease of a residential unit between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» and Konovalov Andrey Pavlovich for
the overall amount of 100 000 Rubles on a monthly basis (minute No. 111 of 29.06.2010).
Interested parties: Konovalov A.P. as the General Director of the JSC «MOESK».
8) Agreement on lease of dispatching and technological control between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» (Eastern Electric Networks as a branch) and the «FGC UES»
(Moscow Enterprise «Long-Distance Electric Networks» as a branch) for the overall amount of
11 237 Rubles on a monthly basis (minute No. 111 of 29.06.2010).
Interested parties: Ivanov S.N. as the member of the Board of Directors of the JSC «MOESK».
9) Additional agreement No. 2 to the lease agreement dated 21 November 2007 No.
12284-50/1711 between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» and the JSC «Mosenergo» for the overall amount of 9 092 441.51 Rubles on a monthly basis (minute No. 112 of
02.08.2010).
Interested parties: Shulginov N.G. as the member of the Board of Directors of the JSC
«MOESK».
10) Paid services agreement between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»
(High-voltage Cable Networks as a branch) and the JSC «Mosenergo» (HPP-27 as a branch) for
the overall amount of 335 070.83 Rubles (minute No. 113 of 02.09.2010).
Interested parties: Gavrilenko A.A., Shulginov N.G., Sklyarov Ye.V. as the members of the
Board of Directors JSC «MOESK».
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11) Agreement on lease of copper core cable communication lines between the JSC
«MOESK» (Central Electric Networks as a branch) and the «FGC UES» (Moscow Enterprise
«Long-Distance Electric Networks» as a branch) for the overall amount of 50 585.42 Rubles
on a monthly basis (minute No. 113 of 02.09.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
12) Purchase agreement between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» and
the JSC «Moskabelsetmontazh» for the overall amount of 57 474.96 Rubles (minute No. 116
of 01.10.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
13) Agreement on performance of works for the purpose of updating the Moscow Region
electric networks development scheme between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» and the OJSC «Institute «ENERGOSETPROYEKT» for the overall amount of 41,300,000
Rubles (minute No. 117 of 30.10.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
14) Agreement on rendering services for processing the transformer fluid between
the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» (Central Electric Networks as a branch)
and the OJSC «RETO Plant» for the overall amount of 536 226.46 Rubles (minute No. 117 of
30.10.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
15) Agreement on rendering services for receipt and allocation of the transformer fluid
between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» (Central Electric Networks as a
branch) and the JSC «RETO Plant» for the overall amount of 209 913.49 Rubles (minute No.
117 of 30.10.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
16) Contract agreement on performance of design and survey works on the «Zubovskaya» substation between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» (Central Electric
Networks as a branch) and the JSC «RETO Plant» for the overall amount of 4 720 000 Rubles
(minute No. 119 of 26.11.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
17) Contract agreement on performance of design and survey works on the «Nikitskaya»
substation between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» (Central Electric Networks as a branch) and the JSC «RETO Plant» for the overall amount of 4 720 000 (minute No.
119 of 26.11.2010).
Interested parties: the OJSC JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
18) Construction contract between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company»
(Central Electric Networks as a branch) and the JSC «RETO Plant» for the overall amount of
2,786 700.28 Rubles (minute No. 119 of 26.11.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
19) Residential lease agreements between the JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» and the State Educational Institution of Higher Vocational Education «Energy Institute
of Moscow (Technical University)» for the overall amount of 12 768.05 Rubles on a monthly
basis (minute No. 119 of 26.11.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
20) Agreement on technologic cooperation between the «SO UPS» and the JSC «Moscow
United Electric Grid Company» for the purpose to secure reliability of functioning of the UES
of Russia (minute No. 120 of 17.12.2010).
Interested parties: Shulginov N.G. as the member of the Board of Directors of the JSC
«MOESK»; the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
21) Agreement on paid services for execution of an examination of materials substantiating the value of standard of the in-process electric loss in electric networks, between the
JSC «Moscow United Electric Grid Company» and the JSC «Research and Testing Center of
IDGC» for the overall amount of 1 670 550 Rubles (minute No. 123 of 31.12.2010).
Interested parties: the JSC «IDGC Holding» as the Company's shareholder.
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APPENDIX 7.
CONTACT DETAILS FOR SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

115114, Moscow, 2-nd Paveletsky Proyezd 3 bldg. 2
Phones: (495) 982-35-74 (inquiries about letters and messages);
Fax: (495) 585-14-51
E-mail: odou@moesk.ru
Inquiry service: (495) 980-12-88
Securities department
Phones: (495) 984-57-71, 984-57-73
E-mail: TomichevichVD@moesk.ru

Registrar
109544, Moscow, Novorogozhskaya St. 32 bldg. 1
Phones:
(495) 974-83-50 (general questions)
(495) 974-83-47 (shareholders support services)
Fax:
(495) 678-71-10
E-mail: info@rostatus.ru
Web-site: www.rostatus.ru
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Department for interaction with mass media
Phone: (495) 984-57-43
E-mail: BarkovskayaEV@ moesk.ru

247

MOESK

IR department
Phone: (495) 984-57-67
E-mail: ir@moesk.ru, PutintsevVS@moesk.ru

